
A G E N D A  

SISKIYOU COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

August 9, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING 

Brandon A. Criss, Chair 
Supervisor, District 1 

Ed Valenzuela, Vice Chair 
Supervisor, District 2 

Michael N. Kobseff 
Supervisor, District 3 

Nancy Ogren 
Supervisor, District 4 

Ray A. Haupt 
Supervisor District 5 

Angela Davis 
County Administrator 

842-8005 

Edward J. Kiernan 
County Counsel 

842-8100  

Laura Bynum 
Ex-Officio Clerk to the Board 

842-8084 

 

     

   

 

  

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

   

   

  

  

NOTE:  This  meeting  is  being  agendized  to  allow  staff  and  public  to  participate  in  the  meeting  via
teleconference.

Conference Call In Number:  1-669-900-6833 Meeting ID:  865 6634 3792  or  access here:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86566343792
During the call you may press  *9  on your phone to  ‘raise your hand’  to ask to speak during the meeting.

  (Or follow the alternate digital directions below)

Remote Listening and Public  Comment via Teleconference:

Members of the public may  appear in person or  remotely listen to and participate in the meeting via teleconference, which 
is encouraged. For those wishing to appear in person, the location of the meeting is  Board of Supervisors’ Chambers,
311 Fourth Street, Yreka CA.  If you wish to listen or participate in this meeting through teleconference,  simply dial into

  the conference line at 1-669-900-6833  Meeting ID:  865 6634 3792  or access here:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86566343792
Alternate directions:  During the  meeting, click on the “Participants” icon at bottom center
  of your computer or phone screen, then click the “Raise Hand” button.

The Siskiyou County  Board of Supervisors welcomes you to this meeting. This agenda contains a brief general description  of each item
to be considered.  If you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, please complete a Speaker’s Card identifying the item(s) and return it
to the  Board Clerk. If you wish to speak on a matter that does not appear on the agenda, you may do so during the Public Comment
period.  Persons speaking during Public Comment will be limited to three minutes, or depending on the number of persons wishing to
speak, it may be reduced to allow all members of the public the opportunity to address the Board.  Except as otherwise provided by law,
no action or discussion shall be taken/conducted on any item not appearing on the agenda. When addressing the Board, please state
your  name  for  the  record  prior  to  providing  your  comments.  Please  address  the  Board  as  a  whole  through  the  Chair.  Comments  to
individual Supervisors or staff are not permitted.

The Board may take action sitting as the Board of Supervisors  and as the governing body of:  Siskiyou County Flood Control
and Water Conservation District Board, Siskiyou Power Authority, County Service Area 3 Board, County Service Area 4 Board,
County Service Area 5 Board, Airport Land Use Commission, and In Home Supportive Services Public Authority.

Availability of Public Records.  All public records related to an open session item on this agenda, which are not exempt from disclosure
pursuant  to  the  California  Public  Records  Act,  that  are  distributed  to  a  majority  of  the  legislative  body  will  be  available  for  public
inspection at 311 Fourth Street, Room 201, Yreka CA 96097 at the same time that the public records are distributed or made available
to the members of the legislative body.  All supporting documentation is available for  public review in the office of the Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors, located in the Siskiyou County Clerk’s Office,  311 Fourth Street, Room 201, Yreka, CA 96097, during regular business
hours,  9:00 a.m.  –  12:00 p.m. and 1:00 p.m.  -  4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodations for this meeting should notify the Clerk of the
Board’s Office 48 hours prior to the meeting at (530) 842.8084, or toll free at 1.888.854.2000, ext. 8084.

***PLEASE NOTE START TIME***

1. 9:00 A.M.  -  FLAG SALUTE

2. INVOCATION  -  Siskiyou County Sheriff Chaplain.

3. ROLL CALL

4. PRESENTATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

https://zoom.us/j/92693186525
https://zoom.us/j/94136587091


Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 2 of 280 

 

PLEASE NOTE:  This time slot is for information from the public.  No action or discussion will be conducted on matters presented at this time.  
You will be allowed three (3) minutes for your presentation. The Chair can extend the time to five (5) minutes for appropriate circumstances. 
Written comments can be presented if so desired, by providing a minimum of 7 copies to the Clerk. When addressing the Board, please state 
your name for the record prior to providing your comments. Please address the Board as a whole through the Chair. Comments should be 
limited to matters within the jurisdiction of the Board. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA - The following consent agenda items are expected to be routine and non-controversial. 

They may be acted upon by the Board at one time without discussion. Any Board member, staff member, or 
interested person may request that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and 
consideration.  Approval of a consent item means approval of the recommended motion as specified on the 
Agenda Worksheet. Public comment for consent agenda items: - Please press *9 to ‘raise your hand’ to ask to 
speak during the ZOOM/teleconference meeting. 

A. COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 
Adopt Resolution authorizing the termination of certain surcharges and levies pursuant to Title 8, 
Chapter 5.7 of the California Government Code to transfer excess funds from the Courthouse 
Construction Fund to the County General Fund for the purposes of meeting the public safety or 
emergency medical services needs of the County. 

B. GENERAL SERVICES 
Approve contract with Ark Design Construction and Roofing, Inc., for roof replacement and 
asbestos abatement for the project located at 810 South Main Street, Yreka CA, in an amount 
not to exceed $706,000, effective August 9, 2022. 

C. GENERAL SERVICES 
Approve contract with Ark Design Construction and Roofing, Inc., for roof replacement and 
asbestos abatement for the project located at 1312 Fairlane Road, Yreka CA, in an amount not 
to exceed $365,000, effective August 9, 2022. 

D. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 
Approve contract with North American Mental Health Services, to provide telepsychiatry 
services, at the rates specified in the contract, for the term June 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 

E. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
Approve first addendum to California Harm Reduction Initiative to expand harm reduction and 
support services 2020-2023 grant agreement, amending certain agreement language and re-
distributing the County's award in the amount of $307,700 over the term August 1, 2020 through 
June 30, 2023. 

F. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
Approve Memorandum of Understanding and Data Sharing agreement between Siskiyou County 
Health and Human Services Agency, Social Services Division and Public Health Division, for the 
CalWORKs Home Visiting Initiative sub-award and sub-recipient agreement to provide services 
to pregnant and parenting individuals, families and infants, in an amount not to exceed 
$420,336, for the term July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024. 

G. PUBLIC WORKS  
Approve request to accept the Hotelling Gulch Bridge (2C-287), valued at $919,474, donated by 
the Salmon River Restoration Council, and add to the County's current bridge inventory. 

6. DEPARTMENTAL REQUESTS 

A. COUNTY ADMINISTRATION - PERSONNEL 
Discussion, direction and possible action re the following:  
1.         Resolution adopting the comprehensive Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Organized Employees of Siskiyou County – Miscellaneous Unit and implementing the provisions 
thereof, for the term effective September 4, 2022 and ending September 27, 2025.  



 
 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

  
 

 

  

  

  

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

Board of Supervisors
Tuesday, August 9, 2022
Page  3  of  280

2.          Resolution amending the Siskiyou County Salary Schedule, associated with the OESC  -
Miscellaneous Unit Memorandum of Understanding, effective September 4, 2022, September 3,
2023 and September 1, 2024.

B. COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Discussion, direction and possible action re Siskiyou County Roadway Implementation 
Agreement with the Klamath River Renewal Corporation with regard to disbursement of funds for
said implementation, for the term identified in the Agreement.

THE FOLLOWING MAY BE HEARD AT ANY TIME DURING THE MEETING

7.  FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

A. PUBLIC COMMENT

B. CONSENT AGENDA

Flood Control District  -  Adopt Resolution approving a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection and associated Conservation Camp 
Project Request, for the Deadwood Conservation Camp to provide fuels management, fire 
reduction, and trail maintenance services on Flood District property, in an amount not to exceed
$9,985.36 for the term July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027.

C. ADJOURNMENT

8.  MINUTE APPROVAL

A. July 12, 2022

9. CLOSED SESSION  -  It  is the intent of the Board to meet in closed session to discuss the 
following items:

A. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(a),
name of case: In the Matter of the License Surrender Proceedings for the Lower  Klamath
Project: Federal Energy Regulatory Commission proceedings: No. P-2082-063 and 14803-001.

B. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(d)(1),
name of case: American Civil Liberties Union of Northern California v. J. Kirk Andrus, in his 
official capacity as the District Attorney of Siskiyou County, and the County of Siskiyou, Siskiyou 
County Superior Court, Case No. SCCVPT 22-475.

C. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant to Government Code  §54956.9(d)(1),
name of case: Ger Chong Ze Chang, et al., v. County of Siskiyou, et al., United States District 
Court, Eastern District of California, Sacramento Division, Case No. 2:22-at-00807.

D. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant  to Government Code §54956.9(a),
name of case: In the Matter of Jiao Huang: Administrative Code Enforcement Appeal: No. CR 
22-0105.

E. Conference with legal counsel, anticipated litigation pursuant to Government Code §54956.9,
initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(d)(4), one case.

10.  REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

11.  BOARD AND STAFF REPORTS



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 4 of 280 

 

*******Note:  Correspondence received by the Board of Supervisors is on file and available for review in the County Clerk's 
Office.  This document and other Board documents are available on-line at www.co.siskiyou.ca.us. 



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 5 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested:      Meeting Date: 8/9/2022
OR
Consent
Contact Person/Department: Sherry Lawson, Administration Phone: 530-842-8005

Address: 1312 Fairlane Rd, Yreka CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Sherry Lawson, Deputy County Administrator

Subject/Summary of Issue:

The Board of Supervisors established in the county treasury a courthouse construction fund per government code 
section 76100. The amounts deposited into this fund were for the purpose of assisting Siskiyou County in the 
acquisition, rehabiliation, construciton and financing of a courtroom, courtroom building, or a building containing 
facilities necessary or incidental to the operation of the justice system. The Siskiyou County Superior Court no 
longer resides in a the county courthouse and it has been determined the need for this fund no longer exists. 
Pursuant to government code 76110 the Board may, by resolution, transfer the excess deposits from this fund to 
the county general fund for the purpose of meeting the public safety or emergency medical services needs of the 
county.  

Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $19,444

Fund: 4203 Description: Courthouse 
Construction Org.: 201075 Description: Courthouse 

Construction

Account:      Description:      

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:      

     

Additional Information:      

     

Recommended Motion:

Approve attached resolution authorizing closure and transfer of excess funds from the 
Courthouse Construction Fund to the county general fund for the purposes of meeting the 
public safety or emergency medical services needs of the County. Authorize the Auditor to 
close the Courthouse Construction Fund and establish budget for the excess funds as provided 
by Administration.
Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 
submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.A. Backup Material - 1 of 3



prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Item No.A. Backup Material - 2 of 3



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE  
COUNTY OF SISKIYOU AUTHORIZING  

THE TERMINATION OF CERTAIN SURCHARGES AND LEVIES PURSUANT TO TITLE 8, 
CHAPTER 5.7 OF THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMETN CODE 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Siskiyou established in the 

County Treasury, a Courthouse Construction Fund, pursuant to California Government Code 
section 76100; and    
 

WHEREAS, fees deposited into the fund are generated from fines, penalties, or 
forfeitures imposed and collected by the courts for all criminal offenses; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this fund is to assist Siskiyou County in the acquisition, 
rehabilitation, construction and financing of a courtroom, a courtroom building, or a building 
containing facilities necessary or incidental to the operation of the justice system; and 
 

WHEREAS, these funds were used for facilities maintenance projects in connection 
with the Siskiyou County Courthouse; and 
 

WHEREAS, Siskiyou County Superior Court moved from the County owned 
Courthouse into a newly constructed State owned courthouse and opened for business on 
June 14, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County no longer has a need for courthouse construction and the 
excess funds may be used for public safety or emergency medical services pursuant to 
Government Code section 76110.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED, that the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors does 
hereby declare and determine as follows: 
 

1. The Siskiyou County Superior Court no longer occupies the County owned 
courthouse. 

2. The need for the Courthouse Construction Fund has been met. 
3. The excess Courthouse Construction Funds shall be used pursuant to Government 

Code section 76110 for public safety and/or emergency medical services. 
4. The Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors authorizes the transfer of excess funds 

from the Courthouse Construction Fund to the County General Fund for the 
purposes of meeting the public safety or emergency medical services needs of the 
County. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Siskiyou at a regular 
meeting of said Board, held on the 9th day of August 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
     ______________________________________ 
     Brandon A. Criss, Chair    
     Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors 
ATTEST: 
LAURA BYNUM, 
COUNTY CLERK 
 
By _________________________ 
  Deputy 

Item No.A. Backup Material - 3 of 3



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 9 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: GENERAL SERVICES 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: 5 Meeting Date: 8/9/22
OR
Consent
Contact Person/Department: Amanda Kimball General Service Phone: 842-8272

Address: 190 Greenhorn Road

Person Appearing/Title: Amanda Kimball Project Coordinator

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Please approve the Contact (#22-107010-04A) with Ark Design Construction and Roofing, Inc. for the reroof and 
abatment at 810 S Main Street Yreka.

Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $706,000

Fund: 2164 Description:      Org.: 207030 Description:      

Account: 761010 Description:      

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected: Request for Proposal

     

Additional Information:      

     

Recommended Motion:

To approve the contract with Ark Design Construction and Roofing, Inc for the reroof and 
abatment of 810 S Main Street 

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 
submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 
prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.B. Backup Material - 1 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 1 of 7 

CONTRACT 

 

(Public Works Agreement Informally Bid as Authorized by Public Contract Code Section 10122) 

(Siskiyou County Standard Form Contract No. 22-107010-04A) 

 

1. SPECIAL TERMS. These special terms are incorporated below by reference and shall be furnished 

by the below stated Contractor in conformance with the “Greenbook” 2021 Edition. 

 

(See Secs. 26,2) Parties: County Department of General Services 

SISKIYOU COUNTY 

190 Greenhorn Road 

Yreka, CA 96097 

 

 and 

 

  Contractor:  Ark Design Construction & Roofing, Inc. 

9470 Deschutes Road 

PO Box 868 

Palo Cedro, CA 96073-0868    

 

(See Sec. 26) Effective Date:    August 9th 2022 

 

(See Sec. 2) The Scope of Work:  See Exhibit A and B attached hereto. The location of this project is 810 

S Main St. Yreka, CA 

 

(See Sec. 3) Completion Time:  Within 120 calendar days from the start date August 9th 2022, as established 

in the Section 3 and 5, Notice to Proceed or Specifications 

 

(See Sec. 4) Liquidated Damages:  $250.00 per calendar day. 

 

(See Sec. 26) Public Agency's Agent: Thomas Deany, Director of Public Works 

 

(See Sec. 6) Contract Price Not to Exceed: Seven Hundred and Six Thousand Dollars and no/100 

($706,000.00) 

 

(See Sec. 7) Federal Taxpayers I.D.: 68-0310708, DIR #1000063701, License No: 632117 

 

 

2. WORK CONTRACT, CHANGES.  (a)  By their signatures in Section 26, effective on the date set forth in 

Section 26, these parties promise and agree as set forth in this contract, incorporating by these references the 

material ("special terms") in Section 1. 

 

(b)  Contractor shall, at his own cost and expense, and in a workmanlike manner, fully and faithfully perform 

and complete the work; and will furnish all materials, labor, services and transportation necessary, convenient 

and proper in order fairly to perform the requirements of this contract, all strictly in accordance with the Public 

Agency's plans, drawings and specifications and in conformance with the “Greenbook” 2021 Edition. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 2 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 2 of 7 

(c) The work can be changed only with Public Agency's prior written order specifying such change and its 

cost agreed to by the parties; and the Public Agency shall never have to pay more than specified in Section 7 

without such an order. 

 

3. TIME:  NOTICE TO PROCEED.  Contractor shall start this work as directed in the specifications or the Notice 

to Proceed; and shall complete it as specified in Section 1 August 9th, 2022. 

 

4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  If the Contractor fails to complete this contract and this work within the time fixed 

therefor, allowance being made for contingencies as provided herein, he becomes liable to the Public Agency 

for all its loss and damage therefrom; and because, from the nature of the case, it is and will be impracticable 

and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the Public Agency's actual damage from any delay in performance 

hereof, it is agreed that Contractor will pay as liquidated damages to the Public Agency the reasonable sum 

specified in Section 1, the result of the parties' reasonable endeavor to estimate fair average compensation 

therefor, for each calendar day's delay in finishing said work; and if the same be not paid, Public Agency may, 

in addition to its other remedies, deduct the same from any money due or to become due Contractor under this 

contract.  If the Public Agency for any cause authorizes or contributes to a delay, suspension of work or extension 

of time, its duration shall be added to the time allowed for completion, but it shall not be deemed a waiver nor be 

used to defeat any right of the Agency to damages for non-completion or delay hereunder.  Pursuant to 

Government Code Section 4215, the Contractor shall not be assessed liquidated damages for delay in 

completion of the work, when such delay was caused by the failure of the Public Agency or the owner of a utility 

to provide for removal or relocation of existing utility facilities. 

 

5. INTEGRATED DOCUMENTS.  The plans, drawings and specifications or special provisions of the Public 

Agency's Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Proposal, Information Required of Bidder, Certifications 

and Affidavits, required bonds, all issued addenda to such, Contractor's accepted bid for this work, and Notive 

to Proceed are hereby incorporated into this contract; and they are intended to cooperate, so that anything 

exhibited in the plans or drawings and not mentioned in the specifications or special provisions, or vice versa, is 

to be executed as if exhibited, mentioned and set forth in both, to the true intent and meaning thereof when taken 

all together; and differences of opinion concerning these shall be finally determined by Public Agency's Agent 

specified in Section 1. 

 

6. PAYMENT.  (a) For his strict and literal fulfillment of these promises and conditions, and as full compensation 

for all this work, the Public Agency shall pay the Contractor the sum specified in Section 1, except that in unit 

price contracts the payment shall be for finished quantities at unit bid prices. 

 

(b) On or about the fifteenth of each calendar month, the Contractor shall be paid for all work satisfactorily 

completed through the last day of the preceding calendar month, as determined by Public Agency or its Agent, 

minus 5% thereof pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9203, but not until defective work and materials 

have been removed, replaced, and made good. 

 

7. PAYMENTS WITHHELD.  (a) The Public Agency or its Agent may withhold any payment, or because of later 

discovered evidence nullify all or any certificate for payment, to such extent and period of time only as may be 

necessary to protect the Public Agency from loss because of: 

 (1) Defective work not remedied, or uncompleted work, or 

 (2) Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing, or 

 (3) Failure to properly pay subcontractors or for material or labor, or 

 (4) Reasonable doubt that the work can be completed for the balance then unpaid, or 

 (5) Damage to another contractor, or 

 (6) Damage to the Public Agency, other than damage due to delays. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 3 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 3 of 7 

 

(b)  The Public Agency shall use reasonable diligence to discover and report to the Contractor, as the work 

progresses, the materials and labor which are not satisfactory to it, so as to avoid unnecessary trouble or cost 

to the Contractor in making good any defective work or parts. 

 

(c)  35 calendar days after the Public Agency files its notice of completion of the entire work, it shall issue a 

certificate to the Contractor and pay the balance of the contract price after deducting all amounts withheld under 

this contract, provided the Contractor shows that all claims for labor and materials have been paid, no claims 

have been presented to the Public Agency based on acts or omissions of the Contractor, and no liens or withhold 

notices have been filed against the work or site, and provided there are not reasonable indications of defective 

or missing work or of late-recorded notices of liens or claims against Contractor. 

 

8. INSURANCE.  (Labor Code Sections 1860-61)  On signing this contract, Contractor must give Public Agency 

(1) a certificate of consent to self-insure issued by the Director of Industrial Relations, or (2) a certificate of 

Workers' Compensation insurance issued by an admitted insurer, or (3) an exact copy or duplicate thereof 

certified by the Director or the insurer.  Contractor is aware of and complies with Labor Code Section 3700 and 

the Workers' Compensation Law. 

 

9. BONDS.  On signing this contract Contractor shall deliver to Public Agency for approval good and sufficient 

Payment and Performance Bonds with sureties, in amount(s) specified in the specifications or special provisions, 

guaranteeing Contractor’s faithful performance of this contract and Contractor’s payment for all labor and 

materials hereunder. 

 

10. FAILURE TO PERFORM.  If the Contractor at any time refuses or neglects, without fault of the Public Agency 

or its agent(s), to supply sufficient materials or workers to complete this agreement and work as provided herein, 

for a period of 10 days or more after written notice thereof by the Public Agency, the Public Agency may furnish 

same and deduct the reasonable expenses thereof from the contract price. 

 

11. LAWS APPLY.  Both parties recognize the applicability of various federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations, especially the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Executive Order 11246, Employment Practices Act, Fair 

Employment Practices Act, and Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code (beginning with Section 1720, 

and including Sections 1725.5, 1735, 1777.5, and 1777.6 forbidding discrimination).  The parties specifically 

stipulate that the relevant penalties and forfeitures provided in the Labor Code, especially in Sections 1775 and 

1813 concerning prevailing wages and hours, as well as Section 1776 concerning certified payroll records, shall 

apply to this agreement. 

 

12. BREACH OF CONTRACT. In the event of a Breach of any of the provisions of the Contract and the institution 

of any action at law respecting the same, the Parties agree that the non-prevailing party shall pay the prevailing 

party reasonable attorney’s fees and costs as may be determined by the court. 

 

 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  Public Contract Code Sections 4100-4114 (The Subletting and Subcontracting Fair 

Practices Act) and Labor Code Section 1725.5 (requirement for licensed contractors and subcontractors to 

register with the Department of Industrial relations) are incorporated herein. 

 

14. WAGE RATES.  (a) Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1773, the Director of the Department of Industrial 

Relations has ascertained the general prevailing rates of wages per diem, and for holiday and overtime work, in 

the locality in which this work is to be performed, for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 4 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 4 of 7 

this contract, and said rates are as specified in the call for bids for this work or are on file with the Public Agency, 

and are hereby incorporated herein. 

 

(b)  This schedule of wages is based on a working day of 8 hours unless otherwise specified; and the daily 

rate is the hourly rate multiplied by the number of hours constituting the working day.  When less than that 

number of hours are worked, the daily wage rate is proportionately reduced, but the hourly rate remains as 

stated. 

 

(c)  The Contractor, and all his subcontractors, must pay at least these rates to all persons on this work, 

including all travel, subsistence, and fringe benefit payments provided for by applicable collective bargaining 

agreements.  All skilled labor not listed above must be paid at least the wage scale established by collective 

bargaining agreement for such labor in the locality where such work is being performed.  If it becomes necessary 

for the Contractor or any subcontractor to employ any person in a craft, classification or type of work (except 

executive, supervisory, administrative, clerical or other non-manual workers as such) for which no minimum 

wage rate is specified, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Public Agency which shall promptly determine 

the prevailing wage rate therefor and furnish the Contractor with the minimum rate based thereon, which shall 

apply from the time of the initial employment of the person affected and during the continuance of such 

employment. 

 

15. HOURS OF LABOR.  Eight hours of labor in one calendar day constitutes a legal day's work, and no worker 

employed at any time on this work by the Contractor or by any subcontractor shall be required or permitted to 

work longer thereon except as provided in Labor Code Sections 1810-1815. 

 

16. APPRENTICES.  Properly indentured apprentices may be employed on this work in accordance with Labor 

Code Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6, forbidding discrimination. 

 

17. PREFERENCE FOR MATERIALS.  The Public Agency desires to promote the industries and economy of 

Siskiyou County and the Contractor therefore promises to use the products, workers, laborers and mechanics of 

this County in every case where the price, fitness and quality are equal. 

 

18. ASSIGNMENT.  The agreement binds the heirs, successors, assigns, and representatives of the Contractor; 

but he cannot assign it in whole or in part, nor any monies due or to become due under it, without the prior written 

consent of the Public Agency and the Contractor's surety or sureties, unless they have waived notice of 

assignment. 

 

19. NO WAIVER BY PUBLIC AGENCY.  Inspection of the work and/or materials, or approval of work and/or 

materials inspected, or statement by any officer, agent or employee of the Public Agency indicating the work or 

any part thereof complies with the requirements of this contract, or acceptance of the whole or any part of said 

work and/or materials, or payments therefor, or any combination of these acts, shall not relieve the Contractor 

of his obligation to fulfill this contract as prescribed; nor shall the Public Agency be thereby estopped from 

bringing any action for damages or enforcement arising from the failure to comply with any of the terms and 

conditions hereof. 

 

20. HOLD HARMLESS & INDEMNIFICATION.  (a) Contractor promises to and shall defend, indemnify, save, 

and hold harmless the indemnitees from the liabilities as defined in this section. 

 

(b)  The indemnitees benefitted and protected by this promise are the Public Agency and its elective and 

appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents, and employees, together with any additional persons and 

entities, if any, listed in the Supplementary General Conditions. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 5 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 5 of 7 

 

(c)  The liabilities protected against are any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, 

expenses, actual attorneys’ fees, losses, or liabilities arising out of or in connection with the actions defined 

below for personal injury, sickness, disease, emotional injury, death, property damage (including loss of use), 

trespass, nuisance, inverse condemnation, patent infringement, or any combination of these, regardless of 

whether or not such liability, claim, or damage was foreseeable at any time before the Public Agency approved 

the improvement plans or accepted the improvements as completed, and including the defense of any suit(s) or 

action(s) at law or equity concerning these. 

 

(d)  The actions causing liability are any act or omission (negligent or non-negligent) in connection with 

the matters covered by this contract and attributable to the Contractor, subcontractor(s), supplier(s), trucker(s), 

anyone for whose acts the Contractor may be liable, or any officer(s), agent(s) or employee(s) of one or more of 

them. 

 

(e)  The promise and agreement in this section is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any 

indemnitee has prepared, supplied, or approved any plan(s), drawing(s), specification(s), or special provision(s) 

in connection with this work or has insurance or other indemnification covering any of these matters. 

 

(f)  Except as prohibited by Civil Code Section 2782, the Contractor’s obligations under this section shall 

exist regardless of the existence or degree of fault of the Public Agency or any indemnitee. 

 

(g)  The Contractor’s obligations under this section shall extend to claims arising after the work is 

completed and accepted if the claims are related to alleged acts or omissions that occurred during the course of 

the work.  Public Agency’s inspection is not a waiver of full compliance with these requirements. 

 

(h)  The Contractor and the Contractor’s insurance carrier(s) shall respond within 15 days to the tender of 

any claim for defense and indemnity by the Public Agency, unless this time has been extended by the Public 

Agency. 

 

(i)  With respect to third-party claims against the Contractor, the Contractor waives all rights of any kind to 

express or implied indemnity against the indemnitees. 

 

(j)  Nothing in this section is intended to establish a standard of care owed to any third party or to extend 

to any third party the status of a third-party beneficiary. 

 

21. EXCAVATION.  Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Labor Code Section 6705, if applicable, by 

submitting to Public Agency a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions 

to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during trench excavation. 

 

22. RECORD RETENTION AND AUDITING.  Except for materials and records delivered to Public Agency, 

Contractor shall maintain and retain, for a period of at least five years after Contractor's receipt of the final 

payment under this contract, all records relating to this contract or to the work, including without limitation 

estimates, bids, shop drawings, submittals, subcontracts, personnel and payroll records, job reports and diaries, 

receipts, invoices, cancelled checks and financial records.  Upon request by Public Agency, at no additional 

charge, Contractor shall promptly make such records available to Public Agency, or to authorized representatives 

of the state and federal governments, at a convenient location within Siskiyou County designated by Public 

Agency, and without restriction or limitation on their use. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 6 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 6 of 7 

23. VENUE.  Any litigation involving this contract or relating to the work shall be brought in Siskiyou County, and 

Contractor hereby waives the removal provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

 

24. ENDORSEMENTS.  Contractor shall not in its capacity as a contractor with Siskiyou County publicly endorse 

or oppose the use of any particular brand name or commercial product without the prior approval of the Board 

of Supervisors.  In its County contractor capacity, Contractor shall not publicly attribute qualities or lack of 

qualities to a particular brand name or commercial product in the absence of a well-established and widely-

accepted scientific basis for such claims or without the prior approval of the Board of Supervisors.  In its County 

contractor capacity, Contractor shall not participate or appear in any commercially-produced advertisements 

designed to promote a particular brand name or commercial product, even if Contractor is not publicly endorsing 

a product, as long as the Contractor's presence in the advertisement can reasonably be interpreted as an 

endorsement of the product by or on behalf of Siskiyou County.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may 

express its views on products to other contractors, the Board of Supervisors, County officers, or others who may 

be authorized by the Board of Supervisors or by law to receive such views. 

 

25. USE OF PRIVATE PROPERTY.  Contractor shall not use private property for any purpose in connection 

with the work absent a prior, written agreement with the affected property owner(s). 

 
26. TERMINATION.  (a) Termination on Occurrence of Stated Events: This Contract shall terminate 

automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 

 
1. Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor; 

2. Death of Contractor. 

 

(b).  Termination by Public Agency for default of Contractor: Should contractor default in the performance of 

this Contract or materially breach any of its provisions, Public Agency, at its option, may terminate this 

Contract by giving written notification to Contractor. 

 

(c).  Termination for Convenience of County: Public Agency shall have the right to terminate all or any part 

of this Contract for its convenience by providing a notice in writing to Contractor that the Contract is 

terminated.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be reimbursed for its reasonable and necessary costs 

resulting therefrom which are substantiated by evidence satisfactory to Public Agency.  Contractor shall 

receive no payment for or profit on unperformed work.  Public Agency shall be entitled to immediate 

possession of any plans and work upon termination. 

 

(d.)  Contractor’s indemnity obligations shall survive the termination or cancellation of this contract. 

 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 7 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 7 of 7 

/// 

27. SIGNATURES & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT. 

     
COUNTY OF SISKIYOU 

 
 
Date:__________________   ____________________________ 
       BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR 
       Board of Supervisors 
       County of Siskiyou 
       State of California 
 
ATTEST: 
LAURA BYNUM 
Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
By: ___________________ 
 Deputy 
 

 

Contractor, hereby also certifying awareness of and compliance with Labor Code Sections 1725.5, 1861 

and 3700 concerning Workers' Compensation Law, 

 

 

By:           Date: ___________ 

Joe Van Sweden, President 

 Ark Design Construction & Roofing Inc.                             (CORPORATE 

 SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

By:         Date: ________________ 

Travis Van Sweden, Vice President  

Ark Design Construction & Roofing Inc. 

 

License No.:632117 

(Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the registration of contractors) 

 

 

Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two officers.  The first signature must be 

that of the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secretary, 

assistant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, 

Sec. 313.)   

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

FUND      ORGANIZATION     ACCOUNT ACTIVITY CODE (if applicable) 

2164     207030 761010 NTE: $706,000.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9

7/28/2022

7/28/2022

Item No.B. Backup Material - 8 of 31



Exhibit A
DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9

Item No.B. Backup Material - 9 of 31



Exhibit B
DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9

Item No.B. Backup Material - 10 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 11 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 12 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 13 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 14 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 15 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 16 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 17 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 18 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 19 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 20 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 21 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 22 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 23 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 24 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 25 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 26 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 27 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 28 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 29 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 30 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74AF681C-3A25-4084-AB48-BBB9598228B9
Item No.B. Backup Material - 31 of 31



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 41 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: GENERAL SERVICES 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: 5 Meeting Date: 8/9/22
OR
Consent
Contact Person/Department: Amanda Kimball General Service Phone: 842-8272

Address: 190 Greenhorn Road

Person Appearing/Title: Amanda Kimball Project Coordinator

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Please approve the Contact (#22-107010-04B) with Ark Design Construction and Roofing, Inc. for the reroof at 
1312 Fairlane Road Yreka.

Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $365,000

Fund: 2164 Description:      Org.: 207030 Description:      

Account: 761010 Description:      

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected: Request for Proposal

     

Additional Information:      

     

Recommended Motion:

To approve the contract with Ark Design Construction and Roofing, Inc. for the reroof at 1312 
Fairlane Road Yreka.

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 
submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 
prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.C. Backup Material - 1 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 1 of 7 

CONTRACT 

 

(Public Works Agreement Informally Bid as Authorized by Public Contract Code Section 10122) 

(Siskiyou County Standard Form Contract No. 22-107010-04B) 

 

1. SPECIAL TERMS. These special terms are incorporated below by reference and shall be furnished 

by the below stated Contractor in conformance with the “Greenbook” 2021 Edition. 

 

(See Secs. 26,2) Parties: County Department of General Services 

SISKIYOU COUNTY 

190 Greenhorn Road 

Yreka, CA 96097 

 

 and 

 

  Contractor:  Ark Design Construction & Roofing Inc. 

9470 Deschutes Road 

PO Box 868 

Palo Cedro, CA 96073-0868    

 

(See Sec. 26) Effective Date:    August 9th, 2022 

 

(See Sec. 2) The Scope of Work:  See Exhibit A and B attached hereto. The location of this project is 1312 

Fairlane Road Yreka, CA 

 

(See Sec. 3) Completion Time:  Within 120 calendar days from the start date August 9th 2022, as established 

in the Section 3 and 5, Notice to Proceed or Specifications 

 

(See Sec. 4) Liquidated Damages:  $250.00 per calendar day. 

 

(See Sec. 26) Public Agency's Agent: Thomas Deany, Director of Public Works 

 

(See Sec. 6) Contract Price Not to Exceed: Three Hundred Sixty Five Thousand Dollars and no/100 

($365,000.00) 

 

(See Sec. 7) Federal Taxpayers I.D.: 68-0310708, DIR #1000063701. License No. 632117 

 

 

2. WORK CONTRACT, CHANGES.  (a)  By their signatures in Section 26, effective on the date set forth in 

Section 26, these parties promise and agree as set forth in this contract, incorporating by these references the 

material ("special terms") in Section 1. 

 

(b)  Contractor shall, at his own cost and expense, and in a workmanlike manner, fully and faithfully perform 

and complete the work; and will furnish all materials, labor, services and transportation necessary, convenient 

and proper in order fairly to perform the requirements of this contract, all strictly in accordance with the Public 

Agency's plans, drawings and specifications and in conformance with the “Greenbook” 2021 Edition. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 2 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 2 of 7 

(c) The work can be changed only with Public Agency's prior written order specifying such change and its 

cost agreed to by the parties; and the Public Agency shall never have to pay more than specified in Section 7 

without such an order. 

 

3. TIME:  NOTICE TO PROCEED.  Contractor shall start this work as directed in the specifications or the Notice 

to Proceed; and shall complete it as specified in Section 1 August 9th, 2022. 

 

4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  If the Contractor fails to complete this contract and this work within the time fixed 

therefor, allowance being made for contingencies as provided herein, he becomes liable to the Public Agency 

for all its loss and damage therefrom; and because, from the nature of the case, it is and will be impracticable 

and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the Public Agency's actual damage from any delay in performance 

hereof, it is agreed that Contractor will pay as liquidated damages to the Public Agency the reasonable sum 

specified in Section 1, the result of the parties' reasonable endeavor to estimate fair average compensation 

therefor, for each calendar day's delay in finishing said work; and if the same be not paid, Public Agency may, 

in addition to its other remedies, deduct the same from any money due or to become due Contractor under this 

contract.  If the Public Agency for any cause authorizes or contributes to a delay, suspension of work or extension 

of time, its duration shall be added to the time allowed for completion, but it shall not be deemed a waiver nor be 

used to defeat any right of the Agency to damages for non-completion or delay hereunder.  Pursuant to 

Government Code Section 4215, the Contractor shall not be assessed liquidated damages for delay in 

completion of the work, when such delay was caused by the failure of the Public Agency or the owner of a utility 

to provide for removal or relocation of existing utility facilities. 

 

5. INTEGRATED DOCUMENTS.  The plans, drawings and specifications or special provisions of the Public 

Agency's Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Proposal, Information Required of Bidder, Certifications 

and Affidavits, required bonds, all issued addenda to such, Contractor's accepted bid for this work, and Notive 

to Proceed are hereby incorporated into this contract; and they are intended to cooperate, so that anything 

exhibited in the plans or drawings and not mentioned in the specifications or special provisions, or vice versa, is 

to be executed as if exhibited, mentioned and set forth in both, to the true intent and meaning thereof when taken 

all together; and differences of opinion concerning these shall be finally determined by Public Agency's Agent 

specified in Section 1. 

 

6. PAYMENT.  (a) For his strict and literal fulfillment of these promises and conditions, and as full compensation 

for all this work, the Public Agency shall pay the Contractor the sum specified in Section 1, except that in unit 

price contracts the payment shall be for finished quantities at unit bid prices. 

 

(b) On or about the fifteenth of each calendar month, the Contractor shall be paid for all work satisfactorily 

completed through the last day of the preceding calendar month, as determined by Public Agency or its Agent, 

minus 5% thereof pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9203, but not until defective work and materials 

have been removed, replaced, and made good. 

 

7. PAYMENTS WITHHELD.  (a) The Public Agency or its Agent may withhold any payment, or because of later 

discovered evidence nullify all or any certificate for payment, to such extent and period of time only as may be 

necessary to protect the Public Agency from loss because of: 

 (1) Defective work not remedied, or uncompleted work, or 

 (2) Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing, or 

 (3) Failure to properly pay subcontractors or for material or labor, or 

 (4) Reasonable doubt that the work can be completed for the balance then unpaid, or 

 (5) Damage to another contractor, or 

 (6) Damage to the Public Agency, other than damage due to delays. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 3 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 3 of 7 

 

(b)  The Public Agency shall use reasonable diligence to discover and report to the Contractor, as the work 

progresses, the materials and labor which are not satisfactory to it, so as to avoid unnecessary trouble or cost 

to the Contractor in making good any defective work or parts. 

 

(c)  35 calendar days after the Public Agency files its notice of completion of the entire work, it shall issue a 

certificate to the Contractor and pay the balance of the contract price after deducting all amounts withheld under 

this contract, provided the Contractor shows that all claims for labor and materials have been paid, no claims 

have been presented to the Public Agency based on acts or omissions of the Contractor, and no liens or withhold 

notices have been filed against the work or site, and provided there are not reasonable indications of defective 

or missing work or of late-recorded notices of liens or claims against Contractor. 

 

8. INSURANCE.  (Labor Code Sections 1860-61)  On signing this contract, Contractor must give Public Agency 

(1) a certificate of consent to self-insure issued by the Director of Industrial Relations, or (2) a certificate of 

Workers' Compensation insurance issued by an admitted insurer, or (3) an exact copy or duplicate thereof 

certified by the Director or the insurer.  Contractor is aware of and complies with Labor Code Section 3700 and 

the Workers' Compensation Law. 

 

9. BONDS.  On signing this contract Contractor shall deliver to Public Agency for approval good and sufficient 

Payment and Performance Bonds with sureties, in amount(s) specified in the specifications or special provisions, 

guaranteeing Contractor’s faithful performance of this contract and Contractor’s payment for all labor and 

materials hereunder. 

 

10. FAILURE TO PERFORM.  If the Contractor at any time refuses or neglects, without fault of the Public Agency 

or its agent(s), to supply sufficient materials or workers to complete this agreement and work as provided herein, 

for a period of 10 days or more after written notice thereof by the Public Agency, the Public Agency may furnish 

same and deduct the reasonable expenses thereof from the contract price. 

 

11. LAWS APPLY.  Both parties recognize the applicability of various federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations, especially the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Executive Order 11246, Employment Practices Act, Fair 

Employment Practices Act, and Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code (beginning with Section 1720, 

and including Sections 1725.5, 1735, 1777.5, and 1777.6 forbidding discrimination).  The parties specifically 

stipulate that the relevant penalties and forfeitures provided in the Labor Code, especially in Sections 1775 and 

1813 concerning prevailing wages and hours, as well as Section 1776 concerning certified payroll records, shall 

apply to this agreement. 

 

12. BREACH OF CONTRACT. In the event of a Breach of any of the provisions of the Contract and the institution 

of any action at law respecting the same, the Parties agree that the non-prevailing party shall pay the prevailing 

party reasonable attorney’s fees and costs as may be determined by the court. 

 

 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  Public Contract Code Sections 4100-4114 (The Subletting and Subcontracting Fair 

Practices Act) and Labor Code Section 1725.5 (requirement for licensed contractors and subcontractors to 

register with the Department of Industrial relations) are incorporated herein. 

 

14. WAGE RATES.  (a) Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1773, the Director of the Department of Industrial 

Relations has ascertained the general prevailing rates of wages per diem, and for holiday and overtime work, in 

the locality in which this work is to be performed, for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 4 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 4 of 7 

this contract, and said rates are as specified in the call for bids for this work or are on file with the Public Agency, 

and are hereby incorporated herein. 

 

(b)  This schedule of wages is based on a working day of 8 hours unless otherwise specified; and the daily 

rate is the hourly rate multiplied by the number of hours constituting the working day.  When less than that 

number of hours are worked, the daily wage rate is proportionately reduced, but the hourly rate remains as 

stated. 

 

(c)  The Contractor, and all his subcontractors, must pay at least these rates to all persons on this work, 

including all travel, subsistence, and fringe benefit payments provided for by applicable collective bargaining 

agreements.  All skilled labor not listed above must be paid at least the wage scale established by collective 

bargaining agreement for such labor in the locality where such work is being performed.  If it becomes necessary 

for the Contractor or any subcontractor to employ any person in a craft, classification or type of work (except 

executive, supervisory, administrative, clerical or other non-manual workers as such) for which no minimum 

wage rate is specified, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Public Agency which shall promptly determine 

the prevailing wage rate therefor and furnish the Contractor with the minimum rate based thereon, which shall 

apply from the time of the initial employment of the person affected and during the continuance of such 

employment. 

 

15. HOURS OF LABOR.  Eight hours of labor in one calendar day constitutes a legal day's work, and no worker 

employed at any time on this work by the Contractor or by any subcontractor shall be required or permitted to 

work longer thereon except as provided in Labor Code Sections 1810-1815. 

 

16. APPRENTICES.  Properly indentured apprentices may be employed on this work in accordance with Labor 

Code Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6, forbidding discrimination. 

 

17. PREFERENCE FOR MATERIALS.  The Public Agency desires to promote the industries and economy of 

Siskiyou County and the Contractor therefore promises to use the products, workers, laborers and mechanics of 

this County in every case where the price, fitness and quality are equal. 

 

18. ASSIGNMENT.  The agreement binds the heirs, successors, assigns, and representatives of the Contractor; 

but he cannot assign it in whole or in part, nor any monies due or to become due under it, without the prior written 

consent of the Public Agency and the Contractor's surety or sureties, unless they have waived notice of 

assignment. 

 

19. NO WAIVER BY PUBLIC AGENCY.  Inspection of the work and/or materials, or approval of work and/or 

materials inspected, or statement by any officer, agent or employee of the Public Agency indicating the work or 

any part thereof complies with the requirements of this contract, or acceptance of the whole or any part of said 

work and/or materials, or payments therefor, or any combination of these acts, shall not relieve the Contractor 

of his obligation to fulfill this contract as prescribed; nor shall the Public Agency be thereby estopped from 

bringing any action for damages or enforcement arising from the failure to comply with any of the terms and 

conditions hereof. 

 

20. HOLD HARMLESS & INDEMNIFICATION.  (a) Contractor promises to and shall defend, indemnify, save, 

and hold harmless the indemnitees from the liabilities as defined in this section. 

 

(b)  The indemnitees benefitted and protected by this promise are the Public Agency and its elective and 

appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents, and employees, together with any additional persons and 

entities, if any, listed in the Supplementary General Conditions. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 5 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 5 of 7 

 

(c)  The liabilities protected against are any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, 

expenses, actual attorneys’ fees, losses, or liabilities arising out of or in connection with the actions defined 

below for personal injury, sickness, disease, emotional injury, death, property damage (including loss of use), 

trespass, nuisance, inverse condemnation, patent infringement, or any combination of these, regardless of 

whether or not such liability, claim, or damage was foreseeable at any time before the Public Agency approved 

the improvement plans or accepted the improvements as completed, and including the defense of any suit(s) or 

action(s) at law or equity concerning these. 

 

(d)  The actions causing liability are any act or omission (negligent or non-negligent) in connection with 

the matters covered by this contract and attributable to the Contractor, subcontractor(s), supplier(s), trucker(s), 

anyone for whose acts the Contractor may be liable, or any officer(s), agent(s) or employee(s) of one or more of 

them. 

 

(e)  The promise and agreement in this section is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any 

indemnitee has prepared, supplied, or approved any plan(s), drawing(s), specification(s), or special provision(s) 

in connection with this work or has insurance or other indemnification covering any of these matters. 

 

(f)  Except as prohibited by Civil Code Section 2782, the Contractor’s obligations under this section shall 

exist regardless of the existence or degree of fault of the Public Agency or any indemnitee. 

 

(g)  The Contractor’s obligations under this section shall extend to claims arising after the work is 

completed and accepted if the claims are related to alleged acts or omissions that occurred during the course of 

the work.  Public Agency’s inspection is not a waiver of full compliance with these requirements. 

 

(h)  The Contractor and the Contractor’s insurance carrier(s) shall respond within 15 days to the tender of 

any claim for defense and indemnity by the Public Agency, unless this time has been extended by the Public 

Agency. 

 

(i)  With respect to third-party claims against the Contractor, the Contractor waives all rights of any kind to 

express or implied indemnity against the indemnitees. 

 

(j)  Nothing in this section is intended to establish a standard of care owed to any third party or to extend 

to any third party the status of a third-party beneficiary. 

 

21. EXCAVATION.  Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Labor Code Section 6705, if applicable, by 

submitting to Public Agency a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions 

to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during trench excavation. 

 

22. RECORD RETENTION AND AUDITING.  Except for materials and records delivered to Public Agency, 

Contractor shall maintain and retain, for a period of at least five years after Contractor's receipt of the final 

payment under this contract, all records relating to this contract or to the work, including without limitation 

estimates, bids, shop drawings, submittals, subcontracts, personnel and payroll records, job reports and diaries, 

receipts, invoices, cancelled checks and financial records.  Upon request by Public Agency, at no additional 

charge, Contractor shall promptly make such records available to Public Agency, or to authorized representatives 

of the state and federal governments, at a convenient location within Siskiyou County designated by Public 

Agency, and without restriction or limitation on their use. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 6 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 6 of 7 

23. VENUE.  Any litigation involving this contract or relating to the work shall be brought in Siskiyou County, and 

Contractor hereby waives the removal provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

 

24. ENDORSEMENTS.  Contractor shall not in its capacity as a contractor with Siskiyou County publicly endorse 

or oppose the use of any particular brand name or commercial product without the prior approval of the Board 

of Supervisors.  In its County contractor capacity, Contractor shall not publicly attribute qualities or lack of 

qualities to a particular brand name or commercial product in the absence of a well-established and widely-

accepted scientific basis for such claims or without the prior approval of the Board of Supervisors.  In its County 

contractor capacity, Contractor shall not participate or appear in any commercially-produced advertisements 

designed to promote a particular brand name or commercial product, even if Contractor is not publicly endorsing 

a product, as long as the Contractor's presence in the advertisement can reasonably be interpreted as an 

endorsement of the product by or on behalf of Siskiyou County.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may 

express its views on products to other contractors, the Board of Supervisors, County officers, or others who may 

be authorized by the Board of Supervisors or by law to receive such views. 

 

25. USE OF PRIVATE PROPERTY.  Contractor shall not use private property for any purpose in connection 

with the work absent a prior, written agreement with the affected property owner(s). 

 
26. TERMINATION.  (a) Termination on Occurrence of Stated Events: This Contract shall terminate 

automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 

 
1. Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor; 

2. Death of Contractor. 

 

(b).  Termination by Public Agency for default of Contractor: Should contractor default in the performance of 

this Contract or materially breach any of its provisions, Public Agency, at its option, may terminate this 

Contract by giving written notification to Contractor. 

 

(c).  Termination for Convenience of County: Public Agency shall have the right to terminate all or any part 

of this Contract for its convenience by providing a notice in writing to Contractor that the Contract is 

terminated.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be reimbursed for its reasonable and necessary costs 

resulting therefrom which are substantiated by evidence satisfactory to Public Agency.  Contractor shall 

receive no payment for or profit on unperformed work.  Public Agency shall be entitled to immediate 

possession of any plans and work upon termination. 

 

(d.)  Contractor’s indemnity obligations shall survive the termination or cancellation of this contract. 

 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 7 of 31



 Informal Bid Authorized by Pub. Contract Code Section 10122  

Page 7 of 7 

/// 

27. SIGNATURES & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT. 

     
COUNTY OF SISKIYOU 

 
 
Date:__________________   ____________________________ 
       BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR 
       Board of Supervisors 
       County of Siskiyou 
       State of California 
 
ATTEST: 
LAURA BYNUM 
Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
By: ___________________ 
 Deputy 
 

 

Contractor, hereby also certifying awareness of and compliance with Labor Code Sections 1725.5, 1861 

and 3700 concerning Workers' Compensation Law, 

 

 

By:           Date: ___________ 

Joe Van Sweden, President 

 Ark Design Construction & Roofing Inc.                                 (CORPORATE 

 SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

By:         Date: ________________ 

Travis Van Sweden, Vice President  

Ark Design Construction & Roofing Inc. 

 

License No.:632117 

(Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the registration of contractors) 

 

 

Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two officers.  The first signature must be 

that of the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secretary, 

assistant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, 

Sec. 313.)   

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

FUND      ORGANIZATION     ACCOUNT ACTIVITY CODE (if applicable) 

2164     207030 761010 NTE: $365,000.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663

7/28/2022

7/28/2022

Item No.C. Backup Material - 8 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 9 of 31



Exhibit B
DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663

Item No.C. Backup Material - 10 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 11 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 12 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 13 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 14 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 15 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 16 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 17 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 18 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 19 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 20 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 21 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 22 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 23 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 24 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 25 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 26 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 27 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 28 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 29 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 30 of 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: C8614EF1-F7AF-454F-945F-B0079A291663
Item No.C. Backup Material - 31 of 31



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 73 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: N/A Meeting Date: 8/9/22
OR
Consent

Contact Person/Department:
Sarah Collard, Ph.D. / Health & Human 
Services Agency - Behavioral Health Division Phone: 841-2761

Address: 2060 Campus Drive Yreka, CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Sarah Collard PhD. / Director of Health & Human Services Agency

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Contract for Services - North American Mental Health Services, a Corporation

Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency, Behavioral Health Division, is requesting approval to 
contract with North American Mental Health Services (NAMHS) for the term of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2024. 
NAMHS provides telepsychiatry services to the County's seriously mentally ill clients. . 

Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: Rate

Fund: 2122 Description: Behavioral 
Health Org.: 401030 Description: Behavioral 

Health

Account: 723015 Description: Prof & Spec Svc

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected: This vendor was selected for specialized services provided.

     

Additional Information:  PROF & SPEC SVCS - FFS PROVIDERS

   

Recommended Motion:

The Board of Supervisors approve and authorize the Chair to sign the Contract for Services 
between Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency, Behavioral Health Division, and 
North American Mental Health Services, a Corporation, for the term of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2024.  

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other: Pls return minute order to R. Bullock at 818 So. Main 
St

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 1 of 34



submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 
prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 2 of 34



1 

 

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS SIGNATURE 
 
This Contract is entered into on the date when it has been both approved by the Board 
and signed by all other parties to it. 
 
COUNTY:   Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency 
    Behavioral Health Division 
    2060 Campus Drive 
    Yreka, CA 96097 
    (530) 841-4100 Phone 
    (530) 841-4133 Fax 
And 
 
CONTRACTOR:  North American Mental Health Services, a Corporation 
    1742 Oregon Street 
    Redding, CA 96002 
    (530) 646-7269  
 
 

ARTICLE 1.  TERM OF CONTRACT 
 
1.01 Contract Term:  This Contract shall become effective on July 1, 2022 and shall 

terminate on June 30, 2024, unless terminated in accordance with the provisions 
of Article 7 of this Contract or as otherwise provided herein. 

 
ARTICLE 2.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

 
2.01 Independent Contractor:  It is the express intention of the parties that Contractor 

is an independent contractor and not an employee, agent, joint venture or partner 
of County.  Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted or construed as creating 
or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between County and 
Contractor or any employee or agent of Contractor.  Both parties acknowledge 
that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes.  Contractor 
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this 
Contract. 

 
ARTICLE 3.  SERVICES 

 
3.01 Scope of Services:  Contractor agrees to furnish the following services: 

Contractor shall provide the services described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 

No additional services shall be performed by Contractor unless approved in 
advance in writing by the County stating the dollar value of the services, the 
method of payment, and any adjustment in contract time or other contract terms.  
All such services are to be coordinated with County and the results of the work 
shall be monitored by the Health and Human Services Agency Director or his or 
her designee. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 3 of 34



2 

 

 
 To the extent that Exhibit A contains terms in conflict with this Contract or to the 

extent that it seeks to supplement a provision regarding a subject already fully 
addressed in this Contract, including a clause similar to this seeking to render its 
language superior to conflicting language in this Contract, such language is 
hereby expressly deemed null and void by all parties upon execution of this 
Contract. 

 
3.02 Method of Performing Services:  Contractor will determine the method, details, 

and means of performing the above-described services including measures to 
protect the safety of the traveling public and Contractor’s employees.  County 
shall not have the right to, and shall not, control the manner or determine the 
method of accomplishing Contractor’s services. 

 
3.03 Employment of Assistants:  Contractor may, at the Contractor’s own expense, 

employ such assistants as Contractor deems necessary to perform the services 
required of Contractor by this Contract.  County may not control, direct, or 
supervise Contractor’s assistants or employees in the performance of those 
services. 

 
ARTICLE 4.  COMPENSATION 

 
4.01 Compensation:  In consideration for the services to be performed by Contractor, 

County agrees to pay Contractor in proportion to services satisfactorily performed 
as specified in Exhibit “A”.  Payment shall not exceed amount appropriated by 
the Board of Supervisors for such services for the fiscal year. 

 
4.02 Invoices:  Contractor shall submit original detailed invoices for all services being 

rendered. 
 
4.03 Date for Payment of Compensation:  County shall pay within 30 days of receipt of 

invoices from the Contractor to the County, and approval and acceptance of the 
work by the County. 

 
4.04 Expenses:  Contractor shall be responsible for all costs and expenses incident to 

the performance of services for County, including but not limited to, all costs of 
materials, equipment, all fees, fines, licenses, bonds or taxes required of or 
imposed against Contractor and all other of Contractor’s costs of doing business.  
County shall not be responsible for any expense incurred by Contractor in 
performing services for County. 

 
ARTICLE 5.  OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 

 
5.01 Contractor Qualifications:  Contractor warrants that Contractor has the necessary 

licenses, experience and technical skills to provide services under this Contract. 
 
5.02 Contract Management:  Contractor shall report to the Health and Human 

Services Agency Director or his or her designee who will review the activities and 
performance of the Contractor and administer this Contract. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 4 of 34



3 

 

 
5.03 Tools and Instrumentalities:  Contractor will supply all tools and instrumentalities 

required to perform the services under this Contract.  Contractor is not required 
to purchase or rent any tools, equipment or services from County. 

 
5.04 Workers’ Compensation:  Contractor shall maintain a workers’ compensation 

plan covering all its employees as required by California Labor Code Section 
3700, either through workers’ compensation insurance issued by an insurance 
company or through a plan of self-insurance certified by the State Director of 
Industrial Relations.  If Contractor elects to be self-insured, the certificate of 
insurance otherwise required by this Contract shall be replaced with a consent to 
self-insure issued by the State Director of Industrial Relations.  Proof of such 
insurance shall be provided before any work is commenced under this contract.  
No payment shall be made unless such proof of insurance is provided. 

 
5.05 Indemnification:  Contractor shall indemnify and hold County harmless against 

any and all liability imposed or claimed, including attorney’s fees and other legal 
expenses, arising directly or indirectly from any act or failure of Contractor or 
Contractor’s assistants, employees or agents, including all claims relating to the 
injury or death of any person or damage to any property. Contractor agrees to 
maintain a policy of liability insurance in the minimum amount of ($1,000,000) 
One Million Dollars, to cover such claims or in an amount determined appropriate 
by the County Risk Manager.   If the amount of insurance is reduced by the 
County Risk Manager such reduction must be in writing.  Contractor shall furnish 
a certificate of insurance evidencing such insurance and naming the County as 
an additional insured for the above-cited liability coverage prior to commencing 
work. It is understood that the duty of Contractor to indemnify and hold harmless 
includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil 
Code. Acceptance by County of insurance certificates and endorsements 
required under this Contract does not relieve Contractor from liability or limit 
Contractor’s liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This 
indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims 
for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined 
to apply. By execution of this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to 
the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

 
5.06 General Liability and Automobile Insurance:  During the term of this Contract, 

Contractor shall obtain and keep in full force and effect a commercial, general 
liability and automobile policy or policies of at least ($1,000,000) One Million 
Dollars, combined limit for bodily injury and property damage; the County, its 
officers, employees, volunteers and agents are to be named additional insured 
under the policies, and the policies shall stipulate that this insurance will operate 
as primary insurance for work performed by Contractor and its sub-contractors, 
and that no other insurance effected by County or other named insured will be 
called on to cover a loss covered thereunder.  All insurance required herein shall 
be provided by a company authorized to do business in the State of California 
and possess at least a Best A:VII rating or as may otherwise be acceptable to 
County.  The General Liability insurance shall be provided by an ISO Commercial 
General Liability policy, with edition dates of 1985, 1988, or 1990 or other form 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 5 of 34



4 

 

satisfactory to County.  The County will be named as an additional insured using 
ISO form CG 2010 1185 or the same form with an edition date no later than 
1990, or in other form satisfactory to County. 

 
5.07 Certificate of Insurance and Endorsements:  Contractor shall obtain and file with 

the County prior to engaging in any operation or activity set forth in this Contract, 
certificates of insurance evidencing additional insured coverage as set forth in 
paragraphs 5.04 and 5.10 and which shall provide that no cancellation, reduction 
in coverage or expiration by the insurance company will be made during the term 
of this Contract, without thirty (30) days written notice to County prior to the 
effective date of such cancellation.  Naming the County as a “Certificate 
Holder” or other similar language is NOT sufficient satisfaction of the 
requirement.  Prior to commencement of performance of services by Contractor 
and prior to any obligations of County, contractor shall file certificates of 
insurance with County showing that Contractor has in effect the insurance 
required by this Contract.  Contractor shall file a new or amended certificate on 
the certificate then on file.  If changes are made during the term of this 
Contract, no work shall be performed under this agreement, and no 
payment may be made until such certificate of insurance evidencing the 
coverage in paragraphs, 5.05, the general liability policy set forth in 5.06 
and 5.10 are provided to County. 

 
5.08 Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS):  In the event that Contractor 

or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor providing services under 
this Contract is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the Public 
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to be eligible for enrollment in 
CalPERS as an employee of the County, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless County for the payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions of CalPERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its employees, 
agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and 
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of 
County.  Contractor understands and agrees that his personnel are not, and will 
not be, eligible for memberships in, or any benefits from, any County group plan 
for hospital, surgical or medical insurance, or for membership in any County 
retirement program, or for paid vacation, paid sick leave, or other leave, with or 
without pay, or for any other benefit which accrues to a County employee. 

 
5.09 IRS/FTB Indemnity Assignment:  Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the County, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any 
adverse determination made by the Internal Revenue Service of the State 
Franchise Tax Board with respect to Contractor’s “independent contractor” status 
that would establish a liability for failure to make social security and income tax 
withholding payments. 

 
5.10 Professional Liability:  If Contractor or any of its officers, agents, employees, 

volunteers, contactors or subcontractors are required to be professionally 
licensed or certified by any agency of the State of California in order to perform 
any of the work or services identified herein, Contractor shall procure and 
maintain in force throughout the duration of the Contract a professional liability 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 6 of 34



5 

 

insurance policy with a minimum coverage level of ($1,000,000) One Million 
Dollars, or as determined in writing by County’s Risk Management Department. 

 
5.11 State and Federal Taxes:  As Contractor is not County’s employee, Contractor is 

responsible for paying all required state and federal taxes.  In particular: 
 a. County will not withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s 

payments; 
 b. County will not make state or federal unemployment insurance 

contributions on behalf of Contractor. 
 c. County will not withhold state or federal income tax from payment to 

Contractor. 
 d. County will not make disability insurance contributions on behalf of 

Contractor. 
 e. County will not obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of 

Contractor. 
 
5.12 Records:  All reports and other materials collected or produced by the Contractor 

or any subcontractor of Contractor shall, after completion and acceptance of the 
Contract, become the property of County, and shall not be subject to any 
copyright claimed by the Contractor, subcontractor, or their agents or employees.  
Contractor may retain copies of all such materials exclusively for administration 
purposes.  Any use of completed or uncompleted documents for other projects 
by Contractor, any subcontractor, or any of their agents or employees, without 
the prior written consent of County is prohibited.   It is further understood and 
agreed that all plans, studies, specifications, data magnetically or otherwise 
recorded on computer or computer diskettes, records, files, reports, etc., in 
possession of the Contractor relating to the matters covered by this Contract 
shall be the property of the County, and Contractor hereby agrees to deliver the 
same to the County upon request.  It is also understood and agreed that the 
documents and other materials including but not limited to those set forth 
hereinabove, prepared pursuant to this Contract are prepared specifically for the 
County and are not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. 

 
5.13 Contractor’s Books and Records:  Contractor shall maintain any and all ledgers, 

books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or 
documents evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and 
disbursements charged to the County for a minimum of five (5) years, or for any 
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor 
under this Contract.  Any records or documents required to be maintained shall 
be made available for inspection, audit and/or copying at any time during regular 
business hours, upon oral or written request of the County. 

 
5.14 Assignability of Contract:  It is understood and agreed that this Contract 

contemplates personal performance by the Contractor and is based upon a 
determination of its unique personal competence and experience and upon its 
specialized personal knowledge.  Assignments of any or all rights, duties or 
obligations of the Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the 
express written consent of the County. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 7 of 34



6 

 

5.15 Warranty of Contractor:  Contractor warrants that it, and each of its personnel, 
where necessary, are properly certified and licensed under the laws and 
regulations of the State of California to provide the special services agreed to. 

 
5.16 Withholding for Non-Resident Contractor:  Pursuant to California Revenue and 

Taxation Code Section 18662, payments made to nonresident independent 
contractors, including corporations and partnerships that do not have a 
permanent place of business in this state, are subject to 7 percent state income 
tax withholding. 
 
Withholding is required if the total yearly payments made under this contract 
exceed $1,500.00. 
 
Unless the Franchise Tax Board has authorized a reduced rate or waiver of 
withholding and County is provided evidence of such reduction/waiver, all 
nonresident contractors will be subject to the withholding.  It is the responsibility 
of the Contractor to submit the Waiver Request (Form 588) to the Franchise Tax 
Board as soon as possible in order to allow time for the Franchise Tax Board to 
review the request. 

 
5.17 Compliance with Child, Family and Spousal Support Reporting Obligations:  

Contractor’s failure to comply with state and federal child, family and spousal 
support reporting requirements regarding contractor’s employees or failure to 
implement lawfully served wage and earnings assignment  orders or notices of 
assignment relating to child, family and spousal support obligations shall 
constitute a default under this Contract.  Contractor’s failure to cure such default 
within ninety (90) days of notice by County shall be grounds for termination of 
this Contract. 

 
5.18 Conflict of Interest:  Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 

shall not acquire an interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would 
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the services hereunder.  
Contractor further covenants that, in the performance of this Contract, no 
subcontractor or person having such an interest shall be used or employed.  
Contractor certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest under 
this contract is an officer or employee of County. 

 
5.19 Compliance with Applicable Laws:  Contractor shall comply with all applicable 

federal, state and local laws now or hereafter in force, and with any applicable 
regulations, in performing the work and providing the services specified in this 
Contract.  This obligation includes, without limitations, the acquisition and 
maintenance of any permits, licenses, or other entitlements necessary to perform 
the duties imposed expressly or impliedly under this Contract. 

 
5.20 Bankruptcy:  Contractor shall immediately notify County in the event that 

Contractor ceases conducting business in the normal manner, becomes 
insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, suffer or 
permits the appointment of a receiver for its business or assets, or avails itself of, 
or becomes subject to, any proceeding under the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 8 of 34



7 

 

other statute of any state relating to insolvency or protection of the rights of 
creditors. 

 
5.21 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA):  Contractor agrees 

to the terms and conditions set forth in the “Business Associates Agreement” 
attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and those terms and conditions are hereby 
incorporated into the Contract by reference. Additionally, Contractor shall comply 
with, and assist SCHHSA in complying with, the privacy and security 
requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 
as follows. 

 
A. Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information:  Contractor may use or 

disclose protected health information (PHI) to perform its obligations under 
the Contract, provided that such use or disclosure does not violate this 
Agreement, is not prohibited by the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA) including, but not limited to, the provisions of Title 
42, United States Code, Section 1320d et seq. and Title 45, Code of Federal 
Regulations (C.F.R.), Parts 142, 160, 162 and 164, or does not exceed the 
scope of how County could use or disclose the information. 

 
Contractor shall not use, disclose or allow the disclosure of PHI except as 
permitted herein or as required or authorized by law.  Contractor shall 
implement appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other 
than as provided herein.  At the request of and in the time and manner 
designated by County, Contractor shall provide access to PHI in a designated 
record set as required by 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524.  Contractor shall report 
to County any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for herein or HIPAA 
regulations. 
 
If Contractor provides PHI to a third party, including officers, agents, 
employees, volunteers, contractors and subcontractors, pursuant to the terms 
of the Contract, Contractor shall ensure that the third party complies with all 
HIPAA regulations and the terms set forth herein. 
 

B. Documentation and Accounting of Uses and Disclosures:  Contractor shall 
document any disclosures of PHI in a manner that would allow County to 
respond to a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance 
with 45 C.F.R. Section 164.528.  Contractor shall provide County, in a time 
and manner designated by County, all information necessary to respond to a 
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. 

 
C. Amendments to Designated Record Sets:  In accordance with  45 C.F.R. 

Section 164.526, Contractor agrees to amend PHI in its possession as 
requested by an individual or as directed by County, in a time and manner 
designated by County. 

 
D. Access to Records:  Contractor shall make available to County or the 

Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
(HHS), in the time and manner designated by County or HHS, any records 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 9 of 34



8 

 

related to the use, disclosure and privacy protections of PHI for the purpose 
of investigating or auditing County’s compliance with HIPAA regulations. 

 
E. Termination of Agreement:  Upon County’s knowledge of a material breach of 

these provisions or HIPAA regulations, County shall, at its option, either 
provide Contractor with an opportunity to cure the breach or immediately 
terminate this Contract.  If Contractor is given an opportunity to cure the 
breach but fails to do so within the time specified by County, County may 
terminate the Contract without further notice. 

 
F. Destruction of PHI:  Upon termination of this Contract, Contractor shall return 

to County all PHI required to be retained and return or destroy all other PHI to 
comply with HIPAA regulations.  This provision shall apply to PHI in the 
possession of Contractor’s officers, agents, employees, volunteers, 
contractors and subcontractors who shall retain no copies of the PHI.  If 
Contractor determines that returning or destroying the PHI is not feasible, 
Contractor shall provide County with notice specifying the conditions that 
make return or destruction not feasible.  If County agrees that return of the 
PHI is not feasible, Contractor shall continue to extend the protections of this 
provision to the PHI for so long as Contractor or its officers, agents, 
employees, volunteers, contractors or subcontractors maintain such PHI. 

 

5.22 Nondiscrimination:  Contractor agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in the 
“Nondiscrimination in State and Federally-Assisted Programs” addendum, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and those terms and conditions are hereby 
incorporated into the Contract by reference. 

 
5.23 Grievance Procedure:  If Contractor is required by ordinance, regulation, policy, 

the California Department of Social Services, County or other authority to have a 
procedure for filing and considering grievances, Contractor shall provide County 
with a copy of Contractor's grievance procedure prior to providing services under 
this Contract. 

 
5.24 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting:  Contractor shall comply with all state and 

federal laws pertaining to the reporting of child abuse and/or neglect.  
Contractor’s officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall report all known or 
suspected instances of child abuse and/or neglect to the Child Protective 
Services agency or other agency as required by Penal Code Section 11164 et 
seq. 

 
5.25 Confidentiality: All information and records obtained in the course of providing 

services under this Agreement shall be confidential pursuant to Section 5328 of 
the Welfare and Institutions Code in accordance with applicable State and 
Federal law. 

 
5.26 Patients’ Rights: Contractor shall give the patients notice of their rights pursuant 

to and in compliance with: California Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5323; 
California Administrative Code, Title 9, Chapter 1, Subchapter 4, Article 6.  In 
addition, in all facilities providing the services described herein, the Contractor 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 10 of 34



9 

 

shall have prominently posted in the predominant languages of the community a 
list of the patient’s rights. 

 
ARTICLE 6.  OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 

 
6.01 Cooperation of County:  County agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of 

Contractor (to provide reasonable access to documents and information as 
permitted by law) necessary to the performance of Contractor’s duties under this 
Contract. 

 
ARTICLE 7.  TERMINATION 

 
7.01 Termination on Occurrence of State Events:  This Contract shall terminate 

automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 
 

1. Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor 
2. Death of Contractor 

 
7.02 Termination by County for Default of Contractor:  Should Contractor default in the 

performance of this Contract or materially breach any of its provisions, County, at 
County’s option, may terminate this Contract by giving written notification to 
Contractor. 

 
7.03 Termination for Convenience of County:  County may terminate this Contract at 

any time by providing a notice in writing to Contractor that the Contract is 
terminated.  Said Contract shall then be deemed terminated and no further work 
shall be performed by Contractor.  If the Contract is so terminated, the Contractor 
shall be paid for that percentage of the phase of work actually completed, based 
on a pro rata portion of the compensation for said phase satisfactorily completed 
at the time of notice of termination is received. 

 
7.04 Termination of Funding:  County may terminate this Contract in any fiscal year in 

that it is determined there is not sufficient funding.  California Constitution Article 
XVI Section 18. 

 
ARTICLE 8.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
8.01 Notices:  Any notices to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be 

effected either by personal delivery in writing or by mail, registered or certified, 
postage prepaid or return receipt requested.  Mailed notices shall be addressed 
to the parties at the addresses appearing in the introductory paragraph of this 
Contract, but each party may change the address by written notice in accordance 
with the paragraph.  Notices delivered personally will be deemed communicated 
as of actual receipt; mailed notices will be deemed communicated as of two (2) 
days after mailing. 

  
8.02 Entire Agreement of the Parties:  This contract supersedes any and all contracts, 

either oral or written, between the Parties hereto with respect to the rendering of 
services by Contractor for County and contains all the covenants and contracts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 11 of 34



10 

 

between the parties with respect to the enduring of such services in any manner 
whatsoever.  Each Party to this Contract acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements, promises, or contract, orally or otherwise, have been made by any 
party, or anyone acting on behalf of any Party, which are not embodied herein, 
and that no other contract, statement, or promise not contained in this Contract 
shall be valid or binding.  Any modification of this Contract will be effective only if 
it is in writing signed by the Party to be charged and approved by the County as 
provided herein or as otherwise required by law. 

 
8.03 Partial Invalidity:  If any provision in this Contract is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provision will 
nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any 
way. 

 
8.04 Attorney’s Fees:  If any action at law or in equity, including an action for 

declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract, 
the prevailing Party will be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, which may be 
set by the court in the same action or in a separate action brought for that 
purpose, in addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. 

 
8.05 Conformance to Applicable Laws:  Contractor shall comply with the standard of 

care regarding all applicable federal, state and county laws, rules and 
ordinances.  Contractor shall not discriminate in the employment of persons who 
work under this contract because of race, the color, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, sex or religion of such person. 

 
8.06 Waiver:  In the event that either County or Contractor shall at any time or times 

waive any breach of this Contract by the other, such waiver shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other or succeeding breach of this Contract, whether of the same 
or any other covenant, condition or obligation. 

 
8.07 Governing Law:  This Contract and all matters relating to it shall be governed by 

the laws of the State of California and the County of Siskiyou and any action 
brought relating to this Contract shall be brought exclusively in a state court in 
the County of Siskiyou. 

 
8.08 Reduction of Consideration:  Contractor agrees that County shall have the right 

to deduct from any payments contracted for under this Contract any amount 
owed to County by Contractor as a result of any obligation arising prior or 
subsequent to the execution of this contract.  For purposes of this paragraph, 
obligations arising prior to the execution of this contract may include, but are not 
limited to any property tax, secured or unsecured, which tax is in arrears.  If 
County exercises the right to reduce the consideration specified in this Contract, 
County shall give Contractor notice of the amount of any off-set and the reason 
for the deduction. 

 
8.09 Negotiated Contract:  This Contract has been arrived at through negotiation 

between the parties.  Neither party is to be deemed the party which prepared this 
Contract within the meaning of California Civil Code Section 1654.  Each party 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 12 of 34



11 

 

hereby represents and warrants that in executing this Contract it does so with full 
knowledge of the rights and duties it may have with respect to the other.  Each 
party also represents and warrants that it has received independent legal advice 
from its attorney with respect to the matters set forth in this Contract and the 
rights and duties arising out of this Contract, or that such party willingly foregoes 
any such consultation. 

 
8.10 Time is of the Essence:  Time is of the essence in the performance of this 

Contract. 
 
8.11 Materiality:  The parties consider each and every term, covenant, and provision 

of this Contract to be material and reasonable. 
 
8.12 Authority and Capacity:  Contractor and Contractor’s signatory each warrant and 

represent that each has full authority and capacity to enter into this Contract. 
 
8.13 Binding on Successors:  All of the conditions, covenants and terms herein 

contained shall apply to, and bind, the heirs, successors, executors, 
administrators and assigns of Contractor.  Contractor and all of Contractor’s 
heirs, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns shall be jointly and 
severally liable under the Contract. 

 
8.14 Cumulation of Remedies:  All of the various rights, options, elections, powers and 

remedies of the parties shall be construed as cumulative, and no one of them 
exclusive of any other or of any other legal or equitable remedy which a party 
might otherwise have in the event of a breach or default of any condition, 
covenant or term by the other party.  The exercise of any single right, option, 
election, power or remedy shall not, in any way, impair any other right, option, 
election, power or remedy until all duties and obligations imposed shall have 
been fully performed. 

 
8.15 No Reliance On Representations:  Each party hereby represents and warrants 

that it is not relying, and has not relied upon any representation or statement 
made by the other party with respect to the facts involved or its rights or duties.  
Each party understands and agrees that the facts relevant, or believed to be 
relevant to this Contract, may hereunder turn out to be other than, or different 
from the facts now known to such party as true, or believed by such party to be 
true.  The parties expressly assume the risk of the facts turning out to be different 
and agree that this Contract shall be effective in all respects and shall not be 
subject to rescission by reason of any such difference in facts. 

 
 
 
 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 13 of 34



12 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Contractor have executed this agreement on the 
dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to 
execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is 
made. 
     

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU: 
 
 
Date: __________________           ____________________________ 
       BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR 
       Board of Supervisors 
       County of Siskiyou 
       State of California 
 
ATTEST: 
LAURA BYNUM 
Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
By: ___________________ 
 Deputy 
 

CONTRACTOR: North American Mental 
Health Services, a Corporation 

 
Date: _______________________  ________________________________ 

Thomas Andrews, MD (Owner/CEO) 
 
Date: _______________________  ________________________________ 
 Benton Kinney, PA-C (Owner/CFO) 
 
License No.:_G79955___ 
     (Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the registration of contractors) 
 
Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two officers.  The first signature must be that of 
the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secretary, assistant 
secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, Sec. 313.) 

      
TAXPAYER I.D. On File 
      
ACCOUNTING: 
Fund      Organization      Account    
2122 401030 723015 
 
Not to exceed:  
FY 22/23 $0.01 (Rate) 
FY 23/24  $0.01 (Rate) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD

7/25/2022

7/28/2022

Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 14 of 34



13 

 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 
I. Scope of Services 

 
A. Definitions 

 
1) “Telepsychiatry” shall mean any mental health service provided remotely via the 

internet and any form of teleconferencing equipment and software that allows 
real-time audio and visual communication between Contractor and County’s 
client and when permitted by law, also includes any and all telephone, fax, e-
mail, and written communication necessary for Contractor to provide services to 
County’s clients identified. At no point shall Contractor be asked or expected by 
County to provide mental health services of any kind to a client in violation of the 
California Telehealth Advancement Act of 2011, Assembly Bill 415, or Business 
& Professions Code Sections 2242, 2242.1 and 2290.5. 

 
2) “Telepsychiatry Provider” shall mean Psychiatrists providing telepsychiatry 

services operating as subcontractors to Contractor. 
 

3) “Teletherapy” shall be defined as providing mental health Screening, 
Assessment, Individual Therapy, Collateral Services, participation in Team 
meetings, and Child and Family Team meetings. Services shall be provided 
remotely via the internet or any other form of electronic communication.  

 
B. Telepsychiatry contractor shall provide all necessary psychiatric medication 

management care via telepsychiatry during hours mutually agreed upon by County 
and Contractor.  Should County and Contractor be unable to mutually agree on 
hours of service, this agreement shall be terminated by County immediately upon 
written notice to Contractor.  Contractor shall consult with County Behavioral Health 
staff.  During telepsychiatry sessions, time shall be scheduled for Contractor to 
provide medical consultation to County nursing staff to include, but not limited to, 
client/patient follow-up questions, medication side-effect issues, and medication 
changes and refills.  

 
Contractor agrees to provide teletherapy treatment for persons identified and 
scheduled by County.  Perform comprehensive assessments to determine medical 
necessity and level of service. Collaboratively create a treatment plan or problem list 
with the client and update it at least annually and as needed. Conduct ongoing 
individual therapeutic sessions, Collaborate with a team to identify appropriate 
ancillary services. Therapist is responsible for determining the appropriate level of 
service and making referrals to a lower level of care when appropriate. 
 

C. Contractor shall provide all client services documentation to County within three (3) 
business days. All documentation is to meet or exceed Medi-Cal standards.  

 
D. Medication support services are the only psychiatric services Contractor or 

telepsychiatry providers are authorized to provide.  
 
E. Contractor, telepsychiatry, and teletherapy providers may be asked to serve clients 

of any age, including children ranging in age from 5 years old to 18 years old. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 15 of 34



14 

 

F. Contractor, telepsychiatrist, and teletherapist may be required to telephonically testify 
as a witness for cases that are court-involved.   

 
G. Contractor will not be required to provide any supervision and/or on-call duties.  
 
H. Contractor shall provide necessary telecommunication equipment for telepsychiatry 

and teletherapy sessions at Contractor’s principal place of business.  
 
I. County shall provide necessary telecommunication equipment for all telehealth 

sessions at County’s facilities.  
 
J. County understands that by the nature of telehealth services, the interface between 

Contractor and the County and County’s clients is completely dependent upon the 
ability to connect through the internet and teleconferencing equipment and software, 
and County agrees to provide at no cost to Contractor, IT support staff able and 
willing to maintain the operational functionality of said internet connection and 
teleconferencing equipment and software on site at the County to ensure continuity 
of care and to minimize disruption in service delivery.  

 
K. County shall provide Contractor with the same active County employee staff that 

would be allotted to a mental health provider employed by the County, including, but 
not limited to clerical, receptionist, scheduling, nursing, records maintenance, and 
information technology.  

 
L. By virtue of its efforts over time, Contractor has developed networks of independently 

contracted behavioral healthcare providers, an innovative business model and 
innovative relationships and agreements with providers and organizations 
(Collectively referred to as Contractor’s “Proprietary Information and Trade Secrets”). 
Contractor’s Proprietary Information and Trade Secrets are seen as essential assets 
of Contractor’s telepsychiatry business model. For both parties to efficiently perform 
under this Agreement, Contractor must give County access to components of 
Contractor’s Proprietary Information and Trade Secrets. County recognizes the 
resources Contractor expends and the intrinsic risks Contractor incurs in developing 
its contracts to provide its services to County. County acknowledges that Contractor 
has a legitimate and legally-protectable interest in all Proprietary Information and 
Trade Secrets owned by Contractor, and, thus, County agrees not to use any of 
Contractor’s Proprietary Information and Trade Secrets at any time except in the 
furtherance of Contractor’s sole interests and in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 

M. Except as it may conflict with laws regarding continuity of care, patient abandonment 
or unfair competition, County agrees that, while County is in a relationship with 
Contractor and for a period of one (1) year immediately after termination of such 
relationship for any reason, County will not, either directly or indirectly, for County or 
any other person or entity do any of the following: 

 
1) Do business with any of Contractor’s employees or independent contractors 

providing professional services on behalf of Contractor during said period. 
 

2) Employ, solicit for employment, or otherwise hire or engage, any employee or 
consultant of Contractor who is employed or engaged by Contractor at the time 
of County’s relationship with Contractor; or publish or cause to be published any 
statement or opinion to any representative of the media or press, relating to the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 16 of 34



15 

 

business, affairs, finance, officers, director, employees, patients, or clients of 
Contractor without previously having obtained written authorization of 
Contractor’s executive management.  

 
II. Compensation 

 
A. Contractor shall be compensated only for services provided which are approved by 

the County.  
 

B. Claims for payment must be submitted within thirty (30) days after the month in 
which services were provided.  

 
C. County shall compensate Contractor at the following rates:  
 

Psychiatrist Services    $260.00 per hour 
Mid-Level Practitioner Services (Pas, NPs) $220.00 per hour 
Licensed Clinician     $150.00 per hour 
 
Reimbursement for travel will be paid at $110.00 per each half hour of travel to 
County’s Mt. Shasta or Yreka facilities. 
  

D. Service time for telepsychiatrists will include one extra hour per day added to each 
day of service to allow for documentation, prescriptions, refills, etc. Any services 
requested by County and scheduled by Contractor are payable as scheduled 
regardless of whether the patient subsequently cancels or does not show up for the 
appointment, unless Contractor is provided with due notice of the cancellation 
allowing Contractor, in good faith, to recoup the costs incurred in arranging for the 
initially requested services.  
 

E. Service time for teletherapist will include all direct service with clients and time spent 
on behalf of the client and may also include the time spent actively testifying or 
participating in any Court discussion regarding cases directly worked upon. The 
reimbursement rate for Court time will be $150.00 per hour.   
 

F. The rate paid by County to Contractor is inclusive of all expenses incurred by 
Contractor while providing services pursuant to this agreement. County is not 
obligated to pay Contractor any additional sums for any expenses incurred by 
Contractor during the term of this agreement.  

 
G. Teletherapist contractor is required to provide evidence of annual completion for all 

Compliance requirements requested of them and three Cultural Competence 
trainings.   

 
H. Contractor is not expected to bill any third-party payers, including Medicare, before 

requesting payment from the County. Contractor shall not seek payment from any 
other source and shall not seek compensation directly from County’s clients.  

 
I. Upon request, Contractor shall provide County with required records for billing 

verification purposes as provided by this agreement, and all records shall provide all 
information necessary for County to receive payment or reimbursement from Medi-
Cal.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 17 of 34



16 

 

J. Contractor shall submit completed claims to County within thirty (30) days after the 
month in which services were provided. For purposes of this section, a valid claim 
means one submitted in the format of HCFA 1500 or a County acceptable format, 
containing correctly entered information, sufficient to document that an authorized 
service was provided to an authorized client by Contractor.  

 
K. County is responsible for billing Medi-Cal and collecting from Medi-Cal or any other 

appropriate entity. In the event that Contractor is set up to bill directly through the 
County’s Anasazi system, County will no longer require Medi-Cal detail to 
accompany invoices.  

 
III. Compliance and Audits 

 
Contractor shall ensure that all services and documentation shall comply with all 
applicable requirements in the DHCS-MHP Contract No. 17-94617 located at: 
http://www.co.siskiyou.ca.us/content/behavioral-health-services-division. 

 
A. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Medicaid laws, regulations, and contract 

provisions, including the terms of the 1915(b) Waiver and any Special Terms and 
Conditions.  
 

B. Contractor shall be subject to audit, evaluation, and inspection of any books, records, 
contracts, computer or electronic systems that pertain to any aspect of the services 
and activities performed, in accordance with 42 CFR §§ 438.3(h) and 438.230(c)(3).  

 
C. Contractor shall make available, for the purposes of an audit, evaluation, or 

inspection, its premises, physical facilities, equipment, books, records, contracts, 
computer or other electronic systems relating to Medi-Cal beneficiaries.  

 
D. Should the State, CMS, or the HHS Inspector General determine that there is a 

reasonable possibility of fraud or similar risk, the State, CMS, or the HHS Inspector 
General may inspect, evaluate, and audit the Contractor at any time.  

 
E. County will monitor performance of Contractor on an ongoing basis for compliance 

with the terms of the DHCS-MHP Contract. Contractor’s performance shall be 
subject to periodic formal review by County. 

 
F.  Contractor and any of its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, contractors, or 

subcontractors agree to consent to criminal background checks including 
fingerprinting when required to do so by DHCS or by the level of screening based on 
risk of fraud, waste, or abuse as determined for that category of provider.  

 
G. Contractor shall allow inspection, evaluation, and audit of its records, documents, 

and facilities, and those of its subcontractors, for 10 years from the term end date of 
this Contract or in the event the Contractor has been notified that an audit or 
investigation of this Contract has been commenced, until such time as the matter 
under audit or investigation has been resolved, including the exhaustion of all legal 
remedies, whichever is later. 

 
H. Should Contractor create a Federal or State audit exception during the course of the 

provision of services under this agreement, due to an error or errors of omission or 
commission, Contractor shall be responsible for the audit exception and any 
associated recoupment. Should a Contractor-caused audit exception result in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 18 of 34



17 

 

financial recoupment, County shall invoice Contractor for the associated amount and 
Contractor shall reimburse County the full amount within 30 days. The County will 
not offset future billings for repayment under this agreement. 

 
I. All provisions in this section shall survive the termination, expiration, or cancellation 

of this agreement.  
 

IV. Contract Amendments 
 
Contractor and County may mutually agree to amend the rates and/or services in this 
contract during the term of this contract. Contractor must submit in writing the proposed 
new rates and/or services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 19 of 34



18 

 

Exhibit “B” 
 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SISKIYOU COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES AGENCY – BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION NONDISCRIMINATION IN STATE 

AND FEDERALLY – ASSISTED PROGRAMS 

 
 
 
CONTRACTOR HEREBY AGREES THAT it will comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of 
this contract as further described below and referenced in the California Department of Health 
Care Services Specialty Mental Health Services Agreement Exhibit E, Section 3 -  
  

1) Consistent with the requirements of applicable federal law such as 42 C.F.R. §§ 
438.6(d)(3) and (4) or state law, the Contractor shall not engage in any unlawful 
discriminatory practices in the admission of beneficiaries, assignments of accommodations, 
treatment, evaluation, employment of personnel, or in any other respect on the basis of 
race, color, gender, religion, marital status, national origin, age, sexual preference or mental 
or physical handicap.  The Contractor will not discriminate against beneficiaries on the basis 
of health status or need for health care services, pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.6(d)(3). 
 
2) The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, as amended, pertaining to the prohibition of discrimination against qualified 
handicapped persons in all federally assisted programs or activities, as detailed in 
regulations signed by the Secretary of Health and Human Services, effective June 2, 1977, 
and found in the Federal Register, Volume 42, No. 86, dated May 4, 1977. 

 
Contractor agrees this assurance is binding on the vendor/recipient directly or through contract, 
license, or other provider services, as long as it received federal or state assistance.   
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 20 of 34



19 

 

Exhibit “C” 
 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATES AGREEMENT 
UNDER THE HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND 

ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 1996 (HIPAA) 
 

Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency, Behavioral Health Division (“County”) is a 
Covered Entity as defined by, and subject to the requirements and prohibitions of, the 
Administrative Simplification provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (HIPAA), and regulations promulgated thereunder, including 
the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 Code of Federal 
Regulations (C.F.R.) Parts 160 and 164 (collectively, the "HIPAA Rules").   

Contractor performs or provides functions, activities or services to County that require 
Contractor, in order to provide such functions, activities or services, to create, access, receive, 
maintain, and/or transmit information that includes or that may include Protected Health 
Information, as defined by the HIPAA Rules.  As such, Contractor is a Business Associate as 
defined by the HIPAA Rules, and is therefore subject to those provisions of the HIPAA Rules 
that are applicable to Business Associates. 

The HIPAA Rules require a written agreement ("Business Associate Agreement") between 
County and Contractor in order to mandate certain protections for the privacy and security of 
Protected Health Information, and these HIPAA Rules prohibit the disclosure to or use of 
Protected Health Information by Contractor if such an agreement is not in place. 

This Business Associate Agreement and its provisions are intended to protect the privacy and 
provide for the security of Protected Health Information disclosed to or used by Contractor in 
compliance with the HIPAA Rules. 
 
Therefore, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1 "Breach" has the same meaning as the term "breach" at 45 C.F.R. § 164.402. 

1.2 "Business Associate" has the same meaning as the term "business associate" at 45 
C.F.R. § 160.103.  For the convenience of the parties, a "business associate" is a 
person or entity, other than a member of the workforce of covered entity, who 
performs functions or activities on behalf of, or provides certain services to, a 
covered entity that involve access by the business associate to Protected Health 
Information.  A "business associate" also is a subcontractor that creates, receives, 
maintains, or transmits Protected Health Information on behalf of another business 
associate.  And in reference to the party to this Business Associate Agreement 
"Business Associate" shall mean Contractor.   

1.3 "Covered Entity" has the same meaning as the term “covered entity” at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103, and in reference to the party to this Business Associate Agreement, 
"Covered Entity" shall mean Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency, 
Behavioral Health Division. 

1.4 "Data Aggregation" has the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" at 45 
C.F.R. § 164.501. 

1.5 "De-identification" refers to the de-identification standard at 45 C.F.R. § 164.514. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 21 of 34



20 

 

1.6 "Designated Record Set" has the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 
at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501. 

1.7 "Disclose” and “Disclosure” mean, with respect to Protected Health Information, the 
release, transfer, provision of access to, or divulging in any other manner of 
Protected Health Information outside Business Associate’s internal operations or to 
other than its workforce.  (See 45 C.F.R. § 160.103.) 

1.8 "Electronic Health Record” means an electronic record of health-related information 
on an individual that is created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized 
health care clinicians and staff.  (See 42 U.S. C. § 17921.) 

1.9 “Electronic Media” has the same meaning as the term “electronic media” at 45 C.F.R. 
§ 160.103.  For the convenience of the parties, electronic media means (1) 
Electronic storage material on which data is or may be recorded electronically, 
including, for example, devices in computers (hard drives) and any 
removable/transportable digital memory medium, such as magnetic tape or disk, 
optical disk, or digital memory card; (2) Transmission media used to exchange 
information already in electronic storage media.  Transmission media include, for 
example, the Internet, extranet or intranet, leased lines, dial-up lines, private 
networks, and the physical movement of removable/transportable electronic storage 
media.  Certain transmissions, including of paper, via facsimile, and of voice, via 
telephone, are not considered to be transmissions via electronic media if the 
information being exchanged did not exist in electronic form immediately before the 
transmission. 

1.10 "Electronic Protected Health Information” has the same meaning as the term 
“electronic protected health information” at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, limited to Protected 
Health Information created or received by Business Associate from or on behalf of 
Covered Entity.  For the convenience of the parties, Electronic Protected Health 
Information means Protected Health Information that is (i) transmitted by electronic 
media; (ii) maintained in electronic media. 

1.11 "Health Care Operations" has the same meaning as the term "health care 
operations" at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501. 

1.12 "Individual” has the same meaning as the term "individual" at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103.  
For the convenience of the parties, Individual means the person who is the subject of 
Protected Health Information and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal 
representative in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.502 (g). 

1.13 "Law Enforcement Official" has the same meaning as the term "law enforcement 
official" at 45 C.F.R. § 164.103. 

1.14 "Minimum Necessary" refers to the minimum necessary standard at 45 C.F.R. § 
162.502 (b). 

1.15 “Protected Health Information” has the same meaning as the term “protected health 
information” at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, limited to the information created or received by 
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.  For the convenience of the 
parties, Protected Health Information includes information that (i) relates to the past, 
present or future physical or mental health or condition of an Individual; the provision 
of health care to an Individual, or the past, present or future payment for the 
provision of health care to an Individual; (ii) identifies the Individual (or for which 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 22 of 34



21 

 

there is a reasonable basis for believing that the information can be used to identify 
the Individual); and (iii) is created, received, maintained, or transmitted by Business 
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity, and includes Protected Health 
Information that is made accessible to Business Associate by Covered Entity.  
“Protected Health Information” includes Electronic Protected Health Information. 

1.16 “Required by Law” " has the same meaning as the term "required by law" at 45 
C.F.R. § 164.103. 

1.17 "Secretary" has the same meaning as the term "secretary" at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 

1.18 "Security Incident” has the same meaning as the term "security incident" at 45 C.F.R. 
§ 164.304.  

1.19 "Services” means, unless otherwise specified, those functions, activities, or services 
in the applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Master Agreement, Work Order, or 
Purchase Order or other service arrangement, with or without payment, that gives 
rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

1.20 "Subcontractor" has the same meaning as the term "subcontractor" at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103.   

1.21 "Unsecured Protected Health Information" has the same meaning as the term 
“unsecured protected health information" at 45 C.F.R. § 164.402. 

1.22 “Use” or “Uses” means, with respect to Protected Health Information, the sharing, 
employment, application, utilization, examination or analysis of such Information 
within Business Associate’s internal operations.  (See 45 C.F.R § 164.103.) 

1.23 Terms used, but not otherwise defined in this Business Associate Agreement, have 
the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules. 

2. PERMITTED AND REQUIRED USES AND DISCLOSURES OF PROTECTED HEALTH 
INFORMATION 

2.1 Business Associate may only Use and/or Disclose Protected Health Information as 
necessary to perform Services, and/or as necessary to comply with the obligations of 
this Business Associate Agreement. 

2.2 Business Associate may Use Protected Health Information for de-identification of the 
information if de-identification of the information is required to provide Services. 

2.3 Business Associate may Use or Disclose Protected Health Information as Required 
by Law. 

2.4 Business Associate shall make Uses and Disclosures and requests for Protected 
Health Information consistent with the Covered Entity’s applicable Minimum 
Necessary policies and procedures. 

2.5 Business Associate may Use Protected Health Information as necessary for the 
proper management and administration of its business or to carry out its legal 
responsibilities. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 23 of 34



22 

 

2.6 Business Associate may Disclose Protected Health Information as necessary for the 
proper management and administration of its business or to carry out its legal 
responsibilities, provided the Disclosure is Required by Law or Business Associate 
obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the Protected Health 
Information is disclosed (i.e., the recipient) that it will be held confidentially and Used 
or further Disclosed only as Required by Law or for the purposes for which it was 
disclosed to the recipient and the recipient notifies Business Associate of any 
instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the Protected Health 
Information has been breached. 

2.7 Business Associate may provide Data Aggregation services relating to Covered 
Entity's Health Care Operations if such Data Aggregation services are necessary in 
order to provide Services. 

3. PROHIBITED USES AND DISCLOSURES OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

3.1 Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose Protected Health Information other 
than as permitted or required by this Business Associate Agreement or as Required 
by Law. 

3.2 Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose Protected Health Information in a 
manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 if done by Covered Entity, 
except for the specific Uses and Disclosures set forth in Sections 2.5 and 2.6. 

3.3 Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose Protected Health Information for de-
identification of the information except as set forth in section 2.2. 

4. OBLIGATIONS TO SAFEGUARD PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

4.1 Business Associate shall implement, use, and maintain appropriate safeguards to 
prevent the Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information other than as provided 
for by this Business Associate Agreement. 

4.2 Business Associate shall comply with Subpart C of 45 C.F.R Part 164 with respect to 
Electronic Protected Health Information, to prevent the Use or Disclosure of such 
information other than as provided for by this Business Associate Agreement. 

5. REPORTING NON-PERMITTED USES OR DISCLOSURES, SECURITY INCIDENTS, AND 
BREACHES OF UNSECURED PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

5.1 Business Associate shall report to Covered Entity any Use or Disclosure of Protected 
Health Information not permitted by this Business Associate Agreement, any Security 
Incident, and/ or any Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information as further 
described in Sections 5.1.1, 5.1.2, and 5.1.3. 

5.1.1 Business Associate shall report to Covered Entity any Use or Disclosure of 
Protected Health Information by Business Associate, its employees, 
representatives, agents or Subcontractors not provided for by this Agreement 
of which Business Associate becomes aware. 

5.1.2 Business Associate shall report to Covered Entity any Security Incident of 
which Business Associate becomes aware. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 24 of 34



23 

 

5.1.3. Business Associate shall report to Covered Entity any Breach by Business 
Associate, its employees, representatives, agents, workforce members, or 
Subcontractors of Unsecured Protected Health Information that is known to 
Business Associate or, by exercising reasonable diligence, would have been 
known to Business Associate.  Business Associate shall be deemed to have 
knowledge of a Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information if the 
Breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been 
known, to any person, other than the person committing the Breach, who is 
an employee, officer, or other agent of Business Associate, including a 
Subcontractor, as determined in accordance with the federal common law of 
agency. 

5.2 Except as provided in Section 5.3, for any reporting required by Section 5.1, 
Business Associate shall provide, to the extent available, all information required by, 
and within the times frames specified in, Sections 5.2.1 and 5.2.2. 

5.2.1 Business Associate shall make an immediate telephonic report upon 
discovery of the non-permitted Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information, Security Incident or Breach of Unsecured Protected Health 
Information to (562) 940-3335 that minimally includes: 

(a) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the non-
permitted Use or Disclosure, Security Incident, or Breach and the date 
of Discovery of the non-permitted Use or Disclosure, Security 
Incident, or Breach, if known; 

(b) The number of Individuals whose Protected Health Information is 
involved; 

(c) A description of the specific type of Protected Health Information 
involved in the non-permitted Use or Disclosure, Security Incident, or 
Breach (such as whether full name, social security number, date of 
birth, home address, account number, diagnosis, disability code or 
other types of information were involved); 

(d) The name and contact information for a person highly knowledge of 
the facts and circumstances of the non-permitted Use or Disclosure of 
PHI, Security Incident, or Breach 

5.2.2 Business Associate shall make a written report without unreasonable delay 
and in no event later than three (3) business days from the date of discovery 
by Business Associate of the non-permitted Use or Disclosure of Protected 
Health Information, Security Incident, or Breach of Unsecured Protected 
Health Information and to the Health and Human Services Agency Privacy 
Officer at:  Dee Barton, Privacy Officer, Siskiyou County Health and 
Human Services Agency, 2060 Campus Drive, Yreka, CA 96097, 
dbarton1@co.siskiyou.ca.us, Phone: (530) 841-4805, Fax: (530) 841-
4133, that includes, to the extent possible: 

(a) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the non-
permitted Use or Disclosure, Security Incident, or Breach and the date 
of Discovery of the non-permitted Use or Disclosure, Security 
Incident, or Breach, if known; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 25 of 34



24 

 

(b) The number of Individuals whose Protected Health Information is 
involved; 

(c) A description of the specific type of Protected Health Information 
involved in the non-permitted Use or Disclosure, Security Incident, or 
Breach (such as whether full name, social security number, date of 
birth, home address, account number, diagnosis, disability code or 
other types of information were involved); 

(d) The identification of each Individual whose Unsecured Protected 
Health Information has been, or is reasonably believed by Business 
Associate to have been, accessed, acquired, Used, or Disclosed; 

(e) Any other information necessary to conduct an assessment of 
whether notification to the Individual(s) under 45 C.F.R. § 164.404 is 
required; 

(f) Any steps Business Associate believes that the Individual(s) could 
take to protect him or herself from potential harm from the non-
permitted Use or Disclosure, Security Incident, or Breach; 

(g) A brief description of what Business Associate is doing to investigate, 
to mitigate harm to the Individual(s), and to protect against any further 
similar occurrences; and  

(h) The name and contact information for a person highly knowledge of 
the facts and circumstances of the non-permitted Use or Disclosure of 
PHI, Security Incident, or Breach. 

5.2.3 If Business Associate is not able to provide the information specified in 
Section 5.2.1 or 5.2.2 at the time of the required report, Business Associate 
shall provide such information promptly thereafter as such information 
becomes available. 

5.3 Business Associate may delay the notification required by Section 5.1.3, if a law 
enforcement official states to Business Associate that notification would impede a 
criminal investigation or cause damage to national security.   

5.3.1 If the law enforcement official's statement is in writing and specifies the time 
for which a delay is required, Business Associate shall delay its reporting 
and/or notification obligation(s) for the time period specified by the official. 

5.3.2 If the statement is made orally, Business Associate shall document the 
statement, including the identity of the official making the statement, and 
delay its reporting and/or notification obligation(s) temporarily and no longer 
than 30 days from the date of the oral statement, unless a written statement 
as described in Section 5.3.1 is submitted during that time.  

6. WRITTEN ASSURANCES OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

6.1 In accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.502 (e)(1)(ii) and § 164.308 (b)(2), if applicable, 
Business Associate shall ensure that any Subcontractor that creates, receives, 
maintains, or transmits Protected Health Information on behalf of Business Associate 
is made aware of its status as a Business Associate with respect to such information 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 26 of 34



25 

 

and that Subcontractor agrees in writing to the same restrictions, conditions, and 
requirements that apply to Business Associate with respect to such information. 

6.2 Business Associate shall take reasonable steps to cure any material breach or 
violation by Subcontractor of the agreement required by Section 6.1.   

6.3 If the steps required by Section 6.2 do not cure the breach or end the violation, 
Contractor shall terminate, if feasible, any arrangement with Subcontractor by which 
Subcontractor creates, receives, maintains, or transmits Protected Health 
Information on behalf of Business Associate. 

6.4 If neither cure nor termination as set forth in Sections 6.2 and 6.3 is feasible, 
Business Associate shall immediately notify CalMHSA. 

6.5 Without limiting the requirements of Section 6.1, the agreement required by Section 
6.1 (Subcontractor Business Associate Agreement) shall require Subcontractor to 
contemporaneously notify Covered Entity in the event of a Breach of Unsecured 
Protected Health Information. 

6.6 Without limiting the requirements of Section 6.1, agreement required by Section 6.1 
(Subcontractor Business Associate Agreement) shall include a provision requiring 
Subcontractor to destroy, or in the alternative to return to Business Associate, any 
Protected Health Information created, received, maintained, or transmitted by 
Subcontractor on behalf of Business Associate so as to enable Business Associate 
to comply with the provisions of Section 18.4. 

6.7 Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity, at Covered Entity's request, a 
copy of any and all Subcontractor Business Associate Agreements required by 
Section 6.1. 

6.8 Sections 6.1 and 6.7 are not intended by the parties to limit in any way the scope of 
Business Associate's obligations related to Subcontracts or Subcontracting in the 
applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Master Agreement, Work Order, 
Purchase Order, or other services arrangement, with or without payment, that gives 
rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

7. ACCESS TO PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

7.1 To the extent Covered Entity determines that Protected Health Information is 
maintained by Business Associate or its agents or Subcontractors in a Designated 
Record Set, Business Associate shall, within two (2) business days after receipt of a 
request from Covered Entity, make the Protected Health Information specified by 
Covered Entity available to the Individual(s) identified by Covered Entity as being 
entitled to access and shall provide such Individuals(s) or other person(s) designated 
by Covered Entity with a copy the specified Protected Health Information, in order for 
Covered Entity to meet the requirements of 45 C.F.R. § 164.524. 

7.2 If any Individual requests access to Protected Health Information directly from 
Business Associate or its agents or Subcontractors, Business Associate shall notify 
Covered Entity in writing within two (2) days of the receipt of the request.  Whether 
access shall be provided or denied shall be determined by Covered Entity. 

7.3 To the extent that Business Associate maintains Protected Health Information that is 
subject to access as set forth above in one or more Designated Record Sets 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 27 of 34



26 

 

electronically and if the Individual requests an electronic copy of such information, 
Business Associate shall provide the Individual with access to the Protected Health 
Information in the electronic form and format requested by the Individual, if it is 
readily producible in such form and format; or, if not, in a readable electronic form 
and format as agreed to by Covered Entity and the Individual. 

8. AMENDMENT OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

8.1 To the extent Covered Entity determines that any Protected Health Information is 
maintained by Business Associate or its agents or Subcontractors in a Designated 
Record Set, Business Associate shall, within ten (10) business days after receipt of a 
written request from Covered Entity, make any amendments to such Protected 
Health Information that are requested by Covered Entity, in order for Covered Entity 
to meet the requirements of 45 C.F.R. § 164.526. 

8.2 If any Individual requests an amendment to Protected Health Information directly 
from Business Associate or its agents or Subcontractors, Business Associate shall 
notify Covered Entity in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of the request.  
Whether an amendment shall be granted or denied shall be determined by Covered 
Entity. 

9. ACCOUNTING OF DISCLOSURES OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

9.1 Business Associate shall maintain an accounting of each Disclosure of Protected 
Health Information made by Business Associate or its employees, agents, 
representatives or Subcontractors, as is determined by Covered Entity to be 
necessary in order to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual 
for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 
45 C.F.R. § 164.528. 

9.1.1 Any accounting of disclosures provided by Business Associate under Section 
9.1 shall include:  

(a) The date of the Disclosure;  

(b) The name, and address if known, of the entity or person who received 
the Protected Health Information; 

(c) A brief description of the Protected Health Information Disclosed; and  

(d) A brief statement of the purpose of the Disclosure.   

9.1.2 For each Disclosure that could require an accounting under Section 9.1, 
Business Associate shall document the information specified in Section 9.1.1, 
and shall maintain the information for six (6) years from the date of the 
Disclosure.   

9.2 Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity, within ten (10) business days 
after receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, information collected in 
accordance with Section 9.1.1 to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in 
accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 28 of 34



27 

 

9.3 If any Individual requests an accounting of disclosures directly from Business 
Associate or its agents or Subcontractors, Business Associate shall notify Covered 
Entity in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of the request, and shall provide the 
requested accounting of disclosures to the Individual(s) within 30 days.  The 
information provided in the accounting shall be in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.528. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE HIPAA RULES 

10.1 To the extent Business Associate is to carry out one or more of Covered Entity's 
obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Business Associate shall 
comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to Covered Entity's 
performance of such obligation(s). 

10.2 Business Associate shall comply with all HIPAA Rules applicable to Business 
Associate in the performance of Services. 

11. AVAILABILITY OF RECORDS 

11.1 Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books, and records relating to 
the Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or 
received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity available to the 
Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with the Privacy 
and Security Regulations. 

11.2 Unless prohibited by the Secretary, Business Associate shall immediately notify 
Covered Entity of any requests made by the Secretary and provide Covered Entity 
with copies of any documents produced in response to such request. 

12. MITIGATION OF HARMFUL EFFECTS 

12.1 Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect of a 
Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business Associate in violation 
of the requirements of this Business Associate Agreement that is known to Business 
Associate. 

13. BREACH NOTIFICATION TO INDIVIDUALS   

13.1 Business Associate shall, to the extent Covered Entity determines that there has 
been a Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information by Business Associate, its 
employees, representatives, agents or Subcontractors, provide breach notification to 
the Individual in a manner that permits Covered Entity to comply with its obligations 
under 45 C.F.R. § 164.404. 

13.1.1 Business Associate shall notify, subject to the review and approval of 
Covered Entity, each Individual whose Unsecured Protected Health 
Information has been, or is reasonably believed to have been, accessed, 
acquired, Used, or Disclosed as a result of any such Breach. 

13.1.2 The notification provided by Business Associate shall be written in plain 
language, shall be subject to review and approval by Covered Entity, and 
shall include, to the extent possible: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 29 of 34



28 

 

(a) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the Breach 
and the date of the Discovery of the Breach, if known; 

(b) A description of the types of Unsecured Protected Health Information 
that were involved in the Breach (such as whether full name, social 
security number, date of birth, home address, account number, 
diagnosis, disability code, or other types of information were involved); 

(c) Any steps the Individual should take to protect him or herself from 
potential harm resulting from the Breach; 

(d) A brief description of what Business Associate is doing to investigate 
the Breach, to mitigate harm to Individual(s), and to protect against 
any further Breaches; and 

(e) Contact procedures for Individual(s) to ask questions or learn 
additional information, which shall include a toll-free telephone 
number, an e-mail address, Web site, or postal address. 

13.2 Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, may elect to provide the notification required by 
Section 13.1 and/or to establish the contact procedures described in Section 13.1.2. 

13.3 Business Associate shall reimburse Covered Entity any and all costs incurred by 
Covered Entity, in complying with Subpart D of 45 C.F.R. Part 164, including but not 
limited to costs of notification, internet posting, or media publication, as a result of 
Business Associate's Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information; Covered 
Entity shall not be responsible for any costs incurred by Business Associate in 
providing the notification required by 13.1 or in establishing the contact procedures 
required by Section 13.1.2. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION 

14.1 Business Associate shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Covered Entity, its 
Special Districts, elected and appointed officers, employees, and agents from and 
against any and all liability, including but not limited to demands, claims, actions, 
fees, costs, expenses (including attorney and expert witness fees), and penalties 
and/or fines (including regulatory penalties and/or fines), arising from or connected 
with Business Associate's acts and/or omissions arising from and/or relating to this 
Business Associate Agreement, including, but not limited to, compliance and/or 
enforcement actions and/or activities, whether formal or informal, by the Secretary or 
by the Attorney General of the State of California. 

14.2 Section 14.1 is not intended by the parties to limit in any way the scope of Business 
Associate's obligations related to Insurance and/or Indemnification in the applicable 
underlying Agreement, Contract, Master Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order, 
or other services arrangement, with or without payment, that gives rise to 
Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

15. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

15.1 Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any current or future restrictions or 
limitations on the Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information that would affect 
Business Associate’s performance of the Services, and Business Associate shall 
thereafter restrict or limit its own Uses and Disclosures accordingly. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 30 of 34



29 

 

15.2 Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to Use or Disclose Protected 
Health Information in any manner that would not be permissible under Subpart E of 
45 C.F.R. Part 164 if done by Covered Entity, except to the extent that Business 
Associate may Use or Disclose Protected Health Information as provided in Sections 
2.3, 2.5, and 2.6. 

16. TERM 

16.1 Unless sooner terminated as set forth in Section 17, the term of this Business 
Associate Agreement shall be the same as the term of the applicable underlying 
Agreement, Contract, Participation Agreement, Master Agreement, Work Order, 
Purchase Order, or other service arrangement, with or without payment, that gives 
rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

16.2 Notwithstanding Section 16.1, Business Associate’s obligations under Sections 11, 
14, and 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Business Associate 
Agreement. 

17. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE  

17.1 In addition to and notwithstanding the termination provisions set forth in the 
applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Participation Agreement, Master 
Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order, or other services arrangement, with or 
without payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate, if 
either party determines that the other party has violated a material term of this 
Business Associate Agreement, and the breaching party has not cured the breach or 
ended the violation within the time specified by the non-breaching party, which shall 
be reasonable given the nature of the breach and/or violation, the non-breaching 
party may terminate this Business Associate Agreement. 

17.2 In addition to and notwithstanding the termination provisions set forth in the 
applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Participation Agreement, Master 
Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order, or other services arrangement, with or 
without payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate, if 
either party determines that the other party has violated a material term of this 
Business Associate Agreement, and cure is not feasible, the non-breaching party 
may terminate this Business Associate Agreement immediately. 

18. DISPOSITION OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION UPON TERMINATION OR 
EXPIRATION 

18.1 Except as provided in Section 18.3, upon termination for any reason or expiration of 
this Business Associate Agreement, Business Associate shall return or, if agreed to 
by Covered entity, shall destroy as provided for in Section 18.2, all Protected Health 
Information received from Covered Entity, or created, maintained, or received by 
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, that Business Associate, including 
any Subcontractor, still maintains in any form.  Business Associate shall retain no 
copies of the Protected Health Information. 

18.2 Destruction for purposes of Section 18.2 and Section 6.6 shall mean that media on 
which the Protected Health Information is stored or recorded has been destroyed 
and/or electronic media have been cleared, purged, or destroyed in accordance with 
the use of a technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in guidance for 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 31 of 34



30 

 

rendering Protected Health Information unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to 
unauthorized individuals. 

18.3 Notwithstanding Section 18.1, in the event that return or destruction of Protected 
Health Information is not feasible or Business Associate determines that any such 
Protected Health Information is necessary for Business Associate to continue its 
proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities, 
Business Associate may retain that Protected Health Information for which 
destruction or return is infeasible or that Protected Health Information which is 
necessary for Business Associate to continue its proper management and 
administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities and shall return or destroy all 
other Protected Health Information.   

18.3.1 Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Business Associate 
Agreement to such Protected Health Information, including continuing to use 
appropriate safeguards and continuing to comply with Subpart C of 45 C.F.R 
Part 164 with respect to Electronic Protected Health Information, to prevent 
the Use or Disclosure of such information other than as provided for in 
Sections 2.5 and 2.6 for so long as such Protected Health Information is 
retained, and Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose such Protected 
Health Information other than for the purposes for which such Protected 
Health Information was retained. 

18.3.2 Business Associate shall return or, if agreed to by Covered entity, destroy the 
Protected Health Information retained by Business Associate when it is no 
longer needed by Business Associate for Business Associate's proper 
management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities. 

18.4 Business Associate shall ensure that all Protected Health Information created, 
maintained, or received by Subcontractors is returned or, if agreed to by Covered 
entity, destroyed as provided for in Section 18.2. 

19. AUDIT, INSPECTION, AND EXAMINATION 

19.1 Covered Entity reserves the right to conduct a reasonable inspection of the facilities, 
systems, information systems, books, records, agreements, and policies and 
procedures relating to the Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information for the 
purpose determining whether Business Associate is in compliance with the terms of 
this Business Associate Agreement and any non-compliance may be a basis for 
termination of this Business Associate Agreement and the applicable underlying 
Agreement, Contract, Master Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order or other 
services arrangement, with or without payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status 
as a Business Associate, as provided for in section 17. 

19.2 Covered Entity and Business Associate shall mutually agree in advance upon the 
scope, timing, and location of any such inspection. 

19.3 At Business Associate's request, and to the extent permitted by law, Covered Entity 
shall execute a nondisclosure agreement, upon terms and conditions mutually 
agreed to by the parties. 

19.4 That Covered Entity inspects, fails to inspect, or has the right to inspect as provided 
for in Section 19.1 does not relieve Business Associate of its responsibility to comply 
with this Business Associate Agreement and/or the HIPAA Rules or impose on 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 32 of 34



31 

 

Covered Entity any responsibility for Business Associate's compliance with any 
applicable HIPAA Rules. 

19.5 Covered Entity's failure to detect, its detection but failure to notify Business 
Associate, or its detection but failure to require remediation by Business Associate of 
an unsatisfactory practice by Business Associate, shall not constitute acceptance of 
such practice or a waiver of Covered Entity's enforcement rights under this Business 
Associate Agreement or the applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Master 
Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order or other services arrangement, with or 
without payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

19.6 Section 19.1 is not intended by the parties to limit in any way the scope of Business 
Associate's obligations related to Inspection and/or Audit and/or similar review in the 
applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Participation Agreement, Master 
Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order, or other services arrangement, with or 
without payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

20. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

20.1 Disclaimer.  Covered Entity makes no warranty or representation that compliance by 
Business Associate with the terms and conditions of this Business Associate 
Agreement will be adequate or satisfactory to meet the business needs or legal 
obligations of Business Associate. 

20.2 HIPAA Requirements.  The Parties agree that the provisions under HIPAA Rules that 
are required by law to be incorporated into this Amendment are hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement. 

20.3 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Business Associate Agreement shall 
confer upon any person other than the parties and their respective successors or 
assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever. 

20.4 Construction.  In the event that a provision of this Business Associate Agreement is 
contrary to a provision of the applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Master 
Agreement, Work Order, Purchase Order, or other services arrangement, with or 
without payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate, the 
provision of this Business Associate Agreement shall control.  Otherwise, this 
Business Associate Agreement shall be construed under, and in accordance with, 
the terms of the applicable underlying Agreement, Contract, Master Agreement, 
Work Order, Purchase Order or other services arrangement, with or without 
payment, that gives rise to Contractor's status as a Business Associate. 

20.5 Regulatory References.  A reference in this Business Associate Agreement to a 
section in the HIPAA Rules means the section as in effect or as amended. 

20.6 Interpretation.  Any ambiguity in this Business Associate Agreement shall be 
resolved in favor of a meaning that permits the parties to comply with the HIPAA 
Rules. 

20.7 Amendment.  The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this 
Business Associate Agreement from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity 
or Business Associate to comply with the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and any 
other privacy laws governing Protected Health Information. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7974B077-725B-4C85-9D5C-B5742B4E03BD
Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 33 of 34



  
 

                                                
                                                                                                                           

                                                                             
  

 
 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSIGNMENT: (ATTACH ADDITIONAL PAGES IF NECESSARY)

 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS (PLEASE ATTACH):

 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT:                                           

               
       

 
                                                                                  

    
 

  SCHEDULED FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, PLANNING COMMISSION OR OTHER MEETING?
 

 YES  DATE:                                            
NO 

 
DATE NEEDED:                           (A.S.A.P IS NOT ACCEPTABLE, NEED AN ACTUAL DATE. - TWO 
WEEKS, IF LESS,  DEPT.  HEAD SIGNATURE REQUIRED_______________________________________ 
 

 

INITIALS OF ASSIGNED STAFF:                 
ASSISGNMENT NOTES: 
                                                                                       
                                                                                       
                                                                                       
TRACKING NUMBER:                                                
DATE COMPLETED:          /          /          
FINAL TO DEPT:        /         /           

DATE RECEIVED 

PURCHASING REVIEW REQUEST

TO:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR=S OFFICE     DATE:
FROM:  DEPT:

CONTACT/EXTENSION:

PROJECT/REFERENCE
 
(NAME YOU CALL IT):

(FOR COUNTY ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY)

Item No.D. BACKUP MATERIAL - 34 of 34



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 108 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - 

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: Meeting Date: 8/9/2022
OR
Consent

Contact Person/Department: Shelly Davis  / Public  Health Phone: 841-2140

Address: 810 S Main Street, Yreka CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Shelly Davis, Public Health Director

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency - Public Health Division is respectfully requesting permission to approve 
the First Addendum to the California Harm Reduction Initiative (CHRI) with the National Harm Reduction Coalition to amend 
the name to National Harm Reduction Coalition, remove vehicle leasing as an unallowable cost, and re-distribute Siskiyou 
County’s award over the three years (FY 21-23). 

The total amount of the grant will remain at Three Hundred Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ( $307,700.00) covering 
periods August 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 and re-allocated as follows: $101,390.28 (August 1, 2020-June 30, 2021); 
$103,155.36 (July 1, 2021-June 30, 2022) and $103,154.36 (July 1, 2022-June 30, 2023).

Financial Impact:

NO
Describe why no financial impact: 

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $307,700.00

Fund: 2121 Description: Public Health Org.: 401015 Description: Personal Health

Account: 560300 Description: Contributions 
from Others

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:   N/A

     

Additional Information:

Recommended Motion:

“Recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve and authorize the Chair to sign the First Addendum to the California 
Harm Reduction Initiative (CHRI) to Expand Harm Reduction and Support and Services Grant between Siskiyou County Health 
and Human Services Agency – Public Health Division and the National Harm Reduction Coalition and authorize the Auditor to 
establish budget appropriations.”

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel

yes Quantity: 1
Auditor      

Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other: 1 original document for CHRI,  2 original  documents for 
Siskiyou County

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be submitted directly to the Board 
Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 12:00 p.m. on the Wednesday prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 1/15/15

AGENDA WORKSHEET
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St. Room 201, Yreka, CA  96097
Item No.E. Backup Material - 1 of 5



xATtoxAL
HARl{ REDUCTIOII

coaLrTtox

FIRST ADDENDUM TO California Harm Reduction lnitiative to Expand Harm Reduction and
Support and Services

2020-2023

This addendum to the grant agreement ('Addendum") is made as ol June3O,2022by and between

Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency ("Grantee") whose principal address is 810 S.

Main St. Yreka, CA 96097 and National Harm Reduction Coatition ("Grantor"), previously contracted

as Grantor under the name Harm Reduction Coatition.

WHEREAS, the Grantor has engaged the Grantee to carry out Funded Activities as a part of the

California Harm Reduction lnitiative.

wHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee have agreed to make certain modifications to the Agreement:

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: AGREEMENTS

General Amendmer$:

ALt sections where Harm Reduction Coatition is referenced is replaced by Nationat Harm Reduction

Coatition

Specific Section Changes:

4. Payment of Grant Funds

Section 4 that begins as forrows is amended to read:

Grantee understands and agrees thal Award funds may not be used to pay for or offset the cost of,

the following:

(i) Purchasing vehicles or mobile units

(ii) Screening kits, including HlV, HCV, and toxicology screens

(iii) Existing deficits of Grantee

(iv) GovernmentLobbyingActivities

(v) lllegal activities

(vi) Services or staffing costs incuned outside of the state of Galifornia, without prior approval

(vii) Events, programs, or stafiing costs thal occuned prior to lhe grant slart date

per this amendment, Grantee is allowed to utilize their CHRI award funds to cover associaled costs of

leasing a vehicle or mobile unit to perform activities covered in the performance of the grant.

Page 1

Item No.E. Backup Material - 2 of 5



XATIOIIAL
HARII REDUCTIOX

coaLt?tox

Total Amount awarded s 107.700.00

Y1 allocation: $ 101J90.28 (August 1, 2020 - June
30, 2021)

Y2 allocation: S103,t55.36 lJuly 't.2021 - June 30,
20?21

Y3 allocation $ 103,154.36 (July 1, 2022 - June 30,
2023)

Grant sta rt date: August l, 2020

Grant end date:

3. . Payment of Grant Funds. Untit the eartiest of such time as the Grant has been paid in full, the end
of the Term, or the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 7 o{ this Agreement, and
provided Grantee is in full compliance with the terms of this Agreement, Grantor shatl pay Grantee
the Grant in thirteen (4) installment payments as fotlows (each, an "lnstallment Payment"l:

Payment Amount Requirements Funds Release Date

Ninth lnstallment
Payment

25o,A of Yea.

3 Allocation

25,788.59

Required fiscal and program reports due
6l30l27

Within 21 business

days of completed
and approved
reporting.

Tenth lnstallment
Payment

25,788.59

no requirements On or around the
week of September
26,2022

Eleventh
lnstallment
Payment

25Yo ol Year

3 Allocation

25,788.59

Required fiscal and program reports due
17l30/22

Within 21 business

days of completed
and approved
reporting.

Page 2

June 30,2023

25o/" of Yea.
3 Allocation:

Item No.E. Backup Material - 3 of 5



XATIOIIAL
HARI{ REDUCTIOII

GOALT"tOX

Twelfth
lnstallment
Paymeot

25"/. ol Year

3 Allocation:

25,788.59

no requirements On or around the
week of March 27,

2023

All other terms of the existing Agreement witl remain in effect,

ITHE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS II{TENTIONAILY LEFT BLANKI

Page 3

Item No.E. Backup Material - 4 of 5



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Contractor have executed this agreement on the
dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to
execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is
made.

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU

Date:
BRANDON A, CRISS, CHAIR
Board of Supervisors
County of Siskiyou
State of California

ATTEST:
LAURA BYNUM
Clerk, Board of Supervisors

By:
Deputy

CONTRACTOR: National Harm
Redu Coalition, Non-Profit
Corpo on

Date aa dd,
Joan
Admi

, Senior Director of
nl n

Date: J 2t L) z--

Anthony Salandy, PhD., MSc, lnterim
Executive Director

License No.: 839219953
(Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the registration of contractors)

Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two offlcers. The firsl signature must be that of
the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secre'tary, assistant
secretary, chief financial officer or assistant lreasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1 '189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, Sec. 313.)

TAXPAYER l.D.: 94-3204958

ACCOUNTING

( I

Fund
2121

Oroanization
401015

Account
560300

FY 2020-2021
$101 ,390.28

FY 2021-2022
$103,155.36

FY 2022-2023
$103,1il.36

lf not to exceed, include amount not to exceed: $307,700.00

case 5l

1

\y-*-a-Z-

Item No.E. Backup Material - 5 of 5



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 114 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - 

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: Meeting Date: August 9, 2022
OR
Consent

Contact Person/Department: Shelly Davis, Public Health Director Phone: 841-2140

Address: 810 S Main Street, Yreka CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Shelly Davis, Public Health Director

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency - Public Health Division and Siskiyou County Health and Human Services 
Agency – Social Services Division is respectfully requesting permission to approve the CalWORKS MOU Home Visiting 
Initiative sub-award and sub-recipient agreement that will support positive health, development and well-being outcomes 
for pregnant and parenting individuals, families, and infants born into poverty. Minimum amount of the Agreement is Four 
Hundred Twenty Thousand Three Hundred Thirty Six Dollars ($420,336.00) for the term of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2024. 

Financial Impact:

NO
Describe why no financial impact: 

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $420,336

Fund: 2121, 2120 Description: PHD & SSD Org.:
401015

501010
Description: PHD & SSD

Account: 595000

795000

Description: Operating Transfer 
In/Transfer Out

Activity Code:  8328 Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:   N/A

     

Additional Information: FY 22/23 $210,168.00 Minimum and FY 23/24 $210,168.00 Minimum, with a total amount

NTE $420,336.00 

Recommended Motion:

“Recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve and authorize the Chair to sign the Siskiyou County Health and Human 
Services Agency - Public Health Division and Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency – Social Services Division 
CalWORKS MOU Home Visiting Initiative sub-award and sub-recipient agreement for the term of July 1, 2022 through June 
30, 2024.

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel

Quantity: 1
Auditor      

Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other: 3 copies of  agreement for Siskiyou County Public Health

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be submitted directly to the Board 
Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 12:00 p.m. on the Wednesday prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 1/15/15

AGENDA WORKSHEET
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 510 N Main St, Yreka, CA  
96097

Item No.F. Backup Material - 1 of 73



Memorandum of Understanding and Data Sharing Agreement
Between

Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency, Social Services
Division (SSD)

And
Siskiyou County Healih & Human Services Agency. Public Health

Division (PHD)

Thws Agreement ‘5 entered into on me 1 2022 byy and between Siskiyou County Heallh
& Human Services Agency‘ Puhhc Health Divislon (PHD) hereafter‘ referred to as “PHD“.
and Swskyyou County Heailh & Human Servmes Agency. Social Serwces Divvsion (SSD),
bereaner, refevred m as “530 “ This Agreement is a sub-award thh Ihe ssn wnsrdered
Ihe pass-through enmy and PHD ‘5 the sub-recipient to carry out the Home v4suing
Program (HVP) award on behalf oi me $50 Pursuant to fedaml regu‘ations Iound m
ZCFR 200325 and 2 CFR 200 331 pass~lhmugh enmies are responsible by monitoring
then sub-reclpients‘ comphance with rederaw grant managemem requirements and
permrmance of federm awards. Sub-remplenl mnmtanng may mmude but no: Nmihad m;
sne rewews. regmar contacts. interviews meetings, examination of records, as weH as
requiring that a sub-recrpxem be subject to an annua‘ Sing‘e Audit,

|. PURPOSE - 7he purpose bl W5 Agreement rs to se‘ mm the Ierms and
commons for PHD and $30 \0 suppon pasmye healthy developmem and wen-
bemg outcames for pregnant and pareming women, families and Wants born
mm poyeny; expanmng their future educationah economic, mammal capabllily
opponunmes and impmymg the HKEHhood that may wm em poverty Thxs
agreemem \dennfies me miss and responsvbmes ol PHD and ssn in an effort
to connect parems thh necessary resources. Improve mew parenung skHls and
huuseho‘d omen and ensure that their ch1\d(en have a safe and nurturing
envuonmem mm auows them to mm and grow PHD and 350 she“ provide
me serwces described m "Altachmenl A" and “Attachment c“ anached hereto,
During the term 0' mis MOU. "Anachmem A" and "Anachmenl c“ are sumac!
to changes based on regulamry and/or automated changes to me smewme
Amomated Weware Syskem. Changes win he made during the Ierrn lois MOU
as necessary

l|. BACKGROUND AND AUTHORITY - The Ca‘WORKs HVP, previousw
relerred m as the Ca‘WORKs Hume Vlsmng rnmauye (HVI)‘ is a vo‘unlary
program supervised by me CaMorma Department cf Social Services and
admims‘ered by participating Cahfnmia cauntiss estabhshed by Welfare and
Insmutions Code (wmo) 113305413309 Cantinued landing lurlhe HVP 15
subject to appmpriauon in the annum Budget Act, Thws apphcalvon cyc‘e wm
operate July1,2022toJune 30‘ 2024 (24 months).

Item No.F. Backup Material - 2 of 73



TRAINING RESPONSIBILITIES by 550 - SSD IS responsible for providing
naming (a an PHD home visitors 1n me following areas belore prcvldmg
serwces:

(A) Ca‘WDRKs, Ca\-Learn, Medi-cm and CaI-Fresh programs;
(a) cmmral competency and Implicit bias; and
(C) S|rengths—based praclmes furwarking with iemines wnh unmel needs,

Program naming wm be administered by ssn and includes, but is not lrrmted
to areas \isted above as wen as supportlve services such as child care
(ransporlation and anemary sew‘ces available m Ca>w0RKs and CaI-Leam
cnems

PHD RESPONSIBILITIES . PHD ls responsible for h‘mng and training home
wsmors. During me hiring \memew process putanha‘ home visitors submit
fingerprints and are subjectto a background check. They are screened utilizing
me Healthy Families America 1HFA) tool designed specwfically to screen (or
bias. Selected home wsnms win complete all kaining as reqwred by HFA, prior
m visiting homes. Home vislmrs are screened and selemed based on
quahiicatians and persona‘ charactensklcs. (Len namudgmenlal,
compassionate, ammy w establish a unsung re‘alionship. demcated m serving
cuents, wunngness to work m a variety 0! situations and expenence working
with culluraHy diverse eommuniues) AH HFA home visimrs are required to
complete onemauon naming and Core HFA lrammg on Jmensive mie speemc
functions. Supervisors must complete Ihe same courses as the home visxlors
wim addiuonal ymplemenlahon traming‘ within 6 monms cl hire For more
damned responsibmnes refer m "AnachmemA" attached nerem

JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES -
(A) PHD and $30 panicipate in an established commumly advisory committee

caned me Home Vvsning Adwsory Board This group meets once a month
and works wnh The Ford Famiiy Foundatlon and Pomand Unlversny m
condud slud‘es‘ quaMy assurance and impremem a syskems mmrmeuenal
hub throughout Southern Oregon and S4skwycu oeumy. ms larger
Adwsory board mee‘s annuauy in September to coHaborale and \mpmve
“Systems Bunding“ for an home vismng agencres.

(a) The $50 and PHD 101me participate in a monthly case management
meatlng 1o coordma‘e close‘y wnn county Ca‘WORKs staflv During lhls
meefing, Ihe PHD win report to me SSD caseworker whlch cnems were
emuued, nut enrohed‘ or on the waithsl me me HVP. Tms \ist wm be
malmained and monnmed by the PHD. Close caordination and
communicauon belween home visilurs and me Ca‘WORKs Sta" is
essemial to ensure ma: fammes are served m a comprehensive and
streamlmed manner. These case managemem ecuvmes include assessing
the lamin's needs developmg a case p‘an, monitoring progress in
aemeving case plan objectives, and ensuring the pmwsmn m! an semces

2

Item No.F. Backup Material - 3 of 73



VI.

VIL

VIII.

speemed m Ihe case man, The case plan will build on the strengths
established during the home vism'ng pence

(C) Hume visitors will work whh tamiues lo develap “Famny Goals" |ha‘ mm
an (army strengths and support the family W what they wam m accomplish,
Fammes will have an "acme goal" a! an hmes that they wm be striving to
achieve The home visitor assists the lamny In the process of achieving
these goals and “famuy goals" wiH be reviewed and modmed w needed
penomeeny by the supemsor. The number 0' chems Served by one mn—
time home visitor shaH nol exceed 12-15 tuka‘ ceseroad when all are at me
most Intenswe \evel o1 semce and no more than 25 chants when at a
varieTy or Ieve‘s,

TERM - TI'HS agreement wwll Cummence an July1‘ 2022 and continue mraugh
June 30, 2024.

FUNDING - The Ca‘WORKs cycle 0! mnding Is an auecamh for Ju‘y 1‘ 2022
through June 30. 202A. Fund‘ng Is subject he an appropriation in (he annua‘
Budget Act, The m‘n‘mum funding euecahen 1m Siskiyou County Ts 532103168
for hscal year 22/23 and m be determined Vor fiscal year 23/24. The Malerna‘
Child & Ado‘escem Heahh Direclar (MCAH) wm provide overswghl cf the
CalWORKs Home \hsmng Program (vax which Is approved and supponed
lmm the MCAH budget This aHuws Ihs lunding 1mm Carwoaxs to be used
dlrecuy ror admmlsterlng case mahagemehh home vishing serwces, prDVIde
matenal goods, early \eaming and prerservice «remmg requiremenls for home
vlsllors, and amemstrahve responsib‘ ies relaled to me CaNVORKs HVP. In
addition to thxs Funding‘ me Cahfornia Depanmenl o! Punhe Heehh (CDPH)
MCAH program has appmved 3 Scope of Work to support and Theme the
needed slaff m meenhese oh‘eehves wilh shon and Tang term geels, The PHD
may ean famIHes Ihmughaut \he funding cycle. The semces authorized are
not an amiflemenl and pamelpehhg agencies may hm‘u the number 0! lamflies
penicheung in the program (0 ensure that the cus‘s do not exceed the amouhx
cl funds awarded In the agency for the purpose. Should the cost 90 over the
altecahon awarded‘ ma PHD wm be responsible for these costs.

  

CLAIMING - The 550 MM claim aneweme HVP costs to the quaneny Ceumy
Expense mam usmg (he appmpnate codes as omh‘nea m “Attachment C“ The
550 War daim the sub-recipients administration (overhead) expenses
separaleiy hum me Sub-reclplents program semees expenses The PHD wiH
fime study lor one munth every quaner. Sub-rempiems wHI nol hme study
dIrecHy m 550 mne study codes. Instead, costs associated whh sub-Iecipienl
personnel time wm he repnned as a dlracl cos‘ n: PINs ending m enher TOE
code 70 for Sub-reclpient Adminisnahon time or 71 [or Subrrecipienl Non-
Admumshauon «me These costs are distributed based on the quanevly
percentage/ratlo of We type of populalmn (Federah Nun-Federal or None
FedereVNonrMOE] Included m the overaH va case‘oad

Item No.F. Backup Material - 4 of 73



IX.

ssD ih coordmalton with PHD has established a process In purchase a one
ttme. as needed "matenat goods" Metenat goods are considered goods
purchased for a program participant's household related to care‘ health and
safety at the chitd and tamity, which shah not exceed Five Hundred DoHars
($500), Malenal goods ihctuds, butare not \imtted to child satety kils‘ carseats‘
appliance repairs adaptive equipment tor ehndren with dtsablrifies‘ and
resources retated to chud and lamtty tanguaga and literacy needs. Prior In
purchase these material guods wiH be approved by the PHD Supervtscr and
claimed monthly as a dtrect costtotha type of poputation, Quarterly PHD must
claim an costs to SSD on a cash basts. t e ‘ when it shows paid in Bannert PHD
WW submn time studies, captes 0f dawns, backup documamalmn‘ casetoad
data, and a summary clam report dtrectly to SSD no tater than the 10‘“ ot the
month after the quarter and that captures all at these costs along with their
codes, Indirect costs wiH be clatmed according to the Indirect Cost Ratio par
CDPHt

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS - 539 and mu wHI work together to ensure
an requtred data ts mhectedt 530 and PHD shalt provide data necessary to
admtmster the program and data related to the autcomes ot participents end
chtldren, vncludlng a breakout by race, ethnicity‘ natmhat ortgtn‘ primary and
secondary \anguage. The data she“ mcmde but is hot Hmiled \o‘ pmgram
outcomes torthe parents and chiteren served m the program. Addtttonat data
components wm he devetoped in cohsultahon whh 3 Stakeholder workgmup
convened by the Cahfomla Department at Social Services, Idenufted data PHD
wm provlde Induces, nut 15 not hmlled m, the touowihg:

- Number of name visits compteted; \ncluding dala an durehon of lamihes
enmtlment in home vtstting services.

. Indicators of home Vistting program worktmce capachy‘ inetudtng
demographlcs, charactehsttcs, cumposhion‘ \ncludmg employev and
certhicatioh status, and future tratmng needs of the heme visiting
worklorce.

. Child and Family Indicatots and Outcomes thctuding but not Hmtled to:
Rates at chfldren receiving regutar wellmhild check-ups and‘ if available,
\mmunlzalmn rates according to the American Academy of Pedtatrics
Bright Futures gutdetmes

- Rates at chudren recetvlng nevetupmehtat screening and referrals for
funherassessment Rates at partictpetioh \n early Ieemmg programs.

- Service retenats by type (1.6.2 mediceL educafional, developmenta‘),
Services accessed by type,

. Parental sausractiun Wllh their galns m parehtmg skins and knewtedge,
- Food and houstng staniuty separated out (Le : hnmaless, at risk of

hometessness)
. Workforce lraming. emptoyment. end hnanc‘rat stability.
. chitd wetfare referrats and oulwmes.
- Pamcipetioh m educauunal programs or Enghsh as a Second Language

Programs, or bolh. as epplteabte
. Access te immtgratlon servlces and remsdves as apptieeme
- Addtfional descriptive and outcome \ndtcalnrs, as appropnats.

Item No.F. Backup Material - 5 of 73



XL

DATA - Dam sharing for me purposes of the WP wm be cuueaad and
reported m a timely manner 10 persun‘s/entmes specified in we MOU Au
confidenuav dala made available in urder m carry um ems Agreemenn will be
prommed 1mm unauthorized use and d‘sclusure Ihrough the observance ol the
same or more eriecnye means as mm required by me Skate Admin>strafive
Manual Sections 5300-53991 clvH Code Semicn 1798 el seq. Welfare and
Institutions Code Seclion 105507 and other applicame federal andlur s1a1e1aws
govern‘ng Individual pnvacy rim: and data securilyy Upon requesL cuss
reserves Ihe right m review‘ and |hen accspl secumy and privacy procedures
Max are relevant la its data.

CONFIDENTIALITY - PHD and 350 agree to comply wulh and requlre meir
officers, empwoyees. agenIS‘ volunteers ounuacmrs and subcontractors to
comp‘y with aH federal and state confidennaMy requirements, including me
provlsiuns a! WeIfare and msmumns Code Secnons 10550 and 5328. the
CaliVornia Depanmem of Sam Servmes' Manua1 of Policies and Procedures.
Division 19‘ me Medi-Cal Data Privacy and Security Agreement between the
Cahmmia Depanmem of Healm Care Services and Ihe County of Siskiyau.
Heath and Human Services Agency, and the Agreement between the Socia‘
Secumy Administration and me Depanmem of Health Care Services, otherwise
relerred m as me 1137 Agreemenl m assure Ihat

(MAN records concerning any appucam or panicipanl shaH be ccnfidentia‘ and
sha‘l nm be open 10 examinatmn for any purpose no! direcfly connected
wnh me purposes anms MOU. No person snau pumisn ordisc‘ose‘ oruse‘
or permit. or cause (a be pumisned. disclosed or used‘ any confidential
information penammg to any applmam for or recipient of pubhc social
SBTWCQSV

(E)The Medircm Data anacy and Secumy Agreement reqmres Canvacmrs
who assist $55 in Its MedI-Cal functlans, ur Conuacmrs who rscewe
Persunany Identifiable Wormalion (PH) {mm 5313 lo compty with
substantive privacy and secumy requiremenls as listed in me MedivCfl
Dem Privacy and Securky Agreement, including "Altachmem A“. and 1n me
1137 Agreement,

The Medi-Ca‘ Daxa Privacy and Security Agreement, \nc‘udmg ”Aflachmenk
NH and the M37 Agreemem are plovided (o Convector eredmnicaHy‘ and
can be accessed by Convector a! the Siskiyou County Soclal Servlces
Dlvlslun Website:

 

\n the mam cemer cclumn of this page in Ihe Section named “Social
Sewlces Resource Cenlel’“ [oak far the Resource Tltles:

“Med1-Cal Privacy and Secumy Agreemem"

AND

Item No.F. Backup Material - 6 of 73



“SSAVDHCS Agreement 1137 and SE‘em “Downbad File"

Nean the resourcenue 10 be viewed orprimed. NPHD is uname to access
the electronic verslcn of the Medi-cm Data Pnyacy and Security
Agreement or me 1137 Agreement, PHD shaH no1ify ssnv SSD wiH provide
PHD wnh a hard copy 01 each document

PHD agrees to cummy w‘nh the privacy and security safeguards contained
m the MedI»Ca\ Data anacy and Security Agreement and me 1137
Agreement Signatme by F'HD an th1s Camracl Donfirms agreemem to
comply wnn aH prowsmns 01 me Mem-Car Dena anacy and Secunly
Agreement and me 1137 Agreement.

(C)PHD agrees 1:: Inform an of thew officers employees, agents, vo1unleers‘
contractors and subcontractors 01 the provisions mandated by Weifare and
lnsmutlons Code $50110" 10550 and the Cahlnrm’a Departmem of Sociar
Servlces‘ Manum ai Pohcies and Procedure; Dlvislon 19 and to further
Inform Ihem mm any person knowingly and inmmionauy woranng
provisions of said Stale \aw 1s gumy o! a m1sdemeanor.

x11, HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
[HIPAM -PHD shau comply warm and assist 330 in cumplying wdh, me
privacy and secumy requirements of the Health Insurance Ponabimy and
Accoumabflily Act (H1PAA), as follow

(A)Use or D1sc1usure of Pmtected HeaHh lnmrmamn‘ PHD may use or
duscbse pro1ec1ea health information (PHH m perform 11; omigations
underthe MOU. provided that such use ormscrusure does run wmale this
Agreement, .s not prombned by me Heanh Insurance Panabimy and
Accountabimy Acl(HIPAA)‘1ncludlng‘ but m1 Jirmted my the promsuons u1
Time 42‘ Unhed 51312: Code, Section 1320:: el seq‘ and T1112 45, Code of
Federa‘ Regulations (0; R), Fans 142. 160, 152 and 164. or does nm
exceed 1115 scope of how County coma use or dvsdose the \Mormation
Contractor shall ml use‘ disdose or auowme d1sclcsure ofPHl except as
permmeu harem eras required uramhurized by law PHD shah implement
apprapnate safeguards to preyem use or mscmsure of PHI omer than as
provlded herein. Atthe request 01 and m the lime and manner designaked
by County, PHD shau provide access 10 PH1 m a des1gnated recmd set as
required by 45 CFR‘ Sechon 164 524, PHD shan repon m 550 any use
or d1sclosure n1 PHI not provided 101 herein or H1PAAreguIanons.11PHD
pmwdes PHI to a mird pany. including officers agenls. emp1oyees,
volunteer; cantracmrs and subcontractors pursuam 1a the terms oi the
Convacp PHD shall ensure that the 1mm pady cumphes wnh aH HLPAA
reguiations and me 1erms set farm herein.

(amacumemmn and Accnuntmg of Uses and D1sc‘osures: PHD snan
documem any dlsc‘osures of PHI in a mannm 01a! wou‘d a‘low SSD (a

a

Item No.F. Backup Material - 7 of 73



XIII.

XIV.

vespond (u a request lor an accounting 0! msclosures of PHI in accordance
wnn 45 CFR Section 164.528. PHD shan provvde ssn. m a «me and
manner destgnaled by 550‘ an mformanun necessary to respond to a
request [or an aowunung cl d‘sc‘usures of PHI.

(C)Amendmems w Designa‘ed Record Sets: In accordance Wilh 45 CFR.
Semlun 164 526, PHD agrees to amend PHI in Ks possession as
requeswd by an indeua‘ or as direcled by SSD. In a time and manner
designated by SSD

(D)Access 10 Records' PHD shaH make ayauame m 359 or the Secretary of
the United smes Depanmem 0! Health and Human Services (HHS» in
me Mme and manner designated by 550 or HHS. any records reiated to
me use. drsclosure and privacy prokechons of PHI iur the purpose of
Investigating or auditing sso‘s compuance with H‘PAA reguraxions,

(swerminauun ov Agveemsm: Upon SSD‘s knnwledge 0! a mater‘m‘ breach
of IhESe pmwsmns or HIPAA regulauons, sso shan, at us opuon, either
pmwde PHD wan an opponunny m cure the breach ur immedwate‘y
‘ermmale (ms MOU, If PHD IS given an oppununily to cure me breach but
fans in m; 50 within me me specwied by 5511 ssn may lermmate the
MOU wnnom further notice.

(F)Deslmclmn o! PHI: Upon termmahon of ms MOU. PHD shafl remm m
550 EN PH! required m be ratamed and remm or destroy all other PHI :0
comply mm H‘PAA regulations. Tms provisson snan apply to PH‘ m we
pussesswon of PHD: oflvcers‘ agems employees volunteers. cormacmrs
and subcontractors who shaH retain nu comes of me PHL If PHD
determines that ramming or destruymg me PHI :5 not Veasible, PHD shan
provxde SSD with nofice specifylng me ccndmons that make return or
deslrucflun not faasib‘e. If sso agrees that remm 0! me PH‘ Is not
feasm‘e. PHD snan continue to amend the protecuons 09 this provision m
the PH‘ Var so long as PHD or us officers, agems. emp‘uyaes‘ volunteers,
contractors or subcunuacmrs mamtam such PHI

NONDISCRIMINATION — PHD agrees to the terms condilmns se| forth m the
“Nondiscriminanon in State and Federa‘lysAssusted Programs“ Addendum,
attached harem as "Ethn E" and those terms and conmtions are hereby
Incorporated mm me Contract by reference.

CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT REPORTING - PHD shan cumply wilh au
state and federa‘ laws penaming [a the repomng of shim abuse and/ur neglect.
FHD‘s owicers, empmyees. agents and volumeers shad report an known 0(
suspected mstances of mud abuse and/or neglect m the Chwld Protective
Servrces agency or other agency as requwred by Penal Code Sermon 11164
et seq.

Item No.F. Backup Material - 8 of 73



XV.

XVI.

CHANGES IN REGULATIONS - u 559 names PHD of a change in County,
SSD. or Cachmia Depanmenl of Suma‘ Service regulanons or guidehnes
afiecnng contract acuvnies. PHD shafl choose one 01 me roucwlng options
and nomy SSD m wnung wuthm nve 15p days of recmpt of the name as to us
choice: (1) Indica‘e mm PHD operations are currenny in comphance wun me
change in regulafion or gu‘delme: (2) \ndicate mat PHD is m lhe process of
modifying operauons to comply win! me change and Wm comprem mesa
modificallons and be m compliance wnmn thirty (30) days of nmiflcalicn by
$50 or (3) Noufy SSD cl terminafion of the MOU or seek madilmabon of any
terms 0! the MOU malenally affemed by a regulalmn or guideline change.

CONTACTS -

Sheny Davis‘ MN BSN PHN CCHP
Health and Human Serwces Agency
Du’sc‘ar, Public Health Division

Direc‘ar 0f Nursmg/Inmme Medwcal

Office (530) 84172140

Email. sdavis @costskimucaus

Pamela Barbisri
Healm and Human Services Agency
Director‘ Socra‘ Services Dwismn
omce (530) 841-2750
Email: Qbarbierchovsiskmou.cavus

Item No.F. Backup Material - 9 of 73



XVII. GENERAL PROVISIONS -

(MAMENDMENTS
Tms Agreemem may be amended in wrfling a1any11me by written mutua1
consent unhe panies.

 

(B)TERMINATI
1. Term n wwhnul cause Eilher Pany wnnum cause upon may

(30) days wrman nouce may te(mina|e 1111’s agreement,
2 Terminafian with cause Eimer Pany may terminate {hrs agreement

immed1ately If the (arms 0! lhls agreemem are yiomad 1n any
manner.

3 Cum grounds Var termination, In the evem 1ha1 any ulher contract
or agreement, as being related to or necessary mm performance
Of (his contract, xerminams or expires, 1nis agreemem may be
laminated upon me effective da1e of the ‘ermination a1 that MOU‘
:nforrna1 agreemem or aonvacn even 11 such (ermmaliun w1l| occur
with less man mm (30) days written noltce‘

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF‘ PHD and 550 have executed WIS Agreement on the dates sefi
kmh below, each signatory represents ‘haK he/she has the authority to execute this
Agreemem and (0 mm! the Pally un Whose behalf hislher execution is made

COUNTV OF SISKIYOU

Date: ——_
BRANDON cmss‘ CHAIR
Board oi Supervlsors
Counly OfSIsklymA
saw or Calilorma

A‘I‘I'EST:
LAURA EYNUM
Cierk, Board of Supervlsors

By:
Deputy

TAXPAYER | D N/A

ACCOUNTING:
Fund Orgaruzatmn Account Acuwty Code 111 appuaaMa)
2121 401015 595000 5325
2120 501010 795000 9328

Item No.F. Backup Material - 10 of 73



FY2223 5210‘168(minimum)
FY23124 $210.168 (minimum)

Encumbrance number (If applicab‘e)

\f not to exceed‘ inc‘ude amount nm lo exceed $210166

If needed for mL/lli-ysar Cum‘racrs, please include separale sheet W101 financial
rnlormalion for each fiscal year.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
By slgning below‘ me individual certifies Ihat 1| is acnng as the remesemauve of
the Party named below and pcssesseslhe authur‘nym enter mm this agreemem
on behalf of that Party and that Ihe Party possesses the legal amhomy Io enter
inm this agreement,

For Health and Human Services
Dxrectur Sarah Canard, PhD
DapanmenlAddress 815 s Mam St. Yreka. Ca 96097
Phone Number (530) 841-2767
Eman Address scollard@co.svskiycu.ca.us

swgnature: ./~/VL/V_ Dale‘ ~ K 'EV’K

For 550
ssu Representative Pamcia Barbieri
Department Name' Sisktyau Coumy Heanh and Human Services Agency
County Title: DirectoruiSoclal serwces Dlvision
Depar‘menl Addvess 815 s. Main SI. Yrska. Ca, 96097
Phone Number (530) 641-2750
Emau Address: gbam<eri@m.siskiyoumus

\ 4- ' w ‘ ,
Signmure'LDa‘e'M

For PHD

PHD Representaliv ; SheHy Dams, MN BSN PHN CCHP
Depanmem Name: Stskiyou County Heann and Human Services Agency
County flue: Dwrectur. Pubm: Health Diwsmn

Dvreclar ov Nursmg/Inmate Medina!
Depanmem Address: 310 s. Mam sn, Yreka‘ Ca‘ 96097
Phone Number: (530) 841-2140

‘5 co siski ou.ca.us

Mg»: 27/

Emal‘ Address‘   
Swgnalure:

m

Item No.F. Backup Material - 11 of 73



Attachment A1

May 27‘ 2022

CALIFORNM DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERV‘CES

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ALL COUNTV WELFARE DIRECTORS LETTER

 

The purpose of W5 lener .s m pmwde the FY 2022723 Ca>WORKs Home V‘smng
Program (va) plannmg aHocatIon amounts to an counties m oanmrma

  

M

Item No.F. Backup Material - 12 of 73



Amchment A1 (cunfinued)

’4 DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES
CD55 744 P Sweet ‘ Sacramsmn CA 95m - mm.» m govr‘

KIM mmsm «mm uswmh
meow ammo»:

May 27‘ 2022

ALL COUNTY WELFARE DKRECTDRS LETTER

TO ALL COUNTY WELFARE DIRECTORS

FROM JENNIFER HERNANDEZ,Depu1y Durecwr
Famny Engagement and Empowerment Diwsicn

SUBJECT CAL‘FORN‘A WORK OPPORTUMTY AND RESPONSIBIUTY TO
K‘DS (CALWORKS) HOME \llS‘TING PROGRAM (HVF')
PMNNING ALLOCATION FOR FY 202272023

REFERENCE WELFARE AND INS | UTlO 115 CODE W{C ARTICLE 3 A
113306 > 113309 ‘ALL COUNTY WELFARE DRECTDRS
LETTER DATED APRIL 19 022

This letter provides the Fisca‘ Vear (FY) 2022723 Ca>WORKs Home stMng Program
1HVF')p\anmng allocauen amounts to an counues m Camomla Tha wanmng auscauon
mcmdes funding for counflesmat aTe mmmmng ah existmg evmehcenaseu home
vusmng program and |o counues not currently admimslenng ah ewdence-based heme
wsmhg program that may be Interested m app‘ylng To establish a program

Estabusheu by Weware and Insmuhons Code wmc secuons1133u.6-11aan 9‘
CaTWORKs HVP is a vmuntary program supemsed by the Cawomia Department 01
Soma‘ Sewlces (CD85) and adhhmstered by pamcvpahng Cevfurma County Welfare
Departments The CaTWORKs HVF IS desgned m suppnn pesmve health
development and weH-bemg outcomes (or pregnant and parenung mdmduals‘ lemmas.
and mrants bum mlo poveny‘ expand Mme educationa‘ econamlc. and nhanmex
capablmy oppcnunmes; aha \mpmve the hkehhuod thanhe Tammy wm exn poverty

The chs prowded Thstrucnons on new to app‘y m pamcupme m the Ca‘WORKs HVP
In An Conny Weuare Dwegors Laner dalgd Am 19 2022, Caunnes who wvsh m
pamdpale must sum: 3 commeted Request [or County anh (RFCP) by June 5‘ 2022
The RFCF' apphcauon cyde wm cnvenhe two-year permd nHuly «2022.1hmugh June
30‘ 2024 The allocation amuunls Included m cm: leuerare lorJuly 1‘ 2022‘ through
June 30‘ 2023‘ Tu assrst counhes wrm comp‘ehng (he RFCP‘ a Pcweernt overview
wuh msxmcfions has been cream The presentation can be viewed by usmg the

12

Item No.F. Backup Material - 13 of 73



AmchmentA‘ (cummuedp

Au Counly Weware Dwectors Lener
Page Two

lanowmg \in Ca‘WDRKs HVP RFCP Pnesernauoq

The F>sca\ Year 2022—2023 Governor‘s budgeflor CaIWORKs HVP ‘5 $93 7 mm but
rs sublect to change pendmg approva‘ of me BudgetAcl 012022 The cuss, m
cunsuuauon wvm me County WeIfare Dlreclors Assoctalron‘ has dewe‘uped me mmal
p‘annmg auocauun (Attachment) wmch Includes a mlmmum nmrav szoo‘ooo that each
mumy waum receive‘ assummg statewide vmp‘ementatlon of [he pragram At the
conclusion loe RFCP process funds that had been set aside for munnes who wHI nux
be pammpaung m we HVP program wul be redlsmbuted among pammpaung counties
Afler redlsmbuuon and budget appvapnalmns, fma‘ auocauons wm be re‘eased m a
Coumy Fiscal Letter

As a rsmmden me serwces offered wa the HVF are not enunemem semces and
partic‘palmg owns may mm the numberoflammes panlcwpahng m we program (a
ensure manna costs do not exceed the amount oHunds awarded m Ihe county for (ms
purpose Fundmg awarded for the purpose of home vismng servlces shan not supp‘ant
expenmmres from any o(herexlsmg cundmg sources sumect to county Donna fur home
wsmng services HVP funds may be used m combmauon mm mnmng fmm nther
SOMCES If the armrety Of serwces promded meet the award reqmrements UV the
program

Programwflmad quesuans regammg (he CaIWORKs va show he directed m the
CaIWORKs Program Innovation and Evamauan Bureau a (915) 65475837 or at
CaIWORKsHVPsts.ca gov Quesnans regardmg me anacazion amounts or
methodology shou‘d be directed m flsca‘ syslemstss cavgov

Attachment

13

Item No.F. Backup Material - 14 of 73



mmmw A1 (continued)

mmvs»: mm:
uuranm WDRK oppnnwrrv
AHD nupaumamw m Km!

mm: warm“; mmmu mmmamacmow

ALLDCATIDII"
COUNYVEE (FEDEIAUSYATEY

Alameuu smuzs
um iznnnan
Amiflm mum
Emu: 5mm
cmvm szannan
cums: szunqun
cmcm 5, m ms
nu Nam xzmas
El mm now can
Freer“: 35mm
am slun‘uun
mm: 5275251
mm mam
Wu szon‘uuv
Kern summ
mus swam?
m, szobnon
Lassen 5mm
mmm 527 54: 455
mm. xasun
Mm 52mm!)
Manama szunmn
Mmdmma szansm
mm 52 mm
Madam: sznnam
Mona 52mm:
Mummy 572m"
Nana szusaaa
mm. 5mm
ow. mum
Planer $209533
Flumas xznnow
mm, swam
Sammamn 55 ma sun
5." am. mm mm
San Bevrmmna u 795 325
Sumac 5 mm
5% nmm 52 ans m
Saanuqum 52571315
sanmsomwn swam:
mum sznua
sunn- amm 5250m
m.Dam n as: aw
5m Crm m. as
5m; mum
5mm 5mm
sum» mm
mm. m: m:
Snmml 5245349
sinmslaus u m 835
SW mm
mm. 5mm
1mm mu m
Tum: 52:51:17
mm. $an 521
mm mun
m 5mm
“n 9377531
ml mmm
'nmm 1mm: 2m rmpwymama In many mum
and awmm undermmmmm Dummz Asmuncu
m w 555
-- TN: mm" :mvmn “ mm»! mmmm \:
mam anwum m m: Emmammm:

u

Item No.F. Backup Material - 15 of 73



CalWORKS HVP Request for County Plan - Attachment A

CalWORKs Home Visiting Program {HVP}

Request for County Plan (RFCP)

Attachment A

July 2022 - June 2024

Dale |ssuad:Apr\12022

County Plan Dua1June 6‘ 2022

Item No.F. Backup Material - 16 of 73



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part I: Overview 3

1.

r
h
m
E
H
>

Immduclmn
a) Background
b) Program Purpose
5) Program Eligvbimy
d) Funding Award

County Participauon
a) Partnerships lar CDWS with Ilmw‘ed resources

Reqmrements for Home Vism‘ng Models
a) Manda‘ury Criteria
1)) Additional Criteria

Allowance '0! Multiple Home Vismng Models
Stakeho‘der Conanorannn Wurkgroups and Meemgs
Momrymg Applicanon Invormauon
Dam Co‘lectlcn and Evaluation

Pan II: Request for County Plan (RFCP) Instructions 11

N
?
?
?
?
P
f
‘ RFCF Subm‘ssxon mstmcnans

Appucauon Technical Assistance
RFCP Data Reporting TimeHne
RFCP Technicm Assistance
Home Vismng Mode‘ Selection
Home Visiung Mode‘ Resources
lmptemenlaflon Technical Assis‘ance

pan Ill: County Plan 14

?
’
?
‘
9
’
9
‘
9
‘
0
9
’
? Cover Shea

Hume Vismng ModeKsJ
Caseload and Cost Per Case onposal
Expanded Pupulaliun
County P‘an Quesfions
Resources
Assurances
Auachmams

Item No.F. Backup Material - 17 of 73



W

1. Inlroducllon

The California Department of Sociai Services (CDSS) is requesting county
pians/appucaiions forms fiscal year (FY) 2022-2024. impiememauon cycle [hree‘ 0f
the Caiiiomia Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CaiWORKs) Home
Visiimg Program (HVPL

a) Background

The CalWORKs va IS a vclumary program supemsad by the cuss and
administered by pamcipaiing Caliiomia County Wsiiare Deparimehis (CDWs)
eslablished by Welfare and Insxiiuiions onde (wmc § 11330 5.113303,

b) Purgose

The purpose of the CaIWORKs HVF is in support pusiuve healih, devslapmenl and
well-being outcomes im p(egnanl and parermrlg individuals, iammes, and infants
Dom into poverly. By heiping lam‘ilies achieve stabiliiy whiie participating in the HVF‘
the program hopes In lay the ioundaiion for Ulher Iong-term goals such as future
aducanohai opponumties, economic progress, and greater financiai opporiuniiies
This iwa-generaiiohai whole iamiiy approach io service deiivery wiH improve iamiiy
ehgagemeni practices suppun healthy develupmeni oi young chiidren living in
poverty, and prepare parents Var robusi engagemeni in WeifareHnAWork activities
and employmem

c) HVP Panicigam Eligiblhiy

To be eugibie for home Visiting services perWSiiC section11330 s c (2 a voiuhiary
participant musi meet criteria (I) and one description under criiena (il):

in The individuai is pregnani. orihe Individual is a pareni or careiaker relallveol
a child iess man 24 mumhs of age at ihe time the individual emails in ihe
program: and

(n) The individual is,

(i) A member ufthe CaIWDRK5 assistance um“ or

(n) The parenl ar caretaker relaiive oi a chiId-uniy case‘ or

(iii) A pregnani individuai who has applied for CaiWORKs aid wflhin so calendar
days prioric reachlng the second trimester oi pregnancy and would be aligibia
for CaiwoRKs aid other than not having reached the second inmesier ui
pregnancy or

(iv) Ah individuai who is apparemiy ehgibie for CalWORKs aid.

3

Item No.F. Backup Material - 18 of 73



A CWD may serve addlhona‘ Ca1WORKS Indlvlduam not described above m (l) wylh
Department approva‘

A cwn and ms seiecled home ws‘mhg model may a‘so Incorpcrale panicwpauon of
me nancus‘odia! parem 0! a chwld who Ts a member 01 a CaIWORKs assis‘ance unil
mm home waning semces. Nohcusmdzav parent particvpatlon \s sumem m Ihe mutual
agreement 01 me custodial aha nuncusmdial parents.

Pammpahoh in me HVP is Dptluna‘ for CaTWORKs cuems. Panmpauon does no:
aflem a larmly's applicalmn tor am or eligwbili‘y for any uther Ca‘WORKs hehams
suppuns m services such as WeWarerkrWork exemphons,

:1) Funding Award

Funding ‘5 subject m an sppmphahun Tn Ihe annual Budget Act. owns may hmn
me number oHathes pamavpaling m me program to ensure that costs da nol
exceed me amounl oHunds awarded to them, as HVP services are not entmement
services.

2. County Panicipatlon

The coss WM accept one app‘icatlon per counlyfrum me own. The CWD shan S(gn
the appucahon and agree m serve as the fiscal \ead owns and their home wsmhg
pafiner(s) may work collaburalively In complete the apphcahoh The apphcation musk
include the propased/selecled county partner(s) wnh [he capaculy to meet the
requirements 0! the program and deliver semces eflectlvely ahd effimently A
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the panicipatmg own and home
wsuing agencies shall be submmed with me apphcaum Draft MOU agreemenls are
accepted; howeyeh any own applying to participate in the CaTWORKs HVP forthe first
time mush submit an executed MOU to me cuss before services may begin. The MOU
agreement shaH \nclude‘ but hm be hmiled may each agenciss‘ specific rmes aha
responsibihuesy data sharing and repcrlmg. claiming funds, enroumam aha oulreach
pnlmies, and wmmunicaflon expectations.

3) Pannershlgs for CWDs with Hmiled resources

owns may choose to panner wnh other CWDs lo deliver home visilmg semces
regionmly. An MOU between me owns, and an Outline 0! specific roles and
responsiblh‘hes in (he implementahoh ol the WP sham he suhmmed m me cuss with
me ooumy pian.

3. Requirements for Home Visiting Medals

Pamclpafing CWDs shau seTecI an approved‘ evidence-based home visihng model(s)
for the delivery of HVP services The home yismhg mcdeKs) must have demonsvmed
evidence of effectiveness accomrhg to United Slates Depanmem of Health and Human
Serwces (HHS) criteha (see Home szwting Evidence of Efiscfiveness (HomVEE). For
evrdencevbased home wsmng models meehhg the HHS criteria that are not idenMied m

4

Item No.F. Backup Material - 19 of 73



(he most recem HomVEE revvew, e.g. local models, CWDs must also submit a capy of
the model's evalualmn Of efficacy to (he CDSS with (heir app‘icaticn‘

Panicipaung cwns must ensure (he home visiting modems) used meets (he minimum
requiremems estamished by me cuss. All submilted county plans wiH be assessed by lhe
cuss stafl to de‘ermlne mac they are comp‘e‘e and meet the crhena auUined.

The cuss wm give pnority m cwus and thew home wsmng prowders thal are umizmg
HcmVEE approved home wsinng mode‘s, except m cases where programs have aheady
received cuss approval Ln pnor application cymes to use mom models However‘ owns
whh phor appmval must conhrm (hey are uhlizmg the model previously approved by cuss
and rema‘n in good standing whh the mode‘ cert\ficalmn/accredkaxinn.

Funding ellgibmly and approval of the county man are conllnganl upon a cwo‘s and the
home visihng panners‘ abdily m both implement the mandawry crhena and demonwate the
capacity to :ntegmte adamonal cnlena m the delwery av home visiting semces, The cuss
wul u(ine the scoring cmena as referenced below

a) Mandatom Cmana

CrlImla Description
Home Visillng The home wsifing mnde‘ IS idenlmed by HomVEE [0 meet me HHS

Model criteria for evidence-based home viswting programs or the home
XI Yes E] No vismng model is an ewdenceAbaSed model with an eva‘uatiun

mduded whh (he RFCF’. Please note, home VISllmg models Wilhmll
an evalualran Will I701 be considered for funding

Capacity The home wsmhg mode‘ demonslrales capachy m serve me
a Yes D No hnguzshc and cullura1 needs of me targe‘ population

Ability to The home wsmhg mode‘ demonstrales a p‘an to offer and conhnue
Serve Target to provide home wsmng semces (a ma ‘arga populafian
Populatlons
a Yes El No
Home Visitor Home vusnurs afe regmered nurses, nurse practitioners, somal
Quallficalions wurkers, or ulher persons able (0 pruvide cuhurany and unguishcauy
a Yes :1 No appropriate servmes who are (rained and have completed a

background check (WKIC) 11330.7(.1»

Item No.F. Backup Material - 20 of 73



Criteria

Training
a Yes D No

Duration
E Yas D No

Home Visiting
omcome
Dumalns
a Yes D No

Easa
Management
E Yes D No

Screening and
Assessment

Tools
8 Yes I] No

Model Fidelity
E Yes D No

Data
Collection

W812; D ,No

Description
Home visitors wm comprele a“ required Trainings below‘ prior to
serving CaIWORKs va clients (wmc 113301 9)).

1, CalWORKs, MedT-Cel. CahFresn Cahfomia Specral
Supplemental Num‘uon Program for Women, Infants, and
ohndren (WC) and omer programs. with ccunty-specific
mmmetian about how the home wsumg pmVessionals can
help a parent access addilvonal serwces for wmch me parent
may be eugihle and lroubleshoo‘ promems with benehts or
el‘g‘bwlily mat would impact me parent‘s access to services
Cultura‘ competency and ImpHcil mas.
Slrengm-based pracflces far wemng th (amlhes wnh unmet
needs

P
!
“

The caunty Th ounjunclwun wnh (heir cumractcds) has a men
daveluped/Idenmed to ensure that mese trainings lls|ed above are
eflecfive and occur m a timely manner.
The home visiting mode! Includes the prcwslun of home vismng
services for 24 months or unhl the chi‘d‘s second binhday,
whichever ls later,
The home vzsmhg model \ncludes cailabarahon with mher service
providers to leverage and expand resources and referrals relating [a
an of me fonowing-

EPrenalaL miam, and ladd‘er care,
Mlnfant and chm numuon;
mDevelopmemal screening and assessmems;
\ZF’arem educauon. parem and ehnd Interaction. chnd deveiopmem,
and chudcare:
®Job readiness and barrier (emoval; and.
MDomeslwc vmenee and sexual assau‘l‘ menta‘ heaHh, and
substance abuse trealment‘
The home vis'mng agency and me counly have, or plan to establish
a cohaborth/e case management p‘an.

The home vismng agency uses standardized dam cullech'nn tools
(eg. screenings, assessmems, quesficnnatres, inlerwews), and
procedures To evaluate the sums and track progress m educalional‘
deve‘opmenlal. health, memal heauh, and mher domains turme
child and The adult.

The home vismng agency has me approprlaie superwsmn and
infrastructure In maimam ndelny ID is chosen model.

The home wsmng agency has pohcles, procedures and syatems
in place la called data for program evaluahon and commuous
quamy improvemenl (CQI) purpuses. The home wsmng

6

Item No.F. Backup Material - 21 of 73



cmerla Description
agency and CWD have a system that wm couem me specific
uulcome data mandated by was 11330.3(d .

The own and their home visiflng panneds) have policies and
pmcedures m place fm evaluaKing local data and submmmg the
momhly status report (vae). and sharing chem-leve\ and
aggregme data with the CD85: data systems

If you answered “No" [0 any of the above mandated requirements. please DO

NOT complete the RFCP. All the mandatory criteria Iisled above are required.

Item No.F. Backup Material - 22 of 73



b) Add11vona|Cnleria
County p‘ans WHI 8151) be scored and Evama‘ed on the following crnen'a:

Criteria Descriplion
Experience The home visiting agency has a minimum at three years of

experlence sewing CalWORKs clients or CalWORKs-eligible
clients.

Outreach Home visiting recruitment and outreach strategies are
established.

Frequency The home visiting agency has a demonstrated capacity m
provide services lo the same participant at least monthly and
multiple times per month as needed In alignment with model
fidelity

Attrition Home v. ng agency has a plan [0 monitor the- attrltion rates
with a goal to minimixe attrition.

Early Learning Estahtished procedures describing how the home visitors will
Setting encourage CaIWORKs participants to angage In high-quality

early iearning settings.

 

 

Parents should have an opportunity to select from high-quamy
early learning settings that may provide developmental
screenings and assessments, and offar a core curriculum that
is developmentally, culturally, and Ilnguisllczlly appropriate. If a
parent volunteers in the early learning setting, these hours
shall count towards their allowable activities under their
Welfare-lo-Work (WTW) plan per Section11325.21.children
enrolled in an early learning setting through tha HVP, may
remaln enrollad for 24«months regardless otthe parent's
participation in activities,

Resources for The home visiting agency has established and
lmmlgrams consistently updates a list of resources to ensure home

visitors connect eligible families with immigration and
other culturally approprlzle services and resources.

Material There is an aslabllshed procedure to allocate funds for health
Goods and salety related items.

Cu-Iocation The home visiting agency co-tonates with a cwn or provides a
feasible reason as to why they are unable to cn-Iocate.

Collaboration
AII partners are involved and participate in a local
multidisciplinary group that 1ocuses on home visiting. The
warkgmup wlll sham besl practices. Improve service delivery.
ensure systems integration, and develop solulians to issues
that arise loc y.

Sustainability The home vis ng agency has a strategic plan for sustainability
of funding lor home Vis ing services to the CaIWORKs
populations (E41. fundlng from local sources, leveraging
federal or other resources].

Item No.F. Backup Material - 23 of 73



4. Allnwance fur Multiple Home Visifing Models

cwn have the flexibtllly to use multlple evidence»based home visiung models, lfCWDs
choose to use mare man one home visiting modeh an MOU‘ or mherfolma‘ agreement
belween the CWD and each home wsmng agency mus| be submmed m cuss prior «0
Implementation. AM «as home wsmng models chosen must be approved by me cuss
and meet the m‘mmum requirements lor me CalWORKs HVP‘

5. Stakeholder Collaboration workgroups and Meetings

cuss wiH convene owns with panicipanng hams visming programs twice annually :0
share cnauenges, lessons leamed‘ and bes1practices.W&lC secuun 11330 gm)»
These meetings wm be open an an slakehmders med 1n W&IC 1133mm .

CDss shalr consull with a workgroup ol owns and omer stakeholders m provxde Cal
and technical assiskance Io CalWORKs HVF‘ cwos, The col workgmup shall
byenmany rewew. analyze and interpret data collemed to Warm HvP practrces.
pohcies and lemmas} assmance eHorts per wmc seamen 11330 BEL

a. Modifylng Application Information

A CWD may request xa change their coumy pian, specificauy mew evidence-based
home visiting modeKs) included m then county man by resubmiflmg thew RFCP with me
updated information Addmg or changing a home wsm’ng model requlres Department
approval pnor Io \mphamentahon

At any Mme, a CWD may a‘su request to change or expand the pupulahun they
serve. which may be the resun omnher manning and coormnation efforls m
reach me target populanon‘ The updaled information musl be sem m wrhing‘ an
own \ettemead‘ m the CaM/ORK; HVF' eman address
16alWORKsHVP@dss,ca.gfl)

7. Data Collecficn and Continuous Program Evaluation

CWDS shaH be compliant with the most recently released gmdance on dala repomng.

Aggregate Dam Callemmn

cuss le muecl me louowmg types 0! dam from owns in the mummy aggrsgate
sxacus repon (HVP 19):

- Home V‘s‘fing Program Models Summarizes lhs tmal numbercf cases enroueu
by mode! type

- Home szmng Program Casemad. Summanzes (he caseiuad‘ which Includes
parents or caretakers and chwldren receiving services.

- Horne szv‘ting Program Referrals and Services. Summarizes refanms madam
Various services.

Apphcanxs can rmd mare mmrmauon regarmng me HVP ‘9 munwy slams repOVl m fl Cmm y Lauer
ACL No 19-52 This \suer also mmudes the farm and msuucnuns 1m cumplsxmg me lorm

a

Item No.F. Backup Material - 24 of 73



Program/Chenl Dala

CDSS Will Work WW! counties and other stakeholders, Inc‘udlng independent research
based \nsmuhons‘ Io es‘abh‘sh outcome and process measures to evaluale the impact
and effechveness of me CaJWORKS HVP As a condition of Vunding, pamcipaling
CWDS and (her home vismng partners sha‘l col‘ect and pmwde to CD58 cHent dala
necessary lo adm‘nister the program and related m the outcomes or partielpan‘s and
children (W&IC sectmn1133D.B(C)) CD55 may requesl addmuna‘ data, including Ellen!»
\evel data for the purposes of evaluahng me program and doing cominuous quality
Improvemem.

Outcome measures re‘ated t0 the lollowing areas wil‘ be used m Irack performance
(W&]C 113303 d )‘

(A) Rates of children recaivmg regular weu-chmd checkrups and‘ uavairame,
rmmunizaflon rates according to the American Academy 0! Pedxamcs
Bright Futures guidelines.

(B) Rates of chl‘dren recewlng deve‘opmenta‘ screenmg and referrals for
lunhar assessment

(C) Rates of pamcipauon in early learning programs.
(D) Service reierrals by type.
(E) Services accessed by type
(F) Number 0! home visits completed‘ incmumg data on duration 0!

[amines enroument m home visiung services.
(G) Parenta‘ sausfacuon wwth their gains m parenting sms and know‘edge.
(H) Food and nousmg s‘amlny.
(U Workforce trainmg. employmenn and fiinancia‘ s‘abi‘ity.
(J) Panlcipatmn in educational programs or Enghsh as a Second

Language pmgrams. or mm as apphcable
(K) Access to immigrafiun serwces and remedias
(L) Indicalors 0! home Vlsmng program workforce capacity. mmuaing

demographlcs. charamenslms‘ composition. mcmmng employerand
certmcanon status, and future Naming needs of me home vismng
workforce.

(M) Chwld wellare referrals and oumomes,
(N) Addmonal descnplwe and outcome mdmators, as appmpria‘e

It is (he responsibimy 0' (he CWDS t0 Ooordmate wwlh al‘ names admmislermg home
Visiting in (heirjurisdlcuons‘ includmg affiliate and partner agencwes. ID ensure that
CD85 and lheir evaiuaflnn team racemes (ha necessary individual level data (0 Conduct
an efflclem and eflecnve Cummuous evaluation oflhe CalWORKs HVP

10

Item No.F. Backup Material - 25 of 73



PART I

 

RE ET TANTD E

1. RFCP Submission Instructions

CWDs must submil a compieted county plan xhat complres wnh me requirements
eslablishsd In this RFCP along with all (he requested documents kc
Ca‘WORKSHVP@dss.Ca.gov no \ater than guns 8 2022

Incrude m me subjem fine: CaIWDRKs HVF Request for County Plan (FY 20224024)

2. Application Technical Assistance

The CDSS wiu provide \ntenswe indwidual technicm asslstance to any own mm
requests assismnce with khe app‘icallon‘ A CWD can request a conference Cali ‘hraugh
the CalWORKs HVP emaxl address (CaIWORKsHVP@d55.0a.gov) During this
conference ca‘l‘ the CD88 can enner prowde a high-leve‘ overview onhe enme
applvcaflon‘ or answer spemfic quesfians posed by the applicant

3. RFCP Implemematlon and Reponlng Tlmellne

 

  

 

 

 

ACTIVITV DATE‘

RFCF Re‘ease Date April 2022

RFCP Due Date June 6‘ 2022

Tenlalive Award Nonflcafiun and AH Coumy Gum «or 7
Panicipatlng Counties “”5 30' 2°22

5‘“ calendar day of the
HVP-19 Aggregae Monthly Data Repons second month followmg the

report mumh

Other Data Conecuon TBD   
  

4. RFCP Technical Assistance

Dunng me apphcahan process, cwns can ml am the caunty conference can mo‘ (on me
Department HVP webpage). This koo‘ al‘ows CWDs m submn specific quesmns based
on a subjectarea,wh1chthey can men send ‘hmugh the HVP eman address, The cuss
wm men setup a phone caH wnn me CWD representatwes to mscuss me questions
posed The conference caH mm can be found by chckmg on we loNowmg link:
Conference Can Request Document, Addnianany,
owns can mracuy send any questions Ihey have regarding the applicauon to (he
CaIWORKs HVP amen CalWORKsHVP@dss ca gov

‘Au «ales «re 5mm u: chime m we mscreunn uvcuss

11

Item No.F. Backup Material - 26 of 73



5. Home Vlslling Mudal Selecllun

CWDS are expected (0 plan (or and se‘ecl a home visiting modeKs) that would bask

meet the need of ehgible individums and fanmies and align to local capacny and
(SSDUVCES.

a) Popmatian mapping and community resaurce mapping are Wportanlfacmiswn
helping cheese wmch home visiting mode4(s) wiH best serve (heir CWD's
vulnerabwe popuwauons.

b) own: are also encouraged to exmare the dosage and duration requ‘remems fur
an evidencerbased home Wsrting models pr‘or to home wsmng mone‘ selechon‘
In order m maintain fidellly to the home visiting mudeL CWDs may need to
blendlbraid omermnmng sources in urderto ensure that chants renews serw‘ces
conswstemwilh Ihe home visiling maders mmimum requiremanlswlmout a break
\n service.

0) CWDs are encouraged to conswder MedI»Cal bmh rates as a mu» m
proJecling the hkely Ca‘WORKs-ehgible population of pregnam and newly
parenting \ndlviduals.

d) owns should a‘so research (he ehgibimy omens Var aH evidencerbased home
vism’ng mndels prior u: home wsmng mnde‘ sebcnan If a home visiting model‘s
reqwremenls are xoo restricfive to best serve «he owns popu‘aficn owns are
encouvagsd m leverage amer evidencebased home vismng programs mm are
more incluslve Io beuer meal the needs cl the target populanon. CWDs can also
implement addltiunal evidence-based home visihng modems) m order to serve
more cliems.

6. Home Vlsiling Models Resources

lnformaflon for me five mmmonly seleded home wsiting models selec‘sd by CWDS
Can be found by chcking on me ‘inks below:

Early Head Start — Home Based OQ‘iOn EHS-HBO
Healthy Families America HFA
Home \nslrucfinns for Parents of Preschonl Youngsters HIPPV
Nurse-Family Fannershig NFF
FarentSrAS-Teachars FAT

Mare inlarmaliun about add‘fional home wsmng mudets that meal UVSV Depanmenf 0f
Haahh and Human Services evidence~based criteria can be found by c(icking an lhe
foHowmg link Home Vlsiling Evidence 0! Effectiveness

12

Item No.F. Backup Material - 27 of 73



7. Implementatiun Technical Assistance

Techntcal asststance (TA) will he provided to pamcipaltng owns by the cuss. The cuss
recognizes that a CM): and contracted panners‘ (such as the oeurtty Public Heatth
Department) successM tmptementahon otthe CatWORKs HVP ts panzetly dependent upon
the technicat support provided by the cuss, Therefore the 0033 ts pmvkflng an ongoing
teehhieet assistance pvocass which \ncludes aetiwties Io suppnn owns‘ successlm
tmpiementatmn oi the CaIWORKs HVF.

- Continuous Quality Improvement (cot): WM: sectton maovate) requires the cuss [0‘13
consult with e warkgmup uf cwns and other stakeholders to provide cnnlinuous queuty
improvement (ml) and technicet assistance to CaIWORKs HVP counttes. The cat
workgmup shau hiennialty rewew‘ ehatyze and interpret data eotlected to Inform HVP
pracuces, palms and technical assislanca Efluns.

- Stakeholder Meetings and Webinars: watc Section 11330 5th) requires the cuss to
convene CWDs thh participating heme wsmng partners at a mmtmum un'tce a year
These meettngs wm be open to all stakeholders and provide an opponuhtty Var the cuss
and owns to share programmatic updates. lessons learned. and best pracltces retated lo
the tmptemehtetion and administration oilhe Ca‘WORKs vat

o Addttionatty, the CD53 will conduct wehmers for owns. thetr home visiting
partnetts), and other county partners lor the purpose oretthet presentmg e |0prc
retated to home vtstting or tar provldmg CaTWORKs va counties an opportunity to
ccllaburale and sham thtormattoh on successlul practrces. Lessons teamed, as we"
as banners and chauahges.

- Indtvtduet County Cantetenee Cans: own: that are experiencing bamers and challenges
to implementatten may etso request addflional phone conference support from the cuss
CatwoRKs HVP unit Tmuble-shuoling phone conferences wt“ he guided by teehnieet
asststehce tool The tool IS evatlabte on the CaIWORKs va wehstte and aHows owns tn
sunmtt speemc questtons hased on a subject area,

. Surveys The Ca‘WORKs HVP untt wHI survey cwns periodically to assess lhetr
tmptemehtehen prugress‘ need for teehhteat support and to gather inpm (rum CWDs
necessary to improve tutute TA oflerings

- catWORKs HVF' Webslle: The CstWORKs HVP umt wtn mainlam and Update the webstte
wtlh mtermetmh aboutthe program resources and \inks to heme vist‘tmg Irainmg tuptes
aimed to support stafi wtth non—madel retevaht topics related to worklng wuth CaIWORKs
(amtlies, The wehstte win tnctude links to letters and nettces released to cwos‘ stmes
from wsbinarst hhks to Frequenny Asked Questions (FAQS) that W"! be updated as
needed. as weH as HVP relaied quick tinke and addtttoher resources

CWDS Can find more Infurmation about implemenlmg Ihe Ca‘WORKS HVP and
technical asststance provided by the Department in ACIN NO. I-SG-‘IQ.

13

Item No.F. Backup Material - 28 of 73



EAR ' gggu I ELAN

CaIWORKs Home Visiting Program
Coumy Plan

Term: July 1, 2022 7 June 30. 2024

1. Cover Sheet

 

 

 

DATE 4/26/2022

COUNTY slsklyou County

cwn ADDRESS ‘ 81 BVSOU‘HMEH" Street
 

'Afifii’éfiEEn CDN'TTCT (cwu ONLY) Trish BarE‘rEri
Director, Socia‘ Services Division
 

 

AUTHORIZED COUNTY CONTACT (CWD

AGENCY/DEPARTMENT Siskiyou County Health 8. Human
7 Services Agency/Sacial Services

EMAIL 7
gbarbien‘chsnskllou.ca.us

PHONE
(530) 84142570

SECONDARV
Shehy Davis, MN BSN-RN PHN

CCHP

 

 

7 AUTHORIZED FAR‘rN'E'EéoNTACT

°' DP") Director, Public Health Division
AGENCWDEfiAFifiinT '

Siskiyou County Heallh 8. Human
Services Agency/Pubhc Healkh
Division

EMAIL sdavis@co.syskiyou‘ca.us

PHONE (530) 8412140

Jeanna Gram—Frosl, MPH1 FSS.

  
 

(Home
VLsitinaAmcyl FRS

AGENCY Sisk1you Coumy Health & Human
‘ Services Agency, Public Health
r7 ,7 Dwision 7

EMAIL 'grantfrostho s 1you.ca.us

PHONE   (530) 8412139
 

14

Item No.F. Backup Material - 29 of 73



2. Home Visitlng Modefls) (More than one may be selected):
 

Indicate the evidence-based home visiting modeks) the county will u(illzn below
 

EEany Head StanrHame Based Option (EHS-HEO)
EHeallhy Famuies America (HFA)
leurse-Family Partnership (NFP)
Dparems as Teachers (PAT)
DHome \nstruclmn my Parents of Preschool Youngsters (HIPPY)
DOmer (See below)

"me home via: ng model is no! listed above, please enter ma name(s) of [he
model(s) mm.

15 the home visiting mndel evidence-based?
Yes 7 An evaluauon with outcomes m several HVP domains musl accompany

me RFCP (See home wsmng outcome domains on page 6' Admtionany. please
answer Quesuon e m Pan m loe apphcalmn.)

10B No v Please do nut comp‘ete the RFCP.

3. Caseload Proposal and Cost Per Case Proposal

The; serwces offered via me HVP are nm enliflemem services and pamczpaung owns
may limit Ihe numnemvtamuies pammpanng m the progmm to ensure man the costs do
not exceed the amounl 07 funds awarded to [he coumy lor ems purpose Funding
awarded forthe purpose or home v‘smng services provided undermis anicle snau not
suppianl expendllures from any omerestung funding sources subjectlo wunly oomrol
(or home visinng services,

Enter the lulal unuupncam caseload your counly intends m serve {or Fiscal Veer
2022-2023(July1‘2022 — June 30, 2023) When dekerrm'm'ng me caseload‘ assess
your county‘s capacity «2 manage lhe caseroaa.

Home V Hg Caseload and Cost Per Case

 

 

 

 

   

Wellare 4r:— ‘ Expanded
Work E‘igible Child om Ca>-Leam PogflatiorL

Unduplicated Number ‘
oHamHIes the coumy
wm serve m thew Cal- 12 A 6

WORK: HVP _ fl ,
Esumamd cast per $762 00 $752.00 5762

case 7 7
Tota‘ $109,728 $54864  

 

   

15

Item No.F. Backup Material - 30 of 73



mi.» mi y“ mi mm.” ii iii» mas mi Fri mm,» Mummy

4. Expanded Populatlon

If a cuunly chooses to serve addnional Indiyiduais beyond me Large! popuiauon, please
describe which Iype of expanded population cese(s) you are proposing m serve (ex,
Chlldren over 24 months, limed-oul Cases . sanctioned ciiems) and why the counly is
proposing to ofler services io this population, inciude any addiiionai ouicumes ihai
wauid be expected based on this popuiaiion. Please include ihe daia used io determine
the need for expanding HVP semices to m

Types ofCasas (Doserlptlon of
Expanded Population)

is population

'riroposeii’umupiicamd Caseload Count

 

Firs! (ime Parem/carelaker WM 3 Child over
24 months or cmid aniy case bui younger
than 3 years old at time 0' enmilmenl.

Pregnant Or parenllcareiaker with more man
one Child at time Of enrollment with El leasi
one Child 24 months aid or less

Timedsoul cases (hatfail wiihin ihe Targei
popuisuon and iirsi two Exlended popuialmn
age rangev

Sanciioned Ciienis that isii wimin Ihe Targel
popuiaiion and first iwo Extended popuiaiion
age range 

This populalion may only be added any the
arget populaiion above is sewed iirsi and
budget aiiows, One mii lime (40hrs/wk) home
isimr will have a caseioad 0' noi more than
12-15 lamilies When served most imensely
and a maximum of 20-25 families when at a
ariety of service ieveis. Currently we have
141g figs eligible for siMces,
This pupuiaiion may oniy be added after Ihe
argei population above is served firsi and
budget allows, One {UN hme (AUhVS/Wk) home
ism)! will have a caseIuad 0' ml mme (han
12-15 families when served mast intensely
and a maximum of 2025 families when 3‘ a
ariety 07 service leveis, Currenliy we have 6

71miliesgligibie far services.
This papuiaiion may oniy be added after me
argei popuiaiion above is served lirsi and
budgei allows One mil time (40hrs/wk) hume
isnar will have a Caseload 0' not more than
12-15 families when served mosi inienseiy
Nd a maximum of 20-25 famllies When at a
anew of sewice levels. Cuneniiy we have
23 families eiigibie far serlicesfi
hi5 popuiation may uniy be added aner ihe

iargei popuiaiicn above is served iirsi and
Budget allows One [ml time (ADhrs/wk) home
‘ isilnr wili have a caseload of Hui more men
12-15 iamllies whsn served mosi intensely
and a maxlmum of 20725 famliies when al a
yarieiy oi service levels Currently we have in
fajiiiies eiigibie iur services

 

  
i6

Item No.F. Backup Material - 31 of 73



5. County Plan Quasflans
Please read me slatamenls and quesnons ham and pmvme a comprehens‘ve response
Responses will he used m determme iflhe own and lhe>r pannensp have (he capacxty to
\mplsmenl ma HVP as required by me cuss

Home Vlsltlng Model s

3. Please identify the organizations and stakeholders the county cunsulhd with to select the
helm visiting modafls] far the CaIWORKs HVF. Include in your response why this home visiting
madeKs) was selened and how SQakeholdars will ha engag-d in implementation, Please Includa
research findings on ausuivaness and meeting the population needs‘

s.skiyau County Puma Health Divwsion (PHD) consulted wuh me cwo, Swsklyau Early Head 51am
Shasta Head Slam mm 5 Siskiyou‘ me county Home szixing Advisury Board. members 0! Swskiyou
Early Omldhood Team (SECT) and State MCAH Nurse Consuuams (Rmhard Rockweu 3 Paula Cuvram
amng with me Director of Pub‘ic Heauh (Shelly Daws), Program Manager (Brenda Harrisb and Nursing
Supewisor (Sarah Zwe|5mnn to determine the best home wsmng model var Swskiyou Counly.

The Swskiycu va selected me Hsallhy Famfiies America (HFA) mode‘ m pan because u auaws
for a more expanded cnem base and a vanmy ol professmna‘s to be home visitors, HFA auuws for me
mring or a trained regwstered nurse‘ PHN‘ nurse pracmmnan seam workel, or omer person able m
provide cuuurany appropnala servmes. The home vislfing program engages a:akenumsys by
maintalmng a load mum-msmplmary work group mm wm share best pracfices‘ wuvk m improve semce
dehvery‘ ensure systems mlegramn‘ and develop saruunns w Issues |ha| may ar‘se. The s‘akeholders
meet once a munm (a focus on program manning \mp‘ememauom and assessment of site related
acuvmes, Curremly Siskrynu County has two Commumly Advzsmy/Prannmg groups: Siskiyou Early
cmlahooa Team (seer) and ma Hume Vlslling Adwsary Board (HVAB). SECT meets every mree
munms and me meetlngs involve many countywide partners such as‘ Shasla Head Slarl/Early Head
S|an‘ Siskiyou cnna Ca(e Cmml. Swskwou Earry Head s‘an‘ Kamk Tribal Head Start. Chums
Pregnancy 3. Parenting Suppan, Pannarsmp Heaun man, Far Northern Regional Center and Slskwyou
Domesuc Violence & Cnsis Gamer. The HVAB meem mommy and Includes omer home vismr
providers such as Early Head S|ar| and First 5 Susmyou. These workgmups monitor and evaluate the
quamy 0f serviCES through analyss 07 data oouemed and Waugh me implemanlahon o! a quamy
assurance man,

I). Describe how lha madeKs] selected will addless \he speclfic needs 0' [I’m papulafians
identified to be served. Did your coumy do 2 needs assassmsm priorlo choosing your home
visiting model? If SD. please describe the communlly's profile and assessment resullss (Countles
may use the following lunls (D assass communily needs: Cammunky Readiness: A Tuolkit !a
Support Maternal. InVanL and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program Awardees in Assesslng
Communily Capacity.)

The Public Heallh Diwsion (PHD) conducted a Community Haauh lmprovemenl Plan
durmg 201972022. Sisk‘you County is a gaugraphically large, rura‘ coumy wxlh a populanan of
appraxlmalely 42,0011 Accordmg to me 2015 County Health Rankmgs, 27% at children lwe m
poveny and 38% of cmldren are in single parem names In Siskiyou County Chi‘dren m poverty
are at greater risk for food Insecumy‘ academic failure and poor neann outcomes cnudren
ralsed m smgle parem homes onen have ‘955 s‘amlny and supervismn and are more likely to
be \ivmg in poverty as wen. Pamcipatlun in evidence based home wsning made such as Heanhy
Fammes America .s based an me be‘ief that early nurturing ramuonsmps are me munaamn rm
rive-mng, healthy devempmem. \nleracuans belween the home msitor and me (firmly are
remnansmp based‘ designed m promote positive parsm-cmld relationships and mum
aflachmer‘fl

‘7

Item No.F. Backup Material - 32 of 73



Desired umwmes mcmae; fewer Want deams and mjunes‘ lewer shim neglect referrms.
increased access lo primary care medica‘ services and commumty services, impmved param-
Ehl‘d inleraclians‘ improved chl‘d soc‘aI-emmmna‘ weH-belng‘ incteased $67100} readiness,

Increased famuy samsurucyenoy. and better overau physica‘ health and development. Prior to
dismnlinuanoe 01 WP semces for rammes. (ransmonal plans are deveiupsd a‘ong with
resources and relerrals mm are Idenhfled as apprupnaxa PHD has a rung history of serving
Ca‘WORKs cums in Srskwyou Coumy

0. Describe now me home visiking agency and sum have [he capacny to serve the
linguistic, cultural, and damogvaphlc needs of the target populauon. Also include the
policies and stralagias man wlll be used by the program to address and zvnid implicit
bias when servlng panlclpams.

Thvs hume-vusrling program Wm address me spacwfic needs a! me |arge(ed popmauon by
ensunng mm stafl era quauned and trained to be cuuurany respecuul to each «amuy‘s umque
characteristics and to view each family's cuuure broadly beyond jus( ethnlcwy. race, \anguage‘
ur mher cultural :haractensllcs, We have purchased Nununng Parenung curricmum specifically
to address cultural context and is blended into the HFA semce design and denvery, PHD will
utilize the HFA Parent Scraemng Tum and fouow up with a second assessment accordmg lo
HFA guideunes, sun recewe annua‘ training designed to increase understandmg of me umque
characteristics cl me service pupmamn The PHD reqmres naming poucies and procedures
mm mm focus on cunuyal divysny, avoidmg bias, sharing chaflenges‘ lessons learned. and best
pracuces, Tra ing M be pruwded on an cwn adm‘nislered programs to ensure Vamlhes are
connected wzm servmes. Refresher trainings are nfiered as appropriate At Leas| annuany, our
sue wm be evalua1ed mmugn me developmem oia wmlen Cunural Ana‘ysis Plan (CAP). The
CAP WHI evaluate aH aspems 0' Its semce dellvery system (|m1ia\ Engagement‘ home visning
supemsmn, and management) and wm lake mm account the cumure oHamihes served.

a. Dascrlbe the county's plan for ensuring home visltol qualifications and tralning
requirements will be followed, Also include how the agency will meet ma raqulrad pra-sarvice
CaIWORKs (raining requiramams (See Part III-Assurancas page number 21 for more
inlarmalion)

- Include in your response how the home visiting agency and staff have the capacity 1:)
respond m panlcipams who have axpariencad. or are experiencing, mmma related m
adverse childhood experiences or other traumatic events‘

Home visitors are registered nurses. public health nuvses‘ nurse mmmmers, social
workers‘ Or other persons able m pmwue cuuurany and Hnguisflcauy appropnale semces and
are required to pass a backgluund check mat incmdes fingerprint submvssuon During Ihe
mtemew process. polenha‘ huma vusimrs are screened ullhzing me HFA loo} deswgned
specifically m screen for blas Home visnors wm complete an required naimngs as ouuined m me
Pan lHrAssuIances. prior to vismng homes. Home vrsilors are screened and selected based on
qualmcamns am psrsnnal characteristics, 0 s. non-Juugmenm cumpassionale‘ ability to
estamisn a trusting re‘ationshlp‘ dedicated to servmg cnems, wiumgness to work In a vanety 01
snuauons and expenence wurkmg wnn cul|urally mvarse wmmumlles‘y Au HFA home vwsnors
are requlrad tn wmp‘ele oriencanon (ramlng and me HFA “Care Foundauons for Famny Suppun
Specia‘ists" training on imenswe role specific mmions, Superwsms must complete me same
murses as me home visitors wnn addmnnal Implememauon vammg There are also ongomg
(ralmngs for Map-awund tcpms. curmrar humi‘ily‘ ASQ-fl and A50: saz, depressmn screens
cmld abuse and negwem, and any other avaluallon mu‘sfar sueening/assessmam as menuoned
in Section c, An HVF providers complete orientation trainmg m “16 lonowmg areas before

15

Item No.F. Backup Material - 33 of 73



pmvtdlng serwces:
(A) CaIWORKsi Medi-Cal. Cal-Freshi Special Supplemental Nulrltion Program

(SNAPrEdL and Women. intents, and Children (WIC).
(8) Cultural competency and Imphcll bias (CalWORKs contracts with us DaVIS

to provide culturally sensitive training and Will be utilized by Public Haalm);
to) S(renglhs-based practices tor working with families with unmet needs,

Trathihg ls administered by the county and includes, but is hot limi|ed my the demographics
oi the population served and the supports and sem‘ces available for CalWDRKs clients. All home
vlsm'ng statt. Supervisors and Proglam Managers. must Teceive “HFA Care Family Resilience
and opportunities [or Growth (FROG) Scale nd “integrated Strategies" training tram a certified
HFA lralner within a mbnths ct hire. This training will equip start to deal with participants wha
have experienced, o( are experiencing |rauma related to adverse chl’ldhuad expeTiences (ACESl
or ether kaumatlc evehte. Siskiyou Coumy is actively parllclpabng ih ACES educatien let em
educators, medical providers Family Resoulce Centers. childcare centers, and the public
County staff and uanners will be participating in a ttaihihg that includes unique developmental
needs of yuung children the impact of trauma‘ and review at mandates guiding the work at the
Child Welfare system.

 

e, Describe the selected model's standards of practice. curriculum used. and how the home
visiting model ensures local home visiting agendas deliver the program with tiuelity.

- Include tn your respbhse the supervision and suppon that will be offered ta home
visitors,

Public Health operates the home vlSithg program by adhering tb the “HFA Best Pvacllce
Standards". A best practice is a method or technique that sets the slandard by mhsistehtly resulting in
outcomes supetierte those achieved by other means Sewing as an alternative \0 mandatory legislated
standards, best practices larmutete sellrassessmenls and benchmarks as a mechanism to maintain
quality. Best practices ttehne a standard way nf uberating acwss multiple organizations. Nat lnlended
to be s|agnanl and immovable, best placlices Dan and do evolve to become better as improvements
ate discovered.

The HFA Best Practice Standards (BPS) deseh‘bes expectations lorfldellty to the Healthy Famflles
America model Herein refsvred (0 as (he Slandards, Ihey are the twelve research-based cr'llical

elements UpDn whtch the Healthy Families America (HFA) model is based. The crmcal elements serve
as the averarchlng “big ldeas“ defining the Healthy Families America model. The Standards also have
a section On Governance and Administration‘ which articulates Expedatluns for effective site
managemenL

The policies procedures and practices within each chltcal element are defined specifically sb that
HFA sites have clear direction oh how to implement the HFA model. The expectation is hot that sites
weultt implement these policies procedures and practices to perfecflom but that sites engage in a
pruness bt mnllnuuus quality impruvemenl to strive tor these benchmarks and geels in order tb ensure
that all families being served through the HFA model receive hlgh quality sewlcss. all HFA sites
regularly submll themselves to HFA'S Accreditation process when evaluates the site‘s currenl degree

ot implementation
Public Heal|h malnlains tidehty by haying a quarterly Community Ad ' my group yavlaw progvam

planning. implementation, assessment and eyeluatloh at site relatEd actl tiesv Caretaking adults Will
have a mechanism for pruvldmg leedback that at mlnlmum relates to service satisteclieh, and whelher
serV'lces offered are culturally appropriate. Additional opportunities for caretaker involvement are
encouraged, tut example parent advisory ebmmittees and focus groups. Public Health has a process
tortarhlhes |D tbltbw should there be a grievance. Public Health monimrs and evaluates the quahty of
sewtoes through analyzing the ability to meet site goals and objective; and thruugh the implementation
at a quality assuranca plan.

 

19

Item No.F. Backup Material - 34 of 73



Pubhc HeaTm has adopted HFA poucy and procedure 1m revuewmg and rewmmending approval
0( denia‘ 0! research proposals, whether Internal ar exlemal‘ which involve past or presem families.
Pubhc Health has policy‘ pmcedures and pvadlce for Informing famlhes 0! their rights and ensuring
confidenuahly oi mlormalion bath during the intake process as wen as during The course of services.
Forms mee| specifications ouliined in me HFA East Prams standards Pubhc Heallh [racks and
measures retanhun ervarmnes at amerem \nlervals (a months, 12 months, and 24 manms) A ralemion
analysis is completed ouamiues who msconunue semces campared to families Who remam ”1 services
and idend'y slramglas |o \ncrease rmenhcn rates a1 ‘9351 once every (we years.

The W supervisor wiu mmze specific emerie when aeeTgmng and manag‘ng emf! caseloads to
ensure home visnors have adequate Time to spend with each Tammy and meet |helr needs. Direct
servrce slafl (home vusnars and assessmam warkers) must receive weekly, muwiduenzed supemsion
(m‘nimum nf1.5 hams perweekforemployees{halale1541.0 FTE). Direct serwce staff must receive
5km deve‘opmem and professional suppon and are acceumame for me queMy oi Ihelr work,
Supervismn memes admimskanve, c‘imca}, and reflective components. Superwsurs and ngram
Managers are accountable Tor me quamy at their work and are provided mm 5an develnpment and
pmlessional suppan. Superwsms are requwed m anend al ‘93:! mommy meanngs mm the PHD
Program Manager. The trauma lens is dezeued To provide an undersmding at me use of Trauma
\nformed pracuces and how \he effort to Implement reeneney building approaches have been shown
lhroughoul msmry m be pivmai m reducing the eflecxs oi trauma Additionally chem engagement and
the benem lrom parem education programing was looked a! flvough The Idea of dosage. referring m
the duremn and uepm af program pamelpanon

Laser Models (omy respond m the «auowmg questions w your CWD is applying m use a meal home
wsmng modeT.) N/A

3. Please describe me cwD's evaiualion process.
[7. What additional evaluation plans do you have in place To ensure m. ongoing efficacy of
me model?

Elrgib‘e and Subset Pcpu‘amns

a. Cal-Leam: To give cwus flexibility to determine me best approach 1m serving their
unique Cal-Leam cnem populauuns. CWDs may use case management models approved by
me cuss as pan anhe HVPe For more informaticn on Cal-Learn Case Management
standards, see All ooumy Lener (AOL) No.20-21. w your cwn has chosen to pmvlde Cal-
Learn clients with case management through me HVF. please dascrlbn how the case
managemem madeKs) utilized by(he cwu ensure all Cal-Laarn (sens will have access to a
leas( one case manngsmem model They are eligible ko enroll in.

The PHD va prowess Cal-Leam case management accordmg m AFLP sTendards and the
Healmy Famiues America model. This ewdence-baeed curriculum mcludes guldelmes for pregnam
and paremmg leans in accordance wim Cal-Leam case management gmdance. Graduauon mm high
schuol av equwa‘em T's included as a main goal 0! lhe program The FSRS works closely with me
CWD‘ The teen, and school persnnnel to streamline gear sefiing and achievemems. Teens are
encouraged to complete school assignmems m e umery mannen and are educated on ear‘y cmldhocd
development, nurturing acuvmes‘ heallhy nutrmon during pregnancy‘ beneflls of bleasfieedmg, along
with me neam. and safety anhe baby.

20

Item No.F. Backup Material - 35 of 73



b. Child-Only: For CaIWORKs HVP impiememaiioh purposes, child-only cases occur when
parents are inaligibla far CaIWORKs due \0 Immlgratlon stains receipi uvsiippiememai
Seeumy Income (ssl). orwheh ihe child is living in the home of a non-needy caretaker
re|alive. Describe the CWD'S immigration resources amt supports for CaIWORKs chlld-unly
cases. Include any axisting coiiahomions with Immigrzm-ssrving partners and describe ihe
working relationship. Include how the own and their home visixihg penheris) plans m ensure
ihai this popu|allon ls being reached.

Siskiynu Cnunty is geographieaiiy large, ye: very rural. The pnpulalion is euiiuraiiy diverse and
inciudes Nahve Amencan‘ Hispanic. and Hmong. elhnic'ifies Siskiyou County has limited immigration
resources and suppans (or CalWORKs cases. While (here are "0 hue miiaherahens wnh Immlgrant
serving pariners, referrais are made in me exushng resoumes Resources include: Northern Valley
Caihoiic Social Services (chssi and Legai Services 01 Northern California, nvcss is located in
Reading. Cahiemie in Shasha oouhiy. but servxoes are provuded fur Slskiyuu chuniy, chss has en
Immigraiion Legai Services Program. which provides limited legal immigreiion semees, ihciudmg ihe
iaiiowing: ii. Naturalization & cmzehehip Applications. 2). Ciiizenship Preparaiian‘ a). Green Card
Renewals. 4). Deiehed Aeiion fur Childhoud Arrivals (DACA) inmai and Renewals. 5). Empioymeni
Auihorizaiion Appiicaiiahs, 6) Tmnsiahoh and n, Legai Services Reierrais, Legal Services of
Norlham oeiiiemia 1L3NC) is arse Ioceiee in Redding, CaMumia and offers a variety of advocacy
services reiaied |o: housing, heaiih, CaIWORKs CALFRESH. Unempioymem Insurance and General
Assisiance. LSNC iraveis m Tuleiake, in the Noriheesiem pan oi ihe County in cundum a Legal
Services Workshop by a Famiiy Law Faeimamr an a mommy basis, Addiiichai resources for referral
inaiude ihe Cihzehship and immigvaooh Services in Nunhem Calilomia and me immigrahon Center
for Women and Cmidren. which are bum lucalad in the Bay Area Refenals are made to the US
Citizenship and immigiahoh Services

Outreach and Imglementafian Strategies

a. Please describe ihe plan fur idemaryihg. screening. and recruiting participants
. Include in your response haw you will conduct outreach, whai modalities wlll be used,
and who will be conducting the outreach Please include Ihe role 01 each panner
Involvad In the CaIWORKs va.
. Please descrlhe the process by whlch your own wlll pruvifle the HVP iniomiing notice
to cliems.

When in contaci wnh ihe ciiem dunng a CaIWORKs Intake or Recemficakian or The report at a
pregnancy, the CWD e‘igiblMy worker wiil expiain ihe HVP program and CaIWORKS eligibimy
requiremsms and provide |he clien| wi|h the WP ihiormmg Nome cw 2224 (Auechmeni 1) The
CM: ehgihiniy workeT wiii review the HVF' inimming Nclice with me chem and offeT a ralermli The
CWD ehgibihiy worker wiil assist the chem m mung oui page two of the Iniormmg Naiiae. ii the cwn
eiigibiliiy worker 45 compieiing e Kelephane interview wilh ihe chem. ihe eligibiliiy worker will rewew the
second page of ihe va Informing Nolice and meme ciieni was informed aboul HVP aha doeumehi
lha| me chem opied in or dechhed a referrai

u The chem agrees to the relerral. the CWD eligibiiiiy worker wui pmvuds ihe chem w‘ilh ihe HVP
Brochme (Attachment 2i and campieie me va Reienai Farm (Anachment 3) with me ciienn They
wiii auach a Passport to Services to the HVP Referrai Farm. The CWD eligihiiiiy worker wiii use
imemmce men to send me reierrai Tom. and passpon in services to [he PHD upon CaiWORKs
approval. if The rerehai IS urgehi‘ ihe ehgmiiiiy worker may place a can in me HVP Family Suppon
Speclalist and emaii ihe Vorm in ma group emeii homavisiuhmco siskiyou cans which is iecaied m
cuuaek Global Address. The ehgihiiiiy worker amises ihe Famiiy Suppnrl Speciehei al PHD m ma
va camera and The clients' acceplance af me referral for HVP services.

21

Item No.F. Backup Material - 36 of 73



The PHD Hume Vislflng Supervisor and HVP Family Suppon and Resource Speoalist wm comma:
outreach m OE/GYN offices. resource cenlers. ch offices, and other programs m (he county that
may have eugmle :armhes The va pamclpales in Healm Farr eyems in wordinalion wnh Fxrsl 5
SiskwyouT mum hcsp‘la‘s‘ and (armly resource cenlers. The W also uses socla\ media p‘alforms as
pan oioutreach acuvities The PHD HVP started mmeaoh in October 2019 and cominues lo perform
these acflv‘mes. The PHD oflered a nounlywide Nununng Parenting (raining Tms training cenmed 1a
prolesslonals to teach Nummng Parermng dunng home wsits and gruup masses. Outreach effans
include using a mum—pmngsd approach Curremly PHD immemenls a Permatal Care Guidance
prugram and (ms program connems staff wnh MedhCa\ eligible pregnant wmmen to promote early
access |o prensTaT care and other serwces. PHD annuany sponsors a Baby Friehcuy Rest Area at the
County Fair, which grammes contact w‘nh kma‘ Vammes and helps cream persuna] and posmve
inleracfions Every 51X momhs PHD wiu provide an m-serwce Dn saveening and recrumng cliems for
me home yzsmhg pragram m an cwo CaIWORKs sxafl‘

us If your cwu Is currently provlding ouusach m pnkenlial clients, please descrlbe
your approach includlng basl practlces and lessons learned.

The PHD coordinates clase‘y wuh own stalf. Close coordination and mmmunlcanun between
PHD and CWD slafl Is essemiaT |o ensure lhal (armhes have access m services without adding any
addiuonal burdens to (he cfienls or duphcahah of prncesses and seches by the own or PHD.

same techniques of me PHD Hume Vismng Program uses are, m imp‘emenfiace—lo-face comacl
wnh mformatmna‘ resources, expLam the program and answer any queshuns the future panickpant
may have. Hawng estabfished gand panherships wnh the family resuurce Gamers and mo program
has helped me va increase omraach as wen

Pubm: Heauh va hasss auheach wurk on a number of pnnciples. Many 0! these pnnmples rams
to me imponance onhe human connection and how to cream in induding huming hush developmg a
sense a! commumty. mgmty and respech and hunesty Pumic Heanh principles involve relationship
dynamycs such as gwmg Indiwduals ms chalce 0! whether or not to engage. The need 10! a giverandr
lake relationship between the Home szitm and chem, lsm‘ng the chem lead, emotiohany present and
approachams, taking sman slaps toward progress. not making promises. ensuring cansislem lollow»
Up and not pusmng an agenda Some other principles u! \mpunance include serving as a paliem
advocaxe; reducing barviers m sevvicesy mnow evidence basedrmadels of care‘ mulivallonal
mamawingT harm reduclion. aha lrauma-Informed Care.

Care ouheach pnncimes include |he conowmg:
. Mee| people where they are»geographicallyy Emullonally. and physicauy.

Meet basm needs
Be respecum and [rem everyone wim mghny,
Recognize thal Ihe relationsmp Ts central lo uuneach and engagement.
Creale a 5519. open, friendly space. regam‘ess 0! me seumg

:. Please dascrlbe the plan in! minimizing amnion for hmh the home vlslllng sum and
clients panlcipallng in tha CzIWORKs va.

Public Heahh minimizes attrition by provwding Tnlensive Case managemem Public Heal"), along
With the CWD \Mll continue to work together (a case manage clients and minimlze dup‘icalion 0'
services on order (a be me most effective with each home visit and fami‘y.

22

Item No.F. Backup Material - 37 of 73



.1. Describe how your cwn and home visiting panner(s) shall coordinate and partner
eeress mullipla agencies, community—based organizations and other key entities to maximile
reaching and serving the target populatlon(s). If appl able. organixatiuhel charts and
atlachmants are accepted.

The W includes eouatmmtian with other service prowders to \everage and expand resources
and referrals. This Thomas the loHowmg: (1) Prenatal, Want, and toddler care; (2) Imam and chnd
nulnlion; (3) Developmental screening and assessments: (4) Patient education, parent and chite
mtavacuoh, cmld development, and chnd care; (5p Job readiness and barrier remover; and (a) Intimae
penher wulence, sexual assaull. mental heauh and subslance abuse vealmem PHD and own
currenUy co-Iucale Supervisors and staff In a shared buudmg. Eligimltly Workers, Emp‘aymenl and
Training Workers, RegTstered Nurses. chensed Vocational Nurses. Pumic Health Nurses,
Assessment Workers, and Home Visitors wurk emeeuvety and emoiemly by ofienng wraparound
serwces in a one-slnp manner. The PHD home wsimrs meet with home wsiters frum ether aHy
agencies to onordmale and/or Lransler cases when lhe PHD va Supemser deems \l appropnate.

Dunne n to Cummuntty Resources

a. Please outline the plan (or coordlnaflon between the home vlsmng agency and
community resources and referrals relating te:

(1) Franalalt imam. and toddler Cara;
(2) Infant and chlld numtion;
(3) Davalopmamal screening and assessments;
(4) Parent educatiun. parent and child interaction, child development and (realmam.

~ Include In your response haw the home visitor will connect the Iami as to these
resources
The PHD MCAH Dlrecmr, who ‘5 me supervusurfur the Home Vtsmng Prngram. conduc|s a weekly

case management meetmg with the Family Suppon at Resource Speciaust (FSRS) usmg reflective
straKegwes. The FSRS meets mommy WK" au countywide home wsitors, family resource cahtere and
|he Home Visiting cmlabetation Group. The PHD also prnvxdes educatinnltlaining regarding an
communlty resouvces avaname m sTskiycu Counlyv Referra‘s Tar Tesauroes Include but are net nmited
to the tonowmg: m Prenatal, miant, and \oddler care (2) Infant and child humtmh;13)Developmental
screening and assessments; (4) Parent educatton‘ parent and chm interactmh, chim development
and cth care: (5) Job readiness and bamer remevat and. (6) Domestic vmlence and sexual assault
mental health and substance abuse treatment ‘n addmun‘ Slskwou Coumy has a Home Vlsiling
Advisory Board (HVAB) that Includes The MCAH Duector‘ Firs| 5 Siskiyau‘ Kamk meal Head Start
and youth programs. Shasta Head Slam Sisktyou Head Stan and the Family Resource Cemers The
HVAB also meets enee a menth with a focus on program planning‘ \mplemenlatlon aha assessmem
ol alt home visiting programs and sue re‘aled aewmes The PHD cnm‘nues te utilize [ms board to
eoordmate between the home visttors and all :11 uur community resuurces

Funhermure, Sisktyau Early Childhood Team (SECTL eunently meets every three mamhs aha
invetves many other communny panners including: Shasta Head snamsany Head sun. S‘sklyuu
Chm Care Couneu, Siskiyou Early Head Sm Kamk Tribal Head Stan, Chovces Pregnancy &
Parermng Support Pannarsmp Heauh anh. Far Ncnhem Regional Center {FNRCJ and S‘sklyuu
Damestrc vTaIehee & Cnsis Center Pumie Health wiu mvile SNAP-Ed‘ the ow Health Program,
Mental Heanh Services. \mmgrauah Legal Services Substanee Abuse Slafl, CHDF soaraihamn and
CaNVORKs staff To Join Dr pammpate Tn meenhgs

23

Item No.F. Backup Material - 38 of 73



b. Dascrlhs how me home visitor will encourage panicipams m engage in a high quallly
early learning ssning. What resources and local partners will be used to identify these
settings?

Home visnms encourage chenls lo engage in hugh-quamy ear‘y learning semngs by promoting the
rafewal process Iorfamrlxes m Enroll their cmld in any reaming settings, partiupale in piaygroups. and
engage m shim enncnmem acnvmes. Home visuors are amwely invo‘ved m Siskiyou County Farmly
Resource Gamers. EarIy Head sum Head Stan, Shasta Head sun, Siskiyou cmm Care Councn, and
quality pre-schools. Home visnurs also |each group-parentmg masses at \acal ramny resource centers
These eafly learmng programs will provide ASQ devempmamal screenings and assessmems‘ offera
cure cumculum that is devebpmenlal‘y‘ cuHuraHy‘ and unguusucauy apprapriale. v the parent also
vo‘unleers m mess early learmng selnngs. lhe hours volunteered shau cuum wward (heir amowawe
activiues under their Wel'are-Iu-Wovk (WTW) Plan

a. wm [ha own and man hams vismng pmner(s) be nflerlng material goods related to the
health and satay of the child and family? I! no, please specify why the own and (hair home
visiting panner(s) chose no! 10 provide these resources. If yes, describe now me cwn and
their home vislling partner(s) will uperafionalixe this cnmpnnent, including how the homa
visitor wlll ldenlily needs and distribute me goods and servlces. (Mm: no mare man ssou of
CalWORKs va funding can be used m support material gnuds for each lamily receivlng
home visiting services. See All County Information Notice ACIN I»l-20 for more Information.)

Yes, This component is uxmzea by hawng me home wsimr conduct a home safety assessmem
Tms assessmem delermines me need far spamfic mm. and safaty related items These provismns
may a‘sa inc‘ude me cost of :nsmnauon w needed The supervisor wiu approve an resources an a case-
by-case basis. The home vlsilor is responsible (or delivenng Ihe maler‘al gunds m me appropriate
tarmnes A record of an lvansacliuns and receipts are documemed appropriately «or each family [a
ensure me supplyes do not exceed the $500.00 Imm per «amuy. AH approvals ars submmed to me
own (or claiming mmugn |he Ccumy Expense Claim (cam process The fal‘owing hst ‘s comprised
ufme posslhlfi vlemsfor use of supporlive service mnds under (ms agreement mcluda hm not mm
[0‘

Elecmca‘ outlet covers
. Salew latches/locks lor cahmats and/ar duurs
. Baby gates ID block w unsafe areas
. Safe mace m sleep far the infant (LE. cm nassmsn
. Itemslor the cmld/lamily to stay warm u e, 13cm; shues‘ clom‘mg, heals!)
. Ma| or area rug 1m homes mama not have a savenuur space var mm: to have floor ume
. Smoke/carbon moncxma detedurs (includwng bauerias)
. 5am um mac or sale place to bathe an mam
.Safety straps (or items Iha| could (an anti) 8 child
10 Smrage cunta‘nars 'Dl' Hams Iha‘ naed (a be kept away from 019 chwld

n. Items lormmvlure safety (Ia sharp edges. em)
12, Safe car sea|
13 Baby suppnes (LE. baby wipes diapers‘ baby fucd/Vormu‘a)
14, Personal care Items (LE. dsodoranh body wash‘ shampoo. condmoner, soap. razors. toothpaste.
wombrushes‘ tenet papen haircuts (emimne hyg>ene producls)
15, First an m: (Le band alds‘ Naosponn orany mher averrlhercaunler msdmauuns for sman
injuries, medica|ed wipes ace bandages)
16. Cleaning uems u e. bmum‘ mop‘ vacuum. paper mwels. dish soap, \aundry snaps. dismfeming
supplies, sponges)

m
m
d
m
m
b
G
N
A

24

Item No.F. Backup Material - 39 of 73



17. Sleep items (Le crib/pbaypen‘ beds. beddmg, blankets, Shams)
1a. Lice Irealmenl Ms and pESKmanagementilems1we.|\ce‘ roaches, mice, rats‘ fleas)
19. Wmusmem wxpers
20. Fi‘e box (or ramny (ewrd keepmg
21 unmy hm payment
22. Bus passes
23. Household items u e, pols/pans‘ smaH hnusehmd appnances, furniture. lamps‘ uasmigms, he!
plans, refrigerator)

:1. Does your own and their hum: visiting partnar(s) currently have a coordinated servlcss
apploach lo providing home visiting? I! so. what are me most commonlylfraquenlly used
services in the approach? If not, does your cwn plan an aaaicam anylunds lo a coordinated
services apprnach? (Admlnisxration for Children and Famiiles)

Yes, currEnIly S>Skiyou Coumy is utilizing a MOA belween CWD and PHD HVP. The PHD a{so
has an MBA with al‘ 0V Ihe home visiting agenctes The partielpating mganizalions are Mada!) Eal‘iy
Head Stan, Shasta Head Stan, Slsk‘ynu Early Head Slam Svskiyou Community Resource
Collabmalive, and Ihe PHD. Together we have develuped a relerral process with a universa‘ referra!
tool that IS used In an fammes m uur communny‘ We work mgenwr to lacimate referrals to eavly
childhood home V‘siKing and Help Me Grow Screening systemsv

Co‘laboratian be‘ween [he CWD and the Home V‘Sbtlng Agency

3. wm coumy CaIWORKs skafl and home visitors be co-Iocamn If yes. prcvlua lnlormation
about me ca-locatian arrangement, u no, please describe why mis is not feasible,

Yes, (he PHD and CWD currenlly are located In me same building The HVP staff ale prov‘ded
wwlh access to secure areas uHhe CWD |D Bl‘ow for \ntelecfiun with the CWD Sta“

:2. Dascr|ba haw county CaIWORKs sum and home visitors will coordinate case
managemem of HVF panicipams. (Include informallan such as how oftan county CaIWORKs
S(aff and home visimrs wlll meet, how agencies cullahurata and share information to ensure
all eligible clients leam about mis program, etc.)

PHD and own have estabhshed a col‘abcrahve case managemem pran m aHow home vlsuars
me opponumty m coordinate ciusew with we own Ca‘WORKs sari They meet on a monthly basis.
C‘ose Dourdmauon and mommy meetings bmween ans home wsimrs and me cwo CaIWORKs
Sta" ensures thal serwces lor lammes are comprehensive and streamhned, Case managemem
acuvmes induda assessing me ramuy needs‘ dsveloping a case plan. monuoring progress m achievmg
case plan objectives, and ensuring me provismn u! an services specified m we case plan. The case
plan bmlds on (he snengms esmbhshed during me name visitmg pennd. Home wsimrs wm work with
famlhes m an angomg way Io develop "FamHy Gems" the! mud on larmly svangths and suppan Ihe
family in whal they want to accomph’sh. Families wiu have an “achve goar at an times “13! they wm be
smvmg lo acmave The FSRS name wsnur asslsts me Iamny m |he process at acmeving these gaa‘s
using reflemive strategies. The famHy goals and same man is reviewed and modified, w needed. by
\he PHD va supervisor.

C. no the own and home vlsitlng agency currently panicipake in a wurkgroup that includes
discussions related m cuntinunus quality improvement (CQI) in home visiting? u yes.
provide iniarmatinn about lhls Workgroup. If no. please descrlbe how the agencies will work
together on CQI efforts.

25

Item No.F. Backup Material - 40 of 73



Ves, The group Home VTsTTihg Advisory Beam meeTs ehce a menTh. The gmup wurks mm The
Ford FamiTy Fouhehhoh ehe Porlland University Te mheueT studies, quaTTTy assurance and TmpTemenT
a systems Infurmaflonal huh ThTeugheuT Suuthem Oregon and STskTyou County This Targer Advlsury
Board meeTs ahhuany Th SepTemher Th Roseburg, Oregon aT The Furd FemTTy Fouhaahoh To coTlaborale
aha Tmpmve "Syslems BuleTrTg" lnr aTT heme visTlIng agencies,

Data Collecnon and Securiky

a. Descrlbe The Tools (Le. deveTopmehTaT scraenlngs, assessmenTs. questionnaires,
Interviews) ThaT will be utilized by The home visilor. Explain now These Tools wlll he used Tu
eveluaTe and Track progress in educational, developmemel. heaTTh. and eTher domains for The
child(ren) and The adums).

The PHD HVP u(tszes HeaTThy FamTTy America (HFA) screehThg ToeTs and assessmenls. The PHD
ensures TideTTTy end compuehoe leh The HFA Besl Practice Standards. The ThTTTaT assessmem Tool
used [or deTeTmihThg eTigThThTy and servTce pTehhThg IS The Ellgilele Screemng Tool. Then, The FSRS
home vrsflor eeanTsTere me FamTTy Resilience aha Opponunily Tor GmwTh (FROG) Scale ThTewiew in
a sTenuemTzed manner. The TnTTTeT essessmenT ehe TnTewTew process expTores and Tdehmes famle
sTTehgThs and needs. The lacs—m-face conversauonal interview occurs Tn The home duhhg The
prehaTaT-hewherh peliod or in The hospTTeT Upon eethTeTieh M The TnlervTew‘ "S|rengms and needs"
are used To support The development oT ah Thmwauehzee Service Plan. Updates To The Service Plan
uccur as geeTs are meT, and The needs of The famle changes Home stTTors wiTT work wiTh TamTTTes Th
ah ohgoThg way |o develop “Family eaeTs" TheT mm on TamTTy strangms aha suppon The TamiTy as
may accomplTsh goalse Families WTIT have an aCDVE goal at all (Tmese The home VTsimr assms (he

TemTIy Th The process of aehTevihg goals. The FSRS and The HVP supervisor eTseuse The ServTce Plan
and The famle‘s progress at The weekly case mehagemehT meehhg The CHEERS Checkrm
observaunn occurs eT TeaeT once annualTyT Tms Th depTh observahon oT The parenVcareTaker-cmld
TnTeTaeTioh The home visTTer eTsu ehserves ceTeTeker/chnd ihTeraeTTahs duh'hg each VTsil CHEERS Ts
an acronym lo! Cues Holding Expressmn, EmpaThy. RhyThmTcTTy/Reeiprecuy, aha Smllesv FeTTowmg
The observahoh of The parenl-cthd ThTerecTioh, The home vTSilors uTiTTze TeTTeeTTve stra|egies aha oTher
acTMTiee To address and pmmule parent—cmld ThTerecTTuhs dunng each subsequem visTT. Other
scresmng |oo|s that am used TheTude Ages and STages Queshonhahe (ASO‘S), Soclal EmahenaT (SE-
2). and a preheTaT End posTneTaT Edmburgh Depressu‘m Screen TEPDsT The A504 and The A50 35
2 meme cthd deveTepmehT and seeTaT emeTiahaT developmenl respectively eT specThee Intervals
Screening Ts Tor eTT cthdren Ta deTecT peTehTTaT deveTepmenTeT eeTeys. Heme stTtors eempTeTe en
EPDS screening at The TnTheT VISTt and wTThTh three months TuITewuhg em and a“ subsequem hTrThs.
Addmnnal Tums may he used dependmg en The needs oi each Thameual lamily.

b. Describe me information management systems that wlll be used to collact (he individual

and aggregaTe data by all The Involved panners. How will The cwn manage scheduled
reponlng on data and deliverables Tor hoch aggregaTe and idemmed cTiehT-Tevel TnTermaTTen.
and ensure quaTiTy control?

The CWD w'TIT Coued indideuaT and aggregate data (mm the CALSAWS and MEDS sysKem. The
PHD celiacts individua‘ and aggrega|e data from the Heaimy Famifies HFAST and the T0015
Tracker

26

Item No.F. Backup Material - 41 of 73



1 Please provide (he name(s), mTe(s) and TeTephone number(s) of individuals
knowledgeable about and/or responslbla for extracting am from The case
management Informaflan eysTems used by The home visiting programs.

CWD Contacl Informat’ n:
Trish Barman" Sucial ServTces Diviston Direclnr
Phone: 53034127 50
QbarblerirosiskTyou cans

PHD Contact Information:
Brenda Hams. RN. BSN, PHN Public Heal"! DIstion‘ Deputy Dlrsctur
Phune' 530 541.2124
bharris@co,srskiyou,ca Us

2. For CWDs who choose To adopt HVF Tar Cal-Learn casn managemem. explain how
me own will ensure Cal-Learn Data Collection and reponing meet The standards
establlshad by MFP sscllo" 42462.5,

 

c. Describe Ihu key compnnenls 2nd TTmeTine to develop the data sharing arrangemem
between me cwu and home visiting agency, Include how the own and oTher participating
agencies and organizations wlll platen! the privacy, confidentiality and personal lnformalinn
of Indlvlduals and families againslloss,unau1horized access. and illegal use or disclosure
consistent With applicable stale and lsderal Izws. Also include how cllent consent WIII he

obtalnad In order to share bum aggregate program and identlfled clianl-leval ease
management daTa wiTh contracted partners and cuss.

The CWD walker will TthcaTe T1 The heueehon ‘Ts FederaT (NC 30. 33 or 35)‘ Nan—Federal (AIC
32) or NoanederaL Non~MOE (A/C K1 or 3PT. If the cwn Ts compTeTing The referral. lhe cwn WTTT
TthcaTe The name m The reVerring warker an The reTehaT harm The worker wTTT Thelma any hams spent
panimpaflng Th The HVP program In The eusmmers WTW PTan The worker wiTl pmwde aTT necessary
suppamve semces in coordination leh The PHD The PHD hams sthor wiH submn data lo lhe
appropnale CWD slaff The PHD HVP is requlred to enter data using The Heahhy Famihes Toms
Tracker reporting mol D" a daTTy basis, weekTy basis, mohThTy basis and seml-annual basis dEpEndmg
on The dam ccuemed. The apprepnaTe aaTa (ram The TeuT Tracker Ts shared wiTh cwn upon request.
The cwn WTTT submn the dala Ta cuss using The requhea cuss repamng machamsms

PHD TS Subject to the Health \nsumnca Portalele and Accountalele Act 0' 1996 (HIPAA) ThTS
privacy mTe as|ablTshEs hahonal sTehuams m proTeeT TthvmuaTs mechaT records and nlher personal
heaTTh ThTormaTion. Our she ToTTows HTPAA gumehhes huh a paper Tran of eohTiaehTTaTTTy sTanThg wTTh
referrals and an eddTTTenaT eTghed TeTease requTred To share any Thfehhaheh with specific persons
Addihonany‘ as pan at The MOU‘ PHD Te subject [0 pmwsTons of Wehare & ThshTuT‘Ton Code Seclmn
10550 and 5323‘ cass MahuaT cf Poiicles aha Procedules Divxsmn 19‘ The MedT-CaT DaTa Privacy
and Securily Agreemem between The CA Depanmem ml HeeTTh Care Services and The Coumy oT
SiskTyou. along thh Health and Human Semces Agency‘ and The Agreement beTweeh The Snmal
Secumy AamThTeheheh and The DepanmehT of HeaTTh Care Sewlces. ThTs Ts Tor |he pruTecTToh of
persehaT TaehTTTyThg ThTormahen {PH}

27

Item No.F. Backup Material - 42 of 73



PHD and cwn agree in compiy with and reqLIire (heir emcers. empioyees, agenis‘ volunteers
cohiraciors and subcontracmrs io comply with an federal and state canfidenliamy requirements
including the provisions of Wellare and institutions Cnde Secuons 10850 and 5325‘ the Califnmia
Depanmeni 0! Social Services‘ Manuai of Policies and Procedures‘ Division 19‘ the MEdI-Cal Daia
Privacy and Securily Agreemem between the Gamma Depanmem of Heaiih Care Services and ma
County nf Srsklyou, Heaiih and Human Services Agency. and me Agreement between (he saciai
Security Administration and me Depanmem of Heauh Care Service: oiherwisa referred io as me
1137 Agreement in assure Ihal‘

Aii confidential documems are inched in a me caninei in each onice While am in community
doing home visits mis informafion is in a ioohed ponable case in me Irunk ml the visiiihg personnei‘s
car, Any electronic information is encrypted and password protectedi This siie maimains a poiicy (hal
is cerISistem wim aii stake and venerai coniiuamiaiiiy Faws, Ail iamiiies are ihiormed of iheir nghis and
receive a copy 0! iheiriamiiy rights and confidentiality On or belore me am hume visit bmh verbauy
and in wriiing. Ali shared daia win be washed of persunai idenliflers and piesenled according to
Heaiihy Famiiies America Bes| Practices, miiizing (sols and spreadsheets pmwded by HFA‘ Dala is
cciiecied by me home wsmhg siaii and win be issued in iheir home Vlsiling supervisor/pmgram
manager. This data is uhiy sharad with CaIWORKs staff during monlhly case managemenl meetings

Program Sustainabili‘y

a. Descrlbe the plan far sustalnablllly oi fundlng var heme visiting services for
CalWDRKs participants.

The CalWORKs HVP aiiomiion wauid have a lasting impaci uh Siskiyou County‘s mos| vulnerable
pupulalioni Currenflyi we have famiiies 103 and chiiuren lhal wouid be eligible for hume visiimg
services in the targeted papuiahon aione. CaiWORKs va funding would be pwmai io our
sustainability The MCAH DIrEcIorWHI b5 supemsing the PHD HVF, which is approved and supported
imm ihe MCAH budgeti This aiiows any lunding (mm CaiWORKs HVP m be used diraciiy for the
hiring oi home visiiors and its program sustainabiiily, In zddmon to his funding‘ me Caiiiomia
Depanmem of Pumic Health (CDPH) MCAH program approved a Swpe cl Work in suppun and
include the needed siarna meel ihese emesiives wilh snarl and iang term goais.

28

Item No.F. Backup Material - 43 of 73



5. RESOURCES

Bills and Regulafions
I Senate Bill 50
I Welfare and Institutions Code 71330 ,6-1 13303

He‘nfu‘ Websites
I CalWORKs HVP Webpage
I Home Vlsiling Evidence Of Effecfivsness
. Heme szmna Evidence of Effectiveness Review (Executive Summarv)

National Home Visiting Resource Cemer

Letters and Notices
I NI Counfl Warfare Directors Letter July 2018
I Count! Fvscal Letter No. 18/19—51
. Cnumy Fiscal Lener Na‘ 18/19-50
o Coumy Fiscal Letter No.1B/19-49
I All Conny Welfare Direcmrs Lener Ami} 2019
I NI County Information Nofica l-4-20 - £500 Mammal Goods Fund
0 NI County Letter 19-52 .. HVP 9 Momth Status Regofl

Touls
I CalWORKs HVP Conference Ca“ Tool
- CW 2224 — Warming Nance

' Ca‘WORKs HVP Conference Cal‘ Tom
- CW 2224 A Informing Nofice

29

Item No.F. Backup Material - 44 of 73



7. ASSURANCES

The fc‘lowing semion reflec‘s s|amlory prawsions of me HVP, and guidance issued by the CDSSV
The implemenlalwon of lhese provisions is a requirement“! 0WD panicipalicn In the CalWORKs
HVF’ CWDs musl assure the Wwemenlaflon of the provisions mdica|ed bemw

Case ManagementWSdC Se H1133 a

A primary component of the program described m this article snan be case management and
evldence-based home visuing for me purpose ouamny suppon wmch sham cummence upon the
determinamon lhal an indivmuax \s eHgible in amordance with wwc seamen 11aao,5(c)(2) end shan
continue unm Ihe eligib‘a individua‘ ccmwetes me evidence-based home vis'mng program or
|erminales mew own participation. The CWD and home ws'mng pannelts) shal‘ estab‘lsh
conaborauve case management mam wmnh shan include assessing the family‘s needs‘ developmg
case plan, monwtoring progress in acmeving case plan objecfives, and ensuring the provision of a”
services specified in the case plan. The case plan smuru 17qu an the strengths established dunng
the home visxting period‘ and Iha camuy‘s assocrated cunnecuuns to chi>dcave

Hume Vlsitalmn WEIC sections 11330.7 3 through a

Home vismng shau Include, am no‘ he hmlled ca, resources and referrals to ano1metunowing (1)
Prenatal. warm and wdd‘er care, (2) Want and chi‘d nwmon; Developmenlzfl screening and
assessments; 14) Parent educalmn‘ parem and chvld Interachon‘ cnnd development and cmldcara:
(5) Job readiness and bamar removal: and, (6) Domesxic vin‘ence and sexua4 assault memal haallh.
and substance abuse UealmenL as applicable. Home wsxllng sarwces and visas snau not be
mandamry. randam‘ ar unannounced

Ca‘WORKs pamcwpams elecfing lo panicwpale In M HVP wm recewe coaching and guidance
through ragmar, planned home wsus, Pamcipants wm omam informalmn abam strale to improve
(hail lamuy's mm and pmwda befler developmenta‘ npponunmes lor meir children. CaIWORKs
pamclpams wm arse recevve inlormafion mm wiH connect [hem m an army of emp‘oyment and other
services. Home v>5i|ors wiu provide resources directly and refer «ammes to services so that (ammes
can receive me supparl may need. If a farm chooses w panicipale m mis program their
pamcipauon shall not aflecl meir applicauun for aid norayigimmy for any umer CalWORKs benefits
supports, or services.

 

Home Vlsltm Qua‘ificatlons WEIC Se n 11330] d

Horne vismng serwces shall only be mose Intended |o achveve me goals established in W&IC
seclmn 11330.6(ap and mm are provided in the home avan assistance um! or at a mcancn agreed
upon by me parenl Dr caretaker retauve and the home visuor. Home vtsfling services shall omy be
provided through an approved evudsnce-basad model by a reg‘siered nmse, nurse praclilloner,
sacral warken my cum person able m provide cunurany apprnpnate semces who is tra‘med and
cenmed according to (he requiremems ovwmc sections 11230.5 and 11330 7, and has completed
a background check

30

Item No.F. Backup Material - 45 of 73



Training W&|C seclion11330.7 g 1

AH home vismng providers shah commas [Taming m me reuawing areas before pmvidmg services to
a CaIWORKs recipient (Ap CalWORKs. Madi-Cah saI—Fresh SpeciaT Supplemental Nutrillon
Program for Wumen‘ mfants and cmldren (wm and ulher programs, wnh counly-speclflc
vhvormaucn about how (he home visiting professmnals can he‘p a paranl access addmona‘ services
for wmch |hey may be eligible and houmeshout problems with beheMs or eugxbhixy (ha! would impam
mew access to ssmces; (B) CuhuraT competency and Tmpncic bias: and‘ (o) Slrenglhs-bzsed
practices [or working wnh famiiies wum unmet needs

Trammg must he admmislarad by me cwo or home visiting partner(sl and incmde. but hm be
hmned w. the demographics ofme pcpuIalicn served and the supports and servuces availame [or
Ca>w0RKs rempiems. Home yTsihng panner(s) are encuuraged Io pannsr wiIIT \uca\ organizations m
dayerop a training cmricumm (ha: best suns me needs of me home yismhg program paniclpams. The
training must be admlmstered prior (0 Servmg CaTWORKs cums.

A awn maK stafls us home msmng program saTeTy with cwn sm Ts exam pl mm m training
requirements to the extem me ham‘mg would duphcaTe naming already received,

HIgh-Quamy Early Learning WEIC seclmn 11330] C

Home wsums shan encourage pamczpams to ean :hair child H" a high»qualily. ear‘y learmng
semng, or pamcipa‘e \n p‘aygmups, ar other chm: enrichment acuvmes‘ as appmprlale.

Data Co‘leclion WKIC secl‘ons11330 8 c and d

CWDs and pamopafing home v‘vsllauon organizations shah mfieu and provide m coss, as a
cohdmon offund'mg, data that is necessary «2 adminisler the program and demons|rate the
outcomes 0! panimpams and shaman, Including by race‘ emhmny. nahonaT ongh primary and
secundavy languagey and coumy. The data shan Tncmde program outcomes for (he parems and
chndreh served in the program‘ mode‘s ulihzed, and measures specific m CaTWORKs objectives.
These data mmpunems shau be deve‘oped 'm consuuauoh wnh lhe HVP sxakehmder werkgruup
Tanned by cuss Au state, county, and omer pamcipaung argamzahuns shah promo! me personal
irIVormaIIon c! Tndwiduals and famihes consmed or malmamed agains| loss. unauthonzed access.
and I‘lega‘ use or disclusure, consTseem wuh applicable stale and federa‘ \aws. owns must develop
a data sharing agreement with the home visiting agency and provide a copy loe agreemenhs) to
(he cuss

Outcome Measures W&|C sechons11330 C and d

As a mndlllcn affundmgy parlimpallng CWDs and home ylsmng agendas are required m
mum data for me purpusa uf infurmlng me commued quamy improvement process. The
informallon musl Tnclude but Is not \Imiied w.

(A) Rates of chwldren receiving ragu‘ar wel\~chi\d checkups and. il ava‘labley Tmmum‘zalion
rakes according lo the American Academy 0! Pediatrics Bnghl Fu|uves guldelmesv

(E) Rates 01 cmldren receiving developmema‘ screening and referra‘slorlurmer
assessment,

31

Item No.F. Backup Material - 46 of 73



1C)

(DD

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(l)

(J)

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

Rates 0! pam‘cipauon m eany :eaming prcgvama,

Service referrals by type

Services accessed by Iypa

Parema‘ satisfacflon Wm. meirgalns m pareming skins and knowwedge

Number of home vlsns compieled‘ including data an durahnn offamilies‘ eanmenl m
hams vismng services

Food and housing sbbimy.

Worklorce naming, emplnymem, and flnanmal gammy.

Panimpalion in educational progvams or English as a Second Language programs or
bum. as appucame.

Access m immigrat‘mn services and remediesv

Indicators nf home wsiling program workmme capamly‘ mcludmg demugraphlcs.
characterislics, Compusmorx including emplnyer and cenmcallon status, and fulure
trainmg needs uf me home visiting wnrkforce.

Child welfare referra‘s and uuzcomes

Additional descnpuve and outcome inmcaturs, as appropriate

CWDs mus! fu‘ly particrpate \n [he data culleclicn and eva‘ualion componenls and meet submission
deadlines sel by the 5035

The Count Welfare Deuaflmenl (CWD) aurees ‘0 provide the leuwinq RFCP Infarmation Drlor
(o imglementa

 

A copy of me MOU or amarformal agreement between the own and me home wsmng prugram
panner(s).

A copy 01 the MOU or other lormal agreement w [Imposing a veg‘mnal partnership.

Telmmaflon: The county agrees to provide the CD85 a minimum (30) days wrMen nu|ice if they no
longer intend |o participate m the Ca‘WORKS HVPV

32

Item No.F. Backup Material - 47 of 73



The County agrees to deliver A—N by Sig ng below,

1. Sarah Collard‘ the undErSlgned‘ as a representative 0! Siskiyou County‘

approve and agree lo the pmwsvons as outlrned II'I thxs RFCP.

Amharized Contact's Name ‘1 Title Sarah Coklard PhD Dilector Hea‘th & Human Services
Agency,

AuthorizedOffmia‘Signatme' \ / Date: Mg 2L

Provide additional signatures for each county participating mm: aregional
parmarship plan and raquas! for funding

 

Autharlzed Coma
Patficra Bavbleri
Health and Human Services Agency
Director‘ Socwa} Servlms Divlsion
owes (530) 341-2750
Email. gbarmevl@co.siskiyuu.cavus

// / 'Aulhurized Official Signature: Q] ”1‘ "L“ Date’

Authoriled Coma
SheHy Davis. MN BSN PHN CCHP
Healm and Human Services Agency
Director, Public Heallh Division
D‘Kecmr cf Nursing/Inmate Medical
Office (530) 841-2140
Email: sdsvis©casiskiyou cans

   

Authorized Official Signature’ Date: 5121,13 2 7.

33

Item No.F. Backup Material - 48 of 73



 

Attachment 1

Sir: or Cumm-  Helm m Humsn swoosAgnoy ClMomil Depanmenl creocm Services

CALWDRKS HOME VISITING PROGRAM (HVH
 

Vou may neoname (o pamupm in Home Wailing

ABOUTTHE CALWORKS HOME VISITING PROGRAM
The CaIWORKs Hume Vumn; ongvam is a voluntary pvogram ma: pm you mm a name
yolmxom who makes mgularvlshs lo ywr home m plows: guidance coacmnq. access m
prenatal and posma‘a‘ cave, aany harming mums; and mm heahh and mm sewlnas fa you
and W mud

‘ Vow {amny may be crumble lo receive mes: name wanna wine: lay up In mewrour mourns qr
umil yaw mm second Kimmy. wmhever I: later

BENEFITS OF HOME VISITING
- mu lamfly may moms many patmva moms «mm pan-cm-ung to home wsmng mmmg

<mprovmg yam aaimy co
- Keep you and your baby haamy‘
~ Be Me has: vale"! you can be‘
- Cope mm am: m Manny ways:
- supoon your cmas davnlopmsnt
~ Obtain empmymenz am warning oppammmes;
. 0mm men»: In oomnm and mum avaliabla rm you and you! ammo. and
~ Emull m mgmzuam cmm car: szmcas at no wsl to you

- A home wsuor wm provide you with suppon‘ guidamz, mamngl and connecdon: m Vmportanl
msmuces malhalmmp-ove yuul lamnms‘ mun euucanon iocml‘ lomomrc and lmanclalmmm

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY
~ To be engui: lerhome vlsmng gamut; you rrust he:

' a memberofa CaFWORKs assnsvanwe unilwhu i: pyeguam, o:
- a pavem orcamakerre‘avve on cth Ius man mmwour moms old a! me me o!

emomnem. UV
1 pregnam and have apphed fer CadWORKs um wnhin so carom: days nrior m Ieacnmg me

second mmesxev av pregnancy and would be Higmlew carwomcs an nmer man um hawng
reamed the second mmeuev OVwegnanDY, or

- wnavenuy evigroxe Vol CaleRKs am
- "you do Aul meex KM omona uslcd above, you sun may be slum m pamipaie aepemmg an

yam location Hesse dlswss youv ombns vmh you CaIWORK: elrgmlmy mm:

 

 

cw 222: L220)Hz:|mrad Far": . Suhsmmz Pummad PW“ o1:

 

34

 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 49 of 73



AIIachmenI 1 (mnunued)
 

Sine no c.lnamumum“a Hu nun Snmm Agnew EiMmml Depnnnle'“ arsIIw Sewers

CALWORKS HOME VISITING PROGRAM OPTVIN FORM

Ta yquIIIqu pameipaIe In me 910ng $4ng and return mix Ich In your walker

HOME VISITING PROGRAM PARTICIPATION REQUEST

D I would We lo volumeev m pamupaIe In mu CalWaRKs Hume Vlsmng Frogmm am undevsvand
maI I may volmun‘ly IgImInaIn mm vimng uwlces a! any firm

 

lvclunleel Ia Ieeem home vumng 52mm '01 my mmrem KsIed balm

 pm NIm! atfi‘IIE—A—IDel flunIN-mmcunamfl PflmNm-dcmld IAgeI

El Iam pregnant My appmmme due date Is
El lflo mu wanI Io ~1quan In pamupaIe Ill In: Home Vis'mng Program at m: vim: um uncentam

InaI I may volunteer III pampram In home vism'ng In Ihe mm: by ImormIng my wmer, vma mu
«Imam it I am IIIII ellglhle In germinal:
Reamnh) lo! mum; mama vIsIIsng semuea
I:I curreIIIIy Iesa'wng name viamng “mm
D De mil ml program wIII plume any mm:
D No! Imam: III reaMng home Vlsfllng mmes
I:I Omar
 

By signing InIs 10ml, I ummsmnd me followinu:
Th: Invormauon I mum wm be shared mm the home mung agency pmgram 55 they ran
centam me and schedma a {me fa! ma mm: W begin

- Icemy man am pregnaM arms palenlorcamlakerrzla‘l’lve ovme chIIuIIenI IIsIed amve.
- TNs program I: low. vuumaly, and I can canceI name mum; same: at any Izme by nuxwymg

me 0mm Weflare Depanmem or name mung agency In mung
- TNs aumcnzam eprus km years mm the dale n1 signature unless revoked ezniel
- Away III II": ImII was unwed nr pmvbdnd In my. and
~ Paruupznan In IIIIs plogram snaII am am my eIIgInIIIIy IoI any am” CanORKs moIIIs

supponsy w semen. lndudmg muamwom exempuons
 

 

 

 

    
 

cu. Nlme Cue mm».

NIMMPIImorEImukw mm. m...

stan-mmMFumImc-mkymm um.

um... DI canny Carma Ham

Sigmmquaunry/Comla m.

cw 2224mm anulmd Pym .smm Penninzd me; .112

 

35

 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 50 of 73



Attachment 2

?Wurulh

mum
3mm“
mm
mm

 

   

 

   

"Mmq
(zwlmI-nnl

ummun  
36

Item No.F. Backup Material - 51 of 73



Anacnmnnz 2 (conunued)

l_EflEFII5-0F-H9I§g-
vxsmu

 

, $11
AHD-SEKVICE .11
W..."
.-am.mmmm
gumwmuwa

..ywan-Iwmmm
9" ma munmu

“k...“"mm
,1.va

W:mmM-IMnwmmummu
..yum"mu
.4 amgs-u-nMan

InhlvunW“m l
Wm.mm._ nyuu .m“M
‘ mm

..mwmunmn mu
' 07mm 11
5».meuFinhu-mmmm; “
“mumw...Mmgmm;mnuemm 1
..'auma.uavmmam
m:

1|

 a7

a
a
a
g
a
a

1

WNO‘CAN‘ENROLL?
umnwm
Wch-mmfll
MWWu-wnm»- 1

A

9..

EAu'S:1IW

 

wwflmuwmwflmnee £4le.mmmwwmwm v

 

WWWRM
a.?.mumm
  

Item No.F. Backup Material - 52 of 73



Attachmenl 3

  

..
)‘flu‘nrmiunummm . q

c.lwomu Hom- ‘Pru m MVP

 

mm-‘IIM
lsnl-uuuu

e

 

FuvtllWOKKx/CII-L: nvlnldnlnlli)m-au‘mezmmmm
mmmmmq mnms-ummemnmmum

mmmmu m...‘ «D Wu!
uAME-oMernx--o . ‘ .
m
mmmumm.» ~ a:

1mm: mu
{Flmsnmerhm pm.mmmmm1.1mm”

Par-nMHnounv—l; w mmmmuum: ‘ a 1
Mfienmmmzqu-(‘ulwnflkmzm-Vkrfl-wwngmquunhvnlnMmmmdln
Mingvmmlmmmlngfiomrvbmngmvfir 7 1

 

1muafi I
1 msmanasmmss-mxn(mm-Dvas»  

 

Ix
1 mm Emmy mmmm >

cuwanxs Harv; vmmg Pmpzm‘ ‘
‘ msww nsxdma‘uasaan ‘
l

  
38

Item No.F. Backup Material - 53 of 73



EXHIBIT B
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH

THE SISKIYOU COUNTY
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY

NONDISCRIMINATIDN IN STATE
AND FEDERALLY - ASSISTED PROGRAMS

 

 

HEREBY AGR Q TIIAT n wm comply mm Tm: VI uflhc mu Right: Au or |9642~nmsnded;
Swim 504 m m: R‘wlullmuun Am nr 1973. as amended me A [m 1minn|inn Act or MS. as
anmmlcd. {he Fum ml) Au nr um ns :uwndcd. and m pan ulzl eclwu 271 5, Tnln u unm-
Amnicnm wim stahllmcs Acml'l‘190:C.\hfoml cml (ml: euion 5! n seq ‘ a: amendL-LL (‘nhfm'ma
Gm’ux‘mncnl cm Sccunn n ml I m s a.» amended. Camomn Gnvemmem ('odc Secuon 11940 m.
(h)! x J. m (‘amhxma chemmcm Code. Sccucn 4450 Tnlc Cnhfbnun Cudu nrkagmamms Secunn
vxmm.9x4ll, m: Dymuuymmum Bumgum mm A .5 mm Isnx Rcmmnl uanni s m Imcr
Enum- Adnpliun Au nr Iow. and oxllcl uppllcublc radar! and mm law . as wen n5 lhcir Implementing
regulnunni [Including 45 Cad: ol'Fulcml Ruguhuum (mm mm xu. 2:4. and 9| , 7 CFR Pan |-
ch Pan351.hyensunngthalemplnyn Illplacm: 1d|hcndmmla‘rmmnm'yuhlu:as mmmm .
«'ervlces plngrams arc nomliwnmlnmmy, nu ma mm {hm nn rm n slum hwaum. 0 age‘ 5 V :nlur.

, muunaloriginJa mmlnlsmm. religmn m pomical n|'1 anunbeuxclmled fimupmmpmm
m or be (L ed |he hen u m m h: mlwnu wbjccl w disc non nude! any program m» mummy
m: ing rcdml or mun mm} ummm. uml HEREBY GIVES ASSUANCE THA' u wul
immcdimcly mm my m:nsules new ry m cl'lcclumt nus dgruumcm

   
 

 

      

 

      
        

       
  

 

IHIS ASSUANCE |s gncn m uunfldem

 

n Maud m. m: punmsc ul'ubmming an) amt an mm] and
[PI \IT HEREBY GIVES UANC THAT admimalmtive

- ing indmdunls m dhcnminmion m acrem g [1“:
“hummus o] ”It (uhfm—nia Depamnem of .0c I Scnmcs lCDSS) Manual of I’OUCIL. mm Prm. dur n
(MPH (‘halncx 2|. “i“ be plohlhucd

 

  

 

  BY ACCEPTING ‘I‘HIS As. ,‘RANL'E‘ um vcndmu mm agrees m campilcdmn. mmm n mum; and
:uhan\ [eponi as chulml. m perm“ cifcmw Lnfmcemenl m' nu- al‘mumm om 121v. rm and
.mudnum And purmu authorized rnss aml yo. icdcrn] guvummem persnmwl. duv' g nomml “ ng
hu s, m lavicw such xccmds, books and accuunh As needed m a cnum cumplmnce 11' men: are any
vinlasium nflhis assurance. CDSS 5mm hm c m: rwlu m mwkc nsn mmmms m nlher \L‘gnl rcmcdl m
accordance \th Wulrmc and Iummnum lec Se Ion loan: 01' Gmemmcm mic Scmun H135
mm or any mlm' laws. 0. me imu: mav be m Fred H: xlw appmpnaw mum! agency rm l'unlver
cmnphnuce .Achun and a blame!“ ornus nsm-nuw

 

  
  

 

I'HIS ASSURANCE i: blmhng nn ‘he \‘andnrrleclplcm dilmly nr lhmugu n:nmucl. licenst. 01' (“her
pvam as long as 11 mm: (mm or 5mm msmzm

(21;! ZUZL
Dan:

 

     Shelly Dans ‘HlISA Publm Hmllh Dhmnn

Item No.F. Backup Material - 54 of 73



2022 m CaVWORKs Home V‘smng Program rev 20220630

ATTACHMENT C
Scope of Work CalWORKs

Home Visiting Program

Siskiyou County

Item No.F. Backup Material - 55 of 73



zuzz m Ca/WORKS Hnmn V>smng Program rev 20220530

SISKIYOU COUNTY HEALTH 8. HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY
EMPLOYMENT AND TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE

CalWORKs PROCEDURE

SUBJECT: calWORKs Hume Vislling Program TRANSMITTAL 2019-01
DATE: 01/15/19
AUTHOR: SE
Rev:04/04/19:11/05/19;

02/25/20; 06/22/20;
06/29/2020 by JK

REV: 6/30/2022 by JGF
IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 07/01/2022

 

REFERENCE:

PURPOSE:

BACKGROUND:

Senale BiH (SE) 840‘ All Ccumy We/fare Dileclors Letter
(ACWDL) 07/31/2018, 04/25/2019, Coumy F/scal Lefler 1CFL)
18-19-49, All Ccunly Lefler(ACL)19742‘ 19-42E‘ 19-82 and Al/
CDunty ln/Dvmation Noflce 175649

The purpose loe Ca/WORKS Horne szning Program (HVP) is
to suppan pusilive health, deve/opmen!‘ and wen-bemg
outcomes for pregnant and pareming women, (amines, and
in/anls Dom into poveny. expanding their future educanonal,
economic. and irnanc/al capabuicy opportunities and \mpraving
me likelihood that hey w/ll exit poveny.

Senate SW 840 (ChaplerZQ, Statutes 0/2018) arthe Budget Am
uf2018.appr0pria1ed approximam/y $26 9 mHliun mrJanuary 1‘
2019 through June 30‘ 2019‘ The Pubhc Health Depanmem
(PHD) is me lead dwxs/un Vur HVP and wm work closely wnh me
Social Services Depanmem (350) la adm/mstm the program.
Funding tor HVP win be used to provide coumies wnh resources
\0 otter home vismng services «a a member 0/ a CaIWORKs
assistance um: or an apparently ehgible CalWORKs assismnce
unu that ‘5 pregnant ur a parent or carevaker relative of a chi/d
less than 24 months m age al the nme me moiwdua/ enmus m
|he pmgram A county may serve addmonal slygm/e CaIWORKs
and Ca/vLeam panicipan/s as long as me county commues m
ofler and provide home v‘vs‘mng services to the target population
noted above. Services to addiuona/ participants must be
approved by me PHD be/are a referra/ \5 Sent
A member lo2 assistance unil dues not need to be e/igible (Dr,
nor is required m participate In the Wellare~m-Wark program In

2

Item No.F. Backup Material - 56 of 73



2022 D7 CalwoRKs Home Vlsmng Program rev 20220630

order lo recelve home vuslllng services.

PRIMARY PROGRAM COMPONENTS:

Vulunkary Evidence-Based Home Vlsitation

CaIWORKs and Cal-Learn paniclpanls elecling lo pamcipale m
we HVP Wlll recelve coaching and guidance through regular,
planned home visits. Pamcl'panls Wlll obtaln Informallon about
snalegies lo impmve (helr family's health and provide beller
developmental npponunmes for melr children. CalWORKs and
Cal-Learn panicipanls will also receive lnformallon that wl"
counsel lhem lo an array ol employmenl and mhar services
Home wsnors will provide resources directly and refer lamilles lo
services so that lamllies can receive |he suppon may need. ll a
(amlly chooses m paniclpate m lhls program, lheir panlclpalion
shall nnl aflecl meirapplucauon for aid nor eliglbllily lorany olher
CaIWORKs or Calleam benems‘ suppons. or semlces

Case Management Services

HVP acllvllles include assesslng me ramlly's needs, develaplng
a service plan‘ mun‘nuring progress m achieving plan ablecflves.
and ensunng me provlslon of all servlces specified ln the plan.
The plan should build on me slrenglhs eslabllshed during the
home vlsllmg permit and the family‘s assualaled connecfions lo
child care.

Coordination with County staff

PHD shall courdlnala closely with $30 CalWORKS staff, Close

coordination and cummunlcallon between PHD and SSD Sta" i5

essemlal (0 Ensure Ihat famillas have access to services Wlihoul

adding any additional burdens lo the customers or duplication of

p(ocesses and seerces by me $50 or PHD.

Enrollment In Early Learning Programs
HIgh-quallty early learning programs have a demunslraled abllily
to improve mm shon~term and long-lerm outcomes lor children
Wllh unmet needs PHD wlll encourage lemmas |o enroll melr
chlldtl’en) m hlgh-quallly early learning sellings. paniclpale ln
playgmups, or engage ln other child enrichment aclwnles.
Parents will have an oppanunlly la selemlmm mgh-quamy early
learning semngs lhal may provlde developmental screenings
and assessments and offer a core cumculum lhal ls
developmenlallyl cullurally, and Iingulslically approprlale ll a
pawn: vulumesrs l'n the early learning semng, mess hours shall
count towards (helr allowable aclwilles under their Wellare-mr

Item No.F. Backup Material - 57 of 73



2022 07 Ca>WORKs Home szmng Frugram rav 20220630

Work (WTW) plan. ChNdren emuned in an early reammg semng
Ihrough me HVP may remain enmned far up to a years

"The procadure Iislad below Is suh/ecl lo cmnge as regulalinn or paucy
changes nccur. -

 

 

PROCEDURE:

Eonsl n1 Aclinns

CalwoRKs El When in contact wuh the customer dunng a Ca1WORK516W)
Workel (cw EW)

 
 

 

Recediflsatizm (RE) or cw make me cw EW le explam me
HVP program and cw ehgmmly requirements The cw EW wnl
pmwda me cw va \nmrmmg Nohce cw 2224 (Ahachmem 1)
lo |he customer cw EW wm rewew me HVP Inmmmg Nollce
wuh the customer and olfera referral. (P‘azsa nuts (ha! va
semces may be discussed and oflered amng any chem comm
such as report of pregnancy )
II the chem e‘ecls |o pam‘apam m ma HVF' program and me
mmwduet \s:

. Fvegnant ur a parent m caretaker Mauve of 3 cm 24
monlhs or Less av age at me me me mmwuual mm“: m
me pmgram, and

. A memberufa CawonKs assistant um|
OR

Relevrals may be nflared an a case by case basus where
mere are extenuafing mrcums‘ances w ma individua‘ Is
. The pareru or careuker relallve var a cth-nnly mass: or
- An mmwdum whu ‘5 apparanuy eugmle rm Ca‘WORKs

u me cw EW is meeung wnn me cum in person. (he cw EW
wm assm (he chenl m campletmg me 2" page loe HVP
lnlamung Nance, Image n In|u |he case and narrate that me
chenl has omed Ln to HVF n ma cw EW rs cumplafing a
telspmme imerview wnh lhe chenL «he cw EW mu rav‘aw lhe 2"“
page aflhe HVP Informing Name and nenale |hal the customer
was \Mormed about HVP and thal me customer npted m or
declined 13 relenal
The CW EW wM enter HVP mimmamn mm Crlv indicanng tha‘
HVP servvces have been offered and w ma chem accepxs a(
dechnes me cusp Follow me sleps be‘ow Io eruer mmrmatmn
ink) Cr‘V:

Access the flame Vlsmng Dem Page

1' \n case se‘ect Eugmnny In the global nawgallon bar
2 Se‘em Case Summary In the socax navigamn ha!
3 Select Home V‘s‘ting m We |ask nav‘gat‘un bar  

Item No.F. Backup Material - 58 of 73



2022 07 Ca‘WORKs Hume vxsnmg Program rev 20220530

 

Add a Home Vvsmng Program Record

T. On me Home szmng Us! page’
a cm “19 Add buucn

2, On |he Home Vlsfling Detau page

Dale Oflered text box.

box

dlsplayed.

Name drup-dawn box‘

anomarpelsan‘

referral to HVP

av Enler the date The HVP rafarra‘ was ovfered m me

by Se‘en Yes or No {ram We Accemed Offer drop-down

:2 Enter Ins sama dam m the Begin Date(exl box «6

d In the Person secnon, selem the Person from me

e‘ mick the Add buuan and repeat Slap 2d tr: add

1. Cuck the Save and Return bullon

1f lhe chem requests a relerral. me CW Ew wiH pwwde me
cusmmev with ‘hs CW HVF' Brnchure (Auachmsm Z) and
complete |he CW HVP Refensfl Farm [Auachmem 3) mm the
mm A passporl to services wnl be anached m the HVP
Referra‘ Form. The CW EW wi TnleraH-ae man the ralevval fmm
and passport to servvces (a me PHD upon caTWORKs approva‘
II the referral is urgent‘ The CW EW may emall |ha Term |o the
group emal‘ PHD hnmevisifing@oo,sisk\you.ca us Much Is
Jncated m ouuook Global Address The EW win narrate [he HVP
cantacl‘ offer of vefarral‘ envy mlo ON and complenon of

NOTE: When camplellng the referral, the CW EW wkl‘ intimate i!
the household 15 Federal (Am Code (AID) 30, 33 or 35), Nonr
Federal (NC 32’ or Nun-Fedevah NnnAMOE WC K1 or 3H.
 

Resgonsmlllg Actions
 

{mo Cv‘V

Access the Home Vvsmng Detavl Page  
 

Emp|0ymant and W the emp‘oymem and trammg worker (ETW) or Human servvces
Training Worker socka‘ walker (HSSW) \denlifies 5 Chem lhak meeis UTE cmlena
[ETW) or Human mscussed m the CW EW sedion above and pamcipahon In me
Services Social va program woum benefit as pan urmeirWTW/Famuy
kaar (HSSW) S‘abl‘lzzllon (PS) plzn‘ men a Ielerra‘ may be Camp

The ErW/HSSW wm smer HVP mvormahon mm C-IV indmaung
lhal HVP servmes have been offered and uv lhe cnenl accepts m
declmss the ufler FoHow [he s|eps below m enter \nlormation

1 1n case seled Ehglbmfy m me gmbal navvgahon bar.
2 Select Case Summary In me local nawganan bar
3. Salem Hams Vismng in the task nawgauun ban   

Item No.F. Backup Material - 59 of 73



2022 07 CalWORKs Home szmng Program rev 20220530

 

Add a Home Vusmng F‘mgram Record

1 On me Home Visning Lis! page
a suck the Add butlon

2. On me Home \fisfling Dexau page‘
a Enter the date me HVP referva‘ was nffsnad m me

Dale onersd lax| box‘
[1 Select Ye: M Na 1mm (he Accepled OHerdmp-down

box
c. Emanha same dam \n the Begin Dale lexl box I!

dlspVEyed.
a. In me Person seclion‘ se‘ecl the Persnnfrom me

Name drup-dawn bnx
a Chck |he Add button and repea| step 2:: m and

anomar pevson
r. mick lhe Save and Remm bullun,

W the customer requesls a VeVervaL ms ETW/HSSW wfll pmer
the chem with the CW HVP Bmohure (Aflachmem 2 m 2A) and
comple‘e ‘ha CW HVF Refema} Form (Anachmem 3) wwlh «he
c‘ienl A passpon |u servxces WI‘I be atlached to me HVF'
Ra'srra‘ Farm The ETW/HSSW WM Interolfioe ma‘H (he referra‘
form and nasspan (o servvces (0 me PHD If "76 raVen’al ‘5
urgsm, me ETW/HSSW may email me form to me group emzn
homevismng@co.suskiyou.ca,us mm 45 lcca‘ed m Oultonk
Global Address The ETW/HSSW wvH narmla‘he HVP canwcl‘
nfler ulrelenal‘ smry inm C-IV and ccmmeuan of referra‘ (a
HVP.

NOTE: When comp‘elvng Ihe relenil‘ |he El'W/HSSW wm
Indmale thE hnusehold ‘5 Federal (NC 30. 33 or35)‘ Non-
Federal (NC 32’ or Non-Fedeml‘ Nan‘MOE (A/C K1 or 3F).

W lhe HSSW \s complellflg (he revenaL me HSSW wm intimate
me name OHhe ETW on [he reierrafl form

The ETW wm mdude any hours spent panicrpahng m me HVP
program m ma cusmmer's w-rw Man The ETW win pmwde aH
necessary suppum’ve serwces m mammaunn with we PHD.

 
 

 

Rasgunsumhg Aclions

Puhllc Health Home Once Ihe Ca‘WORKs/Caleeam HVP Rafemsl an has been
Visitor 1PMHV) vacewed by the PHD HV an miua‘ assessmem wvH be cumpleted

The \nmal screenmg and assessment wm inc‘ude but Is rm
mm m

. assessmg me iamdy‘s needs;

. developing a case plan‘
- monnunng progress \n achieving case man obleclwes‘
- ensuring me prnvlsicn Man services specmed in ma case

man («he case man snoma mm M me strengms
estabhshed dunng the home wsuing penod and me
larmly‘s assomated cunnscuons m and care; and 

 
 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 60 of 73



2022 U7 CaIWORKs Heme Vtethhg Program (av zuzzoaso

 

- retehats te eammuhtty resources uutstde agencies, and
early teammg settings.

The PHD HV wtlt make a da|erminattun on how many hours [he
cttent ts pantctpattng th the above Itsted servtcas and whether the
chant is accepted mte the pmgrem tt the chant ts not accepted
the PHD HV wtlt reVreter the cltent backtu me CW EW‘ ETW or
Hssw The determined amount at hours‘ acceptance. er dentat
ct semces wttl be sent back to the CW EW‘ ETW ur Hssw via
text tnterofflce mait. or ematl on a CW HVF Transmtttat
(Attachment 4). The CW HVP Transmittat ’tbe sent on a
weekly basts (a the W or HSSW tar panicipahon tracking

 

 

Raspunsihililx Aetiens
 

CHIWDRKS Eligihimy
Worker (cw EW)

N [ha CW HVP Transmtltat ts received by the CW EW and It
thatcates the client IS rscaivmg services‘ the CW EW thl review
the case (a see if an ETW has been asstgned l0 |he case. If
there ts ah ETW. the CW EW wrlt torward the CW HVF'
Transmtttal to the ETW

tt revtew ot the (ass shows the chem ts not a partictpanl tn WTW
and does not have an ETW‘ the cw EW wttt edit the c-Iv HVP
Record and add th the date at the ttrst home vtstttereach
member at the AU th the ow ease
N the CW EW ts notttted that the chant has been dtscohtthued
hem HVF. the CW EW wttl end date the HVP Record in c—tvt
1f C2tWORKs/Cat»Leam is dtsconttnued tar a household with
HVP. the worker must end date the WP pmgtam m crtv
 

Reagan 1 Actions
 

Emptayment and
Tvaining Work"
(ETW)

  
When the CW HVP Tmnsmittat ts reosived by the ETW and tt
mdtcates the ctieht ts recetvmg servtces, the ETW wttt edit the C-
W HVP Record and add in the date at the ttrst hame vtstt for
each member of the AU th the c-tv case

The ETW wtlt update the WTW Ptah based on the tntorrhatton
vacatvad fmm the PHHVV

When creating the acttvtty
. The aettvtty Category ts ‘ Famtty“:
. The actiwty Tyne wttl be “Hume Vtst|irtg Progtam"

Ah appointment tor a WTW Reappratsat wttt be sent It'
. The customer am not show to the HVF assessment

appotntmeht.
. The cw HVP Transmmal tndtcates Ihe cl'tsm ts hemg re»

retehed to the Erw; D!
- tt the cheht tS not meettng the HVF' scheduted hours at

pentetpatteh
 

 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 61 of 73



2022 u7 Ca‘WORKs Hum V>Sl|mg ngram rev 20220630

 

II [he chem does hm amend the WTW Reapprawsal appamuhem
Ihe ETW wm slat! me good cause delermmahun and huh-
comphance process Paniclpslian m the MVP pragram IS
vo/unlary
NOTE: Chants who are In Wellare to Wnrk (WTW) exempt S(alus ‘
may volunteer m pamcipaxs h HVP serwces Fur WTW exempt
vommeers [here wm be no hauhy panicipalian remnremam The
ETW wnl sun be required (a create a WTW Plan and arm
suppomve semces (0 customers who are WTW exempl
vo‘unteers and Involved IH HVP zchvmas‘ A WTW War! \5 only
requwad when the cusmmer \s bemg provided suppumve
serv‘ces u no suppumve services are prowued‘ me chem wm
walk directly wuh (he PHD HV.
 

 

  
Rasgunslblllly Actions

CalWDRKs/WTW The CW/WTW Supervisor aha FM wm rhea mommy m as
(CW/WTW) needed mm the PHHV Dr HVP Superwsor lordala caHechon ahd
Supervisor and program d‘scuss‘on
Program Manager
(PM)
 

Assigning Hours in WTW Plan
An HVF' hours. including hours spam directly with the home visimr (home wsmng
sessions) and any hours spent vclunleering in an early learnmg semhg must be
assigned in the customer's WTW plan‘ and counted toward meeting the assistant unit‘s
(AU‘s) participaucn requirements. when applicable {cw HVP customers are nar
required to partycrpate m WTWaI develop a WTW plan in order m pamupare in me
HVP),

Bulldlng the WTW Plan

Hours m HVP amwiues for cw: clients pammpatihg in WTW voluntarily or as a
mandatory pamcipanl may be assigned an either me Ien (cw minimum s‘andards) ur
hgm (cw federa‘ s‘andards) side onhe WTW man.

CalWORKS Minimum Standards Heft side

- Acuvny Job search and job readiness v For assignmem of home
visilmg sessions

- Activity Other ecu Hes necessary to ass‘st m obtaining employmanl —
For HVP acnvunes mm do not meet me defimlmn of «wines assxgned
m cw (edeva\ s‘andards

CaIWORKs Federal Standards [right side)

- Activny Job search and job readiness — For aSSIgnmenl of home
visihhg sessions

- Activmy: Cammunily serwces‘ work expenence (WEX), nrjob search

 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 62 of 73



2022 07 CleORKs Heme szmng Program rev 20220330

and job readmess 7 For assvgnment Df vo‘unteer hours at an ear‘y
Wearmng cenler‘

NOTE: Job search and job readiness may be counted furfcurweeks (120 hours) and
srx weeks (150 hours) man in a 12-month perlud fur cw federal standards. WEX is
\nihaHy hmned m 12 mnmhs‘ bm may be extended at the mscrehnn ml me coumy and
WTW pame‘panl,
CaWORKs (Ime llmils associa|ed wnh cw Vedera‘ standards or (he WTW 24 Month
Tune Clock wiu not prevent cw diam: from accessing HVP; when mess time firms
have been exceeded‘ cuuntles may assign HVP as "Other acuvmes necessary m assist
in abtaxmng emproymem“ on eitherlhe left or righ! side of the man.

Suppomva Servlcas
cnems may be eligible to cw WTW supponiva services For HVP chants m WTW,
suppomve semces for HVP must be included in me WTW plan. u suppomve semces
are nm avai‘ab‘e for HVP activities needed to meet WTW requiremems Ihe cusmmer
mus: be given good cause

For HVP clients whu are not elig‘ble (c WTW suppanive services home Visimrs wil‘
pmvlde mfarmafion‘ resources, and referrals |o clher cummunily resources (or
servlces. The PHD HV le be informed that the customer ‘5 not el‘gibie an the CW
HVP Transmifla‘ Form.

Cal-Learn Rewards and Sanctions

CaIWORKs/TANF chems qua‘ily and must panmpate in the CaI-Laam Program inhey
We m the same huusehcnd asmeuchnm are under 19 years, do not have a high schom
dlploma or GED and are not in foster care‘ Cal-Learn rewards good school
pedormance and pehauzes poor school perfurmance. Cash bonuses are \ssued «a Ca!»
Learn recipients based on grades Ihal are recewed and repaned ah the school repon
card A bonus 0' $100 is added to the famhy's gram 1m each repon card period Iv the
chem (ecevves new the grade “D" or may ran to turn in Ihe repon card each ume il rs
‘ssued. $100 wm be taken away imm (he remplenl‘s gram (m each report card period.
If me reclplem graduales from mgh school may wm receive a bonus 0159500
$5M Materlal Goods Funds

Househulds pamc‘pallng ih HVP are englbte to $500 tonne purchase of malarial goods
related «a care, health, and safety oflhe cmld and lamv‘y The $500 cumulatwe max is
only avaname one um: and does nol reset annuauy nr omarwuse, Some examples 0!
appropnafie uses of material goods funds Include‘ but are not \Imitsd m: chad safety
kns‘ car seats appliance repairs adamive equ‘pment tor children with disabnines, and
resources remted to child and family language or literacy needs
The Publwc Heallh Department (PHD) has eshblrshed a process [or these purchases
and Will be responsible Var tracking each household's $500 expendilmes When a
purchase [5 made, PHD WW forward a Cupy thhe Green Claim Form (lhal is submifled

e

Item No.F. Backup Material - 63 of 73



2022 m Ca‘WORKs Home \fismng Prugvam vev zuzzufian

(o Fwscal) la the EW/ETW/HSSW with (he mnnthly CW HVP transminm form, The
EW/ETW/HSSW wil‘ image me Green Claim Form into the customer's case.

Federal Reporting £1 Wurk Participation Rale (WPR)

HVP partlclpafion in home vlsiflng sessmns and/or vurumeermg in an early \eammg
setting may be ooumed forWPR Customers engaged m HVP may meet the dennnmn
of a warkAehgmle individual 1WE|) and be inc‘uded m the TANF sample‘

Home visming sessions may be counted as )ub search and Aon readiness for up k) 130
hours mlal \n a 12-mnnlh period. Beyond mis nme lirmt, counties are encouraged m
repon home visiting sessmn hours as “Olheractivitiesmat direcny mad m unsubsxmzaa
empmymem",

Volunteer hours in an early learmng setting may be counted as communny service‘
WEX‘ or jab readiness

For purpuses uf Vsderal ramming. when a customer ‘5 n01 meenng “we care hourly
raqunemem as may happen wnh voluniary placemems m HVP. courmes are
enco raged m report panicipafinn hours in federaNy reportable aclMtieS as “Walk
Activ es Olhe( Than Those Specified Abave.“

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1. CW HVP Om-ln Form (CW 2224)
G>NOA>Forms>CaIWORKs>HVP ln'nrming Nance

Ntachmam 2 CW HVP Brochure
G>NOA>F0¥m5>CaIWORKs>CW HVP Brochure

Attachment 3. CW HVP Referra‘ Farm
G>NOA>Forms>CaIWORKs>CW HVP Referral

Anachment 4. CW HVP Transmilm

Auachment 5. CW HVP Job Aid

w

Item No.F. Backup Material - 64 of 73



2022 07 CaIWDRKs Hams szrflng ngvam rev 20220530

Attachment 1. CW HVF Inlorm|ng Notice

sm.oyuhmu.ummanmm55mm mmwmwxum Selv‘cu

CALWORKS HOME VISIIING PROGRAM (MVP)
 

w may 3;mm Io”mam m Hon- \n-nmq

_Aaour ms CALWORKS HOME VISITING PROGRAM
7»: ouwom Hom- vunnu Pmnum n .1 mummy ungram mat Dams Wum 3mm
WNW.Mmmam Iagularvm w you home vs Drum: whim: mm,m(42
mm» arm mammal m. my mum mung am mmmm.mswa‘mmruvm
and you mm

- mmmmmay h: mm»; mvau mas: mm vmuna mvmw w (a my-ermm at
me: yum cnmmmaway, mmmev man:

BENEFIYS OF HOME VISITING
- mmy maymm mI'VY 9mm" hmvm lmm pmmung m mm mum mum‘s

\mmer'qmamly m
- Knee you am you nmmw
~ sew mxnmmmmm
. Cane wnh sum in runnyWm
- 5mm )1an mmmm:
- om»: :Mplnymenl am KrammWunma
. Ohm" Mmmn mam. m1 mrunmmu-hv Wu and my mm. m
- Emu m mmtwam can: sum: 1: mm no you

- Arum MIMMH puma: you Wm submit gmoaru, mung.mmmmmmwmm
(Imrus man My unpmn yam 1mmmu»mun» mm. .mm,m hnz‘diMm

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY
‘ Ta mdlguc lamnmavumvg arms you manna

‘ : membu a! a mwommummum usmum u
- a pm“ a uvmku many: a a mumman Mmlyrlmr mums 0M x mm mm m
manna". m

‘ yearn)“ and have wmwv CaWVDRKs ave w‘mm am am:um ummeamng m:
second lrm‘ellu av unamncy zm Mum m emu: «x GawwoRK:wmm m. m nawrw
mama: 1h: :nmnd mmvupmm m

- wpzmnymm. var caww. ad
- « yen do nut mu: m. alum Imea mmm ml May heaww wmae: ummmg on

ymr mmn Flask duo»: yum ovnmi wan ynu cmwom mummy We!

Em=w2214 (712mmmrm ,5mmFm =P|geI m a   
H

Item No.F. Backup Material - 65 of 73



2022 U7 CaIWORKs Home szmng Program rev 20220630

 

mumc-Imm-mm-MNumnmmMMw Wmlkwmmnlsfidsmm

cALwoRKs HOME VISITING PROGRAM OP‘LIM FORM
Ta vawnmr Ia umaw In a. mun .Ign a»: mumm Im In My worker
HOME vIsmms PRoGnAu FARHCIPA'IIOK REouEsl
n I mun MK: m minutes In vamdpa‘u m m caIwcnx: Hum:mmmumand “mum:
am I may munudy mummm:mmmm:a any time
Ivumm m mamnm wmng urvia ler my mIIaImn)mbetw

 

—v—un—mmmmum —Pmlethdaw WmNWat I
D lam Ingram Myflvvmmuu due flilms

:I I anm wan! mvnmeer a mum: u. m: Ham:mu Prawn aI m. m. m unmlsund
um I mymm [D mIp-u m Imm- mm; In Ih: mm by"mmmy manmwm
Hamming III mm min: In pampu.
mm» Vat mama mamung sewvlws.
I:I mum"Wmvulnng “mm;
D Do «an rm wwr-meI mum Iny mm.
a m mm.” in rm"?m.vmlw Man
:1 mm

Eyslnnlnn msMn. 1 unnersnna mo luBowImI:
m woman: I ammm In mam me nuns vmnng amy vmwam su May an
mmm andmm. ammM mamm In bean

- I mm,m I am prequm o!m Damn! nr mum:MIN 04 ummumWamvz.
- m 9mm .. Iw-I vdunlary, am I canmmmm: mm: mm:amy Hm: by"mm

me cum wmmmmum home vangWmmm
. 1m amnmun lelus Mn yum mm m: Gala at signalme unIss mvckrd earner.
- Awpyullhskxm m: nflomdumm In ml. m
~ Mcmnmm warm mm M amlmy mmlyvmuy nI’IIrC-iWDRKI mm,
W51!mm Influflflgmflzerlnwak axflwfinm
 

 

 

 

      

c... m. c.,. mm

um mPMucummmmve mm

SIirmw- m m.“ mum“, m...” n .
Nlme ammam“ pm.

Saran: «cm, Emma Dz:-

m'vzzzaxmvmuhurmmslenm P.Imlnu mam  
 

I2

Item No.F. Backup Material - 66 of 73



21:22 07 cmWoRKs Home Vismng Pvagvam rev, 202mm

Attachment 2‘ CW HVP Outreach Flyer

$557911.”-

  
 

   
'c-Innlcquml

 

   

1a

Item No.F. Backup Material - 67 of 73



2022 m Ca‘WORKs Hume Vlsllmg ngram rev. 2022mm

 

 

Agnes": nr mm:
\ILS r s:
'nrw'm'T-um

m." M" 'm“
Smuhnmmmm... am
mm‘v‘ m
WmnmmnMMNu
mum
Mmmw u s.mmmm” ”V
mmmqu
myuuMI-hhvlwhby
Lummw-iwsk-
mmmmmmmm-a..."—
lmnmmnwmuflaW
mmmm.mmWWW
mnmmmnmnmuum:mmmvwafi
Mum-mtwhywmmmmmmmm-WWW...mmwumMwnmnmhh

%‘

g.
r i

mug
A w «

FnoGRAM GOALS
AND sgnvngfi
nnmmh—n

. Emum-mmwylmmmmmmmmm-

. suw—mmummmwu
nu .ummmm.

. m.- .mwmm“mm.

  

. w-Mwmn

. fmnm-ummlmdh
mmmmmmum

mmmmmum-m. WM-MWuI-l

 

mm.
. Wwwmmmmm

lulnflflln'lfllll. mmmmmmmm
. ummnmnhwwuw

Iwwlmdlh-umln m...
. summa-wumm

lull!

WHO CAN ENROLIL7
. mmcmmr y...“
mew

. mm .mv-m-vmauu
m..."—

 

umamw
n ”mm” _ mm” m1."WMWWWW. .‘
minw‘dmmwhumm
, “mu...” unhhlnnnmmMW "muwmw W“Mm, Mum;"mm s-

 

 

a:hm-mlwn-Mm?
A 'memmmw
ufinmh—nm—mflawm
h‘wumnn “mmn,NWuy.“ m m.
mummwlmnhm
A anr-MAMMMMKHH
Mm.“ Mung‘mm,

 

  

 

14

 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 68 of 73



2022 07 Ca<woRxs Hume szmng Program rsv 2022mm

Attachment 2A CW Cal-Learn Oulraach Flyur

        

 

    
  

 

       

 

  

   

  

"Wm:M u m uvumwvhk\ “mm“,mmemmm.  
m:muw mmmmmamm
mum u: m, m mmM:mmumnmbgwmmu" AWN, mmunwéumrmru‘m'wnvml
mum AL:

mum”uu-m—m   

  

away». 

vmvnmauwm «mum
muuwm . mmwWu vm mat.m u tldnqx’m‘
mama m nmanmmemgmmm N). .gWWWmme“ am

 

 

ma,Mmm0mmmm KM,“mu"WWW  

 

m w,Mmmm,m {mam
\r/mmlhn \va‘mN'K,.5 me Newm»m m». m.-
mmumn.m

mmmmmmmmm .mmm k5wmmumara‘wmnenunfi '17::I-mn:

 

ww   
15

Item No.F. Backup Material - 69 of 73



2022 D7 CalWDRKs Hume szmng Program rev 20220630

What ll cal—Lenm’l
mmmmmmm» mm mflntfl-anwuwfiwrmmmmmmmmw M n mmm m..mm

    

 

   
  
    

 

  

 

  

  

    
  

       

 

 Mwaym,w,.mm,m mmmywwummm‘ nummmmlfiw“umrvN-‘qtmhdfla 

 

  

 

 

MC..."W mmmmmmwW. Wm.
“wit3msmrm : mm” mmmmmm
mmmmw Mumww. .ummmmmm
unmmgfiwvfigmgw ' m...“ MmMvmwmWm,

 

 

cw" smwumnn mm» mm. .v W u . WWW».mugmamuwuhmmw:mmvuw&:l<mnm w m Mmmm

 

"mm m v_mt Wp—mm\dwslwmmmkumwummml

“MW ”mammal.mmw mum nwzrflgoum khae‘ “4mmwwkm. um‘ Mam.“
‘ nu—I-u-nn—n fl-a—v-n-n-Mkmmmwmmmmmmr mm...» . Dnmawvm‘wmm‘mmm6 mm mm m mugd = mu .w I» wanna: Mm.u 5.14 . nmmm

murmtykgunnuathwumwd w«M Nam; yunzlm nth muamumnmumsmm mum:

 

mmmmywumawmmmmm Aw‘dawblwpwmm(nmnykmmmwmMame(MMnmvaemllcwp-wtwfiu
mu m. raw“.‘ mwmwmmnvhwn-mrmd
(mmmmmmw mm.mm
”am u, ”17‘ N. nu. ma mm .7

m...—vmmyuambqsmnafiv‘w'wmammkmgammfvwghw
m MW m... m hummus‘ W B“ i’uwrwmlmuzmwmaufluywnfivdyeh
w rnfi‘er-(mmsfluhqwmankl‘quwlamu..—wmlmumwMvan-Imdm vwmumemwa
m..mm:,uwmumww an WMAKWWm“, MW, H mm

 
‘6

Item No.F. Backup Material - 70 of 73



2022 07 C:\WORKS Hams Visimg F(ogram rzv 20220630

Attachment 3. CW HVP Referral Form

3‘umFulln-
x .IIAn-mm

 

sauna!!! ‘
1 \DMONEr «v 4 i ‘

iv!" "a, ‘ ‘ vnsswm-w-s:wwcss-AnAmEm--

m3?
ummm.
m,m,m
”(mm
lsuwhnm

1

 

  
rnrmwanxslaueamunicmamummwmmm
mimmflm 1- mnIM-Inuvmmnnwrhm

1mm“: [:1 mm {1 mm «CI WHW‘
ummrmm « ‘ -no| ‘ a u
on:
muvmaut-nnsx—v ~ 1
:«wu 7mm

«MW... um um. numbmnr mnm, mmmn
uspnmmm... .. 4 a wmwwmsEx-u * ~ v
MIMI:nvurlullqulWOlKn«wn-Virilingl’mgmmvzkrmLundumuNII-dIn
mmmmmmmmwma-Dvry I

 

‘ ,> \ mmmm—    

 

\
am." mm. rum mum \

cnmam mm. mm; szmmv ‘
swsoum Mam sx , mnx; ssum ‘

I‘F-xx sswmazam Meumam'uéx 15m“ a m ‘

  

17

Item No.F. Backup Material - 71 of 73



2022 D7 CalWORKs Hume Waning Progyam mv. 20220630

Amchmenl 4‘ CW HVF Transmltlal

 

7, HcaltlIyFamll
‘

 

:uwnxx; um. mum ummm Tmnsmillal
mmmmm S:ru|,\'rcka1. u 76fl97

I'h- 53mm: .na'?
nu an-u :mm

work" Nam; wmm-J

Ruyly anlnmtlnn
Dam , 7 Ta.

WurkzrNW
 

 

Cumumxr Name: cum
 

El WellflduWI-rkmstnmar

DAZZENLMM‘E: svalunnumnun m
D Assassmmx scammed nu
L; cmmmmm y»..‘.n.m‘.y..u .ppummmn
u emu,” ma naunrrm mun Madam gupnmmm

 

DMEMW. mmmmw
:nmm / wmpuw u
m Arwmmxw ¥ 1,, [anymmmg kmmhmwnvnvk

 

 

E umm. 1m. 5m»: .fllundlngdauu mmmm
III aumm vanrrz-nm m mm,

' mm \CIPATIO)‘
Dough mm H mun

anuanEss
u mm: a nun,

 

LH'Umm'n/u‘l- mum Mmmm vtln-nlmwrv‘rr»ismdlmwdbulun
:1 n .n Mlhélnxay

   

 

 

m. A: mum.»
. (rd mm7

Comma; ,

mu Namu i, mumne u

 

m ”V "murmum  
 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 72 of 73



2022 u7 CaIwoRKs Nome V>s>|mn Program rev 2022mm

Attachment 5. CW HVF Job Ald

 

CaIWORKs Homo vnsmng Inmmm (mm Jan Ald

Whm |s an
V Amgenemflunal vamnxmy proglam model um conned; newpmenls wnn a nurse my cum

xmmea pruressnna] who makesregular wsus ya me cHenK's name (a provide gumnce.
coaching. access [a vahaW am pcsma|al am am nmev nezmn and semi semoes

NVI cums m Weummwm MTW)
. May be manaalmy nrvummmywl’w pamc-pams

Are um requiem so sign :1 WM pun mu are enmmaged man so u (hey are vmumaly wrw
pumcipams

- May be ellgmle lur me mu army 01 suppamve sewing; Including cnnd care, uansyumum,
anunary services and duper asrsiance for men‘s my: young cnndran

wrw Plan Allowable AmMms m HVI

cmwcnxs Minimum Slandams carwonxs Federal Standards
(Len see 01 me wrw Plan)

emu acnvlms nmssary m nssisl m
omammn empmymem

. Fm assunmem omnme mung sessm
[wnenjnb seam» andjoh Imdlness ume

(Rmpsme olme wrw Plan)

Jab search mum nadlnuss
- Fm asslgnmenl cl name wsmng sessxm

n! vuvumeer mursm an €21va leammg
swing

mums ale unanswd)
- For assgnymx olvolunlzer hauls m an communny servlce. work ezplrilnc . or lab

eafly lmlmng selling ‘1 Unable Io assign mm. and Inn naalnass
as wmmumrymm or wk . Fnrasswgnmenlo'volumeel hams at :m
menace early lznmmg sehmg

 

How m Enuul Hours in "VI m mm“ul ka Paniclpminn Ram MFR)
Hvl pamclpflllcn m name mung sessxms amlrnr vnmnlznmlg m anmy lenrmnn semw
may be munlea m: wa cnems Engaged n Hvl may meet ma denmmn or wmwgmle
\nuwmunls as aescnbea m ACL law and [:2 Include: m me VANF samme

Vn/meer Hour: In an Earty
Lesmmg came:

mumunny Survice. wmk
expenm (WEX). u!m
reallluess

Cwnlmg qu m HVI kw WPR
Aulvmes Meulng an-

Heme mm Sesame
Job march and ma Ieallmess
(Few Lumnve weeks, no
hams, :vad w weeks Mal van
hours, In :I I2 mvlh Pencd)

Acllvifles Nu! Moeling wa Wonk mmm- cum l'mm Wark Anlvhies Dlhu "um
(Dams HM mommy WPR, Mose Speclvlml Ame Tlmsl swam Above
mums: .w emmaged la mm
a/Umms4mm")

‘Fu drama n01 meeung Ike m. hmfly requiremenl‘ (wnhes ave 5mmenmumged (a mum vllmpmmn
hum: m Manny mm“mm“3: ’Wm AcIMIIB: Other man Thnse smug»: Almvn’ 
 

19

 

Item No.F. Backup Material - 73 of 73



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 188 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: PUBLIC WORKS  
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: 5 minutes Meeting Date: August 9, 2022
OR
Consent

Contact Person/Department: Kyla Burton, Public Works Phone: 842-8250

Address: 1312 Fairlane Road, Yreka, CA 

Person Appearing/Title: Thomas Deany, Director of Public Works 

Subject/Summary of Issue:
The Salmon River Restoration Council (SRRC) has completed a fish access and channel restoration project on 
Hotelling Gulch.  The project is located on Cecilville Road approximately 3.5 miles up the South Fork Salmon River 
and southeast of the town of Forks of Salmon. The project consisted of replacing the existing undersized culvert 
crossing (fish barrier) with a 22ft. wide by 27ft. long single span, reinforced concreted bridge that will allow for 
conveyance of 100-year storm event and fish passage. The bridge was designed and constructed to meet 
Caltrans, CalFire, and Siskiyou County requirements, including meeting standard highway load specification, public 
contracting codes, and state and federal prevailing wages.  The project was funded with grant funds from the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and United States Forest Service.  Both CEQA and NEPA was 
completed and all environmental permits were obtained.  The project was developed in partnership with Siskiyou 
Co. Public Works, USFS and Quincy Engineering.  SRRC is now requesting to donate the Hotelling Gulch Bridge 
to the County of Siskiyou.

Financial Impact:

NO
Describe why no financial impact: 

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $919,474

Fund: 2103 Description: Road Org.: 301010 Description:

Account: 560300 Description: Contributions 
from others.

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:      

     
Additional Information: Donation of a 22ft wide by 27ft. long single span, reinforced concreted bridge on Cecilville Road. 

over Hotelling Gulch.

Recommended Motion:

Respectfully request the Board of Supervisors to accept the donation of the Hotelling Gulch Bridge valued at 
$919,474.  In addition, authorize Public Works to add the Hoteling Gulch Bridge (2C-287) to the current bridge 
inventory and for the County Auditor to include the bridge to the County’s capital assets.

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      

     Quantity:      
Auditor      

Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be submitted directly to the 
Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 12:00 p.m. on the Wednesday prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 1/15/15 

AGENDA WORKSHEET
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 510 N Main St, Yreka, CA  
96097

Item No.G. Backup Material - 1 of 7



  

No
.

2
0
-
5
6
-
D
S
F

S
I
S
K
I
Y
O
U
C
O
U
N
T
Y
D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
O
F
P
U
B
L
I
C
W
O
R
K
S

E
N
C
R
O
A
C
H
M
E
N
T
P
E
R
M
I
T YR

EK
A.

CA
LI
FO
RN

IA

D
a
t
e
fl
m

T
O
:
S
a
l
m
o
n

R
i
v
e
r
R
e
s
t
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
C
o
u
n
c
i
l

M
e
l
i
s
s
a
V
a
n
S
c
o
y
o
c

P.
o
B
o
x
1
0
8
9

S
a
w
y
e
r
s
B
a
r
Ca

.

9
6
0
3
7

5
3
0
-
4
6
2
-
4
6
5
5 In

c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
wi

th
yo

ur
re
qu
es
t
of

06
-1

6-
20

A
n
d

su
bj
ec
t

to
al
l
th
e
te

rm
s,

co
nd

it
io

ns
a
n
d

re
st

ri
ct

io
ns

wr
it
te
n
a
n
d

pr
in
te
d
a
s
G
e
n
e
r
a
l

Pr
ov
is
io
ns

o
n
th
e
re
ve
rs
e
of

th
is

fo
rm

a
n
d

Sp
ec

if
ic

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
li

st
ed

b
e
l
o
w
a
n
d

at
ta
ch
ed
.
P
E
R
M
I
S
S
I
O
N

IS
H
E
R
E
B
Y
G
R
A
N
T
E
D
To
:
W
o
r
k
wi
th
in

th
e
c
o
u
n
t
y

ri
gh
t
o
f
w
a
y
fo

r
B
r
i
d
g
e
co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on

a
n
d
c
h
a
n
n
e
l
r
e
a
l
i
g
n
m
e
n
t
at

mi
le

3.
38

o
f

Ce
ci
lv
il
le
R
o
a
d
at

Ho
te

li
ng

Gu
lc
h.

U
p
o
n
co

mp
le

ti
on

a
n
d
a
c
c
e
p
t
a
n
c
e
of

th
e
wo
rk
,
th
e
fo

ll
ow

in
g
pr
oj
ec
t
de

li
ve

ra
bl

es
sh

al
l
b
e
pr

ov
id

ed
to

Si
sk
iy
ou

C
o
u
n
t
y

Pu
bl
ic

W
o
r
k
s
.

vE
ng
in
ee
ri
ng

Ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

Q
u
a
n
t
i
t
y
Ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns

G
e
o
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
Re
po
rt
s

H
y
d
r
a
u
l
i
c
St

ud
ie

s

'A
s-

Bu
il

t
Pl

an
s

Br
id
ge

Ra
il

Sh
op

Dr
aw

in
gs

C
h
a
n
g
e
Or
de
rs

-M
at

er
ia

ls
Ce
rt
ifi
ca
te
s
of

Co
mp

li
an

ce
Qu
al
it
y
Co
nt
ro
l
Te
st

Re
su

lt
s

Ac
ce

pt
an

ce
Te
st

Re
su

lt
s

-M
il

l
Te
st

Re
su
lt
s

Pr
oj
ec
t
Ph
ot
os

-M
at

er
ia

ls
Ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

St
at

em
en

t
fr
om

De
si
gn

En
gi
ne
er

‘M
et

al
B
e
a
m

Gu
ar

dr
ai

l
In
st
al
la
ti
on

Ch
ec

kl
is

t

Si
xk
iy
au

Co
un

ty
Pu

bl
ic

Wo
rk
s
sh
al
l
be

no
ti
fi
ed

im
me
di
at
el
y
if

th
e
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
of

th
e
w
o
r
k
wi

th
in

Co
un
ty

ri
gh

t—
of

-
w
a
y
or

”
fl
e
e
t
i
n
g
p
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
co
ns
tr
uc
te
d
wi
th
in

th
e
C
o
u
n
t
y
ri

gI
It

-a
f-

wa
y

is
an
ti
ci
pa
te
d
to

ma
te

ri
al

ly
ch

an
ge

fr
am

wh
at

ha
s
be
en

pr
ev
ia
us
ly

ap
pr

ov
ed

.
"

 
 Item No.G. Backup Material - 2 of 7



  Al
l
w
o
r
k
to

b
e
d
o
n
e

in
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
wi

th
th
e
ge
ne
ra
l
pr

ov
is

io
ns

o
n
th
e
re
ve
rs
e
si
de
.

Th
is

pe
rm

it
is

to
b
e

st
ri
ct
ly

co
ns
tr
ue
d
a
n
d
n
o
w
o
r
k
ot
he
r
th

an
th

at
sp

ec
ifi

ca
ll

y
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
e
d
a
b
o
v
e

is
au
th
or
iz
ed

he
re

by
.
Th

is
pe

rm
it

sh
al

l
b
e
vo
id

un
le
ss

th
e
w
o
r
k
he
re
in

co
nt

em
pl

at
ed

sh
al

l
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
on

or
be

fo
re

11
-3
0-
20
20
.

S
I
S
K
I
Y
O
U
C
O
U
N
T
Y

D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
O
F
P
U
B
L
I
C
W
O
R
K
S

P
0
B
O
X
1
1
2
7

Y
R
E
K
A
,
C
A
L
I
F
O
R
N
I
A

8
4
2
-
8
2
5
0

S
C
O
T
T
W
A
I
T
E

Di
re
ct
or

of
Pu

bl
ic

W
o
r
k
s

En
cr
oa
éh
me
nt

Of
fic
er

 
 Item No.G. Backup Material - 3 of 7



20
-9
92
05
:
  A

P
P
L
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
F
O
R
E
N
C
R
O
A
C
H
M
E
N
T
P
E
R
M
I
T
O

Th
is

is
a
n
A
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
on

ly
.
N
o
w
o
r
k

is
t
o
b
e
st
ar
te
d

un
ti
l
a
p
e
r
m
i
t

is
is

su
ed

D
a
t
e

Ju
ne

16
2
0

2°
 

T
o
th

e
Si

sk
iy

ou
C
o
u
n
t
y
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t

Pu
bl
ic

W
o
r
k
s

1
3
1
2

Fa
ir
la
ne

R
d

l
P
.
O
.
B
o
x
1
1
2
7

Y
r
e
k
a
,
C
A
9
6
0
9
7

5
3
0
-
8
4
2
-
8
2
5
0

 

T
o
w
h
o
m

it
m
a
y
C
o
n
c
e
r
n

:

T
h
e
u
n
d
e
r
s
i
g
n
e
d
h
e
r
e
b
y
ap

pl
ie

s
fo
r
p
e
r
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
to

ex
ca

va
te

,
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
a
n
d
/
o
r
o
t
h
e
r
w
i
s
e
e
n
c
r
o
a
c
h
o
n
C
o
u
n
t
y

ri
gh
t
of

w
a
y
b
y
pe

rf
or

mi
ng

w
o
r
k
of

th
e
fo

ll
ow

in
g
W
I
N
:

Ho
te

ll
in

g
Gu

lc
h
Aq
ua
ti
c
Re

st
or

at
io

n
Pr
oj
ec
t

Ap
pl

ic
an

t
wi
ll

de
sc
ri
be

fu
ll

y
w
h
a
t

is
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
us

in
g

T
h
e
ap
pl
ic
an
t

wi
ll
b
e
co
ns
tr
uc
ti
ng

a
pr
oj
ec
t
to

i
m
p
r
o
v
e
fi
s
h
p
a
s
s
a
g
e
a
n
d
p
e
r
i
o
r
m

ha
bi
ta
i
re
st
or
at
io
n
o
n

Ho
ie

ll
in

g
Gu

lc
h.

A
po
rt
io
n

of
th

e
pr

oj
ec

t
in
vo
lv
es

re
pl
ac
in
g
an

ex
is

ti
ng

.
un
de
rs
iz

ed
do
ub
le
C
M
P

cu
lv

er
t
un

de
r
th

e
Co

un
ty

ro
ad

wi
th

a
n
e
w
br
id

ge
in

cl
ud

in
g

re
co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on

of
th

e
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
r
o
a
d
w
a
y
s
.
Q
u
i
n
c
y
En
gi

ne
er

in
g,

In
c.

d
e
s
i
g
n
e
d

th
is

pr
oj
ec
t.

S
e
e
at
ta
ch
ed

p
a
g
e

fo
r
m
o
r
e

in
fo
.

W
o
r
k

wi
ll

b
e
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
e
d
o
n
/
i
r
o
m

2.
3.

7
I

1
I
2
0
2
0

to
n.

..
1
2
/

1
I
2
0
2
0

T
H
E
W
O
R
K

SI
TE
M
U
S
T
B
E
M
A
R
K
E
D

W
I
T
H
C
O
N
S
P
I
C
U
O
U
S
S
T
A
K
E
S
A
N
D

F
L
A
G
S
R
E
A
D
I
L
Y
V
I
S
I
B
L
E
F
R
O
M
T
H
E
C
O
U
N
T
Y
R
O
A
D
V
M
A
R
K

S
T
A
K
E
S
S
H
O
U
L
D

I
D
E
N
T
I
F
Y
O
W
N
E
R
O
R
A
P
P
L
I
C
A
N
T
.

(
IF

SI
TE
C
A
N
N
O
T
B
E
i
D
E
N
T
I
F
l
E
D
T
H
E
P
E
R
M
I
T
W
I
L
L
N
O
T

B
E
I
S
S
U
E
D
)
.

Th
e
w
o
r
k

is
lo
ca
te
d
on

Co
un
ty

Ro
ad

Ce
ci

lv
il

le
Ro

ad
.

Fo
re

st
H
w
y
93

Co
.
Ro

ad
#
m

R
o
a
d
a
n
d
A
n
d
r
u
s

M
i
l
e
P
o
s
t

,
a
p
p
r
o
x

8
F
e
e
t
I
Mi
le
s,

N
o
r
t
h

/
S
o
u
t
h

/
Ea

st
/
W
e
s
t

O
f
t
h
e
in

te
rs

ec
ti

on
o
f

C
o
u
n
t
y
o
r

Pu
bl
ic

R
o
a
d
w
a
y

S
a
l
m
o
n

Ri
ve

r
R
o
a
d
a
n
d

Ce
ci
lv
il
le

R
o
a
d

 

N
a
m
e

or
N
u
m
b
e
r

As
se
ss
or
“
No
_

03
3-
55

0-
10
0-
00
0

Tw
mh
ip

10
No
rt
h

Ra
ng

e
8
Ea
st

m
28

De
ta

il
ed

pl
an
s
sh
ou
ld

be
su
bm
it
te
d

if
av

al
la

bl
e,

a
n
d

sh
al
l
h
e
su

bm
it

te
d

If
re

qu
es

te
d
b
y

th
e

Pu
bl

ic
W
o
r
k
s

Di
re

ct
or

or
hi
s
r
e
p
r
u
e
n
u
t
l
v
e
.

11
11

5
pe
rm
it

ls
is
su
ed

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
i
t
h
Se
ct
io
n
1
4
6
0

of
th

e
St
re
et
s
a
n
d
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
c
o
d
e
a
n
d
n
o
wa
rr
an
ty

is
m
a
d
e
or

Im
pl
ie
d
wi

th
re
ga
rd

to
th

e
ow
ne
rs
hi
p
of

th
e
un

de
rl

yi
ng

fe
e

ti
tl
e
to

th
e

re
al

pr
op

er
ty

In
vo

lv
ed

.
Pe
rm
it
te
e

ls
ad
vi
se
d
to

de
te
rm
in
e
o
w
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
of

th
e

re
al

pr
op

er
ty

in
vo

lv
ed

a
n
d

ob
ta

in
wr
it
te
n
pe
rm
is

si
on

f
r
o
m
th

e
o
w
n
e
r

to
en

te
r
o
n
t
o
a
n
d
o
c
c
u
p
y

sa
id

pr
op

er
ty

.

Pl
ea
se

No
te

:
T
h
e

si
gn
at
ur
e
of

th
e
ap

pl
ic

an
t
o
n

th
is

ap
pl
ic
at
io
n

wi
ll

se
rv

e
to

in
di

ca
te

a
n
d
a
c
k
n
a
w
l
e
d
g
e
th

at
th

e
ap
pl
ic
an
t
ha

s
re

ad
a
n
d
do

es
un

de
rs

ta
nd

t
h
e
P
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s

se
t
f
o
r
t
h
th
er
ei
n,

i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
t
h
e
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
P
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
o
n
p
a
g
e

2.
U
p
o
n
a
m
d
n
g

sa
id

si
gn
at
ur
e,

a
p
p
l
i
c
a
n
t
a
g
r
e
e
s
t
o
c
o
n
f
o
r
m
a
n
d
t
o
m
p
l
y

w
i
t
h
t
h
e
s
e
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
a
n
d
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
.

C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r

O
w
n
e
r

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
N
a
m
e

S
a
l
m
o
n
Ri
ve
r
Re

st
or

at
io

n
Co

un
ci

l

  
Ap

pl
ic

an
ts

N
a
m
e

Me
li
ss
a
V
a
n
S
g
o
y
o
c

A
p
p
l
i
c
a
n
t
s
S
i
g
n
a
t
u
r
e
M
1
,
,

M
e
l
{
M
e
l

Ad
dr

es
s
P
o
B
o
x
2
5
8

Ad
dr
es
s
P
O
é
O
X

"’
89

3f
}

Ha
pp
y
Ca

mp
Si

am
CA

Zip
96

03
9

Cit
y

Sa
wy
er
s
Ba

rk
Ci

ty

Ph
on

e
(5

30
)
49

3—
25

79
Ph

on
e

(5
30

)
46

2-
46

65

 

5
m

CA
2”,

96
03
7

P
a
g
e

1
o
f
2

I
/
‘
3
0
‘
2
0
2
0

 
 

Item No.G. Backup Material - 4 of 7



Si
sk
iy
ou

C
o
u
n
t
y
—
De
pt
.
of

Pu
bl
ic

W
o
r
k
s

-
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
fo
r
E
n
c
r
o
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
P
e
r
m
i
t

E
x
t
e
n
d
e
d
D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
—
Ho

te
ll

in
g
G
u
l
c
h
A
q
u
a
t
i
c
R
e
s
t
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
Pr

oj
ec

t

T
h
e
pr

im
ar

y
p
u
r
p
o
s
e

of
th
e

pr
oj

ec
t

is
to

p
e
r
f
o
r
m

a
c
h
a
n
n
e
l
r
e
a
l
i
g
n
m
e
n
t

of
th

e
l
o
w
e
r
re
ac
h

of

Ho
te

ll
in

g
G
u
l
c
h

to
re

st
or

e
ha
bi
ta
t
a
n
d
i
m
p
r
o
v
e

fi
sh

p
a
s
s
a
g
e
wi

hi
n

a
S—
ac
re

pr
oj

ec
t
ar
ea

o
n
t
h
e

Un
it

ed
St
at
es

Fo
re
st

Se
rv

ic
e
(U

SF
S)

S
a
l
m
o
n
/
S
c
o
t
t
Ri

ve
r
R
a
n
g
e
r

Di
st
ri
ct

of
th
e
K
l
a
m
a
t
h

Na
ti
on
al

Fo
re
st
.

Hi
st
or
ic
al
ly
,
Ho

te
ll

in
g
G
u
l
c
h
ha

s
b
e
e
n

hi
gh

ly
di

st
ur

be
d
b
y
hy

dr
au

li
c
mi

ni
ng

ac
ti
vi
ty

w
h
i
c
h

c
a
u
s
e
d

s
e
d
i
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
a
n
d

re
di
re
ct
ed

th
e

na
tu

ra
l

ch
an

ne
l.

T
h
e

i
m
p
a
c
t
e
d

ch
an

ne
l

cu
rr

en
tl
y

cr
os
se
s

Ce
ci

lv
il

le
R
o
a
d

(S
is

ki
yo

u
C
o
u
n
t
y
R
o
a
d
)
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
t
w
o

36
”
pi
pe

cu
lv
er
ts

w
h
i
c
h
p
o
s
e

a
fi

sh

ba
rr
ie
r
a
n
d

ar
e
un

de
rs

iz
ed

fo
r

la
rg

er
s
t
o
r
m

fl
ow
s.

La
rg
er

fl
ow
s

ro
ut
in
el
y
o
v
e
r
t
o
p
th

e
r
o
a
d

at

th
es
e
cu

lv
er

ts
ca
us
in
g
s
t
o
r
m
d
a
m
a
g
e
to

th
e
cu

lv
er

ts
,
ro

ad
,
a
n
d
ro

ad
si

de
di
tc
h
dr
ai
na
ge

sy
st
em
.

Th
is

pr
oj

ec
t
w
a
s
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
d

in
pa
rt
ne
rs

hi
p
wi
th

Si
sk

iy
ou

C
o
u
n
t
y
De

pt
,
of

Pu
bl

ic
W
o
r
k
s
a
n
d
US

FS
.

T
h
e

pr
oj

ec
t
w
a
s
d
e
s
i
g
n
e
d
b
y
Q
u
i
n
c
y
En
gi
ne
er
in
g,

In
c.

in
cl
ud
in
g
Pl
an
s,

Te
ch

ni
ca

l
Pr
ov
is
io
ns
,
a
n
d

Re
vi
se
d
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
Sp
ec
i

ca
ti

on
s.

A
s
pa

rt
of

th
e
c
h
a
n
n
e
l
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
,
t
h
e
ex
is
ti
ng

pi
pe

cu
lv
er
ts

wi
ll

b
e

re
pl

ac
ed

b
y

a
2
7

fo
ot

-l
on

g
re
in
fo
rc
ed

co
nc
re
te

sl
ab

br
id
ge

s
u
p
p
o
r
t
e
d

b
y
d
i
a
p
h
r
a
g
m

a
b
u
t
m
e
n
t
s
a
n
d
s
p
r
e
a
d
fo
ot
in
gs

f
o
u
n
d
e
d
o
n

ro
ck
.
T
h
e
n
e
w
br
id
ge

wi
ll

pr
ov

id
e
a
d
e
q
u
a
t
e
hy

dr
au

li
c

c
o
n
v
e
y
a
n
c
e
,

fi
sh

pa
ss

ag
e,

a
n
d

a
na

tu
ra

l
ch

an
ne

l
b
o
t
t
o
m
.

T
h
e

pr
oj

ec
t

wi
ll

al
so

re
co

ns
tr

uc
t
t
h
e

a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
r
o
a
d
w
a
y
s

at
b
o
t
h
br

id
ge

e
n
d
s
to

ra
is
e
t
h
e

pr
of
il
e
of

th
e
br
id
ge

to
al

lo
w
fo

r
a
d
e
q
u
a
t
e

hy
dr
au
li
c
fr

ee
bo

ar
d,

in
st

al
l
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h

gu
ar

dr
ai

l,
a
n
d
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
ro

ad
dr

ai
na

ge
fe

at
ur

es
.

T
h
e
br

id
ge

a
n
d
r
o
a
d
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
ac

ti
'
ie

s
wi
ll

oc
cu
r
wi
th
in

th
e
fo
ot
pr
in
t
of

th
e
ex
is
ti
ng

C
o
u
n
t
y

ro
ad

a
n
d

re
qu

ir
e
a
C
o
u
n
t
y
E
n
c
r
o
a
c
h
m
e
n
t

Pe
rm

it
.

O
t
h
e
r

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
as

so
ci

at
ed

wi
th

co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on

of
th
e
n
e
w

br
id

ge
wi
th
in

C
o
u
n
t
y

ri
gh
t-
of
-w
ay

in
cl

ud
e
m
i
n
o
r

sl
op

e
gr

ad
in

g,
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t

of
ro

ck

sl
op

e
pr

ot
ec
ti
on
,
a
n
d
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
of

er
os
io
n
co

nt
ro

l
o
n

di
st

ur
be

d
ar

ea
s.

Pu
bl
ic

ve
hi

cu
la

r
tr

af
fi

c

wi
ll

b
e
te
mp
or
ar
il
y
d
e
t
o
u
r
e
d

to
a
n
ad

ja
ce

nt
by

pa
ss

r
o
a
d
du
ri
ng

co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on

of
th
e
n
e
w

br
id
ge

us
in

g
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
si
gn
ag
e
a
n
d

tr
af

fi
c

fl
ag

gi
ng

,
a
n
d

co
or
di
na
ti
on

wi
th

t
h
e

lo
ca
l
C
o
u
n
t
y

R
o
a
d

D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
.

T
h
e

pr
oj
ec
t

is
f
u
n
d
e
d
b
y
gr
an
t
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
f
r
o
m
th

e
Ca

li
fo

rn
ia

D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
of

Fi
sh

a
n
d

Wi
ld

li
fe

a
n
d

th
e
Un

it
ed

St
at
es

Fi
sh

a
n
d
Wi

ld
li

fe
Se
rv

ic
e,

T
h
e
pr

oj
ec

t
oc
cu
rs

o
n
U
S
F
S
m
a
n
a
g
e
d

la
nd

s.
T
h
e
U
S
F
S

is
th
e

le
ad

N
E
P
A
a
g
e
n
c
y
a
n
d
C
D
F
W

is
th

e
le
ad

C
E
Q
A

ag
en

cy
.
B
o
t
h
N
E
P
A
a
n
d
C
E
Q
A

h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n

c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
a
n
d

al
l
ot

he
r
pe

rm
it

s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
ac
qu
ir
ed
.
T
h
e
pr

oj
ec

t
is
be
in
g
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
a
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
e
d

by
th

e
S
a
l
m
o
n

Ri
ve

r
Re

st
or

at
io

n
Co
un
ci

l
(S
RR
C)

ut
il

iz
in

g
a
co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on

co
nt

ra
ct

wi
th

H
a
y
e
s
a
n
d

S
o
n
s

in
c.

At
th
e
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
i
o
n
of

t
h
e

pr
oj

ec
t,

al
l
p
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d
wi
th
in

th
e

fo
ot

pr
in

t
of

Si
sk
iy
ou

Co
un

ty
’s

m
a
i
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
r
o
a
d
w
a
y

wi
ll

b
e
c
o
m
e
th

e
pr
op
er
ty

a
n
d

re
sp
on
si
bi
li
ty

of
Si

sk
iy

ou
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
r
e
l
e
a
s
i
n
g
t
h
e
S
R
R
C
a
n
d
U
S
F
S
f
r
o
m
f
u
t
u
r
e
m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i

es
.

 

T
h
e

pr
oj

ec
t

is
mo
bi
li
zi
ng

fo
r
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
th
is
s
u
m
m
e
r
wi

th
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
i
o
n

pr
io

r
to

th
e
wi

nt
er

ra
in
y

s
e
a
s
o
n

(s
in
gl
e
s
e
a
s
o
n

co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
).

B
a
s
e
d
o
n
al
lo
wa
bl
e
e
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
w
o
r
k
w
i
n
d
o
w
s
,
th

e
fi
rs
t

d
a
y
o
f
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n

wi
ll

b
e
n
o
s
o
o
n
e
r
t
h
a
n
Ju

ly
10

'"
,
2
0
2
0
.
W
o
r
k
w
i
t
h
i
n
3
0
fe
et

of
ac

ti
ve

f
l
o
w

is

an
ti

ci
pa

te
d
to

b
e
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
b
y
O
c
t
o
b
e
r

15
th

,
2
0
2
0
wi

th
h
e
a
v
y
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
w
o
r
k
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
b
y

O
c
t
o
b
e
r
22
nd
,
20
20
,
a
n
d
m
a
n
u
a
l

la
bo
r
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
b
y
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
30

th
,
20
20
.

Item No.G. Backup Material - 5 of 7



 

I9
.

20
,

2!
.

22
.

23 24
.

25 26
.

Ge
ne
ra
l

Pr
ov

is
io

ns

De
fin
it
io
n.

Th
is

pe
rm
it

5
is

su
ed

un
de

r
Ch
ap
te
r
5
5
an

d
6
or

Di
vi

si
on

Zo
rt
he

St
re

et
s
an

d
Hi
gh
wa
ys

Co
de

.
Th

e
te

rm
en
cr
oa
ch
me
nt

is
us

ed
in

th
is

pc
rm
it
as
de
fin
ed

In
Ch
ap
te
r
60
f
sa
id

co
de

.
Ex

ce
pt

as
ot
he
rw
is
e
pr
ov
id
ed

fo
r
pu

bl
ic

ag
en
ci
es

an
d
fr

an
ch

is
e
ho
ld
er
s,

th
is

pe
rm

it
is
re

vo
ca

bl
e
at
an
y
ti
me
.

Ac
ce
pt
an
ce

of
l’

ij
ov

is
io

ns
.

it
is

un
de
rs
to
oq

an
d
ag

re
ed

by
th

e
Pe
rm
it
te
et
ha
tt
he
do
in
go
ra
ny

wo
rk

un
de
rt
hi
s

Be
rm
it
sh
al
l
co
ns
ti
tu
te

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
of

th
e
pr
ov
ts
to
ns
.

.
_

.
‘

ri
nr

Ri
gh
t.

It
is
un
de
rs
to
od

an
d
a

ee
d
th
at

th
e
Co

un
ty

ha
s
pr

io
r
ri

gh
t
to

th
e
us

e
of

it
s
ri

gh
t
of

wa
y.

No
ti

ce
'g

if
io

r
to

st
a
rt

in
w
o
r
k
Be

or
e
st

ar
ti

ng
wp

rk
on

wh
ic
h
an

in
sp

ec
to

r
is
re

qu
ir

ed
,
or

wh
en

ev
er

st
at

ed
on

th
e

fa
ce

of
is

pe
rm

tt
,
th

e
er

mi
tt

ee
sh
al
l
no
ti

fl
th

e
di
re
ct
om
fP
ub
li
c
W
o
r
k
s
or
ot
he
r
de
su
gn
at
ed

em
pl
oy
ee
of
th
eR
oa
d

De
pa
rt
me
nt
,
Su
ch

no
ti

ce
sh

al
l
be
gi
ve
n
at

le
as
t
th

re
e
da
ys

in
ad

va
nc

e
of

th
e
da

te
wo
rk

is
to

be
gi
n.

Pe
rm
is

si
on

I‘
ro

m
Pr

op
er

ty
Ow
ne
rs
.
Wh

en
ev

er
ne

ce
ss

ar
y
to

se
cu
re

pe
rm
is
si
on

fr
om

ab
ut

ti
ng

pr
op
er
ty

ow
ne

rs
,
su

ch
au

th
or

it
y
mu

st
be

se
cu
re
d
by

th
e
Pe

nn
it

te
e
pr
io
r
to

st
ar

ti
n

wo
rk
.

K
e
e
p
pe
rm
it

on
th

e
wo

rk
.
Th

is
pe
rm
it

sh
al
l
be

ke
pt

at
e
si

te
of

th
e
wo
rk
.

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
of

Tr
af

fic
.
Th
e
Pe

rm
it

te
e
sh

al
l c

au
se

to
be

pl
ac
ed
,
er

ec
te

d,
an

d
ma

in
ta

in
ed

al
l w

ar
ni

ng
si
gn
al
s,

li
ts
,

ba
ra

ic
ad

e
*s

ig
ns

,
an

d
ot
he
r
de
vi
ce
so
r
me

as
ur

e
es

se
nt

ia
l
to

sa
fe

gu
ar

d
tr
av
el

by
th
e
gm
er
al

pu
bl

ic
ov
er
an
d
at

e
si

te
of

wo
rk

au
t
on

ze
er
ei
n.

M
i
n
i
m
u
m

In
te

rf
er

en
ce

wi
th

Tr
af

fic
.
Al

l
wo

rk
sh
al
l
be

pl
an
ne
d
an
d
ca
rr
ie
d
ou

t
so

th
at

th
er
e
wi
ll

be
th
e
le
as
t
po
ss
ib
le

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e
to

th
e
tr

av
el

in
g
pu
bl
ic

ex
ce

pt
fo

r
th
e
Sp
ec
lfi
c
wo

rk
pe

rm
it

te
d.

Cl
ea
n
up

Ri
gh

t
ol

'W
ny

.
Th
e
Pe
rm
it
te
e
sh

al
l,

at
al
l
ti

me
s,

du
ri

ng
th
e
pr

og
re

ss
of

th
e
wo

rk
ke
e

th
e
hi

gh
wa

y
in

as
ne

at
an

d
cl

ea
n
a
co

nd
it

io
n
as

is
po
ss
ib
le

an
d
up

on
co

mp
le

ti
on

of
th
e
wo

rk
gr

an
te

d
he
re
in
,
sh
al
l
le

av
e
th
e

ig
hw
ay

in
at
ho
ro
ug
hl
y

ne
at

,
cl
ea
n,

an
d
us
ab
le

co
nd

it
io

n.
St

or
ag

e
of

Ma
te
ri
al
.
N
o

ma
te

ri
al

sh
al
l
be

st
or

ed
wi

th
in

ei
gh
t
(8
)
fe

et
fr
om

th
e
ed
ge

uf
pa

ve
me

nt
or

tr
av

el
ed

wa
y.

St
an

ar
ds

of
Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
.
Al
l
wo

rk
sh
al

l
co

nf
or

m
to

re
co

gn
iz

ed
st

an
da

rd
s
of

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

Ba
rr
ow

an
d
Wa
st
e.

On
]

su
ch

bo
rr

ow
an

d
wa

st
e
wi
ll

be
pe
rm
it
te
d
an

d
wi

th
in

th
e
li

mi
ts

as
se
t
fo
rt
h
on

th
e
fa

ce
of

th
is

pe
rm

it
.

Su
pe

rv
is

io
n.

Al
l
th

e
wo
r

sh
al

l
be

do
ne

su
b’
ec
t
to

th
e
su
pe
rv
is
io
n
of

, a
nd

to
th
e
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

on
of

th
e
Di

re
ct

or
of

Pu
bl

ic
Wo
rk
s.

Pe
rm
it
te
e
mu

st
pm
vi
de

no
ti

ce
an

d
ob
ta
in

ou
nt

y
ap
pr
ov
al

of
an

y
as
si
gn
me
nt
s
to

pe
rf

or
m
wo

rk
un

de
r
th

is
pe

nn
i

.
Fu
tu
re

m
o
v
i
n
g
of

ln
st
al
la
ti
on
.1
tl
s
un

de
rs

to
od

by
th

e
Pe

rr
ni

tt
ee

th
at
wh
en
ev
er

co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
,
re

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

or
ma
in
te
na
nc
e
wo
rk

on
hi
gh
wa
y
m
a
y

re
qu

ir
e,

th
e

in
st

al
la

ti
on

pr
ov

id
e
fo

r
he

re
in

sh
al
l,

up
on

re
qu

es
to

i'
th
e
Di
re
ct
or

of
Pu

bl
ic

Wo
rk
s,

be
im
me
di
at
el
y
mo

ve
d
by

,
an

d
at
th
e
so

le
ex

pe
ns

e
of

th
e
Pe

rm
it

te
e.

Li
ab
il
it
y
fo
r
D
a
m
a
g
e
s
.
Th
e
Pe
rm
it
te
e

is
re

sp
on

si
bl

e
fo
r a

ll
li
ab
il
it
y
fo

r
pe
rs
on
al

in
ju
ry
or

pr
op

er
ty

da
ma
ge

wh
ic

h
ma

y
ar

is
e
ou

t
or

wo
rk

he
re
in

pe
rm

it
te

d,
or

wh
ic

h
ma
y

ar
is
eo

ut
ot

'
fa

il
ur

e
on

th
e

Pe
nn

it
te

e'
s
pa

rt
,
to

pe
rf

on
n

hi
s
ob
li
ga
ti
on
s
un

de
r

th
is

pe
rm
it

in
re

sp
ec

t
to

ma
in

te
na

nc
e.

In
th

e
ev
en
t
an
y
cl
ai
m
or

su
ch

li
ab
il
it
y

is
ma

de
ag

ai
ns

t
th

e
Co
un
ty

or
Si
sk
iy
ou
,
or

an
y

de
pa
rt
me
nt
,
of
fic
er
,
or

em
pl
oy
ee

th
er
eo
f,

Pe
rm

tt
ee

sh
al
l
de
fe
nd
,
in

de
mn

if
y
an
d
ho

ld
th
em

an
d
ea

ch
of

th
em

ha
rm
le
ss

fr
om

su
ch

cl
ai

m.
Fu
rt
he
r,

Pe
rm

it
te

c
sh

al
l
ob

ta
in

a
si
mi
la
r
pr
ov
is
io
n

in
it

s
co

nt
ra

ct
wi

th
an

y
co

nt
ra

ct
or

to
pe
rf
or
m

th
e
wo
rk

he
re
in

pe
rm

it
te
d,

wh
ic

h
in
de
mn
ifi
ca
ti
on

an
d
ho
ld

ha
rm

le
ss

sh
al

l
in
cl
ud
e
no
t
on

ly
th
e
Pe

rm
it

te
e
bu
t
al
so

th
e
Co
un
ty

of
Si
sk
iy
ou
,
an
y

de
pa

rt
me

nt
,
of
fi
ce
r
or

em
pl
oy
ee

th
er
eo
f.

M
a
k
i
n
g
Re

pa
ir

s.
if

th
e
Co
un
ty

sh
al
l
so

el
ec

t,
re

pa
ir

s
to

pa
vi
ng

wh
ic

h
ha

s
be
en

di
st
ur
be
d

sh
al

l
be

ma
de

by
it
s
em
pl
oy
ee

s
an

d
th
e
ex

pe
ns

e
th

er
eo

fs
ha

ll
be

bo
rn

e
by

th
e
Co

un
ty

sh
al
l
so

el
ec

t,
re

p
5
to

pa
vi

ng
wh

ic
h
ha

s
be

en
di

st
ur

be
d
sh
al
l
be

ma
de

by
it

s
em

pl
oy

ee
s
an

d
th
e
ex

pe
ns

e
th
er
eo
fs
ha
ll

be
bo

rn
e
by

th
e
Pe

rm
it

te
e,

w
h
o

sh
al

l
pu
rc
ha
se

an
d

de
li
ve
r
on

th
e
hi

gh
wa

y
th
e
ma

te
ri

al
s

ne
ce
ss

ar
y

fo
r
sa

id
wo
rk

as
di
re
ct
ed

by
th

e
Di
re
ct
or

of
Pu
bl
ic

W
o
r
k
s

Al
l
pa

ym
en

ts
to

la
bo
re
rs
,
in
sp
ec
to
rs
,

et
c.

em
pl
oy
ed

by
th

e
Co
un
ty

fo
r
or

on
ac

co
un

t
of

th
e
wo
rk

he
re
in

co
nt

em
pl

at
ed

,
sh
al
l
he

ma
de

by
sa
id

Pe
rm
it
te
e
fo
rt
hw
it
h
on

re
ce
ip
t
of

wr
it
te
n

st
at

em
en

t
ap
pr
ov
ed

by
th
e
Di
re
ct
or

of
Pu

bl
ic

Wo
rk
s.

Th
e
Co

un
ty

m
a
y

el
ec
t
to

re
qu

ir
e
a
de
po
si
t
be
fo
re

st
ar
ti
ng

re
pa
ir
s,

in
an

am
ou
nt

su
ffi

ci
en

t
to

co
ve

r
th

e
es
ti
ma
te
d
co
st

th
er
eo
f.

Ca
re

of
Dr

ai
na

gc
.

if
th
e
wo
rk

co
nt
em
pl
at
ed

sh
al

l
'n

te
rf

er
e
wi

th
th
ee
st
ab
li
sh
ed

dr
ai
na
ge
,
am

pl
e
pr
ov
is
io
ns

sh
al
l
be

ma
de

by
th

e
Pe

rm
it

te
e

to
pr
ov
id
e
fo

r
it

as
ma

y
be

di
re
ct
ed

by
th
e
Di
re
ct
or

ol
'P
ub
li
c
Wo
rk
s.

Ma
in

te
na

nc
e.

Th
e
Pe

rm
it

te
d
ag
re
es

to
ex
er
ci
se

re
as
on
ab
le

ca
re

to
ma

in
ta

in
pr
op
er
ly

th
is
en
cr
oa
ch
me
nt

an
d

to
ex

er
ci

se
re
as
on
ab
le

ca
re

in
in
sp
ec
ti
ng

fo
ra

nd
im

me
di

at
el

y
re
pa
ir
in
g
an
d
ma

ki
ng

go
od

an
y

in
ju
ry

to
an
y
po

rt
io

n
of

th
e
hi
gh
wa
y

wh
ic
h
oc
cu
rs
as
ar
es
ul
t
or
th
e
ma
in
te
na
nc
e
of

th
e
en

cm
ac

hm
en

ti
n

th
e
hi
gh
wa
yo
ra
s
a
re

su
lt

of
th
e
wo
rk

do
ne

un
de
rt
hi
s

pe
rm
it
,
in

cl
ud

in
g
an

y
an

d
al
l i

ij
ur
y
to

th
e
hi
gh
wa
y
wh
ic
h
wo

ul
d
no
t
ha
ve

oc
cu
rr
ed

ha
d
su

ch
wo

rk
no

t
be
en

do
ne

or
su
ch

en
cr

oa
ch

me
nt

no
t
pl
ac
ed

th
er
ei
n.

Cr
os
si

ng
Ro
ad
wa
y.

Se
rv

ic
e
an

d
ot

he
rs

ma
ll

di
am
et
er

pi
pe

s
sh
al
l
be

ja
ck

ed
or

ot
he

rw
is

e
fo

rc
ed

un
de
rn
ea
th

pa
ve
me
nt

wi
th
ou
t
di

st
ur

bi
ng

sa
me
.
Pa
ve
me
nt

or
ro

ad
wa

y
sh

al
l
no

t
be

cu
t
un

le
ss

sp
ec
ifi
ca
ll
y
pe
rm
it
te
d
on

th
e
fa
ce

he
re
of
.
Se
rv
ic
e

Bi
pe

s
wi
ll

no
t
be

pe
rm

it
te

d
in

si
de

uf
eu
lv
er
ts

us
ed

as
dr

ai
na

e
st
ru
ct
ur
es

ep
th

of
Pi

pe
s.

Th
er
e
sh

al
l
b
e
a
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
or

36
in

ch
es

o
co

ve
ro

ve
r

al
l

ip
es

or
co
nd
ui
ts
‘

Ba
ck
fil
li
ng
.

Al
l
ex
ca
va
ti
on
s

sh
al

l
be

ba
ck
fil
le
d
an

d
me

ch
an

ic
al

ly
co
mp
ac
te

im
me

di
at

el
y

af
te
r w

or
k

th
er

ei
n
ha

s
be

en
co

mp
le
le
d.

N
o

rt
io

n
of

th
e
ex

ca
va

ti
on

sh
a

be
co
mp
ac
te
d
by

pe
nd

in
g
or
je
tt
in
g.

Ba
ck

fil
li
ng

ma
te
ri
al

sh
al
l
cu

mp
ly

wi
th

Se
ct

io
n

I
of

th
e
St

at
e
St

an
da

rd
Sp

ec
ifi

ca
ti

on
s.

M
a
i
n

Su
rf

ac
e.

Th
e
Pe
rm
it
te
d
sh
al
l
ma
in
ta
in

th
e
su
rf
ac
e
ov
er
st
ru
ct
ur
es

pl
ac

ed
he

re
un

de
r
as

lo
ng

as
ne
ce
ss
ar
y.

Re
st
or

at
io

n.
Al

l
pa
ve
me
nt
,
cu
rb
,
gu
tt
er
,
si
de
wa
lk
,
bo
rr
ow
,
di
tc
he
s,

pi
pe
s,

he
ad

wa
ll
s,

ro
ad

si
gn
s,

tr
ee

s,
sh

ru
bb

er
y,

an
d/

or
ot

he
r
pe

rm
an

en
t
m
a
d

fa
ci
li
ti
es

in
ai

re
d
by

or
as

a
re

su
ll

or
co

ns
tr

ue
ti

on
op

er
at

io
ns

at
th
e
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
si
te
,
or

at
ot

he
r

gr
ou
nd

oc
cu
pi
ed

by
ma

te
ri

al
s
an

or
eq
ut
pm
en

t,
sh
al
l
be

re
st

or
ed

im
me
di
at
el
y

to
a
co
nd
it
io
n
as

go
od

as
or

be
tt
er

th
an

ex
is
te
d
pr

io
r
to

th
e
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
.

.
Re

sp
on
si

bl
e.

Th
e
Co
un
ty

wi
ll

no
t
be

he
ld

re
sp

on
si

bl
e

fo
r
an
y
da
ma
ge

to
an

y
un
de
rg
ro
un
d
or

ot
he
r

fa
ci
li
ti
es
,
th
at

ha
ve

be
en

ca
us
ed

du
ri

ng
th

e
co

ur
se

of
th

e
Co
un
ty
's

no
rm

al
ma
in
te
na
nc
e
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.
Th

e
Co
un
ty

wi
ll

no
t
as

su
me

an
y

re
sp
on
si
bi
li
ty
,
at
an
y
ti

me
,
sh
ou
ld

an
y
pr

ov
is

io
ns

of
th
is

pe
rm

it
no

t
be

co
mp
li
ed

wi
th
.

E
n
c
r
o
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
.
Pu

rs
ua

nt
to

§
l
4
8
3

al
l

il
le

ga
l
en
cr
ua
ch
me
nt
s
ar

e
su
bj
ec
t
to

fe
es

of
$
3
5
0

fo
r
ea

ch
d
a
y
th

e
en

cr
oa

ch
me

nt
co
nt
in
ue
s
un

re
mo

ve
dv

 
 

No
te

:
Sp
ec
ia
l
pr

ov
is

io
ns

pe
rt
in
en
t
to

yo
ur

pr
oj
ec
t
wi

ll
be

sp
ec

ifi
ed

on
yo

ur
pe

rm
it

.
D
o

no
t

st
ar
t
w
o
r
k

un
ti
l
y
o
u
re
ce
iv
e

yo
ur

ap
pr
ov
ed

pe
rm

it
.

 Item No.G. Backup Material - 6 of 7



 

Item No.G. Backup Material - 7 of 7



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 196 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: COUNTY ADMINISTRATION - 

PERSONNEL 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: 5 Minutes Meeting Date: August 9, 2022
OR
Consent
Contact Person/Department: Melissa Cummins, Deputy CAO – Personnel/Risk Phone: 530.842.8017

Address: 1312 Fairlane Road, Suite 1, Yreka, CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Melissa Cummins, Deputy CAO – Personnel and Risk Management Officer

Subject/Summary of Issue:

The County Administrator’s Office recommends approval of the attached resolutions for the 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the County of Siskiyou and Organized Employees of 
Siskiyou County – Miscellaneous Unit.  This MOU supersedes the prior memorandum of understanding.  
The following is a summary of the major changes in the new agreement:

1) Salary Increases: 
- Range adjustments of a minimum of 6% steps effective September 4, 2022
- Increase of 3% effective September 3, 2023
- Increase of 1% effective September 1, 2024

2) Standby Pay: Change to $ 55.00 per day.
3) Holiday-in-Lieu: 7% for Communications Dispatch I/II, Senior Communications Dispatcher and 

Institutional Cook.
4) Health & Dental Insurance: 

- Effective October 1, 2022 County will contribute 100% of Region 1 CalPERS Gold Health 
premium plus 100% of monthly dental premium.

- Effective plan year 2023 County will contribute 95% of Region 1 CalPERS Gold Health 
premium plus 95% of monthly dental premium.

- Effective plan year 2024 County will contribute 90% of Region 1 CalPERS Gold Health 
premium plus 90% of monthly dental premium.

- Effective plan year 2025 County will contribute 85% of Region 1 CalPERS Gold Health 
premium plus 85% of monthly dental premium.

5) Vision Insurance: Effective November 2022 the County will provide vision insurance for 
employees and their families at no cost to the employee.

6) Retiree Medical:
- County will contribute 50% of Region 1 CalPERS Platinum, minus the Minimum Employer 

Contribution (MEC) for employees hired prior to September 2, 2020 who retire. 
- Employees hired after September 1, 2020 will receive the MEC.

7) Retiree Dental:
- Employees hired prior to January 1, 2022 who retire will receive dental coverage for         

$ 25.00 per month.
- Employees hired after December 31, 2021 who retire will receive dental cover for the 

employee only at a cost of $ 25.00 per month. 
8) Life Insurance: Increase to $ 50,000 per employee.
9) Short Term and Long Term Disability Insurance:  Eliminate short term and long-term disability 

coverage on June 24, 2023.
10) Deferred Compensation: Effective 09/14/2025 the County will provide $ 25.00 per pay period  

with a match required by the employee. 
11) Numerous language cleanups to ensure compliance with various regulations.
12) Uniform Allowance: Increase to $ 10.00 per pay period for certain classifications and $ 44.00 per 

pay period for Animal Control Officers. 
13) Term:  September 4, 2022 through September 27, 2025. 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.A. Backup Material - 1 of 38



Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount:  

Fund: See 
Attached Description:      Org.: Description:      

Account:      Description:      

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:      

     

Additional Information:      

     

Recommended Motion:

1. Adopt resolution regarding the Memorandum of Understanding by and between the County of 
Siskiyou and Organized Employees of Siskiyou County – Miscellaneous Unit effective September 
4, 2022.

2. Adopt resolution amending the Siskiyou County Salary Schedule as outlined in the attached 
resolution. 

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           

NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 
submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 
prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Item No.A. Backup Material - 2 of 38



 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
OF THE COUNTY OF SISKIYOU 

ADOPTING THE COMPREHENSIVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 WITH THE ORGANIZED EMPLOYEES OF SISKIYOU COUNTY – 

MISCELLANEOUS UNIT AND IMPLEMENTING THE PROVISIONS THEREOF 
 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors adopts the 
comprehensive Memorandum of Understanding with the Organized Employees of Siskiyou 
County – Miscellaneous Unit governing the period commencing September 4, 2022, and ending 
September 27, 2025, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution implements completely and in all 
respects those provisions of the above referenced comprehensive Memorandum of Understanding.  
 
 DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August 2022 by the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Siskiyou by the following vote: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
  
 Brandon A. Criss, Chair 
  
  
ATTEST:  
Laura Bynum, County Clerk 
 
 

 

By: ________________________________   
    Deputy  

 

Item No.A. Backup Material - 3 of 38



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU 

AND 

ORGANIZED EMPLOYEES OF SISKIYOU COUNTY – 
MISCELLANEOUS UNIT 

 

 

 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2022 - SEPTEMBER 27, 2025

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 4 of 38



County of Siskiyou i OESC - Miscellaneous 

Table of Contents 

Preamble ......................................................................................................................... 1 

 Recognition ..................................................................................................... 1 

 Employee Rights ............................................................................................. 1 

2.1. Non-Discrimination ............................................................................................... 1 

2.2. Reinstatement ...................................................................................................... 1 

 Association Rights ........................................................................................... 1 

3.1. Association Payroll Deduction .............................................................................. 1 

3.2. Employee Lists ..................................................................................................... 2 

3.3. Employee Orientation ........................................................................................... 2 

3.4. Notice of Meet and Confer .................................................................................... 2 

3.5. Bulletin Boards ..................................................................................................... 2 

 County Rights.................................................................................................. 2 

4.1. Volunteers/Contracting Out .................................................................................. 2 

 Wages ............................................................................................................. 3 

5.1. Salary Schedule ................................................................................................... 3 

5.2. Step Advancement ............................................................................................... 3 

5.3. Work Periods ........................................................................................................ 3 

5.4. Salary Increases ................................................................................................... 3 

5.5. Overtime ............................................................................................................... 6 

5.6. Standby Pay ......................................................................................................... 6 

5.7. Callback Pay......................................................................................................... 6 

 Other Pays ...................................................................................................... 6 

6.1. Bilingual Pay ......................................................................................................... 6 

6.2. Shift Differential .................................................................................................... 6 

6.3. Work Out of Class ................................................................................................ 7 

6.4. Recovery Time ..................................................................................................... 7 

6.5. License/Certification Fees .................................................................................... 7 

 Flexibly Staffed Classifications ........................................................................ 7 

 Leaves ............................................................................................................ 8 

8.1. Sick Leave ............................................................................................................ 8 

8.2. Vacation ............................................................................................................... 8 

8.3. Holidays ................................................................................................................ 8 

8.4. Holiday-in-Lieu ...................................................................................................... 9 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 5 of 38



County of Siskiyou ii OESC - Miscellaneous 

8.5. Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Paid Holidays .............................................................. 9 

 Health and Welfare ......................................................................................... 9 

9.1. Health Insurance .................................................................................................. 9 

9.2. Vision Insurance ................................................................................................. 11 

9.3. Retiree Insurance ............................................................................................... 11 

9.4. Life Insurance ..................................................................................................... 11 

9.5. Disability Insurance ............................................................................................ 11 

 CalPERS Retirement .................................................................................. 11 

 Miscellaneous ............................................................................................. 12 

11.1. Tuition Reimbursement ................................................................................. 12 

11.2. Uniform Allowance ........................................................................................ 12 

11.3. Commercial Driver’s License ........................................................................ 12 

11.4. Blood Bank Donations .................................................................................. 13 

 Deferred Compensation .............................................................................. 13 

 Grievance Procedure .................................................................................. 13 

13.1. Procedural Steps .......................................................................................... 13 

 Layoffs ........................................................................................................ 15 

14.1. Grounds for Layoff ........................................................................................ 15 

14.2. Layoff Procedure........................................................................................... 15 

14.3. Recall Procedure .......................................................................................... 15 

 Concerted Activities .................................................................................... 16 

 Personnel Files ........................................................................................... 16 

 Employee Performance Evaluations ........................................................... 17 

 Probationary Period .................................................................................... 17 

 Mediation and Appeal of Disciplinary Matters ............................................. 17 

 Effect of Prior Memorandums of Understanding ......................................... 17 

 Severability ................................................................................................. 17 

 Term ............................................................................................................ 17 

Appendix “A” Recognition.............................................................................................. 19 

Appendix “B” Salary Range ........................................................................................... 21 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 6 of 38



County of Siskiyou 1 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Preamble 

This agreement between the County of Siskiyou (County) and the Organized Employees 
of Siskiyou County (OESC) – Miscellaneous Unit, has as its purpose the promotion of 
harmonious labor relations between the County and OESC, and the establishment of 
rates of pay, hours of work, and other conditions of employment. 

Recognition 

The County recognizes OESC as the sole and exclusive representative for regular 
employees in the classifications in Appendix “A” Recognition as amended. 

Employee Rights 

 

The County affords equal employment opportunity for all qualified employees and 
applicants as to all terms of employment, including compensation, hiring, training, 
promotion, transfer, discipline and termination. The County prohibits discrimination 
against employees or applicants for employment on the basis of race, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age 
(40 and over), sexual orientation, Union membership/non-membership, political affiliation, 
or military and veteran status or any other basis protected by law. 

 

The County agrees that employees reinstated pursuant to County Personnel Policy, 
Section 6.4, within two (2) years of a resignation in good standing shall have seniority 
reinstated for purposes of County service for layoffs, leave accruals, salary step 
placement, etc. 

Association Rights 

 

Upon certification from OESC that an employee has signed an authorization for the 
deduction of dues, the County shall make payroll deductions in an amount determined by 
OESC. The County shall promptly remit deductions to OESC with a list of dues paying 
members. The County may transmit payment to OESC through Electronic Funds 
Transfers (EFT). Employee requests to cancel membership dues deductions must be 
directed to OESC. Upon notification from OESC that an employee has canceled 
membership, the County shall promptly cease dues deductions from the employee’s 
paycheck. The County may only request a copy of a dues authorization card in the event 
of a dispute. OESC shall hold the County harmless from any and all claims and will  
 
indemnify it against any unreasonable costs in implementing these provisions, and shall 
indemnify the County for any claims made by the employee for deductions made in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 7 of 38



County of Siskiyou 2 OESC - Miscellaneous 

reliance on that certification, in accordance with Government Code §1157.12(a). 

 

The County will provide the Association with the name, job title, department, home or 
personal contact telephone numbers, work and personal email, and home address of new 
employees within thirty (30) days of hire, and a complete list of all employees every 
quarter. Employees have the ability to opt out in writing of the disclosure of their home 
address, home telephone number, personal cellular telephone number and personal 
email address on file with the employer. 

 

Employees will be allowed thirty (30) minutes to attend a virtual Association orientation 
scheduled by OESC within sixty (60) days of hire. The employee must notify their 
supervisor reasonably in advance in order to secure this paid release time. Such time 
shall not be unreasonably denied. 

 

The County shall provide notice to the Association President regarding changes in job 
classifications or policy that fall within the scope of representation under the MMBA. The 
Association shall have fifteen (15) days to request a meet and confer. 

 

The Association shall be allowed by a County department in which it represents 
employees, use of available bulletin board space for communications having to do with 
official organizational business (meeting notices, etc.). Such use may not interfere with 
the needs of the department. 

All posted notices are subject to County approval (not prior), must have clearly indicated 

removal dates, and may not contain any inflammatory or derogatory statements. 

County Rights 

The rights of the County include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right to determine 
the mission of its constituent departments, commissions and boards; set standards of 
service; determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and 
promotion; direct employees; take disciplinary action; relieve employees from duty 
because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of 
governmental operation; determine the methods, means and personnel by which 
government operations are to be conducted; determine the content of job classifications; 
take all necessary action to carry out its mission in emergencies and exercise complete 
control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing its work. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 8 of 38



County of Siskiyou 3 OESC - Miscellaneous 

The County has an existing practice of using volunteers. Should the County intend to 
significantly expand the use of volunteers and as a result cause the displacement of 
employees, the County will so notice the Association and upon request, meet and confer 
with the Association on the impact of the expanded volunteer use. 

In those instances where the County elects to contract out or has elected to contract out 
such work, activities, or services as determined to be in the County’s best interest, and 
which do not displace any current, represented employee(s) the County shall not be 
obligated to provide any notice or any information to the Association. The County reserves 
the right to contract out at its sole discretion. 

Wages 

 

The salary schedule consists of six (6) steps, with five percent (5.0%) between steps one 
(1) through five (5), and two and a half percent (2.5%) between steps five (5) and six (6). 
The salary schedules are attached as Appendix “B” Salary Schedule. 

Effective September 1, 2024, the salary schedule will consist of seven (7) steps, with five 
percent (5.0%) between steps one (1) through five (5), and two and a half percent (2.5%) 
between steps five (5) through seven (7). The salary schedules are attached as Appendix 
“B” Salary Schedule. 

 

Employees automatically receive a step advancement until they reach the top step of their 
salary schedule unless they receive a performance evaluation prior to their anniversary 
date where the overall rating is equivalent to “Unacceptable” or “needs improvement.” 

 

The standard work period is a seven (7) day period beginning on Sunday at 12:01 a.m. 
and continuing to Saturday at 12:00 a.m. (midnight). 

 

Effective September 4, 2022, the following range adjustments shall be made: 

Accountant/Auditor II IG041 

Accountant/Auditor III IG054 

Accounting Specialist IG036 

Administrative Support Assistant IG007 

Agriculture & Standards Technician I IG022 

Agriculture & Standards Technician II IG036 

Air Pollution Specialist I IG039 

Air Pollution Specialist II IG047 

Animal Control Officer IG017 

Animal Shelter Coordinator IG007 

Animal Shelter Technician IG007 

Assessor-Recorder Technician IG015 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 9 of 38



County of Siskiyou 4 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Assistant Planner IG036 

Associate Planner IG045 

Behavioral Health Services Specialist I IG022 

Behavioral Health Services Specialist II IG036 

Behavioral Health Clinician I IG036 

Behavioral Health Services Crisis Worker I IG041 

Behavioral Health Services Crisis Worker II IG052 

Behavioral Health Services Peer Specialist IG012 

Building Inspector I IG031 

Building Inspector II IG041 

Building Inspector III IG062 

Building Maintenance Worker I IG007 

Building Maintenance Worker II IG017 

Building Maintenance Worker III IG025 

Bus Driver IG012 

Cadastral Mapping Technician IG012 

Certified AOD Counselor I IG034 

Certified AOD Counselor II IG039 

Chief Animal Control Officer IG031 

Child Support Specialist I IG017 

Child Support Specialist II IG025 

Child Support Specialist III IG031 

Civil Engineer Assistant IG074 

Civil Service Coordinator IG031 

Code Enforcement Officer IG045 

Communications Dispatch I IG022 

Communications Dispatch II IG037 

Community Outreach Coordinator I IG022 

Community Outreach Coordinator II IG027 

Community Service Officer IG012 

Cooperative Extension Coordinator IG017 

County Trapper IG036 

Crime Analyst IG036 

Criminal Records Technician I IG007 

Criminal Records Technician II IG012 

District Attorney Investigative Technician IG039 

Driver IG007 

Elections/Board Clerk I IG007 

Elections/Board Clerk II IG012 

Eligibility Worker I IG022 

Eligibility Worker II IG029 

Eligibility Worker III IG036 

Eligibility/Social Service Assistant I IG007 

Eligibility/Social Service Assistant II IG012 

Eligibility/Social Service Assistant III IG020 

Employment & Training Worker I IG022 

Employment & Training Worker II IG029 

Employment & Training Worker III IG036 

Engineering Technician I IG027 

Engineering Technician II IG041 

Engineering Technician III IG050 

Evidence/Property Coordinator IG039 

Executive Secretary IG027 

Fiscal Assistant IG007 

Fiscal Technician I IG017 

Fiscal Technician II IG025 

Fiscal Technician III IG031 

Fleet Coordinator/Information System  
Specialist  IG036 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 10 of 38



County of Siskiyou 5 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Forensic Technician IG034 

Geographic Information System Specialist IG054 

Health Assistant IG012 

Health Educator IG067 

Health Information Assistant IG017 

Health Navigator IG012 

Health Support Assistant IG007 

Information System Specialist I IG036 

Information System Specialist II IG045 

Information System Specialist III IG054 

Information System Specialist IV IG062 

Information Systems Technician IG027 

Institutional Cook IG007 

Legal Office Coordinator IG036 

Legal Secretary IG010 

Library Technician IG010 

Natural Resources Specialist IG045 

Nutrition Assistant IG012 

Nutrition/Lactation Coordinator IG034 

Nutrition Support Assistant IG007 

Patient Rights Advocate/Health Assistant IG025 

Permit Technician IG020 

Probation Aide IG017 

Program Coordinator – Behavioral  
Health Services IG045 

Secretary IG017 

Senior Assessor-Recorder Technician IG030 

Senior Bus Driver IG017 

Senior Cadastral Mapping Technician IG027 

Senior Communications Dispatcher IG046 

Senior Forensic Technician IG043 

Senior Legal Secretary IG017 

Social Worker Assistant IG016 

Social Worker I IG030 

Social Worker II IG038 

Social Worker III IG045 

Staff Services Analyst I IG036 

Staff Services Analyst II IG043 

Support Services Technician IG012 

Tax Collection Technician IG027 

Transportation Analyst II IG025 

Transportation Services Coordinator IG045 

Treasury/Tax Collector Specialist I IG041 

Treasury/Tax Collector Specialist II IG054 

Vegetation Control Specialist IG007 

Veterans Services Officer IG015 

Veterans Services Representative I IG007 

Victim/Witness Advocate I IG017 

Victim/Witness Advocate II IG025 

Welfare Investigator I IG039 

Welfare Investigator II IG047 

Effective September 3, 2023, all classifications shall receive a three percent (3.0%) salary 
increase. 

Effective September 1, 2024, all classifications shall receive a one percent (1.0%) salary 
increase. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 11 of 38



County of Siskiyou 6 OESC - Miscellaneous 

 

Hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per workweek will be considered overtime. 
Overtime are paid at one and one-half (1.5) times the employee’s regular rate of pay. 
Employees may elect with approval of management to receive Compensatory Time Off 
(CTO) rather than payment. Employees may accrue a maximum of one hundred (100) 
hours of CTO. Employees in the classifications of Agriculture and Standards Technician 
and County Trapper, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, accrue a maximum of two 
hundred and forty (240) hours of CTO. On the final paycheck in December all CTO hours 
in excess of one hundred (100) hours shall be paid to the employee. CTO may be taken 
by an employee upon the reasonable advance request of the employee, with the approval 
of the department head or designee based on the needs of the department. 

 

An employee who is assigned to be on standby will receive fifty-five dollars ($55.00) per 
standby shift. While on standby, employees will remain within fifteen (15) minutes of their 
residence or at a location approved by their Department Head or designee and be able 
to respond to duty within fifteen (15) minutes of being called to work. 

 

An employee who is called back and physically returns to work will receive either a 
minimum of three (3) hours at the overtime rate, or if the hours are contiguous to their 
normal work shift, the actual hours worked at the applicable rate of pay. 

Employees who are able to perform work remotely will be paid for a minimum of thirty 
(30) minutes at the overtime rate per incident or actual time worked, whichever is greater. 

Other Pays 

 

Employees who are routinely and consistently required to speak a language other than 
English, and who are able to do so fluently will receive bilingual premium in the amount 
of five percent (5.0%) of their base hourly rate of pay. 

 

Employees assigned to a scheduled shift where at least fifty percent (50.0%) of the shift 
is between 4:00 pm and 6:00 am will receive two and one-half percent (2.5%) of their 
base hourly rate of pay for the entire shift. 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 12 of 38



County of Siskiyou 7 OESC - Miscellaneous 

 

Employees assigned by their Department Head to work in a higher classification due to 
the extended absence (ten (10) consecutive work days) of the incumbent shall receive 
out of class pay in the amount of five percent (5.0%) of the employee's base rate of pay, 
or step one (1) of the new classification, whichever is greater.  

 

Employees who respond to after-hour emergencies, who spend three (3) hours or more, 
may use up to four (4) hours of recovery time. An employee who wishes to use recovery 
time must use vacation or CTO and must have approval of their supervisor in advance. 
The denial of recovery time is not subject to the grievance procedure. 

 

The County pays employees or state agency for County-required professional license 
fees (required to obtain state licensure) or other fees associated with obtaining or 
renewing state licensure. 

The County reimbursement/payment shall cover license/certifications required by the 
County or the State. Optional or extra certifications requested to be covered may only be 
covered at the discretion of the Department Head in consultation with the Deputy County 
Administrator – Personnel and Risk Management Officer. 

If employee’s state licensure or credentials require continuing education units (CEU’s) in 
order to maintain currently/active status, the County will reimburse the employee or pay 
directly for the cost of such CEU’s upon submission of proof of a passing grade.  

Flexibly Staffed Classifications 

Flexible staffing is used to designate classifications in a promotional series in which both 
the entry and journey level classes are assigned the same kinds of duties, the difference 
being the range of duties performed, the level of skill required, and the amount of 
supervision received. 

Eligibility requirements include: the employee must have successfully completed the 
probationary period for the entry-level classification, have completed the time in the 
current classification as required for advancement to the higher level positions, and meets 
the minimum experience qualifications in the classification specification for the higher 
level classification. Experience within and outside County employment may be used. 

The employee must be currently assigned the full range of duties associated with the 
higher-level classification and demonstrating the potential to succeed at this level. 

Employees will be flexed to the next highest class in the series as soon as they are 
eligible, unless Personnel is previously notified that the employee does not meet the 
above criteria. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 13 of 38



County of Siskiyou 8 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Leaves 

 

Employees will accrue sick leave at the rate of three and seven-tenths (3.7) hours per 
pay period. Part-time employees will accrue sick leave on a pro-rated basis. 

Employees may use up to forty eight (48) hours annually for the care of an immediate 
family member. “Family Member” is defined as a parent, child, spouse, registered 
domestic partner, parent-in-law, sibling, grandchild, or grandparent. 

Upon retirement employees may convert unused sick leave towards CalPERS service 
credit. 

Employees with five (5) or more years of continuous service, upon death or retirement 
may receive thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the monetary value of their 
accrued and unused sick leave in excess of ninety-six (96) hours with a maximum payout 
of $1,500.00. 

 

Employees with less than five (5) years of continuous employment will accrue 3.08 hours 
of vacation leave per pay period.  

Employees with five (5) years but less than ten (10) years of continuous employment will 
accrue 4.62 hours of vacation leave per pay period. 

Employees with ten (10) or more years of continuous employment will accrue 6.16 hours 
of vacation per pay period. 

The maximum vacation accrual is 312 hours. Employees will be allowed to accrue above 
their vacation accrual limits during the calendar year. Employees who, on the first full pay 
period in January of any year, extend the vacation maximum of 312 hours, will not accrue 
additional vacation hours until the vacation balance is reduced to the limit allowed. 

 

The County observes the following holidays: 

New Year’s Day 
Martin Luther King’s Birthday 
President’s Day 
Cesar Chavez Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 

Labor Day 
Veteran’s Day 
Thanksgiving 
Day after Thanksgiving 
Christmas Eve 
Christmas Day 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 14 of 38



County of Siskiyou 9 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Employees who are on a flexible schedule must use vacation or CTO to augment the 
normal eight (8) hour shift on a holiday, or work the additional hour(s) during the same 
week. Employees who are required by their Department Head or designee to work an 
alternate work schedule will receive holiday pay for their scheduled shift. 

 

Employees in the classifications of Communications Dispatch I and II, Senior 
Communications Dispatcher, and Institutional Cook are in positions that are scheduled to 
work without regard for the holidays listed above. Employees receive holiday-in-lieu in the 
amount of seven percent (7.0%) of their base hourly rate of pay in lieu of receiving any 
other form of holiday compensation. 

 

Employees working in the Treasurer-Tax Collector’s office who are designated by the 
Treasurer-Tax Collector to perform specific Treasury duties and who are required to work 
on County designated holidays for fraud protection purposes when the County’s bank is 
required to remain open, shall receive comp time at the time-and-one-half. These 
employee(s) are typically required to work are Cesar Chavez Day, the Friday after 
Thanksgiving, and the day after Christmas. 

Health and Welfare 

 

Medical Insurance – The County contracts for employee, dependents, retirees and 
dependents medical insurance benefit plans through the CalPERS Public Employees 
Medical and Hospital Care Program. 

Effective October 1, 2022, the County will contribute up to the following amounts towards 
employee medical insurance coverage and cafeteria plan benefits: 

Tier Medical Benefit Cafeteria Plan Benefit Total Benefit 

Employee only Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus one Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus family Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Note 1: The Medical Benefit is equal to the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) 
established annually by CalPERS. 

Note 2: Cafeteria Plan Benefit is equal to the difference between Medical Benefit and the 
Total Benefit. 

Note 3: The total benefit is equal to 100% of the Region 1 CalPERS Gold health plan plus 
100% of the dental premium. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 15 of 38



County of Siskiyou 10 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Effective plan year 2023, the County will contribute up to the following amounts towards 
employee medical insurance coverage and cafeteria plan benefits: 

Tier Medical Benefit Cafeteria Plan Benefit Total Benefit 

Employee only Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus one Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus family Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Note 1: The Medical Benefit is equal to the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) 
established annually by CalPERS. 

Note 2: Cafeteria Plan Benefit is equal to the difference between Medical Benefit and the 
Total Benefit. 

Note 3: The total benefit is equal to 95% of the Region 1 CalPERS Gold health plan plus 
95% of the dental premium. 

Effective plan year 2024, the County will contribute up to the following amounts towards 
employee medical insurance coverage and cafeteria plan benefits: 

Tier Medical Benefit Cafeteria Plan Benefit Total Benefit 

Employee only Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus one Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus family Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Note 1: The Medical Benefit is equal to the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) 
established annually by CalPERS. 

Note 2: Cafeteria Plan Benefit is equal to the difference between Medical Benefit and the 
Total Benefit. 

Note 3: The total benefit is equal to 90% of the Region 1 CalPERS Gold health plan plus 
90% of the dental premium. 

Effective plan year 2025, the County will contribute up to the following amounts towards 
employee medical insurance coverage and cafeteria plan benefits: 

Tier Medical Benefit Cafeteria Plan Benefit Total Benefit 

Employee only Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus one Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

Employee plus family Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 16 of 38



County of Siskiyou 11 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Note 1: The Medical Benefit is equal to the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) 
established annually by CalPERS. 

Note 2: Cafeteria Plan Benefit is equal to the difference between Medical Benefit and the 
Total Benefit. 

Note 3: The total benefit is equal to 85% of the Region 1 CalPERS Gold health plan plus 
85% of the dental premium. 

 

Effective November 2022 the County provides vision insurance for employees and their 
dependents. 

 

Employees hired prior to September 2, 2020, who maintain medical insurance through 
the County will receive reimbursement of insurance from the Auditors Office equal to one 
half of employee only CalPERS Region 1 Platinum premium minus the Minimum 
Employer Contribution.  

Employees hired prior to January 1, 2022, who retire from the County may maintain dental 
insurance at a cost to the retiree of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per month. 

Employees hired after December 31, 2021, who retire from the County may maintain 
dental insurance for the employee only at a cost of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per month. 

 

Effective November 2022 the County provides employees a $50,000 life insurance policy. 

 

The County will discontinue providing employees with short term and long-term disability 
insurance at midnight on June 24, 2023. 

CalPERS Retirement 

Employees hired prior to November 2, 2012, will receive the 2% at 55 miscellaneous 
CalPERS formula with the one (1) year final average compensation period. These 
employees pay the required seven percent (7.0%) member contribution, on a pre-tax 
basis. 

Employees hired after November 1, 2012, who are not classified as a new member will 
receive the 2% at 60 miscellaneous CalPERS formula with the three (3) year final average 
compensation period. These employees pay the required seven percent (7.0%) member 
contribution, on a pre-tax basis. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 17 of 38



County of Siskiyou 12 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Employees hired after December 31, 2012, who are classified as a new member will 
receive the 2% at 62 miscellaneous CalPERS formula with the three (3) year final average 
compensation period. These employees pay one half of the total normal cost as 
determined annually by CalPERS on a pre-tax basis. 

All safety retirement formulas have the following optional CalPERS retirement benefits: 

Sick Leave Service Credit 
Military Service Credit 
Non-Industrial Disability Standard 
Post-Retirement Death Benefits: $500.00 Lump Sum 
2% Retirement COLA 

Miscellaneous 

 

Employees will be reimbursed for the cost of books and tuition for pre-approved classes, 
courses, seminars, and conferences which would enhance their job skills or qualifications 
for promotion or transfer, up to a maximum of $500.00 per fiscal year. To be eligible for 
reimbursement, classes must be attended outside of the employee’s normal working 
hours. 

 

Employees in the classifications of Animal Control Technician, Animal Shelter 
Coordinator, Bus Driver, Communications Dispatcher, Civil Processor, Criminal Records 
Technician I/II, Fiscal Technician assigned to the Civil/Training Division, and Senior 
Communication Dispatcher will receive ten dollars ($10.00) per pay period for the 
purchase and maintenance of required uniforms. 

Employees in the classifications of Animal Control Officer will receive forty-four dollars 
($44.00) per pay period for the purchase and maintenance of required uniforms. 

 

County reimburses employees up to $125.00 for the costs associated with a medical 
exam in order to maintain a commercial drivers’ license or the County will pay for a 
medical exam for an employee to maintain a commercial license directly to the medical 
provider if the medical exam is conducted with a provider that has an established contract 
with the County. 

County reimburses employees the additional costs of a Class A or B Driver’s License for 
any classification required to maintain such commercial drivers’ licenses, including any 
Departmental required endorsements, such as Hazardous Materials, etc. and for other 
classifications as determined by the Department Head to need such license or 
endorsement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 18 of 38



County of Siskiyou 13 OESC - Miscellaneous 

 

Employees are allowed to donate blood during work hours, limited to a maximum of two 

(2) hours per donation and eight (8) hours per calendar year. 

Deferred Compensation 

Effective September 14, 2025, the County will match twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per pay 
period to the employee’s designated deferred compensation program. 

Grievance Procedure 

The purpose of these procedures is to afford employees simple means of obtaining 
consideration of their grievance by informal means at the department head level and 
review of the department head’s decision without the use of legalistic forms and 
procedures. 

A grievance may be filed if a management interpretation or application of a law, ordinance, 
resolution, regulation, or rule adversely affects the employee’s wage, hours, or conditions 
of employment. 

Excluded from the grievance procedure are performance evaluations and actions of the 
Board of Supervisors. This is not intended to limit the right of any employee or employee 
representative to approach the Board of Supervisors on any matter. 

 

All grievances or complaints shall be filed on a form provided by the Deputy County 
Administrator – Personnel and Risk Manager under the following procedure: 

a. Step 1: Immediate Supervisor 

Each employee believing, he or she has a grievance, before filing the same in writing, 
shall discuss his or her problem or complaint with the immediate supervisor in an 
attempt to resolve the matter as simply and informally as possible. Said grievance 
must be discussed with the immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) working days of 
the situation giving rise to the grievance or from the date the employee should 
reasonably have expected to know of the situation giving rise to the grievance. 

If the grievance has not been resolved at the immediate supervisor level within ten 
(10) working days after the discussion, the grievance may be submitted to the next 
management level. 

b. Step 2: Appointing Authority/Department Head 

If the grievance is not resolved under Step 1, it may be submitted to the appointing 
authority/department head. The grievance shall be submitted within fifteen (15) 
working days after the verbal decision of Step 1. Within five (5) working days after 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 19 of 38



County of Siskiyou 14 OESC - Miscellaneous 

submission, the employee shall meet with the appointing authority or a designated 
representative, and within ten (10) working days after said meeting a written decision 
shall be delivered to the employee. 

c. Step 3: County Grievance Panel 

If the grievance is not resolved under Step 2, it may be submitted to a County 
Mediation Panel within ten (10) working days of the employee’s receipt of the above 
decision. The panel will consist of the County Administrator or their designee and the 
Deputy County Administrator – Personnel and Risk Manager or their designee and 
two (2) representatives of the employee association. Within ten (10) working days after 
submission, the employee shall meet with the Mediation Panel and within five (5) 
working days after said meeting a written recommendation shall be delivered to the 
Deputy County Administrator – Personnel and Risk Manager. The Deputy County 
Administrator – Personnel and Risk Manager shall provide the employee and the 
appointing authority a written decision within five (5) working days after receiving the 
Panel’s recommendation. 

d. Step 4: State Mediation 

If the grievance is not resolved under Step 2/3, it shall be submitted to Personnel. 
Within five (5) working days after receipt the Deputy County Administrator – Personnel 
and Risk Manager shall contact the State Mediation and Conciliation Service and a 
mediation date will be scheduled at the soonest possible date. 

e. Step 5: Board of Supervisors 

If the grievance is not resolved under Step 4, it may be appealed to the Board of 
Supervisors. Such appeal shall be filed in writing with the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors within ten (10) working days from the time a decision was rendered in 
Step 4. The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors shall advise the Board of the grievance 
appeal within fifteen (15) working days. As soon as practicable thereafter, the Board 
of Supervisors shall hear the grievance in accordance with the rules for hearing 
established by the Board and make a written decision which shall be binding on all 
parties involved. 

If an employee does not appeal the decision rendered regarding the grievance within the 
time limits, the grievance shall be considered resolved. 

If a County representative does not render a decision to the employee within the time 
limitations, the employee may, within five (5) working days thereafter, appeal to the next 
step in the procedure. 

If the management representative does not feel they have the authority to resolve the 
grievance, the grievance may be referred to the next step in the procedure. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 20 of 38



County of Siskiyou 15 OESC - Miscellaneous 

The Deputy County Administrator – Personnel and Risk Management Officer may 
temporarily suspend the grievance processing on a unit, division, department, or county-
wide basis in an emergency situation. If OESC has a grievance suspended, OESC may 
appeal to the Board of Supervisors. 

By agreement in writing, the parties may extend any and all time limitations of this 
procedure. 

A grievance resolved at any step of the grievance procedure shall be final and binding on 
the County and the grievant. 

A grievance may be withdrawn by the grievant at any time, in writing, without prejudice. 

Upon consent of the person hearing the grievance and the grievant, a petition may be re-
submitted to a lower step in the procedure for reconsideration. 

This provision will supersede the grievance language in the Employer-Employee relations 
policy. 

Layoffs 

 

Employee(s) may be laid off when the position is no longer necessary, for reasons of 
economy, lack of work, lack of funds, if the position can be consolidated with another 
position, or for such reason(s) that the County deems sufficient for abolishing the 
position(s). 

 

When a reduction in work force becomes necessary, layoff(s) shall be accomplished by 
first determining the number of positions within each class that shall be reduced. Layoffs 
shall be determined by classification seniority, which is defined by time in class plus higher 
class within the classification series. An employee who is being laid off has the option of 
bumping to a previously held position based on classification seniority. Laid off employees 
will be placed on a recall list for a period of two (2) years. 

 

When a vacancy exists and employees are to be recalled, notice of the opening(s) shall 
be sent to the last mailing address as furnished by the laid off employee. To expedite the 
recall, more than one employee may be notified of an opening, but priority will be given 
to the employee who was laid off last. This recall notice shall be by certified mail and the 
employee shall have twenty-one (21) days to accept the offer of reemployment from the 
postmark date on the recall notice. Employees shall be required to report to work within 
forty-five (45) days of the postmark date on the recall notice. Employees shall be allowed 
to decline a recall one (1) time during the duration of the recall list. Declining a second 
recall opportunity will permanently remove an employee from the recall list. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 21 of 38



County of Siskiyou 16 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Concerted Activities 

OESC agrees that under no circumstances will it recommend, encourage, cause or permit 
its members to initiate, participate in, nor will any member of the bargaining unit take part 
in, any strike, sit-down, stay-in, sick-out, slow-down, or picketing (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as work stoppage), in any office or department of the Employer, nor to curtail 
any work or restrict any production, or interfere with any operation of the County. Picketing 
shall be prohibited on matters involving wages, insurance coverage and leaves from work 
during the term of the Memorandum of Understanding. In the event of any such work 
stoppage by any member of the bargaining unit, the County shall not be required to 
negotiate on the merits of any dispute which may have given rise to such work stoppage 
until the work stoppage has ceased. 

The County agrees not to lock out employees. 

In the event of any work stoppage during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, 
whether by OESC or any employee, OESC through its officers, shall immediately declare 
in writing and publicize that such work stoppage is illegal and unauthorized, and further 
direct its members in writing to cease the said conduct and resume work. Copies of such 
written notice shall be served upon the Employer. If in the event of any work stoppage 
OESC promptly and in good faith performs the obligations of this paragraph, providing 
the Association has not otherwise authorized, permitted or encourages such work 
stoppage, the Association shall not be liable for any damages caused by the violation of 
this provision. However, the Employer shall have the right to discipline, to include 
discharge, any employee who instigates, participates in, or gives leadership to, any work 
stoppage activity herein prohibited, and the Employer shall also have the right to seek full 
legal redress, including damages, against any employee. 

It is understood that employees so disciplined retain appeal rights under the County's 
Employer Employee Relations policies and California law. 

Personnel Files 

The County maintains one official personnel file for each employee. Employees have the 
right to inspect their personnel files, and may do so by scheduling review with the Deputy 
County Administrator – Personnel and Risk Manager during regular business hours of the 
County. No adverse comment will be entered into the employee’s personnel file without 
the employee first receiving a copy of the document and the opportunity to read and sign 
the document except the document may be entered into the file if the employee refuses 
to sign the document, which shall be so noted. 

The employee has the right to submit a rebuttal to any information being entered into their 
personnel file within thirty (30) days. 

If the employee wishes to have a representative review their personnel file, the employee 
will provide the County written authorization. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 22 of 38



County of Siskiyou 17 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Employee Performance Evaluations 

Employees shall be reevaluated at least once a year. A formal evaluation shall be 
completed for each permanent employee and usually immediately prior to their 
anniversary date (step increase date). 

Probationary employees shall be rated at least twice during the probationary period, once 
at mid-point and again prior to the completion of the employee's probationary period. 

Other performance evaluations may be required under special circumstances. 

Probationary Period 

New employees will serve a one (1) year probationary period. Employees who promote 
within their classification series will serve a six (6) month probationary period. Employees 
who promote or transfer out of their classification series will serve a one (1) year 
probationary period. 

Mediation and Appeal of Disciplinary Matters 

An employee may submit a disciplinary appeal to a voluntary, non-binding, advisory 
mediation step, utilizing the State Mediation and Conciliation Service, prior to submission 
to the Board of Supervisors. The initial appeal of disciplinary action is a 15-day appeal 
deadline. 

Effect of Prior Memorandums of Understanding 

This Memorandum of Understanding supersedes and replaces all prior Memorandums of 
Understanding, side letters, personnel resolutions, oral or written, expressed or implied, 
between the parties, and shall govern the entire relationship and shall be the sole source 
of any and all rights. 

Severability 

Should any provision of this Memorandum of Understanding be found to be inoperative, 
void, or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this 
Memorandum of Understanding shall be in full force and effect. 

Term 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective as of September 4, 2022 and 
remain in full force and effect until September 27, 2025. 

 
 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 23 of 38



County of Siskiyou 18 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Date: ___________________ Date: __________________ 
 
County of Siskiyou OESC 
 
__________________________ ___________________________ 
Angela Davis Christine Gannon 
County Administrative Officer President 
 
__________________________ ___________________________ 
Michael W. Jarvis Jenna Gabriel-Faris 
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Vice President 
 
__________________________ ___________________________ 
Melissa Cummins Matt Rokes 
Deputy County Administrator Goyette, Ruano & Thompson, Inc. 
Personnel and Risk Management Officer 
  
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44

7/29/20228/1/2022

Item No.A. Backup Material - 24 of 38



County of Siskiyou 19 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Appendix “A” Recognition 

Accountant/Auditor II 
Accountant/Auditor III 
Accounting Specialist 
Administrative Support Assistant 
Agriculture & Standards Technician I 
Agriculture & Standards Technician II 
Air Pollution Specialist I 
Air Pollution Specialist II 
Animal Control Officer 
Animal Shelter Coordinator 
Animal Shelter Technician 
Assessor Recorder Technician 
Assistant Planner 
Associate Planner 
Behavioral Health Services Specialist I 
Behavioral Health Services Specialist II 
Behavioral Health Clinician I 
Behavioral Health Services Crisis 

Worker I 
Behavioral Health Services Crisis 

Worker II 
Behavioral Health Services Peer 

Specialist 
Building Inspector I 
Building Inspector II 
Building Inspector III 
Building Maintenance Worker I 
Building Maintenance Worker II 
Building Maintenance Worker III 
Bus Driver 
Cadastral Mapping Technician 
Certified AOD Counselor I 
Certified AOD Counselor II 
Chief Animal Control Officer  
Child Support Specialist I 
Child Support Specialist II 
Child Support Specialist III 
Civil Engineer Assistant 
Civil Service Coordinator 
Code Enforcement Officer 
Communication Dispatch I 
Communication Dispatch II 
Community Outreach Coordinator I 
Community Outreach Coordinator II 
Community Service Officer 

Cooperative Extension Coordinator 
County Trapper 
Crime Analyst 
Criminal Records Technician I 
Crimination Records Technician II 
District Attorney Investigative 

Technician 
Driver 
Elections/Board Clerk I 
Elections/Board Clerk II 
Eligibility Worker I 
Eligibility Worker II 
Eligibility Worker III 
Eligibility/Social Services Assistant I 
Eligibility/Social Services Assistant II 
Eligibility/Social Services Assistant III 
Employment & Training Worker I 
Employment & Training Worker II 
Employment & Training Worker III 
Engineering Technician I 
Engineering Technician II 
Engineering Technician III 
Evidence Property Coordinator 
Executive Secretary 
Fiscal Assistant 
Fiscal Technician I 
Fiscal Technician II 
Fiscal Technician III 
Fleet Coordinator/Information System 

Specialist 
Forensic Technician 
Geographic Information System 

Specialist 
Health Assistant 
Health Educator 
Health Information Assistant 
Health Navigator 
Health Support Assistant 
Information System Specialist I 
Information System Specialist II 
Information System Specialist IIII 
Information System Specialist IV 
Information System Technician 
Institutional Cook 
Legal Office Coordinator 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 25 of 38



County of Siskiyou 20 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Legal Secretary 
Library Technician 
Natural Resources Specialist 
Nutrition Assistant 
Nutrition/Lactation Coordinator 
Nutrition Support Assistant 
Patient Rights Advocate/Health 

Assistant 
Permit Technician  
Probation Aide 
Program Coordinator – Behavioral 

Health Services 
Secretary 
Senior Assessor – Recorder Technician 
Senior Bus Driver 
Senior Cadastral Mapping Technician 
Senior Communications Dispatcher 
Senior Forensic Technician 
Senior Legal Secretary 
Social Worker Assistant 

Social Worker I 
Social Worker II 
Social Worker III 
Staff Services Analyst I 
Staff Services Analyst II 
Support Services Technician 
Tax Collection Technician 
Transportation Analyst II 
Transportation Services Coordinator 
Treasury/Tax Collector Specialist I 
Treasury/Tax Collector Specialist II 
Vegetation Control Specialist 
Veterans Services Officer 
Veterans Services Representative I 
Victim/Witness Advocate I 
Victim/Witness Advocate II 
Welfare Investigator I 
Welfare Investigator II 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 26 of 38



County of Siskiyou 21 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Appendix “B” Salary Range 

Salary Schedule Through September 3 ,2022 

Range Step1 Step2 Step3 Step4 Step5 Step6 

IG030 $15.00 $15.75 $16.54 $17.37 $18.24 $18.70 

IG031 $15.33 $16.11 $16.92 $17.77 $18.65 $19.11 

IG032 $15.72 $16.54 $17.35 $18.22 $19.11 $19.59 

IG033 $16.11 $16.92 $17.77 $18.65 $19.59 $20.08 

IG034 $16.54 $17.35 $18.22 $19.11 $20.08 $20.59 

IG035 $16.92 $17.77 $18.65 $19.59 $20.58 $21.09 

IG036 $17.35 $18.22 $19.11 $20.08 $21.08 $21.61 

IG037 $17.77 $18.65 $19.59 $20.58 $21.59 $22.14 

IG038 $18.22 $19.11 $20.08 $21.08 $22.15 $22.68 

IG039 $18.55 $19.49 $20.49 $21.49 $22.57 $23.14 

IG040 $19.02 $19.98 $20.99 $22.05 $23.15 $23.72 

IG041 $19.49 $20.49 $21.49 $22.57 $23.68 $24.28 

IG042 $19.98 $20.99 $22.05 $23.15 $24.29 $24.90 

IG043 $20.49 $21.49 $22.57 $23.68 $24.87 $25.50 

IG044 $20.99 $22.05 $23.15 $24.29 $25.50 $26.13 

IG045 $21.49 $22.57 $23.68 $24.87 $26.13 $26.79 

IG046 $21.73 $22.81 $23.93 $25.13 $26.38 $27.05 

IG047 $22.24 $23.34 $24.50 $25.74 $27.04 $27.71 

IG048 $22.81 $23.93 $25.13 $26.38 $27.70 $28.39 

IG049 $23.34 $24.50 $25.74 $27.04 $28.38 $29.09 

IG050 $23.93 $25.13 $26.38 $27.70 $29.11 $29.84 

IG053 $25.74 $27.04 $28.38 $29.80 $31.28 $32.06 

IG055 $27.04 $28.41 $29.84 $31.28 $32.84 $33.66 

IG058 $29.11 $30.57 $32.10 $33.70 $35.39 $36.28 

IG130 $16.26 $17.12 $18.00 $18.91 $19.86 $20.34 

IG136 $18.82 $19.76 $20.71 $21.79 $22.85 $23.42 

IG139 $20.24 $21.26 $22.31 $23.40 $24.57 $25.20 

IG142 $21.79 $22.85 $23.99 $25.23 $26.46 $27.12 

IG143 $17.415 $18.286 $19.200 $20.160 $21.168 $21.697 

IG144 $20.217 $21.228 $22.289 $23.403 $24.573 $25.187 

IG145 $22.110 $23.216 $24.377 $25.596 $26.876 $27.548 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 27 of 38



County of Siskiyou 22 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Salary Schedule Effective September 4, 2022 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 

IG007 $15.924 $16.720 $17.556 $18.434 $19.356 $19.840 

IG010 $16.406 $17.226 $18.087 $18.991 $19.941 $20.440 

IG012 $16.736 $17.573 $18.452 $19.375 $20.344 $20.853 

IG015 $17.243 $18.105 $19.010 $19.961 $20.959 $21.483 

IG016 $17.415 $18.286 $19.200 $20.160 $21.168 $21.697 

IG017 $17.589 $18.468 $19.391 $20.361 $21.379 $21.913 

IG020 $18.122 $19.028 $19.979 $20.978 $22.027 $22.578 

IG022 $18.486 $19.410 $20.381 $21.400 $22.470 $23.032 

IG025 $19.047 $19.999 $20.999 $22.049 $23.151 $23.730 

IG027 $19.429 $20.400 $21.420 $22.491 $23.616 $24.206 

IG029 $19.819 $20.810 $21.851 $22.944 $24.091 $24.693 

IG030 $20.017 $21.018 $22.069 $23.172 $24.331 $24.939 

IG031 $20.217 $21.228 $22.289 $23.403 $24.573 $25.187 

IG034 $20.829 $21.870 $22.964 $24.112 $25.318 $25.951 

IG036 $21.247 $22.309 $23.424 $24.595 $25.825 $26.471 

IG037 $21.459 $22.532 $23.659 $24.842 $26.084 $26.736 

IG038 $21.674 $22.758 $23.896 $25.091 $26.346 $27.005 

IG039 $21.891 $22.986 $24.135 $25.342 $26.609 $27.274 

IG041  $22.331   $23.448   $24.620   $25.851   $27.144   $27.823  

IG042 $22.554 $23.682 $24.866 $26.109 $27.414 $28.099 

IG043  $22.780   $23.919   $25.115   $26.371   $27.690   $28.382  

IG044 $23.008 $24.158 $25.366 $26.634 $27.966 $28.665 

IG045 $23.238 $24.400 $25.620 $26.901 $28.246 $28.952 

IG046 $23.470 $24.644 $25.876 $27.170 $28.529 $29.242 

IG047 $23.705 $24.890 $26.135 $27.442 $28.814 $29.534 

IG050 $24.423 $25.644 $26.926 $28.272 $29.686 $30.428 

IG052 $24.914 $26.160 $27.468 $28.841 $30.283 $31.040 

IG054 $25.415 $26.686 $28.020 $29.421 $30.892 $31.664 

IG062 $27.520 $28.896 $30.341 $31.858 $33.451 $34.287 

IG067 $28.924 $30.370 $31.889 $33.483 $35.157 $36.036 

IG074 $31.010 $32.561 $34.189 $35.898 $37.693 $38.635 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 28 of 38



County of Siskiyou 23 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Salary Schedule Effective September 3, 2023 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 

IG007 $16.401 $17.221 $18.082 $18.986 $19.935 $20.433 

IG010 $16.898 $17.743 $18.630 $19.562 $20.540 $21.054 

IG012 $17.238 $18.100 $19.005 $19.955 $20.953 $21.477 

IG015 $17.760 $18.648 $19.580 $20.559 $21.587 $22.127 

IG016 $17.938 $18.835 $19.777 $20.766 $21.804 $22.349 

IG017 $18.117 $19.023 $19.974 $20.973 $22.022 $22.573 

IG020 $18.666 $19.599 $20.579 $21.608 $22.688 $23.255 

IG022 $19.042 $19.994 $20.994 $22.044 $23.146 $23.725 

IG025 $19.618 $20.599 $21.629 $22.710 $23.846 $24.442 

IG027 $20.012 $21.013 $22.064 $23.167 $24.325 $24.933 

IG029 $20.414 $21.435 $22.507 $23.632 $24.814 $25.434 

IG030 $20.618 $21.649 $22.731 $23.868 $25.061 $25.688 

IG031 $20.824 $21.865 $22.958 $24.106 $25.311 $25.944 

IG034 $21.454 $22.527 $23.653 $24.836 $26.078 $26.730 

IG036 $21.886 $22.980 $24.129 $25.335 $26.602 $27.267 

IG037 $22.105 $23.210 $24.371 $25.590 $26.870 $27.542 

IG038 $22.326 $23.442 $24.614 $25.845 $27.137 $27.815 

IG039 $22.549 $23.676 $24.860 $26.103 $27.408 $28.093 

IG041  $23.002   $24.152   $25.360   $26.628   $27.959   $28.658  

IG042 $23.232 $24.394 $25.614 $26.895 $28.240 $28.946 

IG043  $23.464   $24.637   $25.869   $27.162   $28.520   $29.233  

IG044 $23.699 $24.884 $26.128 $27.434 $28.806 $29.526 

IG045 $23.936 $25.133 $26.390 $27.710 $29.096 $29.823 

IG046 $24.175 $25.384 $26.653 $27.986 $29.385 $30.120 

IG047 $24.417 $25.638 $26.920 $28.266 $29.679 $30.421 

IG050 $25.157 $26.415 $27.736 $29.123 $30.579 $31.343 

IG052 $25.663 $26.946 $28.293 $29.708 $31.193 $31.973 

IG054 $26.179 $27.488 $28.862 $30.305 $31.820 $32.616 

IG062 $28.348 $29.765 $31.253 $32.816 $34.457 $35.318 

IG068 $30.091 $31.596 $33.176 $34.835 $36.577 $37.491 

IG074 $31.942 $33.539 $35.216 $36.977 $38.826 $39.797 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 29 of 38



County of Siskiyou 24 OESC - Miscellaneous 

Salary Schedule Effective September 1, 2024 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 

IG007 $16.565 $17.393 $18.263 $19.176 $20.135 $20.638 $21.154 

IG010 $17.067 $17.920 $18.816 $19.757 $20.745 $21.264 $21.796 

IG012 $17.410 $18.281 $19.195 $20.155 $21.163 $21.692 $22.234 

IG015 $17.938 $18.835 $19.777 $20.766 $21.804 $22.349 $22.908 

IG016 $18.117 $19.023 $19.974 $20.973 $22.022 $22.573 $23.137 

IG017 $18.298 $19.213 $20.174 $21.183 $22.242 $22.798 $23.368 

IG020 $18.853 $19.796 $20.786 $21.825 $22.916 $23.489 $24.076 

IG022 $19.232 $20.194 $21.204 $22.264 $23.377 $23.961 $24.560 

IG025 $19.814 $20.805 $21.845 $22.937 $24.084 $24.686 $25.303 

IG027 $20.212 $21.223 $22.284 $23.398 $24.568 $25.182 $25.812 

IG029 $20.618 $21.649 $22.731 $23.868 $25.061 $25.688 $26.330 

IG030 $20.824 $21.865 $22.958 $24.106 $25.311 $25.944 $26.593 

IG031 $21.032 $22.084 $23.188 $24.347 $25.564 $26.203 $26.858 

IG034 $21.669 $22.752 $23.890 $25.085 $26.339 $26.997 $27.672 

IG036 $22.105 $23.210 $24.371 $25.590 $26.870 $27.542 $28.231 

IG037 $22.326 $23.442 $24.614 $25.845 $27.137 $27.815 $28.510 

IG038 $22.549 $23.676 $24.860 $26.103 $27.408 $28.093 $28.795 

IG039 $22.774 $23.913 $25.109 $26.364 $27.682 $28.374 $29.083 

IG041  $23.232   $24.394   $25.614   $26.895   $28.240   $28.946   $29.670  

IG042 $23.464 $24.637 $25.869 $27.162 $28.520 $29.233 $29.964 

IG043  $23.699   $24.884   $26.128   $27.434   $28.806   $29.526   $30.264  

IG044 $23.936 $25.133 $26.390 $27.710 $29.096 $29.823 $30.569 

IG045 $24.175 $25.384 $26.653 $27.986 $29.385 $30.120 $30.873 

IG046 $24.417 $25.638 $26.920 $28.266 $29.679 $30.421 $31.182 

IG047 $24.661 $25.894 $27.189 $28.548 $29.975 $30.724 $31.492 

IG050 $25.409 $26.679 $28.013 $29.414 $30.885 $31.657 $32.448 

IG052 $25.920 $27.216 $28.577 $30.006 $31.506 $32.294 $33.101 

IG054 $26.441 $27.763 $29.151 $30.609 $32.139 $32.942 $33.766 

IG062 $28.631 $30.063 $31.566 $33.144 $34.801 $35.671 $36.563 

IG068 $30.392 $31.912 $33.508 $35.183 $36.942 $37.866 $38.813 

IG074 $32.261 $33.874 $35.568 $37.346 $39.213 $40.193 $41.198 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F9281A2C-C5BA-4B80-8435-4216044FFD44
Item No.A. Backup Material - 30 of 38



RESOLUTION NO. _____
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

OF THE COUNTY OF SISKIYOU
AMENDING THE SISKIYOU COUNTY SALARY SCHEDULE

1 OF 1

    BE IT RESOLVED that effective September 4, 2022, the amendments outlined on Exhibit A are made to the
Siskiyou County Salary Schedule for positions in County service.

    BE IT RESOLVED that effective September 3, 2023, the amendments outlined on Exhibit B are made to the
Siskiyou County Salary Schedule for positions in County service:

    BE IT RESOLVED that effective September 1, 2024, the amendments outlined on Exhibit C are made to the
Siskiyou County Salary Schedule for positions in County service:

     DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors at a regular meeting of said Board,
held on the 9th day of August 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Brandon A. Criss, Chair

Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

LAURA BYNUM, 

COUNTY CLERK

By:______________________________________
      Deputy

Item No.A. Backup Material - 31 of 38



Exhibit A
OESC Miscellaneous Unit 

Range Changes Effective 09/04/2022

Classification
From 

Range: Step 1
To 

Range:  Step 1 
Accountant/Auditor II IG044 20.990$      IG041 22.331$      
Accountant/Auditor III IG050 23.930$      IG054 25.415$      
Accounting Specialist IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Administrative Support Assistant IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Agriculture & Standards Technician I IG036 17.350$      IG022 18.486$      
Agriculture & Standards Technician II IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Air Pollution Specialist I IG043 20.490$      IG039 21.891$      
Air Pollution Specialist II IG047 22.240$      IG047 23.705$      
Animal Control Officer IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Animal Shelter Coordinator IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Animal Shelter Technician IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Assessor-Recorder Technician IG033 16.110$      IG015 17.243$      
Assistant Planner IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Associate Planner IG046 21.730$      IG045 23.238$      
Behavioral Health Services Specialist I IG036 17.350$      IG022 18.486$      
Behavioral Health Services Specialist II IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Behavioral Health Clinician I IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Behavioral Health Services Crisis Worker I IG044 20.990$      IG041 22.331$      
Behavioral Health Services Crisis Worker II IG049 23.340$      IG052 24.914$      
Behavioral Health Services Peer Specialist IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Building Inspector I IG040 19.020$      IG031 20.217$      
Building Inspector II IG044 20.990$      IG041 22.331$      
Building Inspector III IG053 25.740$      IG062 27.520$      
Building Maintenance Worker I IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Building Maintenance Worker II IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Building Maintenance Worker III IG037 17.770$      IG025 19.047$      
Bus Driver IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Cadastral Mapping Technician IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Certified AOD Counselor I IG041 19.490$      IG034 20.829$      
Certified AOD Counselor II IG043 20.490$      IG039 21.891$      
Chief Animal Control Officer IG040 19.020$      IG031 20.217$      
Child Support Specialist I IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Child Support Specialist II IG037 17.770$      IG025 19.047$      
Child Support Specialist III IG040 19.020$      IG031 20.217$      
Civil Engineer Assistant IG058 29.110$      IG074 31.010$      
Civil Service Coordinator IG040 19.020$      IG031 20.217$      
Code Enforcement Officer IG046 21.730$      IG045 23.238$      
Communications Dispatch I IG143 17.415$      IG022 18.486$      
Communications Dispatch II IG144 20.217$      IG037 21.459$      
Community Outreach Coordinator I IG036 17.350$      IG022 18.486$      
Community Outreach Coordinator II IG038 18.220$      IG027 19.429$      
Community Service Officer IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Cooperative Extension Coordinator IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
County Trapper IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Crime Analyst IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Criminal Records Technician I IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Criminal Records Technician II IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
District Attorney Investigative Technician IG043 20.490$      IG039 21.891$      

1 of 3

Item No.A. Backup Material - 32 of 38



Exhibit A
OESC Miscellaneous Unit 

Range Changes Effective 09/04/2022

Classification
From 

Range: Step 1
To 

Range:  Step 1 
Driver IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Elections/Board Clerk I IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Elections/Board Clerk II IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Eligibility Worker I IG036 17.350$      IG022 18.486$      
Eligibility Worker II IG039 18.550$      IG029 19.819$      
Eligibility Worker III IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Eligibility/Social Service Assistant I IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Eligibility/Social Service Assistant II IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Eligibility/Social Service Assistant III IG035 16.920$      IG020 18.122$      
Employment & Training Worker I IG036 17.350$      IG022 18.486$      
Employment & Training Worker II IG039 18.550$      IG029 19.819$      
Employment & Training Worker III IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Engineering Technician I IG038 18.220$      IG027 19.429$      
Engineering Technician II IG044 20.990$      IG041 22.331$      
Engineering Technician III IG048 22.810$      IG050 24.423$      
Evidence/Property Coordinator IG043 20.490$      IG039 21.891$      
Executive Secretary IG038 18.220$      IG027 19.429$      
Fiscal Assistant IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Fiscal Technician I IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Fiscal Technician II IG037 17.770$      IG025 19.047$      
Fiscal Technician III IG040 19.020$      IG031 20.217$      
Fleet Coordinator/Information System Specialist IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Forensic Technician IG041 19.490$      IG034 20.829$      
Geographic Information Systems Specialist IG050 23.930$      IG054 25.415$      
Health Assistant IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Health Educator IG055 27.040$      IG067 28.924$      
Health Information Assistant IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Health Navigator IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Health Support Assistant IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Information System Specialist I IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Information System Specialist II IG046 21.730$      IG045 23.238$      
Information System Specialist III IG050 23.930$      IG054 25.415$      
Information System Specialist IV IG053 25.740$      IG062 27.520$      
Information Systems Technician IG038 18.220$      IG027 19.429$      
Institutional Cook IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Legal Office Coordinator IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Legal Secretary IG031 15.330$      IG010 16.406$      
Library Technician IG031 15.330$      IG010 16.406$      
Natural Resources Specialist IG046 21.730$      IG045 23.238$      
Nutrition Assistant IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Nutrition/Lactation Coordinator IG041 19.490$      IG034 20.829$      
Nutrition Support Assistant IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Patient Rights Advocate/Health Assistant IG037 17.770$      IG025 19.047$      
Permit Technician IG035 16.920$      IG020 18.122$      
Probation Aide IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Program Coordinator – Behavioral Health Services IG046 21.730$      IG045 23.238$      
Secretary IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Senior Assessor-Recorder Technician IG136 18.820$      IG030 20.017$      
Senior Bus Driver IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      

2 of 3

Item No.A. Backup Material - 33 of 38



Exhibit A
OESC Miscellaneous Unit 

Range Changes Effective 09/04/2022

Classification
From 

Range: Step 1
To 

Range:  Step 1 
Senior Cadastral Mapping Technician IG038 18.220$      IG027 19.429$      
Senior Communications Dispatcher IG145 22.110$      IG046 23.470$      
Senior Forensic Technician IG045 21.490$      IG043 22.780$      
Senior Legal Secretary IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Social Worker Assistant IG130 16.260$      IG016 17.415$      
Social Worker I IG136 18.820$      IG030 20.017$      
Social Worker II IG139 20.240$      IG038 21.674$      
Social Worker III IG142 21.790$      IG045 23.238$      
Staff Services Analyst I IG042 19.980$      IG036 21.247$      
Staff Services Analyst II IG045 21.490$      IG043 22.780$      
Support Services Technician IG032 15.720$      IG012 16.736$      
Tax Collection Technician IG038 18.220$      IG027 19.429$      
Transportation Analyst II IG037 17.770$      IG025 19.047$      
Transportation Services Coordinator IG046 21.730$      IG045 23.238$      
Treasury/Tax Collector Specialist I IG044 20.990$      IG041 22.331$      
Treasury/Tax Collector Specialist II IG050 23.930$      IG054 25.415$      
Vegetation Control Specialist IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Veterans Services Officer IG033 16.110$      IG015 17.243$      
Veterans Services Representative I IG030 15.000$      IG007 15.924$      
Victim/Witness Advocate I IG034 16.540$      IG017 17.589$      
Victim/Witness Advocate II IG037 17.770$      IG025 19.047$      
Welfare Investigator I IG043 20.490$      IG039 21.891$      
Welfare Investigator II IG047 22.240$      IG047 23.705$      

3 of 3

Item No.A. Backup Material - 34 of 38



Exhibit B
OESC Miscellaneous Unit 

Salary Steps Effective 09/03/2023

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6
IG007 $16.401 17.221$     18.082$     18.986$     19.935$     20.433$     
IG010 $16.898 17.743$     18.630$     19.562$     20.540$     21.054$     
IG012 $17.238 18.100$     19.005$     19.955$     20.953$     21.477$     
IG015 $17.760 18.648$     19.580$     20.559$     21.587$     22.127$     
IG016 $17.938 18.835$     19.777$     20.766$     21.804$     22.349$     
IG017 $18.117 19.023$     19.974$     20.973$     22.022$     22.573$     
IG020 $18.666 19.599$     20.579$     21.608$     22.688$     23.255$     
IG022 $19.042 19.994$     20.994$     22.044$     23.146$     23.725$     
IG025 $19.618 20.599$     21.629$     22.710$     23.846$     24.442$     
IG027 $20.012 21.013$     22.064$     23.167$     24.325$     24.933$     
IG029 $20.414 21.435$     22.507$     23.632$     24.814$     25.434$     
IG030 $20.618 21.649$     22.731$     23.868$     25.061$     25.688$     
IG031 $20.824 21.865$     22.958$     24.106$     25.311$     25.944$     
IG034 $21.454 22.527$     23.653$     24.836$     26.078$     26.730$     
IG036 $21.886 22.980$     24.129$     25.335$     26.602$     27.267$     
IG037 $22.105 23.210$     24.371$     25.590$     26.870$     27.542$     
IG038 $22.326 23.442$     24.614$     25.845$     27.137$     27.815$     
IG039 $22.549 23.676$     24.860$     26.103$     27.408$     28.093$     
IG041  $23.002 24.152$     25.360$     26.628$     27.959$     28.658$     
IG042 $23.232 24.394$     25.614$     26.895$     28.240$     28.946$     
IG043  $23.464 24.637$     25.869$     27.162$     28.520$     29.233$     
IG044 $23.699 24.884$     26.128$     27.434$     28.806$     29.526$     
IG045 $23.936 25.133$     26.390$     27.710$     29.096$     29.823$     
IG046 $24.175 25.384$     26.653$     27.986$     29.385$     30.120$     
IG047 $24.417 25.638$     26.920$     28.266$     29.679$     30.421$     
IG050 $25.157 26.415$     27.736$     29.123$     30.579$     31.343$     
IG052 $25.663 26.946$     28.293$     29.708$     31.193$     31.973$     
IG054 $26.179 27.488$     28.862$     30.305$     31.820$     32.616$     
IG062 $28.348 29.765$     31.253$     32.816$     34.457$     35.318$     
IG068 $30.091 31.596$     33.176$     34.835$     36.577$     37.491$     
IG074 $31.942 33.539$     35.216$     36.977$     38.826$     39.797$     

1 of 1

Item No.A. Backup Material - 35 of 38



Exhibit C
OESC Miscellaneous Unit 

Salary Steps Effective 09/01/2024

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7
IG007 16.565$       17.393$       18.263$       19.176$       20.135$       20.638$       21.154$       
IG010 17.067$       17.920$       18.816$       19.757$       20.745$       21.264$       21.796$       
IG012 17.410$       18.281$       19.195$       20.155$       21.163$       21.692$       22.234$       
IG015 17.938$       18.835$       19.777$       20.766$       21.804$       22.349$       22.908$       
IG016 18.117$       19.023$       19.974$       20.973$       22.022$       22.573$       23.137$       
IG017 18.298$       19.213$       20.174$       21.183$       22.242$       22.798$       23.368$       
IG020 18.853$       19.796$       20.786$       21.825$       22.916$       23.489$       24.076$       
IG022 19.232$       20.194$       21.204$       22.264$       23.377$       23.961$       24.560$       
IG025 19.814$       20.805$       21.845$       22.937$       24.084$       24.686$       25.303$       
IG027 20.212$       21.223$       22.284$       23.398$       24.568$       25.182$       25.812$       
IG029 20.618$       21.649$       22.731$       23.868$       25.061$       25.688$       26.330$       
IG030 20.824$       21.865$       22.958$       24.106$       25.311$       25.944$       26.593$       
IG031 21.032$       22.084$       23.188$       24.347$       25.564$       26.203$       26.858$       
IG034 21.669$       22.752$       23.890$       25.085$       26.339$       26.997$       27.672$       
IG036 22.105$       23.210$       24.371$       25.590$       26.870$       27.542$       28.231$       
IG037 22.326$       23.442$       24.614$       25.845$       27.137$       27.815$       28.510$       
IG038 22.549$       23.676$       24.860$       26.103$       27.408$       28.093$       28.795$       
IG039 22.774$       23.913$       25.109$       26.364$       27.682$       28.374$       29.083$       
IG041 23.232$       24.394$       25.614$       26.895$       28.240$       28.946$       29.670$       
IG042 23.464$       24.637$       25.869$       27.162$       28.520$       29.233$       29.964$       
IG043 23.699$       24.884$       26.128$       27.434$       28.806$       29.526$       30.264$       
IG044 23.936$       25.133$       26.390$       27.710$       29.096$       29.823$       30.569$       
IG045 24.175$       25.384$       26.653$       27.986$       29.385$       30.120$       30.873$       
IG046 24.417$       25.638$       26.920$       28.266$       29.679$       30.421$       31.182$       
IG047 24.661$       25.894$       27.189$       28.548$       29.975$       30.724$       31.492$       
IG050 25.409$       26.679$       28.013$       29.414$       30.885$       31.657$       32.448$       
IG052 25.920$       27.216$       28.577$       30.006$       31.506$       32.294$       33.101$       
IG054 26.441$       27.763$       29.151$       30.609$       32.139$       32.942$       33.766$       
IG062 28.631$       30.063$       31.566$       33.144$       34.801$       35.671$       36.563$       
IG068 30.392$       31.912$       33.508$       35.183$       36.942$       37.866$       38.813$       
IG074 32.261$       33.874$       35.568$       37.346$       39.213$       40.193$       41.198$       

1 of 1

Item No.A. Backup Material - 36 of 38



Board Agenda Date: 8/9/2022

Fund/Year

Current Annual 
Cost to County 

By Budget Total Cost FY 22/23
Total Cost

FY 23/2024
Total Cost - FY 

24/2025
1001

102010 692,566$            723,045$                 737,305$                 742,174$                     
102020 439,541$            457,313$                 465,630$                 468,468$                     
102030 451,244$            470,041$                 478,835$                 481,832$                     
105010 157,077$            163,179$                 166,036$                 167,009$                     
107010 227,638$            237,271$                 241,775$                 243,313$                     
201080 70,522$              73,759$                   75,273$                   75,789$                        
201170 200,461$            208,860$                 212,788$                 214,129$                     
203050 325,525$            338,764$                 344,962$                 347,078$                     
206010 229,772$            239,941$                 244,702$                 246,322$                     
206020 352,368$            367,352$                 374,363$                 376,760$                     
207010 141,346$            147,085$                 149,765$                 150,680$                     
207020 87,950$              92,110$                   94,055$                   94,721$                        
207050 16,205$              16,877$                   17,189$                   17,296$                        
207080 752,003$            784,773$                 800,104$                 805,332$                     
207090 304,123$            317,625$                 323,944$                 326,103$                     
207100 176,271$            184,311$                 188,075$                 189,355$                     
505010 136,973$            142,966$                 145,769$                 146,726$                     
602010 214,504$            223,608$                 227,870$                 229,328$                     
603020 87,877$              91,279$                   92,871$                   93,415$                        

1002
202010 1,256,118$         1,307,454$              1,331,479$              1,339,679$                  
203010 322,940$            337,419$                 344,196$                 346,506$                     

1006
201160 380,180$            395,828$                 403,154$                 405,650$                     

1008
201110 1,235,586$         1,286,133$              1,309,783$              1,317,843$                  

1021
201160 157,138$            163,421$                 166,361$                 167,363$                     

1025
201160 11,474$              11,909$                   12,109$                   12,179$                        

2101
203101 499,612$            521,398$                 531,591$                 535,067$                     

2103
301010 727,789$            759,108$                 773,761$                 778,758$                     

2113
203102 13,373$              13,937$                   14,200$                   14,292$                        

2114
401014 73,039$              75,944$                   77,303$                   77,769$                        

Summary of Personnel Changes

OESC Miscellanuos Unit

1 of 2

Item No.A. Backup Material - 37 of 38



Board Agenda Date: 8/9/2022

Fund/Year

Current Annual 
Cost to County 

By Budget Total Cost FY 22/23
Total Cost

FY 23/2024
Total Cost - FY 

24/2025

Summary of Personnel Changes

OESC Miscellanuos Unit

2120
501010 8,213,209$         8,557,620$              8,718,807$              8,773,767$                  

2121
401015 2,052,677$         2,140,645$              2,181,811$              2,195,862$                  
401090 310,415$            322,585$                 328,282$                 330,227$                     

2122
401030 3,096,265$         3,228,285$              3,290,070$              3,311,147$                  

2134
401100 721,176$            750,854$                 764,743$                 769,476$                     

2160
401015 158,162$            164,788$                 167,891$                 168,947$                     

2162
401015 116,747$            121,677$                 123,985$                 124,771$                     

2502
401050 198,695$            207,000$                 210,889$                 212,216$                     

2527
205010 64,819$              67,499$                   68,754$                   69,183$                        

2528
205010 27,008$              28,128$                   28,649$                   28,827$                        

5350
404010 172,275$            179,648$                 183,099$                 184,274$                     

5660
303010 945,162$            983,755$                 1,001,810$              1,007,975$                  

Total Costs: 25,817,825$       26,905,194$           27,414,038$           27,587,608$                

1,087,369$              508,844$                 173,570$                     

2 of 2

Item No.A. Backup Material - 38 of 38



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 235 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: 5 Mins Meeting Date: 8/9/22
OR
Consent
Contact Person/Department: Elizabeth Nielsen, Administration Phone: 530-841-2100

Address: 1312 Fairlane Road, Yreka, CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Elizabeth Nielsen, Deputy CAO / Natalie E. Reed, Assistant County Counsel

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Discussion, direction and possible action on the Siskiyou County Roadway Implementation Agreement between 
the County and the Klamath River Renewal Corporation (KRRC).  In 2021, the County entered into an MOU with 
KRRC regarding measures KRRC will take to mitigate for impacts to County roads, bridges and traffic that may 
occur from the Klamath dam removal project if it is approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC) over the County's opposition. (The MOU expressly acknowledges that the County continues to oppose 
dam removal.) The MOU indicated that the disbursement of funds to the County for the roadwork outlined in the 
MOU would be subject to a future implementation agreement that would provide the finer details and terms of how 
distribution of the funds would occur.  The Siskiyou County Roadway Implementation Agreement, attached hereto 
for the Board's consideration, would serve as that agreement.

Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount:      

Fund: 2103 Description:      Org.:      Description:      

Account: 551610 Description:      

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:      

     

Additional Information:      

     

Recommended Motion:

If the Board so desires, approve the Siskiyou County Roadway Implementation Agreement and 
authorize the CAO to execute a final version of the Agreement in substantially the same form, 
subject to any final minor edits. 

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 
submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 
prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.B. Backup - 1 of 28



Staff Report Page 1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE: August 9, 2022 
 
TO: Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:   Elizabeth Nielsen, Deputy County Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: Siskiyou County Roadway Work Implementation Agreement  

 
 

I. OVERVIEW 
 

On May 19, 2021, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) (Attachment 1) was entered into between the County 
of Siskiyou and the Klamath River Renewal Corporation (KRRC) related to County roads, bridges, and associated 
rights of way and traffic. This MOU is limited expressly to the impacts of KRRC’s “Application for Surrender of 
License for Major Project and Removal of Project Works” (Project), which if approved by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC), would result in the removal of the four Lower Klamath River Dams. As the MOU 
makes clear, the County opposes the removal of the four Lower Klamath River Dams, however, the County 
agrees that the MOU’s Recommended Terms and Conditions are needed to address the impacts on County 
roads and bridges and associated rights of way, including impacts related to wear-and-tear, and traffic. The MOU 
also details, in Sections 1, 2 and 5, noticing requirements to the County (including Oversize/Heavy Load 
schedules), and traffic controls that shall be abided by to avoid to the maximum extent possible interruptions to 
local traffic, and to allow for proper ingress/egress during emergency situations.   
 
As part of the MOU, KRRC agreed to reimburse the County Eight Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars ($810,000) to 
perform roadway work associated with KRRC’s Project. These funds are to be held in a trust account, and the 
County may not draw on them until July 1, 2022, or KRRC’s acceptance of FERC’s Final Order regarding KRRC’s 
Project. As described in the MOU, the terms and conditions for deposits, withdrawals, reporting and accounting 
associated with these funds would be specified in an Implementation Agreement between the County and KRRC.  
 
Therefore, Attachment 2 of this staff report is the draft Siskiyou County Roadway Work Implementation 
Agreement. Below is a brief outline of what is included in the Implementation Agreement: 

- “Funds held in the Trust Account shall be held subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and 
for the sole purpose of reimbursing the County for actual costs incurred by the County in the performance 
of the Siskiyou County Roadway Work.  Disbursements from the Trust Account for a Reimbursement shall 
be made pursuant to a Disbursement Authorization, executed by the Authorized Representatives of both 
Parties pursuant to Section 3 of this Agreement. “(Implementation Agreement, Page 1) 

o Upon completion of the Siskiyou County Roadway Work, the County may submit a request for 
reimbursement, and within ten (10) business days of receipt, KRRC shall authorize disbursement 
of funds from the Trust Account, and after certain requirements are met, KRRC shall direct the 
Bank to disperse the requested funds.   
 

- “The term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall end on the date that is the 
earliest of the following dates to occur: (a) one year following the Renewal Corporation’s Contractor’s 
completion of the work involving heavy loading on Copco Road, Ager Road, and Ager-Beswick Road 
related to dam removal, (b) the termination of the MOU in accordance with Section 6 of the MOU, or (c) by 
mutual agreement of the Parties.” (Implementation Agreement, Page 2).    

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the above information, and approval of the MOU by the County of Siskiyou and KRRC, staff 
recommends that the Board approve the Implementation Plan.   

Item No.B. Backup - 2 of 28



Attachment 1 

Item No.B. Backup - 3 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 4 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 5 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 6 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 7 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 8 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 9 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 10 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 11 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 12 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 13 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 14 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 15 of 28



Item No.B. Backup - 16 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 1 

156691914.1 

SISKIYOU COUNTY ROADWAY WORK IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT 

This Siskiyou County Roadway Work Implementation Agreement (Agreement) is 

made by and between the County of Siskiyou, California (County) and the Klamath River 

Renewal Corporation (Renewal Corporation) as of this __ day of July, 2022 (Effective 

Date).  The County and the Renewal Corporation are each individually referred to herein as a 

Party and collectively referred to as the Parties.  This Agreement is made in reference to the 

following facts. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2021, the County and the Renewal Corporation entered into 

a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding, among other things, the implementation 

of the Siskiyou County Roadway Work (as that term is defined in the MOU) contingent 

upon the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC) issuance of a Final Order (as 

that term is defined in the MOU) that substantially conforms with the Definite Plan (as that 

term is defined in the MOU).  A copy of the MOU is attached to this Agreement at Exhibit A, 

and all relevant terms and conditions of the MOU are incorporated herein by this reference. 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 3 of Exhibit A of the MOU, on [date] the Renewal 

Corporation deposited Eight Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars ($810,000.00) into a trust 

account (Trust Account) at the [_______] branch of City National Bank (Bank) to fund the 

Siskiyou County Roadway Work, subject to such further terms and conditions for deposits, 

withdrawals, reporting and accounting, and termination of the account to be established in an 

implementation agreement to be entered into by the Parties.   

WHEREAS, the Parties now enter into this Agreement to implement their respective 

obligations under Section 3 of Exhibit A of the MOU. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Trust Account.  Within three (3) business days of the Effective Date, the 

Renewal Corporation shall provide the County with the then current balance of the Trust 

Account and such other account information as is reasonably necessary for the 

implementation of this Agreement.  The Renewal Corporation shall bear any cost assessed by 

the Bank to establish and maintain the Trust Account.  Unless and until distributed to the 

County in accordance with this Agreement, all funds held (and any interest accruing thereon) 

shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Renewal Corporation.   

2. Disbursements from Trust Account.  Funds held in the Trust Account shall 

be held subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the sole purpose of 

reimbursing the County for actual costs incurred by the County in the performance of the 

Siskiyou County Roadway Work (Reimbursement).  Disbursements from the Trust Account 

for a Reimbursement shall be made pursuant to a Disbursement Authorization, executed by 

the Authorized Representatives of both Parties pursuant to Section 3 of this Agreement.  The 

Renewal Corporation shall have no obligation to make or approve any disbursement from the 

Trust Account prior to FERC’s issuance of a Final Order that substantially conforms with the 

Definite Plan.  Except as otherwise provided by Section 4 of this Agreement, no other 

Attachment 2

Item No.B. Backup - 17 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 2 

156691914.1 

disbursement shall be made from the Trust Account to either Party for any purpose 

whatsoever.   

3. Disbursement Authorizations.   

 3.1 Upon completion of the Siskiyou County Roadway Work (or a portion 

thereof), the County may submit a request for Reimbursement to the Renewal Corporation.  

Any such request shall include: 

3.1.1 a notice of completed work for which the County is entitled to 

Reimbursement pursuant to the MOU; and 

3.1.2  copies of receipts, invoices, progress reports and other 

information reasonably required to document the costs actually incurred by the County 

in the performance of such work. 

 3.2 Within ten (10) business days of the Renewal Corporation’s receipt of a 

request for Reimbursement, the Renewal Corporation shall provide the County’s Authorized 

Representative an authorization for disbursement from the Trust Account (Disbursement 

Authorization), signed by the Renewal Corporation’s Authorized Representative.  Upon 

receipt of a Disbursement Authorization, the County’s Authorized Representative may 

execute the same indicating its approval thereof and return an executed copy thereof to the 

Renewal Corporation.  Within three (3) business days of date that the Renewal Corporation 

receives a Disbursement Authorization approved and executed by the County, the Renewal 

Corporation shall direct the Bank to disperse funds from the Trust Account to the County in 

an amount equal to the Disbursement Authorization, in accordance with the wiring 

instructions set forth in Schedule 1 to this Agreement.   

 3.3 Unless otherwise agreed by the Renewal Corporation, the County shall 

not submit requests for Reimbursement to the Renewal Corporation more frequently than at 

thirty (30) day intervals.  If the Renewal Corporation receives a request for Reimbursement 

that exceeds the remaining balance of the Trust Account, the Renewal Corporation may issue 

a Disbursement Authorization for such request in an amount equal to the remaining balance of 

the Trust Account, but in no event shall the Renewal Corporation be liable for Siskiyou 

County Roadway Work in an amount (in the aggregate) in excess of $810,000.00.  

4. Term.  The term of this Agreement (Term) shall commence as of the 

Effective Date and shall end on the date that is the earliest of the following dates to occur:  (a) 

one year following the Renewal Corporation’s Contractor’s completion of the work involving 

heavy loading on Copco Road, Ager Road, and Ager-Beswick Road related to dam removal, 

(b) the termination of the MOU in accordance with Section 6 of the MOU, or (c) by mutual 

agreement of the Parties.  Upon expiration or termination of the Term, the Renewal 

Corporation may close the Trust Account and any funds remaining in the Trust Account as of 

the date of such expiration or termination shall be disbursed to and retained by the Renewal 

Corporation as its sole and exclusive property.   

5. Authorized Representatives.  The Parties designate the following individuals 

to act as their Authorized Representatives for purposes of implementation of this Agreement: 

5.5.1  The County: 

Thomas Deany 

Item No.B. Backup - 18 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 3 

156691914.1 

Director, Siskiyou Department of Public Works 

1312 Fairlane Road 

P.O. Box 1127 

Yreka, CA 96097 

Phone: 530-842-8275 

Email: tdeany@co.siskiyou.ca.us 

  

 

5.5.2  The Renewal Corporation: 

Laura Hazlett 

Chief Operations Officer and Chief Financial Officer 

Klamath River Renewal Corporation 

2001 Addison Street, Suite 317 

Berkeley, CA 94704 

Phone:  510-679-6928 

Email:  lhazlett@klamathrenewal.org 

 

Either Party may designate a successor Authorized Representative by giving the other Party 

notice of such change in accordance with Section 6. 

6. Notices.  All notices, consents, requests, demands or other communications 

required or permitted by this Agreement must be in writing and given by personal delivery, 

email or certified mail and shall be sent to the respective Party’s Authorized Representative.  

Any such communication by a Party shall be deemed to have been received by the other Party 

(a) upon the delivery date received by the intended recipient if delivered by hand; (b) five (5) 

business days after it is sent by certified mail, postage prepaid; or (c) if sent by email 

transmission, when dispatched and acknowledged by the recipient as having been received in 

full and in legible form.   

7. Further Assurances. During the Term, each Party, upon the request of the 

other Party, shall, without further consideration, execute, deliver and acknowledge all such 

further documents or instruments as may be reasonably required, and do and perform all such 

other acts and things as either Party may reasonably request, to effectively carry out the intent 

of this Agreement. 

8. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall create no rights, 

responsibilities and/or obligations of any kind whatsoever in, to or from any parties other than 

the County and the Renewal Corporation. 

9. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement and the MOU collectively comprise the entire 

agreement of the Parties with respect to deposits, withdrawals, reporting, accounting and 

termination of the Trust Account.  This Agreement is intended to be and shall be construed as 

complementary and consistent with the MOU.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 

between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of the 

MOU, the terms and conditions of the MOU shall govern and control.  This Agreement may 

not be amended or modified except by a written agreement signed by the Parties.  If any terms 

or conditions of this Agreement are deemed to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 

this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 

Item No.B. Backup - 19 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 4 

156691914.1 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original agreement, and all of which 

shall constitute one agreement. This Agreement shall be governed, as applicable, by the laws 

of the United State of America and the laws of the State of California. 

This Agreement is made by and between the undersigned Parties as of the Effective Date. 

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU  

 

 

By:   

      Brandon Criss 

      Chair, Board of Supervisors 

      County of Siskiyou 

      State of California 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
By: ___________________             _____ 
Edward Kiernan, County Counsel Date 

 
Approved as to Accounting Form: 
 
By: ______________________       _____ 
Diane Olson, Auditor-Controller  Date 

 

KLAMATH RIVER RENEWAL 

CORPORATION 

 

 

By:   

 Laura Hazlett 

Its: Chief Operations Officer and Chief 

 Financial Officer 

 

Item No.B. Backup - 20 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  

156691914.1 

Schedule 1 

[Wiring instructions to be provided by the County]  

Item No.B. Backup - 21 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  

156691914.1 

Exhibit A 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN SISKIYOU COUNTY, 

CALIFORNIA AND THE KLAMATH RIVER RENEWAL CORPORATION 

Siskiyou MOU 

(executed).pdf
 

Item No.B. Backup - 22 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 1 

156691914.1 

SISKIYOU COUNTY ROADWAY WORK IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT 

This Siskiyou County Roadway Work Implementation Agreement (Agreement) is 

made by and between the County of Siskiyou, California (County) and the Klamath River 

Renewal Corporation (Renewal Corporation) as of this __ day of July, 2022 (Effective 

Date).  The County and the Renewal Corporation are each individually referred to herein as a 

Party and collectively referred to as the Parties.  This Agreement is made in reference to the 

following facts. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2021, the County and the Renewal Corporation entered into 

a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding, among other things, the implementation 

of the Siskiyou County Roadway Work (as that term is defined in the MOU) contingent 

upon the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC) issuance of a Final Order (as 

that term is defined in the MOU) that substantially conforms with the Definite Plan (as that 

term is defined in the MOU).  A copy of the MOU is attached to this Agreement at Exhibit A, 

and all relevant terms and conditions of the MOU are incorporated herein by this reference. 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 3 of Exhibit A of the MOU, on [date] the Renewal 

Corporation deposited Eight Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars ($810,000.00) into a trust 

account (Trust Account) at the [_______] branch of City National Bank (Bank) to fund the 

Siskiyou County Roadway Work, subject to such further terms and conditions for deposits, 

withdrawals, reporting and accounting, and termination of the account to be established in an 

implementation agreement to be entered into by the Parties.   

WHEREAS, the Parties now enter into this Agreement to implement their respective 

obligations under Section 3 of Exhibit A of the MOU. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Trust Account.  Within three (3) business days of the Effective Date, the 

Renewal Corporation shall provide the County with the then current balance of the Trust 

Account and such other account information as is reasonably necessary for the 

implementation of this Agreement.  The Renewal Corporation shall bear any cost assessed by 

the Bank to establish and maintain the Trust Account.  Unless and until distributed to the 

County in accordance with this Agreement, all funds held (and any interest accruing thereon) 

shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Renewal Corporation.   

2. Disbursements from Trust Account.  Funds held in the Trust Account shall 

be held subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the sole purpose of 

reimbursing the County for actual costs incurred by the County in the performance of the 

Siskiyou County Roadway Work (Reimbursement).  Disbursements from the Trust Account 

for a Reimbursement shall be made pursuant to a Disbursement Authorization, executed by 

the Authorized Representatives of both Parties pursuant to Section 3 of this Agreement.  The 

Renewal Corporation shall have no obligation to make or approve any disbursement from the 

Trust Account prior to FERC’s issuance of a Final Order that substantially conforms with the 

Definite Plan.  Except as otherwise provided by Section 4 of this Agreement, no other 

Item No.B. Backup - 23 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 2 

156691914.1 

disbursement shall be made from the Trust Account to either Party for any purpose 

whatsoever.   

3. Disbursement Authorizations.   

 3.1 Upon completion of the Siskiyou County Roadway Work (or a portion 

thereof), the County may submit a request for Reimbursement to the Renewal Corporation.  

Any such request shall include: 

3.1.1 a notice of completed work for which the County is entitled to 

Reimbursement pursuant to the MOU; and 

3.1.2  copies of receipts, invoices, progress reports and other 

information reasonably required to document the costs actually incurred by the County 

in the performance of such work. 

 3.2 Within ten (10) business days of the Renewal Corporation’s receipt of a 

request for Reimbursement, the Renewal Corporation shall provide the County’s Authorized 

Representative an authorization for disbursement from the Trust Account (Disbursement 

Authorization), signed by the Renewal Corporation’s Authorized Representative.  Upon 

receipt of a Disbursement Authorization, the County’s Authorized Representative may 

execute the same indicating its approval thereof and return an executed copy thereof to the 

Renewal Corporation.  Within three (3) business days of date that the Renewal Corporation 

receives a Disbursement Authorization approved and executed by the County, the Renewal 

Corporation shall direct the Bank to disperse funds from the Trust Account to the County in 

an amount equal to the Disbursement Authorization, in accordance with the wiring 

instructions set forth in Schedule 1 to this Agreement.   

 3.3 Unless otherwise agreed by the Renewal Corporation, the County shall 

not submit requests for Reimbursement to the Renewal Corporation more frequently than at 

thirty (30) day intervals.  If the Renewal Corporation receives a request for Reimbursement 

that exceeds the remaining balance of the Trust Account, the Renewal Corporation may issue 

a Disbursement Authorization for such request in an amount equal to the remaining balance of 

the Trust Account, but in no event shall the Renewal Corporation be liable for Siskiyou 

County Roadway Work in an amount (in the aggregate) in excess of $810,000.00.  

4. Term.  The term of this Agreement (Term) shall commence as of the 

Effective Date and shall end on the date that is the earliest of the following dates to occur:  (a) 

one year following the Renewal Corporation’s Contractor’s completion of the work involving 

heavy loading on Copco Road, Ager Road, and Ager-Beswick Road related to dam removal, 

(b) the termination of the MOU in accordance with Section 6 of the MOU, or (c) by mutual 

agreement of the Parties.  Upon expiration or termination of the Term, the Renewal 

Corporation may close the Trust Account and any funds remaining in the Trust Account as of 

the date of such expiration or termination shall be disbursed to and retained by the Renewal 

Corporation as its sole and exclusive property.   

5. Authorized Representatives.  The Parties designate the following individuals 

to act as their Authorized Representatives for purposes of implementation of this Agreement: 

5.5.1  The County: 

Thomas Deany 

Item No.B. Backup - 24 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 3 

156691914.1 

Director, Siskiyou Department of Public Works 

1312 Fairlane Road 

P.O. Box 1127 

Yreka, CA 96097 

Phone: 530-842-8275 

Email: tdeany@co.siskiyou.ca.us 

  

 

5.5.2  The Renewal Corporation: 

Laura Hazlett 

Chief Operations Officer and Chief Financial Officer 

Klamath River Renewal Corporation 

2001 Addison Street, Suite 317 

Berkeley, CA 94704 

Phone:  510-679-6928 

Email:  lhazlett@klamathrenewal.org 

 

Either Party may designate a successor Authorized Representative by giving the other Party 

notice of such change in accordance with Section 6. 

6. Notices.  All notices, consents, requests, demands or other communications 

required or permitted by this Agreement must be in writing and given by personal delivery, 

email or certified mail and shall be sent to the respective Party’s Authorized Representative.  

Any such communication by a Party shall be deemed to have been received by the other Party 

(a) upon the delivery date received by the intended recipient if delivered by hand; (b) five (5) 

business days after it is sent by certified mail, postage prepaid; or (c) if sent by email 

transmission, when dispatched and acknowledged by the recipient as having been received in 

full and in legible form.   

7. Further Assurances. During the Term, each Party, upon the request of the 

other Party, shall, without further consideration, execute, deliver and acknowledge all such 

further documents or instruments as may be reasonably required, and do and perform all such 

other acts and things as either Party may reasonably request, to effectively carry out the intent 

of this Agreement. 

8. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall create no rights, 

responsibilities and/or obligations of any kind whatsoever in, to or from any parties other than 

the County and the Renewal Corporation. 

9. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement and the MOU collectively comprise the entire 

agreement of the Parties with respect to deposits, withdrawals, reporting, accounting and 

termination of the Trust Account.  This Agreement is intended to be and shall be construed as 

complementary and consistent with the MOU.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 

between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of the 

MOU, the terms and conditions of the MOU shall govern and control.  This Agreement may 

not be amended or modified except by a written agreement signed by the Parties.  If any terms 

or conditions of this Agreement are deemed to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 

this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 

Item No.B. Backup - 25 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  
PAGE 4 

156691914.1 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original agreement, and all of which 

shall constitute one agreement. This Agreement shall be governed, as applicable, by the laws 

of the United State of America and the laws of the State of California. 

This Agreement is made by and between the undersigned Parties as of the Effective Date. 

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU  

 

 

By:   

      Brandon Criss 

      Chair, Board of Supervisors 

      County of Siskiyou 

      State of California 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
By: ___________________             _____ 
Edward Kiernan, County Counsel Date 

 
Approved as to Accounting Form: 
 
By: ______________________       _____ 
Diane Olson, Auditor-Controller  Date 

 

KLAMATH RIVER RENEWAL 

CORPORATION 

 

 

By:   

 Laura Hazlett 

Its: Chief Operations Officer and Chief 

 Financial Officer 

 

Item No.B. Backup - 26 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  

156691914.1 

Schedule 1 

[Wiring instructions to be provided by the County]  

Item No.B. Backup - 27 of 28



DRAFT--NOT REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY OR 
ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY   7/19/22 

  

156691914.1 

Exhibit A 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN SISKIYOU COUNTY, 

CALIFORNIA AND THE KLAMATH RIVER RENEWAL CORPORATION 

Siskiyou MOU 

(executed).pdf
 

Item No.B. Backup - 28 of 28



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 264 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: CONSENT AGENDA 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



Regular Time Requested: 5 min Meeting Date: 08/09/2022
OR
Consent
Contact Person/Department: Joy Hall, Flood Control Phone: 842-8259

Address: 190 Greenhorn Rd. Yreka CA 96097

Person Appearing/Title: Joy Hall, Director of General Services

Subject/Summary of Issue:

Deadwood Conservation Camp Program MOU & Program Project Request

Siskiyou County Flood Control and Water Conservation District has contracted with the CalFire - Deadwood 
Conservation Camp to perform work such as fuel management, hazardous/fire reduction, and trail maintenance.

The MOU is to continue clean up efforts around Lake Siskiyou and other District Properties.  This MOU will be 
effective from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2027

The Program Project Request is for the term of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 in the not to exceed amount of 
$9,985.36

Attached for the Board's consideration is a resolution authorizing the signature of the MOU

Financial Impact:

NO Describe why no financial impact:      

YES
Describe impact by indicating amount budgeted and funding source below

Amount: $9,985.36

Fund: 2501 Description: Flood Org.: 205010 Description: Flood

Account: 723000 Description: Prof. Srvs

Activity Code:       Description:      

Local Preference:   YES             NO  

For Contracts – Explain how vendor was selected:      

     

Additional Information:      

     

Recommended Motion:

Staff requests the approval of the Resolution and MOU and Authorize the CAO or designee to 
initiate future rate agreements as they pertain to the MOU.

Reviewed as recommended by policy: Special Requests:

County Counsel      
     Quantity:      

Auditor      
Certified Minute Order(s)

Personnel      Other:      

CAO           
NOTE:  For consideration for placement on the agenda, the original agenda worksheet and backup material must be 
submitted directly to the Board Clerk (after reviewing signatures have been obtained) by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday the week 
prior to the Board Meeting.                Revised 8/09/2021 

Agenda Worksheet
Submit completed worksheet to:

Siskiyou County Clerk, 311 Fourth St., Rm 201, Yreka, CA 96097

Item No.B. Backup Material - 1 of 7



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY Page 1 of 3 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CONSERVATION CAMP PROGRAM PROJECT REQUEST AND RECORD 
FC-32 (REV. 01/19) 

MOU #_____________________ 

C
A

L 
FI

R
E 

U
SE

 O
N

LY
 PROJECT NAME 

DATE 

FC-79 CODING 

C
A

L 
FI

R
E 

U
SE

 
O

N
LY

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE 
PROTECTION 

CDCR/DJJ-CHECKLIST 
CUSTODIAL QUARTERLY REVIEW 

NAME 
DEADWOOD CONSERVATION CAMP 

INITIAL INSPECTION 

ADDRESS 
17140 MCADAMS CREEK ROAD 

SECURITY FORM PREPARED 

CITY, STATE 
FORT JONES, CA  

SUPERVISION 
LEVEL 

1 2 3 

PHONE 
530-468-2235

FAX 
530-468-2418

SECOND QUARTER 

THIRD QUARTER 

SPONSORING AGENCY FOURTH QUARTER 

SP
O

N
SO

R
IN

G
 A

G
EN

C
Y 

NAME 

ADDRESS CAL FIRE-CHECKLIST 

CITY, STATE 
C

A
L 

FI
R

E 
U

SE
 O

N
LY

 
INITIAL INSPECTION 

PHONE PROJECT NUMBER 

FAX IIPP-2 JOB HAZARD ANALYSIS 

EMAIL IIPP-3 CODE OF SAFE PRACTICES 

COMMENTS: IIPP-4 JOB SAFETY SURVEY 

IIPP-6 EMPLOYEE TRAINING 

CEQA/NEPA COMPLETED 

FC-31 ATTACHED AND SIGNED 

SLASH & PILE BURNING PROCEDURES 

PROPERTY OWNER 
PRIVATE PROPERTY?    NON PROFIT ORGANIZATION    FORM CAL FIRE-719 

  YES         NO   YES         NO     YES         NO   
PROPERTY OWNER 

ADDRESS 

CITY/STATE/ZIP    PHONE 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT (Type of work to be performed, attached additional sheets if necessary) 

Lake Siskiyou

07/25/2022

PR

Siskiyou County Flood Control & Water Conservation District

190 Greenhorn Road

Yreka, CA 96097

530-842-8220

530-842-8288

Direct contact for Joy Hall 530-842-8259 
                            jdhall@co.siskiyou.ca.us 
Joy Hall 842-8272  jdhall@co.siskiyou.ca.us 
Project Contact:  Josh 643-1634 
                            Kevin 598-7916

Thin fuels and treat via running material through the District's chipper, making piles and burning, trail 
maintenance and pulling obnoxious weeds.   The project area is located on all District owned lands 
mainly around Lake Siskiyou.

Siskiyou County Flood Control & Water Conservation District

190 Greenhorn Road

530-842-8220Yreka CA 96097

DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB6739B-9A1C-437E-A7D3-E4FCA7E18BB8

X 

X

X

 

X

X

Per 8100 Checklist

X

X

2PJ2R003

X

X

Sponsor Resp.

Item No.B. Backup Material - 2 of 7



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY Page 2 of 3 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CONSERVATION CAMP PROGRAM PROJECT REQUEST AND RECORD 
FC-32 (REV. 01/19) 

PERIOD WORK CAN BE PERFORMED ESTIMATED CREW DAYS 

REQUESTED START DATE REQUESTED FINISH DATE 

PLANS ATTACHED 
 YES   NO 

PROJECT NAME SPONSOR'S PRIORITY 

PROJECT LOCATION 

GPS COORDINATES 

PROJECT BENEFIT ASSESSMENT (Estimate the benefits of the project including such items as; fire defense, 
public safety, watershed, recreation, wildlife habitat, property, vegetation, soil, water, air surface configuration, 
wildlife, people, economic benefits that include; reduced maintenance costs, reduced suppression costs, 
reduced damage, elimination of hazards, etc. attach additional sheets as necessary). 

PROJECT SLASH & PILE BURNING PROCEDURES 
  YES   NO Predicted Fire Weather Watches or Warnings  
  YES   NO Hazard Reduction Pile Burning Checklist (8100) 
  YES   NO Sponsor has a valid burn permit on site. 
  YES   NO All slash & piles will be consumed or extinguished prior to crew leaving project site. 
  YES   NO Sponsor will provide suppression control capabilities and supervision of all slash & pile 

     burning that continues beyond crew work day. 
  YES   NO Notification to agency with fire suppression responsibility for the project burn site. 

07/01/22 - 06/30/23

07/01/22 06/30/23

Lake Siskiyou

Lake Siskiyou, Mount Shasta CA and other District Properties

Fuel reduction, watershed improvement,fire defense, reduced suppression costs, elimination of hazards, 
recreation.

DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB6739B-9A1C-437E-A7D3-E4FCA7E18BB8
Item No.B. Backup Material - 3 of 7



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY Page 3 of 3 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CONSERVATION CAMP PROGRAM PROJECT REQUEST AND RECORD 
FC-32 (REV. 01/19) 

C
A

L  
F I

R
E 

U
SE

 O
N

LY
 

PROJECT SPONSOR 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

DESCRIPTION 
ESTIMATED 

DURATION OF 
NEED 

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 

SPECIAL TOOLS 

VEHICLE OPERATIONS 

TECHNICAL SUPERVISION AND LABOR 

OTHER  (DESCRIBE) 

OPERATIONAL COST RECOVERY FROM SPONSOR 

C
A

L 
FI

R
E 

U
SE

 O
N

LY
 

Total $200/day (plus current ENY 
administrative fee) 

C
A

L 
FI

R
E 

U
SE

 O
N

LY
 Approved For Final Planning and 

Scheduling 
Sponsors Signature 

CAL FIRE DIVISION CHIEF DATE NAME (PRINT) 

CDCR CAMP COMMANDER DATE SIGNATURE DATE 

UNIT CHIEF DATE  
     

 

Accounting 2501-205010-723000 NTE $9,985.36

Brandon Criss

TITLE
 Chair, Board of Directors of the Siskiyou County Flood Control 

and Water Conservation District

CHIPPER AS NEEDED

SERVICES WILL BE BILLED QUARTERLY

FINANCIAL RECORDS WILL BE RETAINED FOR 10 
YEARS

INVOICE BALANCE DUE 30 DAYS 
FROM BILLING DATE

13.47% Admin Fee+$200 $226.94/day

DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB6739B-9A1C-437E-A7D3-E4FCA7E18BB8

7/29/2022

7/29/2022

7/29/2022

Item No.B. Backup Material - 4 of 7



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CONSERVATION CAMP PROGRAM – MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
FC-31 (Rev. 11/10) 
MOU #__________________ Master Agreement #_______________ 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into by and between the California Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) and _____________________________________________ (Sponsor). 

WHEREAS, CAL FIRE is authorized under Public Resources and Penal Codes to utilize inmates, or wards, assigned to 
conservation camps to perform the work of CAL FIRE; 

WHEREAS, through contracts or cooperative agreement CAL FIRE may permit inmates, or wards to be used in the performance of 
conservation projects, fuels management and or hazard reduction (which could include slash and pile burning)  for a public agency 
(local, state, or federal) or a qualified nonprofit organization under policies established by the Prison Industries Authority; and  

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has a need for assistance in performing such projects, 

The parties agree as follows: 

A. The Sponsor shall submit project proposals on a form approved by CAL FIRE (currently an FC-32).  By doing so, with
reference to any such proposals subsequently approved by the CAL FIRE, Sponsor agrees to:

1. Pay for all costs directly related to and necessitated by such projects, except for wages, salaries, and other remuneration
paid to CAL FIRE employees, inmates, or wards, and the cost of their support.

2. Demonstrate the availability of adequate plans and specifications, sufficient funds, materials, supplies, and equipment,
adequate technical supervision and any special labor requirements to complete such projects.

3. Obtain the approvals, notification, and permits required by any state, federal, or local agency necessary to commence
construction, fuels management, or operation of such projects.

4. Hold an orientation meeting with CAL FIRE at the commencement of such projects to explain the technical aspects,
execution of, and need for such projects.

B. From proposals submitted by the Sponsor, CAL FIRE shall select those projects meeting the priorities and resources of CAL
FIRE.  CAL FIRE shall submit evaluations to Sponsor that set forth any special requirements or conditions related to the
projects.  By so doing, with reference to any such evaluations subsequently approved by Sponsor, CAL FIRE agrees to provide
labor, crew, supervision, normal transportation, food, and such tools as CAL FIRE determines to be available.  Upon receipt of
Sponsor’s acceptance of such evaluations, projects shall be assigned to a conservation camp where they will be scheduled in
accordance with the priorities and resources of CAL FIRE.

C. Timing

1. Sponsor recognizes that fire suppression and other emergency activities have priority over any other work for
conservation camp crews.

2. Sponsor further recognizes that the resources of CAL FIRE are limited and the public service conservation work of CAL
FIRE may be altered in priority form time to time.

3. Projects will be performed within the rules and regulations of CAL FIRE which may require temporary suspension or
permanent cessation of projects due to emergency conditions as defined by such rules and regulations.

4. The Parties agree that any justified delays by either party shall be excused and costs caused by such delays shall be
borne by the party incurring such costs.

D. Work performed under this MOU will be under the immediate supervision of CAL FIRE officials.  The Sponsor will provide such
operation supervision, technical assistance, guidance, and inspection, as it considers necessary to properly complete the work.

E. Nothing herein shall be construed as obligating the Sponsor to expend or to obligate funds in excess of appropriations
authorized by law.

F. All improvements constructed in whole or in part on lands owned or controlled by Sponsor will remain the property of Sponsor.

G. Permission to perform work on lands owned or controlled by Sponsor does not in any way convey to CAL FIRE, its staff or any
persons working with CAL FIRE in the performance of said work, employee status that would extend to them the benefits
afforded to permanent employees of Sponsor.

Siskiyou County Flood Control & Water Conservation District

DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB6739B-9A1C-437E-A7D3-E4FCA7E18BB8
Item No.B. Backup Material - 5 of 7



 

  
  

 

 

CAL FIRE 

Date: ______________________ 

By: __________________________________________ 

Print Name:  

Title: Division Chief 

Address: 17140 McAdams Creek Rd 
Fort Jones, CA 96032 

   
 

     
  

 

    
  

   SPONSOR ___________________________________________      

Date: ______________________ 

   By: _____________________________________________    

Print Name:

   Title: 

   Address: 

H. Upon completion of each project, or any phase thereof, permission is hereby granted to CAL FIRE to place upon the project 
site a sign or emblem consistent in size and design to its surroundings, indicating the participation of CAL FIRE and the year 
thereof.

I. Other than as indicated in Section H, neither party shall use the name of the other party in any form or manner in 
advertisements nor other information released to the public without the prior written approval of the other party. Sponsor may 
be, and CAL FIRE is, subject to the California Public Records Act.  This Section I is not intended to prohibit either party from 
legally complying with the PRA.

J.E ach party, to the extent permitted by law, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its officers, agents and
  employees from all claims, demands, or liability arising out of the indemnifying party’s performance under this MOU except
  where such injury or damage arose from the sole negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the other party.

K. Neither party may assign this MOU or any interest herein without the written consent of the other party.

L. Subject to the provisions herein, all remedies allowed by law are available to either party for enforcement of this MOU. Any 
waiver of rights by either party on any matter related to this MOU shall not be deemed to be a waiver on any other matter 
relating to the MOU.

M. All provisions of this MOU constitute essential elements of the agreed exchange that is the subject matter of this MOU. 
Accordingly, if any of these provisions are determined to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any material respect, the 
remainder of this MOU is not enforceable against either of the Parties except as may be necessary to effect payment for 
services already rendered.

N. This MOU may be modified by mutual written agreement of the parties.

O. This MOU takes effect shall remain in effect from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2027 unless terminated prior to that date by 60 
days written notice from one party to the other.

IT IS AGREED:

Siskiyou County Flood Control & Water Conservation District

Brandon Criss

Chair, Board of Directors

190 Greenhorn Rd., Yreka CA 96097

DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB6739B-9A1C-437E-A7D3-E4FCA7E18BB8

7/29/2022

Shawn Raley

Item No.B. Backup Material - 6 of 7



RESOLUTION NO. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SISKIYOU COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT,

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
APPROVAL OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION AND ASSOCIATED 
CONSERVATION CAMP PROJECT REQUEST

WHEREAS, the Siskiyou County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (the 
“District”) owns approximately 2,000 acres of forested property surrounding Lake Siskiyou; and

WHEREAS, the District maintains this property and others within its boundaries, including 
on or around Tennant, Bray, and Meiss Lake (the “Properties”); and

WHEREAS, as part of the District’s maintenance of the Properties the District engages in 
fuel reduction projects, which includes burning of excess brush; and

WHEREAS, partnering with the Deadwood Conservation Camp to accomplish such tasks 
results in a substantial cost savings; and

WHERAS, the District desires to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”) 
with the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection for this purpose, and

WHERAS, the effective date of the MOU would be July 1, 2022, and would expire, unless 
extended in writing, on June 30, 2027; and

WHEREAS, funds are available in budget 2501-205010-723000 to accomplish this 
partnership.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Siskiyou County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District:

1. Approves the attached Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”);
2. Authorizes the Chair of the Flood District to execute the MOU.

The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Siskiyou County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District of the County of Siskiyou, State of California, held on the ____ 
day of _________2022 by the following vote:

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:
LAURA BYNUM
Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

By: 

Deputy

BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR 
Board of Directors of the Siskiyou 
County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District
County of Siskiyou 
State of California

Item No.B. Backup Material - 7 of 7



Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
Page 272 of 280 

 

 
 
The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: July 12, 2022 
Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



 

Volume 77 318 July 12, 2022 

State of California, County of Siskiyou 

Board of Supervisors Minutes, July 12, 2022 
 The Honorable Board of Supervisors of Siskiyou County, California, met in regular session this 12th 
day of July 2022; there being present Supervisors Brandon Criss, Michael N. Kobseff, Ray A. Haupt, Nancy 
Ogren and Ed Valenzuela, County Administrator Angela Davis, County Counsel Edward J. Kiernan, and 
County Clerk and ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Laura Bynum by Deputy County Clerk Wendy 
Winningham. 

 The meeting was called to order by Chair Criss. Pursuant to AB23, the Clerk announced that the 
Board members receive no additional compensation for sitting as members of the Siskiyou County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District, County Service Area No. 4 and In Home Supportive Services 
Public Authority. Detective Mireya Masson led in the salute to the flag of the United States of America. 

Invocation - Siskiyou County Sheriff Chaplain Jim Howe provided an invocation. 

Presentations from the Public 

Agricultural Commissioner Jim Smith appeared before the Board and provided an update regarding recent 
bear and mountain lion activity within the County. Mr. Smith voiced concerns regarding the potential negative 
impacts associated with the Fish and Wildlife Department’s handling of predatory animals and suggested a 
future agenda item to discuss the issue. 

Audience member Lynn Beach appeared before the Board, sharing concerns regarding Dominion Voting 
machines and sharing support for the Humboldt County Election Transparency Project. 

Public Requests - Deputy Sheriff's Association - Presentation to the Board re the current state of the Union. 
Presentation and discussion only. 

Deputy Sheriff's Association (DSA) representatives Detective Mireya Masson and Deputy Sheriff Mike 
Johnson appeared before the Board. Mr. Johnson provided an overview of the request, sharing concerns 
regarding the negative impacts associated with recent labor negotiations between the DSA and the Board 
on DSA members’ moral and staffing in the Sheriff’s Office. Mr. Johnson additionally shared concerns 
regarding the number of staff that have left the County for employment elsewhere. Mr. Johnson requested 
that the Board read/review a recently released fact finding report concerning DSA members’ overpayment 
due to an Auditor error. 

Ms. Masson voiced concerns regarding the labor negotiation process and concerns regarding proposed 
termination of compensation for participation in Sheriff’s special teams. 

The Chair opened the item to public comments. 

Audience member Jeffery Edgerly appeared before the Board, sharing concerns regarding the negative 
impacts associated with increased crime, etc. due to reduced law enforcement staff and speaking in support 
of the Deputies and their union. 

Sheriff Sergeant Louis Mero voiced support for the DSA and concerns regarding the negative impacts 
associated with reduced law enforcement members in the County. 

Deputy Sheriff Richard Ortiz appeared before the Board, voicing support for the DSA and their requests 
related to pay/compensation. 

Sheriff Sergeant Sam Kubowitz appeared before the Board, voicing concerns regarding the negative 
impacts associated with reduced law enforcement staffing and shared support for the DSA and their 
requests related to pay/compensation. 

Local resident Shawn Gordon appeared before the Board, voicing concerns regarding the negative impacts 
associated with reduced law enforcement staffing and shared support for the DSA and their requests related 
to pay/compensation. 

 Continued… 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 1 of 8



 

Volume 77 319 July 12, 2022 

Public Requests - Deputy Sheriff's Association – (continued) 

Lieutenant Ben Whetstine appeared before the Board, voicing concerns regarding the negative impacts 
associated with reduced law enforcement staffing and the County’s contracted labor negotiator. 

Audience member Karen Cabron appeared before the Board, voicing support for the DSA and their requests 
related to pay/compensation. 

Undersheriff James Randall appeared before the Board, voicing concerns regarding the impacts associated 
with reduced staffing, the need to utilize Deputies to assist/staff at the Jail, the loss of law enforcement 
staffing to local jurisdictions and voiced support for the Deputies’ requests. 

Sheriff Jeremiah Larue appeared before the Board and voiced concerns regarding the impact of the loss of 
law enforcement and dispatch staff and requested the Board’s assistance in navigating the labor negotiation 
process. 

Local resident Holly Hansard suggested elimination of the Dominion Voting machines in order to increase 
pay/compensation for the County’s deputies. In addition, Ms. Hansard encouraged the Board to view a video 
entitled: 2000 Mules. 

Discussion followed between members of the Board, DSA representative Detective Levi Machado and 
County Administrator Angela Davis regarding the required rules of engagement associated with labor 
negotiations, the recently released fact finding report and the current status of impasse in the negotiations. 

Consent Agenda – Approved. 

At Supervisor Haupt’s request, item 5B, County Administration’s letters to the Klamath National Forest in 
support of projects in the 2022 Schedule of Proposed Action (SOPA) was pulled from the consent agenda 
for discussion. 

It was moved by Supervisor Kobseff, seconded by Supervisor Ogren and carried, following a roll call vote 
with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES, that the following consent 
agenda is approved, and the Chair and/or clerk authorized to execute/record any necessary documents: 

 County Administration 
Authorize the Chair of the Board to sign the letter for submission with the responses to the 
Civil Grand Jury. 

 County Administration 
Approve the Proclamation and authorize all five Board members to sign. 

 County Administration - Personnel 
Adopt Resolution P 22-113 delegating authority to the Deputy County Administrator – 
Personnel and Risk Management Officer or the County Administrator to submit applications 
or make determinations for disability retirement or industrial disability retirements for 
employees of the County of Siskiyou. 

 County Administration - Personnel 
Adopt Resolution P 22-114 memorializing the medical contribution for employees covered by 
the Siskiyou County Correctional Peace Officer Association Memorandum of Understanding. 

 County Administration - Personnel 
Adopt Resolution P 22-115 memorializing the medical contribution for employees covered by 
the Elected Department Head resolution effective January 1, 2023. 

 County Administration - Personnel 
Ratify/adopt Resolution P 22-116 amending the Siskiyou County Position Allocation List to 
make revisions as detailed in the attached Resolution effective July 10, 2022. 

 Continued… 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 2 of 8



 

Volume 77 320 July 12, 2022 

Consent Agenda – (continued) 

 County Clerk 
Approval of requests from the cities of Dorris, Dunsmuir, Etna, Montague, Mt Shasta, 
Tulelake, Weed, Yreka and the Town of Fort Jones; as well as the Community Services 
Districts of Happy Camp, Tennant, Lake Shastina and McCloud, Fire Protection Districts of 
Happy Camp, Montague, Mt Shasta, South Yreka and Tulelake Multicounty, Weed 
Recreation and Parks District and Tulelake Irrigation District, to consolidate their election with 
the Statewide General Election and authorize the County Clerk to provide necessary election 
services. 

 Community Development 
Approve the 2nd Addendum for Prentice Long Contract. 

 Dunsmuir Recreation and Parks District 
Approve the Resolution 22-117 for a temporary loan in the amount of $60,000 to the 
Dunsmuir Recreation and Parks District, which loan shall be repaid to the County on or before 
April 10, 2023. 

 General Services - Sanitation 
Approve 5th Addendum with Scott Valley Disposal. 

 Health and Human Services - Public Health Division 
Approve and authorize the Chair to sign the Third Addendum to Contract for Services 
between Harold’s Cleaning and Siskiyou County Health and Human Services Agency, Public 
Health Division for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, with a total amount of 
the Contract not to exceed $255,500. 

 Health and Human Services - Social Services Division 
Approve and the Chair sign the Contract for Services between Siskiyou County Health and 
Human Services Agency and Siskiyou Child Care Council which is effective July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023. 

 Public Works  
Approve and sign this rate contract for Hunt & Sons, Inc. to supply Public Works with 
Lubricants and Solvents. 

 Public Works  
Approve and sign the 2nd addendum between Pace Engineering, Inc. and Siskiyou County 
Road Department for services needed. 

 Sheriff 
Approve and authorize Board Chair to sign Contract between Cordico and Siskiyou County 
Sheriff's Office. 

 Sheriff 
Approve and authorize Board Chair to sign Contract between Chaplain Keith Bradley and 
Siskiyou County Sheriff's Office. 

 Sheriff 
Accept the donation from Redding Police Department and allow the Auditor to allocate it to 
our inventory. 

 Sheriff 
Approve and ratify the Sheriff to enter a contract with Axon Enterprises, Inc. for body camera 
and cloud evidence storage for the term July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027. Allow the Auditor to 
make appropriations. 

 Sheriff 
Approve the letter and authorize the Chair to sign. 

 Continued… 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 3 of 8



 

Volume 77 321 July 12, 2022 

Consent Agenda – (continued) 

 Transfer of Funds - Planning - $50,000. Resolution 22-118 adopted. 

 Transfer of Funds - Probation - $2,718. Resolution 22-119 adopted. 

 Transfer of Funds - Sheriff - $49,000. Resolution 22-120 adopted. 

County Administration - Approve three letters to the Klamath National Forest in support of projects within 
the 2022 second quarter Schedule of Proposed Action (SOPA). Approved. 

This item was pulled from the consent agenda at Supervisor Haupt’s request. 

Supervisor Haupt shared concerns regarding the proposed reduction or elimination of aerial application of 
fire retardant to fight wildfires on National Forest lands and the potential negative impact to local 
communities most often affected by wildfires. Supervisor Haupt advised of the need to draw attention to the 
proposal. 

Brief discussion followed between members of the Board regarding the need for a future agenda item to 
discuss the issue with CalFire and the US Forest Service. 

It was moved by Supervisor Haupt, seconded by Supervisor Kobseff and carried, following a roll call vote 
with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES to approve three letters of support 
for projects on the 2022 second quarter Schedule of Proposed Action (SOPA) and authorize the Chair to 
sign. 

Presentations from the Public 

Participation in presentations from the public by various members of the public was provided via 
teleconference phone. 

Caller Michael Huffman read from the Declaration of Shawn A. Smith in the Kari Lake, Plaintiff v. Katie 
Hobbs, Arizona Secretary of State, et al., Defendants case concerning the use of Dominion Vote machines 
in Arizona. 

Audience members Alma Geib and Ben Madison appeared before the Board and read from the Declaration 
of Shawn A. Smith in the Kari Lake, Plaintiff v. Katie Hobbs, Arizona Secretary of State, et al., Defendants 
case concerning the use of Dominion Vote machines in Arizona. 

Audience members Holly Hansard and Bill Schmidt shared concerns regarding the County’s use of 
Dominion Voting machines. Ms. Hansard a one-page document regarding Jovan Hutton Pulitzer. 

Audience member Daniel Simon presented a five-page packet, sharing concerns regarding the County’s 
use of the Dominion Voting machines and sharing support for the Humboldt County Election Transparency 
Project. 

Caller Alice Rogers voiced concerns regarding the comments made in support of the Declaration of Shawn 
A. Smith and associated conspiracy theories regarding the election. 

Audience members Jeffrey Edgerly and Louise Gliatto spoke in support of the County using paper ballots 
to conduct future elections. 

County Administration – Personnel - Informational presentation re Side Letter Agreements with the 
Organized Employees of Siskiyou County (OESC) Miscellaneous and Management Units pertaining to 
salary for Communications Dispatcher classifications in the Sheriff’s Office, effective July 10, 2022. 
Presentation and discussion only. 

Deputy County Administrator Melissa Cummins appeared before the Board, introducing Organized 
Employees of Siskiyou County (OESC) representative Matt Rokes. 

Ms. Cummins provided an overview of the request, advising that the side letter agreements pertained to 
Communications Dispatcher salaries. 

Sheriff Jeremiah Larue and Mr. Rokes briefly commented regarding the side letters agreement process. 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 4 of 8



 

Volume 77 322 July 12, 2022 

County Administration – Personnel - Discussion, direction and possible action re Resolution regarding 
certain terms and conditions of employment for Elected Department Heads, effective July 12, 2022. 
Resolutions P 22-121 and P 22-122 adopted. 

Deputy County Administrator Melissa Cummins appeared before the Board, and provided an overview of 
the request to approve salaries and benefits for Elected Department Heads. In addition, Ms. Cummins 
advised that certain benefits would not change or be effective until February, 2027 (following the next 
election cycle). 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela, seconded by Supervisor Kobseff and carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES, to adopt Resolution P 22-
121 regarding certain terms and conditions of employment for Elected Department Heads effective July 12, 
2022. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela, seconded by Supervisor Criss and carried, following a roll call vote 
with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES, to adopt Resolution P 22-122 
amending the Siskiyou County Salary Schedule as detailed in the Resolution, effective July 24, 2022. 

County Administration – Personnel - Discussion, direction and possible action re first reading of an 
ordinance amending Section 2-6.10 of Chapter 6 of Title 2 of the Siskiyou County Code regarding salary 
and benefits for the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors. First reading of proposed ordinance was table 
to a later meeting date. 

Deputy County Administrator Melissa Cummins appeared before the Board, and provided an overview of 
the request increase Board of Supervisor members’ salaries and provide employee benefits similar to the 
Elected Department Head Unit. Ms. Cummins requested a correction to page five of the red-lined version 
(add an ‘s’ to Supervisor on the bottom of page 5 of the ordinance red-lined version) and further advised 
that should this first reading be approved, the second reading could be on August 2nd and the ordinance 
would become effective October 2, 2022. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela to table the proposed ordinance to a later meeting date following 
the completion of various labor negotiations. 

Discussion followed between members of the Board regarding the proposed ordinance, the proposed 
benefit/salary amendments, ongoing labor negotiations with other County department units/unions and the 
suggested delay in approving the draft ordinance. 

There were no public comments received regarding this item. 

Supervisor Criss seconded Supervisor Valenzuela’s motion to table the ordinance to a later date. 

Following a roll call vote with Supervisors Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES and Supervisor 
Haupt voting NO, the motion to table the proposed ordinance to a later meeting date following the completion 
of various labor negotiations carried. 

County Administration - Discussion, direction and possible action re first reading of an Ordinance 
amending Chapter 1 of Title 2 of the Siskiyou County Code adopting Sections 2-1.18 through 2-1.26 related 
to administration of County Airports. First reading approved; public hearing for second reading set on August 
2, 2022. 

County Administrator Angela Davis provided an overview of the request revise the Siskiyou County Code 
with regard to administration of County airports. 

It was moved by Supervisor Kobseff, seconded by Supervisor Ogren and carried, following a roll call vote 
with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES to introduce, waive, and approve 
the first reading of the Ordinance amending Title 2 “Administration” Chapter 1 “Airports” of the Siskiyou 
County Code to add Sections 2-1.18 through 2-1.26, and direct the Clerk to schedule a public hearing on, 
and second reading of the Ordinance on August 2, 2022. 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 5 of 8



 

Volume 77 323 July 12, 2022 

Public Hearings - Community Development - Planning Division - Public hearing for the second reading of 
an ordinance amending Sections 10-6.1601(n) and 10-6.1601(ac)(9) of the Siskiyou County Code regarding 
application fees and amending the Planning Fee Schedule, Article 16 (Continued from June 14, 2022). 
Ordinance 22-14 adopted. 

This was the time set for a public hearing for the second reading of an ordinance amending Sections 10-
6.1601(n) and 10-6.1601(ac)(9) of the Siskiyou County Code regarding application fees and amending the 
Planning Fee Schedule, Article 16, having been introduced on June 14, 2022. 

Chair Criss opened the public hearing. 

Community Development Director Rick Dean provided a brief overview of the request, advising that approval 
of the ordinance would allow the Department to ‘pass-through’ certain costs associated with Planning 
projects and to update Surface Mining And Reclamation Act (SMARA) language. 

In response to Chair Criss, Deputy County Clerk Wendy Winningham advised that the Clerk’s Office had 
not received correspondence related to this item. 

There being no public comments received, the public hearing was declared closed. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela, seconded by Supervisor Kobseff and carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES, to introduce, waive the 
second reading and approve adoption of an Ordinance, 22-14, amending sections 10-6.1601(n) and 10-
6.1601(ac)(9) regarding Planning Division pass through fees and minor SMARA code update respectively 
of the Siskiyou County Code. 

Public Hearings - Community Development - Public hearing to consider Resolution directing staff to issue 
a Notice of Non-Renewal for Williamson Act Contract Nos. 71067, 95001 and 20-02-1, involving the 
following Assessor's Parcel Numbers: 041-120-060 (Davies-Pina), 041-132-260 (Macay), 041-120-020 
(Zavala), 041-120-040 (Murrillo), 041-120-010 (Hochberg), 041-120-050 (Hain), 022-100-180, 022-110-120 
(Giant Alliance Holdings LLC), 015-530-270, 015-530-100 and 015-550-220 (Golden Willow Ranch LLC). 
Resolution 22-123 adopted. 

This was the time set for a public hearing to consider a Resolution directing staff to issue a Notice of Non-
Renewal for Williamson Act Contract Nos. 71067, 95001 and 20-02-1, involving the following Assessor's 
Parcel Numbers: 041-120-060 (Davies-Pina), 041-132-260 (Macay), 041-120-020 (Zavala), 041-120-040 
(Murrillo), 041-120-010 (Hochberg), 041-120-050 (Hain), 022-100-180, 022-110-120 (Giant Alliance 
Holdings LLC), 015-530-270, 015-530-100 and 015-550-220 (Golden Willow Ranch LLC). 

Chair Criss recused himself from consideration of this item and left the Board Chambers. 

Vice Chair Valenzuela opened the public hearing. 

Deputy County Clerk Wendy Winningham briefly summarized the order of presentation. 

Assistant Planner Bernadette Cizin appeared before the Board, providing an overview of the request, 
including a staff report detailing Planning staff’s recommendation that the three Williamson Act Contracts, 
numbers 71067, 95001 and 20-02-1, not be renewed. In addition, Ms. Cizin recommended that the project 
be declared exempt under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and requested adoption of the 
associated Resolution. 

In response to the Vice Chair, Ms. Winningham advised that the Clerk’s Office had not received 
correspondence related to this item. 

There being no public comments received, the public hearing was declared closed. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela, seconded by Supervisor Haupt and carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela and Ogren voting YES and Supervisor Criss RECUSED 
to adopt the Resolution, 22-123, directing staff to issue a Notice of Non-Renewal to Williamson Act Contracts 
No. 71067, 95001 and 20-02-1, and hereby taking the following actions: the Board of Supervisors determine 
that the proposed issuance of Non-Renewals of Williamson Act contracts is categorically exempt under 
Section 15317 of the CEQA Guidelines; and authorize staff to process the Notice of Non-Renewals with any 
changes directed by the Board. Continued… 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 6 of 8



 

Volume 77 324 July 12, 2022 

Public Hearings - Community Development – (continued) 

Supervisor Criss returned to the Board Chambers. 

Board of Supervisors' Requests - Board of Supervisors - Review status of local emergency related to 
drought declared by Resolution 22-74, adopted on April 5, 2022; action to extend or terminate local 
emergency. Local emergency extended. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela and seconded by Supervisor Haupt to extend the local emergency 
related to drought as declared by Resolution 22-74. 

Supervisor Haupt provided a brief update regarding the Scott Valley irrigation water curtailment orders, 
advising that enforcement of the orders had relaxed some due to recent weather/storms. 

The Chair called for the question and the motion to extend the local emergency carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES. 

Board of Supervisors' Requests - Board of Supervisors - Review status of local emergency related to the 
proliferation of illegal cannabis cultivation as declared by Resolution 20-18, adopted on January 21, 2020; 
action to extend or terminate local emergency. Local emergency extended. 

It was moved by Supervisor Haupt, and seconded by Supervisor Kobseff, and carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES, to extend the local 
emergency related to the proliferation of illegal cannabis cultivation as declared by Resolution 20-18. 

Appointments - County Clerk - Appointment of two members to the scheduled vacancies on the Dunsmuir 
Recreation and Parks District, for terms ending June 30, 2026. William Newman and Stephen Cutting 
appointed. 

Deputy County Clerk Wendy Winningham provided an overview of the request, advising that incumbents 
William Newman and Stephen Cutting were interested in reappointment and eligible to serve on the District 
Board. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela, seconded by Supervisor Kobseff and carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting Yes, to appoint William Newman 
and Stephen Cutting to the scheduled vacancies on the Dunsmuir Recreation and Parks District, for terms 
ending June 30, 2026. 

Appointments - County Clerk - Appointment of two members to the scheduled vacancies on the Mt. Shasta 
Recreation and Parks District, for terms ending June 30, 2026. Heather De Arton and John Courtney 
appointed. 

Deputy County Clerk Wendy Winningham provided an overview of the request, advising that incumbent 
Heather De Arton was interested in reappointment and eligible to serve on the District Board. In addition, 
Ms. Winningham advised that local resident John Courtney was interested in serving and eligible as an 
active registered voter residing within the District. 

It was moved by Supervisor Valenzuela, seconded by Supervisor Ogren and carried, following a roll call 
vote with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting Yes, to appoint Heather De Arton 
and John Courtney to the scheduled vacancies on the Mt. Shasta Recreation and Parks District, for terms 
ending June 30, 2026. 

Appointments - County Clerk - Appointment of one member to the unscheduled vacancy on the Modoc 
Siskiyou Community Action Agency (MSCAA) Board of Directors, for a term ending December 31, 2023. 
Continued to a later date. 

Deputy County Clerk Wendy Winningham provided an overview of the request, advising that the Clerk’s 
Office had not received any letters of interested in serving on the Modoc Siskiyou Community Action Agency 
(MSCAA) Board of Directors. Ms. Winningham requested that the item be continued. 

Chair Criss advised that the item was continued to a later date. 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 7 of 8



 

Volume 77 325 July 12, 2022 

Minute Approval - June 14, and June 21, and July 5, 2022. Approved. 

It was moved by Supervisor Kobseff, seconded by Supervisor Ogren, and carried, following a roll call vote 
with Supervisors Haupt, Kobseff, Valenzuela, Ogren and Criss voting YES, to approve the June 14 and 21, 
and July 5, 2022 minutes as presented. 

Closed Session - Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant to Government Code 
§54956.9(a), two cases, conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant to Government Code 
§54956.9(d)(1), four cases, conference with legal counsel, anticipated litigation pursuant to Government 
Code §54956.9, significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(d)(2), one case, 
conference with labor negotiators pursuant to Government Code §54957.6, commenced at 12:10p.m., 
concluded at 2:13p.m., with no action taken. 

Report On Closed Session 

County Counsel Edward J. Kiernan announced that closed session concluded at 2:13p.m., with the 
following: 

With regard to item 15C, Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation pursuant to Government Code 
§54956.9(d)(1), name of case: Siskiyou Hospital, Inc., dba Fairchild Medical Center v. County of Siskiyou, 
et al., Siskiyou County Superior Court Case No. SCCVPT 19-01501, Mr. Kiernan advised that Supervisor 
Haupt stepped out of the Board Chambers from 12:10-12:17. 

With regard to item 15E,  Conference with legal counsel, anticipated litigation pursuant to Government Code 
§54956.9, significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code §54956.9(d)(2), one case, Mr. 
Kiernan advised that Supervisor Ogren stepped out of the Board Chambers from 1:38-1:40. 

Board and Staff Reports 

Supervisor Haupt advised of his attendance at a Klamathon Community reunion event along with Supervisor 
Criss and various County staff. 

Supervisor Valenzuela advised of his plans to attend an upcoming California State Association of Counties 
(CSAC)  

Supervisor Ogren reported on her attendance at an Economic Recreation World Communities workshop, 
efforts made to assist the Siskiyou County Republican Women’s Club with cleaning up the Siskiyou Golden 
Fair flower garden and ongoing efforts to work on homelessness initiatives/project in Yreka. 

Supervisor Criss advised of his attendance at a meeting with Mt. Shasta Forest Property Owners 
Association Executive Committee regarding various issues in the McCloud area. In addition, Supervisor 
Criss advised of attending a recent Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Agency JPA meeting. 

Adjournment - There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, the meeting was 
adjourned. 

 _______________________ 

Attest: Brandon A. Criss, Chair 

Laura Bynum, County Clerk 

By: ________________________ 

 Deputy 

Item No.A. Draft Minutes - 8 of 8


	08/09/2022
	9:00 A.M. - FLAG SALUTE
	INVOCATION - Siskiyou County Sheriff Chaplain.
	ROLL CALL
	PRESENTATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
	CONSENT AGENDA
	COUNTY ADMINISTRATION
	Backup Material
	1.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	2.pdf (1 page)


	GENERAL SERVICES
	Backup Material
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (30 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30



	GENERAL SERVICES
	Backup Material
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (30 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30



	HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION
	BACKUP MATERIAL
	1.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	2.pdf (31 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31

	3.pdf (1 page)


	HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION
	Backup Material
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4



	HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION
	Backup Material
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (14 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14

	3.pdf (38 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38

	4.pdf (1 page)
	5.pdf (19 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19



	PUBLIC WORKS 
	Backup Material
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	3.pdf (1 page)



	DEPARTMENTAL REQUESTS
	COUNTY ADMINISTRATION - PERSONNEL
	Backup Material
	1.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	2.pdf (1 page)
	3.pdf (27 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27

	4.xlsx (1 page)
	5.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6.pdf (1 page)
	7.pdf (1 page)
	8.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2



	COUNTY ADMINISTRATION
	Backup
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (21 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21

	3.pdf (6 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6




	THE FOLLOWING MAY BE HEARD AT ANY TIME DURING THE MEETING
	FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Backup Material
	1.docx (1 page)
	2.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	3.docx (1 page)



	MINUTE APPROVAL
	July 12, 2022
	Draft Minutes
	1.pdf (8 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8




	CLOSED SESSION
	REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	BOARD AND STAFF REPORTS


